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On January 16, through public auction, Yuzhou Properties
acquired a parcel of quality commercial and residential
land in Jimei, Xiamen, with RMB2.74 billion, with average
land costs at RMB8,979/sq.m..
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On February 26, in the 2014 International
Mercury Awards Competition, Yuzhou Properties
won the 2014 Grand Award for Interim Report
Cover Design in the category of Die-cut Cover,
as well as the Honorary Award for the 20th
Anniversary Brochure.
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On January 14, Yuzhou Properties was ranked the 5th
among the Top 10 (Market Cap 10 billion or Below
Enterprises) Most Overall strength in the “2014 H-share
Top 100 Enterprises”.
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On January 23, the Company was honored 61th of
Overall IR Ranking and 16th in Real Estate Industry
on the List of Greater China Listed Companies in IR
Magazine.

18230 % (IR Magazine) KA ER FHAAl&E
BREEBRGAHEEOIBRBEITEE16E
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MERC LIRY

On March 25, Yuzhou Properties announced 2014 Annual Results. Contract sales, revenue

and gross profit reached record high, up to RMB12,001.29 million, 7,836.63 million and

2,844.77 million respectively. Gross profit margin reached a high level to 36.3%. Net gearing ~,
et ratio decreased by 18.13 percentage points year-on-year to

: 59.85%.
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On April 21, Yuzhou Properties was honored the Honorary
Award for its 2014 interim report by 2015 Astrid Awards.

R)20144F /R HA 5 25 2872015 Astrid Awards

hk[ige
IR Awards 2015

On May 7, in the HKIRA 1st IR Award, Yuzhou Properties’ IR team awarded two

On May 13, Yuzhou Properties successfully
placed 360 million new shares at the placing
price of HK$2.2 per placing share. Taiwan
Life and TransGlobe Life were introduced and
became its important strategic investors, which
implied that Taiwan’s large financial institutions
are optimistic towards Yuzhou’s development.

5H135 Wbi‘é’é%ﬁﬂxsm Hx @Eﬁ{ftﬂxzz
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honors amongst the competitors — the Best IR Company and Best IRO (with a
market cap of HK$10 billion or below).
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On May 28, the Company was ranked 37th among “2015 Top 50
Comprehensive Strength of Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies
Award”, and for the first time won the 3rd ranking in “2015
Chinese Real Estate Listed

Companies with Operation " T

Efficiency”.
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On June 4, in the 2015 Questar Awards,
Yuzhou Properties’ corporate video won Silver
Awards in both categories of Broadcast/
Cable/Online: Brand Image Campaign and
Corporates: Corporate Identity.

648 - 72015 Questar Awards Ak & 2218
g PERREREERRVEEUR
CEEEBESMEEERBERE-

On June 12, Yuzhou Properties Management,
which successfully became a property
service provider with Level 1 qualification
last year, was honored “2015 Top 100
Chinese Property Service Enterprises”.

6RA12H EEFRNETMERBEE—
REENRMPERE 1201670 B R RS
BoabE] -

On June 16, Yuzhou Properties’ Community
020 Service Platform was officially launched
online for operation. With the Wechat as an
entry point, it aimed to forge a tailor-made
Smart Community exclusive service for the
property owners, kicking off a new model of
online property operation.
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On August 25, Yuzhou Properties’ 2014 Annual Report
was honored the Gold Award (Financial Data: Property
Development: Residential) and Silver Award (Printing &
Production: Property Development: Residential) in the 2015

ARC Awards.

8H258 @M E2014F F#HEEE 2015 ARC AwardsF &

On July 10, through public tender, Yuzhou Properties successfully
acquired a parcel of quality commercial and residential land in Xinzhan
District, Hefei, with RMB700 million, with the site area of 49,126 sq.m.,
and total GFA at 144,923 sg.m. and the average land cost in terms of
GFA at RMB4,831/sq.m. The parcel of land is situated at the transport
hub of the district with many schools nearby. It is also adjacent to No.1
Subway line and enjoys convenient facilities for life.
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On August 27, Yuzhou Properties released its 2015
interim results announcement. Its revenue was
RMB3,501.77 million and gross profit was RMB1,188.17
million. Gross profit margin was 33.93%, staying at a high
level in the industry. Core profit attributable to owners of
the parent rose 13.58% to RMB552.04 million. Core profit
margin was 15.76%.

8H27H » MM E AM2015F R HIEELS - IR E IR A
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On September 2, supported by its leading position in core markets,
favourable margin compared with that of its peers, healthy liquidity and =
moderate leverage, Yuzhou Properties is assigned a Long Term Foreign .
Currency Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of ‘BB-’ with Stable Outlook and a =

senior unsecured rating of ‘BB-’ by Fitch.

9A2H  ENATEZLTHN RGN BRIZEAENMEER - &R
BN BEERETEMBERRINEZRITAERAIMRIBB- | FERE

ZIRE] REARBIAHRBB- |-

On September 8, Yuzhou Properties was
once again listed as one of the “2015 Top
50 China Real Estate Developer Corporate
Brand”, ranking 37th. Its brand value
amounted to RMB5,731 million.
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On September 8, in the “2015 Chinese
Excellent Real Estate Developer” campaign
organised by Economic Digest, Yuzhou
Properties once again won the honor of
“China Excellent Real Estate Developer”.
9A8RH M (KB —RF) Bty [2015
PEEEFEINER | FHED  BM0ERE
ERIE B EHAER | IR

On September 23, through open tender, Yuzhou Properties
successfully acquired a parcel of quality residential-only
land in Jiading District, Shanghai with RMB510 million. The
total GFA was 56,051 sg.m, with average land costs in

terms of GFA at RMB9,104/sqg.m.
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On September 25, Yuzhou
Properties Management was
honored the 44th ranking
among “China Top 100 Property
Management Enterprises with

Comprehensive Strengths”. e
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On October 16, the Company completed the issue On October 26, Yuzhou
of the domestic corporate bonds in an aggregate  Properties early redeemed in

amount of RMB2 billion with a term of three years  full of the USD250 million senior — -
through private placement. The coupon rate was notes due 2017, with coupon e T i
6.7%. rate of 11.75%. T T Ay
10A16H  RARIKINBEBIEAMEE T XNEIT=F 10H26H - BN E R I BE e ——

H20BE TARBEARRES  FEEMNE[6.7% - BRR017FIHAEHER2.5
BEITTMI1.75% B LBk -

-2 —
NOVEMBER

On November 6, Yuzhou Properties successfully acquired a quality parcel of land
in Fengxian District of Shanghai at a total consideration of RMB2,315 million.
The site area of the parcel was 109,300 sg.m. with the total planned GFA is On November 27, through
approximately 174,800 sg.m., with average land cost of RMB13,242/sq.m.. open tender, Yuzhou
11A6E  ®MMEIAARK3ABITANEHRE —RUN LE=EBRNESLE  Properties successfully
TR - (M ETE A10.938 T Ak RBIRREEBL /17488 T 5k #8ME  acquired a parcel of quality
B AR BT HKARKE13,2427T residential land near the
Xishan Bridge in Yuhuatai
District of Nanjing with
The residential property project of Yuzhou Bustling Center (3 2 ) located in  RMB420 million. The total
Jiading District of Shanghai has its pioneer launch of the exquisite house type with  GFA was 30,957 sg.m, with
a GFA ranging from 87 to 125 sgq.m. RMB500 million of sales was recorded within average land costs in terms of
two hours after the launch. At the launch of Yuzhou Central Town (1 3% ) located  GFA at RMB13,567/sq.m..
in Xinzhan District of Hefei, the units with a GFA ranging from 79 to 107 sgq.m were 11A278 » B HE A R #E
listed for sale. 80% of the new launch were sold, achieving the sales amount of 40T I B S R B

. e
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On December 9, through open tender, Yuzhou
Properties successfully acquired a parcel of quality
commercial and residential land in the Binjiang
Development Zone of Jiangning District in Nanjing with
RMB500 million. The total GFA was 134,520 sg.m, with
average land cost in terms of GFA at RMB3,717/sq.m..
12A9H &M E A A RESETTK B ELLN mE R
MIERBEIRZEE -—BELREHR QEEARE
134,620F 75 oK - BEMEB REF T RKARKES 17T

A >>

%
(113730 B4 3

On December 10, the Company successfully undertook the public offering of domestic corporate bonds
in an aggregate amount of RMB3 billion with a term of five years. The bonds were subscribed 2.8 times
the base issue size, and the coupon rate was as low as 5.1%.

123108 - RRIKIN AR EITRFEROETARKHE AR RIES B BITHER 8ENBERE
EEMEEES1% ©

On December 15, the first “Yuzhou + Didi” station in Xiamen was officially
< { established. In the future, Yuzhou will cooperate with Didi to set up such stations
4“\ in over 20 high-end property communities in Xiamen as well as in more than 10

: communities constructed by Yuzhou Properties in Shanghai and Hefei.
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Chairman’s Statement

Lam Lung On #E =
Chairman 7 /&

To Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited (“Yuzhou Properties” or the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the period under review, revenue of the Group was
RMB10,375.50 million, representing a significant increase
of 32.40% as compared to RMB7,836.63 million of the
corresponding period of 2014, reaching a historic high. Gross profit
was RMB3,709.32 million, representing an increase of 30.39% as
compared to RMB2,844.77 milion of the corresponding period
of 2014, and gross profit margin was 35.75%, a high level in the
industry. Profit attributable to owners of parent was RMB1,656.85
million, representing an increase of 32.08% as compared to
RMB1,254.38 million of the corresponding period of 2014. Basic
earnings per share were RMB45 cents, representing an increase
of 25.00% as compared to the last year. Excluding the changes

BURIR

BREFZAERBMNHLERDER AR (BN
EIARR)2EEE (EFE) REARAR
B R (REB)HE2015F12831HIEZE

Bt %5 % &

EEEEA - AEEWA R ARE103187,5508
JC * $220144F [A1 Hi A R #578183,6638 Tt A&
F32.40% ' BIFE = 3= - EF) A ARBEI7/8932
BT B2014F R H A R #28184,4778 T
F+380.39% ° EF| & 5 3E35.75% * B 17 HE 4B LK
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B0 R2014F R AR K12(854388 7'
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A ABGEZLFIEAARB16(81,0058 7T -

20144 R EA A REE10182,5848 7T » [A LL A0k
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in the valuation of investment properties, core profit attributable
to owners of parent was RMB1,619.95 million, representing an
increase of 57.99% as compared to RMB1,025.34 million of the
corresponding period of 2014. Basic core earnings per share
was RMB44 cents, representing a year-on-year increase of
46.67%. The full year dividend was HK18 cents per share (2014:
HK16 cents), an increase of 12.50% compared with last year,
representing a payout ratio of approximately 35.54% of core net
profit for year 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Global economic growth slowed and international financial
market’s fluctuation increased in 2015, and emerging economies
will likely face unprecedented volatility in 2016. Amid expectation
for insufficient growth momentum and slowing expansion for
global economy, Japan introduced negative interest rate and
central banks across the world opted for policy easing. What's
more, geopolitical risks further weighed on global division of work,
lowering global economic growth and increasing global market
fluctuations. China’s economy maintained steady development
against this economic new normal, but downside pressure stayed.
Although China’s GDP only rose by 6.9% in 2015 and fell below
7% for the first time in 25 years, it was largely in line with the
growth target. China’s rising comprehensive strength and steady
progress in reform and innovation should further stimulate market
vitality and economy’s organic momentum.

During the period under review, policies of the property sector
continued to focus on stimulating consumption and destocking.
Frequent policy loosening was introduced in both supply-side
and demand-side to drive steady rebound in sales volume and
price, contributing to an obvious improvement in the sector’s
operating policy environment. From the demand-side, the central
bank unveiled multiple rounds of cuts to interest rate and required
reserve ratio (RRR), and other measures like lowering down-
payment ratio for first and second housings, reducing taxation and
lowering entry barriers etc. were rolled out to create a loose market
environment. Meanwhile, local policy saw flexible adjustment with
numerous stimulus introduced to spur consumption, such as tax
expense cut and exemption, fiscal subsidies and cancellation
of purchase restrictions. From the supply-side, China controlled
scale of land supply and structural adjustment, and strengthened
monetary compensation for indemnificatory housing, which
improved market environment and laid foundation for a recovery in
the housing market.

46.67% - = F X B AF B8l L F1E
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In 2015, China’s investment in property development rose by 1.0%
nominally year-on-year to RMB9.5979 trillion, in which the investment
in residential housing rose by 0.4% to RMB6.4595 ftrillion, accounting
for 67.3% of the investment in property development. The GFA
of commodity housing sold rose by 6.5% year-on-year to 1.28
billion sg.m, with that of residential housing up by 6.9%. The sales
value of commodity housing increased by 14.4% to RMB8.7281
trillion, with that of residential housing up by 16.6%. The gradual
cancellation of China’s household registration system and the full
release of one-child policy should help partially offset the impact on
China’s economy and society from slowing down population growth.
According to the research report issued by China Index Academy,
fertility intention will likely drive an about 15 to 20 million increase in
urban population in the near-term, giving rise to incremental housing
demand of 450 to 600 million sg.m in the coming five years based
on per capita housing of 30 sg.m. Meanwhile, increasing upgrade
demand for large houses and expanding marriageable population by
2030 should also boost overall housing demand.

With better supporting facilities, working opportunities, healthcare
conditions, and educational resources, tier 1 and several popular
tier 2 cities are seeing net population inflow, which leads to
strong housing demand, clustering of wealthy population, rising
sales volume and price for commodity housing and record low
inventories. On the other hand, tier 3 and 4 cities suffer from net
population outflow, weak fundamental and excessive housing
supply, resulting in elevated inventory level and falling prices.

For regional macro-economy, we have seen the best performances
of China in 2015 in the five strategic cities of the Group, i.e. Xiamen
(a southeastern coastal city that is the economic center of Fuijian
province and the headquarter of the Group), Hefei (the second
largest market for the Group that is the political and economic
center of Anhui province), Nanjing (the provincial capital of Jiangsu
province that the Group entered strategically in 2014) and Fuzhou
and Shanghai (in which the Group established business over years

ago and recorded strong performance since 2015).
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XIAMEN

Xiamen is the only sub-provincial city in Fujian and boasts leading
municipal infrastructure in both China and the world, being
the only city in China to be recognised as one of the 20 most
beautiful cities in the first World Cities Day. Xiamen was ranked
No.3 among cities in China in 2013, with a 2.05:1 ratio between
permanent resident and registered resident for its attractiveness
to population, following Dongguan and Shenzhen and making it
a ‘complete migrant city’. On 22 February 2016, gov.cn released
‘State Council’s Approval for Xiamen’s Overall Plan’, which said
that Xiamen should manage its permanent residents within 5 million
and urban infrastructure area within 440 sg.km by 2020. Xiamen
abandoned its housing purchase restrictions on 15 January 2015
and data from CRIC shows that Xiamen’s commodity housing sold
totaled 3.52 million sg.m in 2015, with 1.18 million sg.m or 34%
of which being purchased by locals and 2.34 million sgq.m (20,501
houses) or 66% of which being bought by non-locals.

Yuzhou Lucca Town has achieved a promising sales volume. In 2016, high-
rise apartments, villas, parking spaces will be launched for sale. In the
future, the project will benefit from the opening of Xiamen Metro Line and
commencing operation of Xiang'an new airport
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HEFEI

Hefei is a city located in the National Wanjiang City Belt, which
is a demonstration zone for accommodating industrial transfers.
In October 2014, the State Council issued ‘Guiding Opinions
for Promoting Development of Yangtze River Economic Belt by
Leveraging the Golden Waterway’, which stated for the first time
that Hefei would become a sub-center of the Yangtze River Delta
city cluster, putting it on a par with Hangzhou and Nanjing. In
addition, the much-anticipated ‘One Belt, One Road’ policy took
Hefei as one of the ten ‘node cities’ with an aim to turning it
into a stronghold of open economy in the hinterland, setting up
coordination mechanisms in terms of railway transport and port
customs clearance for the China-Europe corridor, cultivating the
brand of ‘China-Europe freight trains’, and constructing a cross-
border transport corridor connecting the eastern, central and
western regions. Hefei has achieved a GDP of RMB566.03 billion
in 2015, representing a nominal growth of 10.5%, with 3.6 and
1.8 percentage points higher than that of the whole country and
Anhui province respectively. As a regional center city, Hefei enjoys
increasing locational advantages and is attracting expanding
population inflow. As of the end of 2015, Hefei's permanent
residents reached 7.76 million, exceeding similar tier 2 cities like
Nanchang, Changsha and Wuxi and approaching the level in
Nanjing and Hangzhou, which should imply broad room for real
estate development in the future. Amid the central government’s
call for destocking, the inventory of salable commodity housing
kept hitting record lows in Hefei according to data from CRIC and
inventory level stood at 2.6 months as of the end of 2015, marking
the lowest level in five years.

In 2015, Yuzhou Properties
ranked top three among
other developers in Hefei
market in terms of market
share, with contracted sales
amounting to RMB4,239.13
million. The picture shows
Yuzhou Royal Seal
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NANIJING

Nanjing is the provincial capital of Jiangsu. It is also a sub-
provincial city that is designated by the State Council as one of the
first batch of China’s historical & cultural cities and a key national
city for scenic traveling. Located in coastal regions and the Yangtze
River region, Nanjing is an important regional center in the Yangtze
River Economic Zone and a crucial comprehensive transportation
and communication hub city in China. It ranks No.5 among China’s
Top-50 cities by comprehensive strength and is one of the cities
expected to enjoy the best development potential in the Asia-
Pacific regions in the 21st century recognised by international
experts. In Nanjing, both local and non-local demand for house
purchasing is strong and housing price has long stayed resilient.
In 2015, housing price saw much faster increase than in 2014 as
continued policy easing and the approval of Jiangbei New Area
in July boosted Nanjing’s property market and drove up both
transaction volume and prices. Amid a market boom, investment
demand also expanded obviously and contributed to uptrend in the
Nanjing’s property market.

SHANGHAI

As one of the largest cities, as well as the economic, financial,
shipping and trade center in China, Shanghai is also home to
China’s first free trade zone, Shanghai Free-Trade Zone. The 18th
CPC Central Committee proposed a strategy of driving growth
via innovation and accelerating the development into a center of
technological innovation with global influence. In 2015, Shanghai’s
GDP rose by 6.9% year-on-year to RMB2.50 trillion, implying a
GDP per capita of RMB103,100 based on its permanent resident
of 24.15 million, which includes 14.34 million registered permanent
residents and 9.82 million non-registered permanent residents.
Despite strict control measures like house purchasing restrictions
in Shanghai, the property market there has always stayed strong.
In 2015, monthly average transaction volume of newly-built houses
hovered around 3 million sg.m, well above recent years’ average
level. According to Shanghai Municipal Statistics Bureau, saleable
GFA of newly-built commodity housing fell to 10.75 million sgq.m as
of the end of 2015, representing a decrease of 2.57 million sg.m
compared to the corresponding period of 2014. Inventory level
stood at 7.9 months.
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FUZHOU

As the provincial capital of Fujian, Fuzhou is a famous historical &
cultural city located in Southeastern Coastal China and a modern
financial service center for West Strait Economic Zone. It is also one
of the first 14 coastal ports cities that are opened to the outside
world and a strategic hub city of the 21st century maritime silk road.
In end-August 2015, the State Council approved the establishment
of Fuzhou New Area and elevated the development of the area
into a national strategy. Besides, we are seeing strategic plans for
accelerating the construction of Minjiang River Estuary Economic
Zone. These should further improve Fuzhou's appeal to investment
and talents in the future. In 2015, the supply of commodity
residential housing shrank sharply in Fuzhou and reached a low in
recent years, while transaction volume hit a five-year high driven by
multiple policy positives. According to CRIC, saleable GFA of newly-
built commodity residential housing amounted to 2.45 million sg.m
at the end of 2015 and inventory level is only 10 months.

The establishment of free-trade zones in Fujian and Tianjin
and the expansion of Shanghai Free-trade Zone, the gradual
implementation of integrated development of Beijing, Tianjin and
Hebei, the State Council’s call for developing the Yangtze River
Economic Belt into one with global influence as well as the boost
from ‘One Belt, One Road’ should further benefit the Group’s
deployment in these cities.
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Located in Fuzhou Lianjiang County, Yuzhou Cambridge Town is about 2.6 km away from the government of Lianjiang
County, enjoying abundant educational resources. The project was designed for 12 high-rise residential buildings
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In 2015, China’s real estate market recovered gradually which
thanks to continuous policy positives. By capturing market trend
precisely, the Group maintained fast and benign development by
leveraging its reasonable product mix, sound market deployment
and innovative marketing strategy. In addition, the Group strived
to improve its management strength, enhance its brand influence,
reasonably expand land reserve and optimise financial structure.
These efforts helped the Group maintain one of the Top-100 real
estate developers in China for the 10 consecutive years in 2015,
consolidate its leading market share in Xiamen and retain its Top-
3 position in Hefei. During the year, the Group’s contracted sales
amounted to RMB14,018 million, representing an increase of
16.80% year-on-year, exceeding sales target of RMB13,500 million
set at the beginning of this year, and the total of contracted sales
area amounted to 1,402,197 sqg.m., representing an increase of
16.50% year-on-year. The amount and area sold both reached
record high. Gross profit margin maintained at a high level in the
industry of 35.75%.

For project development volume, at the beginning of 2016, our
land reserve amounted to 8.56 million sq.m., about 47% of which
was in the West Strait Economic Zone, about 49% in the Yangtze
River Delta Region and about 4% in the Bohai Rim Region; and in
2015 newly acquired land reserve was approximately 1.02 million
sg.m.. We are speeding up the sizable expansion in the West
Strait Economic Zone, Yangtze River Delta Region and Bohai Rim
Region, which laid a solid foundation for the sustainable and rapid
development of the Group.
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According to the ‘Ranking of Property Development Prospects
for Cities in China’ ((FBIMMEMEZREAI SHEITE) ), a
report published by CRIC on 19 August 2015, Yangtze River
Delta Region, Pearl River Delta Region and Bohai Rim Region
are the three city agglomerations of China with the strongest
economic strength and most aggregative population. In terms of
investment prospects, substantially most of the core cities covered
by the Group were among the top 50 cities, including Shanghai,
Tianjin, Xiamen, Hefei, Fuzhou and Nanjing. Of which, our sales
performance in Xiamen was outstanding with contracted sales
reaching RMB5,780 million and ranked top for consecutive ten
years for sales area. With contracted sales reaching RMB4,239
million, the sales performance of Hefei was blockbusting after
years of relentless consolidation by the Group, while sales area and
units sold both ranked among the top 3 developers in Hefei with
very encouraging results.

SALES STRATEGIES

ADOPTING INNOVATIVE MARKETING
APPROACH FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
TO ACTIVELY COPE WITH MARKET CHANGES

During the year, as a consistent practice, the Group stayed in line
with national policy and actively responded to market changes,
and timely adjusted its development and sales planning to address
the predominant market demand for owner-occupied properties
through offering properties products with high quality and
reasonable prices.

To cope with the changing market conditions, the Group continued
its innovative marketing strategy and efforts to increase brand
influence, which effectively spurred sales growth. Notably, the
launch of Yuzhou Lucca Town generated a Hit in Xiamen’s housing
market. The project made numerous innovation and trial in
product upgrading, service experience and marketing measures,
broke away from the traditional model of marketing center and
introduced Yourtime Books, thus turning the marketing center into
a place integrating café, book stores and internet and developing
the first café-based marketing center in Xiamen. In addition, the
project rolled out the first VR showflat in Xiamen and became
the first to apply internet-based chauffeur car service to facilitate
potential purchases’ visits to the marketing center and the project.
What’'s more, the project cooperated with “Didi” in introducing the
first Didi station in Xiamen and the model may be introduced to
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other communities that the Group developed in Xiamen, Shanghai
and Hefei etc. Besides, the project cooperated frequently with
surrounding higher education institutions, launching student
entrepreneurial center in its marketing center, hosting music
festivals with six higher education institutions in Xiangan, recruiting
students as waiters and waitresses in the café and holding
[talian gourmet festival. Meanwhile, the project also interacted
frequently with internet entrepreneurs, integrating smart and new
internet technologies in its design and hosting salons for internet
entrepreneurs. Thanks to these efforts, Yuzhou Lucca Town has
become a center in Xiamen for “literary and artistic” youth, internet
entrepreneurs and teachers and students from higher education
institutions.

Although July and August are traditional slack season for real
estate market, Yuzhou Lucca Town’s Phase | project of 54 units
of 180~220 sg.m villas were almost sold out within an hour in
its debut on 12 August after securing potential clients for less
than one month, which reignited the housing market in Xiamen.
For Shanghai, sales started on 31 October 2015 for Yuzhou
Bustling Center, which focused on 87~125 sg.m per unit with
two bedrooms, 2+1 bedrooms and 3 bedrooms (close to the
family structure of households with upgrading demand), attracted
more than 800 potential purchasers to queue for the project and
recorded approximately RMB500 million sales in two hours. For
Hefei, Yuzhou Central Town focused on 79~107 sg.m per unit
in its debut and attracted more than 1,000 potential purchasers
with its considerate design (such as higher space utilisation ratio),
recording approximately 80% selling-through rate in its debut and
grossing RMB400 million sales amount.
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Yuzhou Lucca Town
rolled out the first VR
showflat in Xiamen
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The Group’s project enjoyed increasing sales volume and sales
price thanks to its flexible project development and marketing
strategy, good product quality and sound project environment and
supporting facilities. For example, Yuzhou Shoreline’s average
selling price (ASP) jumped from RMB12,838/sg.m in 2011 to
RMB23,364/sg.m. in 2015, while Yuzhou Central Coast’'s ASP
surged from RMB8,390/sq.m in 2011 to RMB16,587/sq.m in
2015, while helped ensure profit margin and guarantee sell-through
rate.

PRODUCT DESIGN

BOUTIQUE BUILDING 3.5 (#§ %3.5)
STANDARDISATION AND ENVIRONMENT
PRESERVATION WITH SINCERE HEART

In light of the rigid demand for first-time home-buyer and first-time
upgrader, the Group adjusted its product structure and continued
to launch housing products with small and middle size. Meanwhile,
the Group introduced and integrated well-developed design concept
and service standard for exquisitely fitted residential products of
cross strait, and launched a value concept of Boutique Building 3.5
(f52£3.5), referring to three overweighs and one relocation. We treat
technology as art, sales warm-up as heart warm-up, and customers
as users. In other words, we make art, experience and open-up
as the three pillars of Yuzhou Property’s premium constructions.
Concierge services of Taiwanese style are actually an upgrade of the
0.5 system.

Yuzhou The Jiging in Nanjing introduced the product concept of “Boutique
Building 3.5 (}§%£3.5) ”, which has taken into consideration various details of art
and public facilities in the community at the initial phase of design, with an aim to
enhancing residents’ living quality
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In the system of our Boutique Building 3.5, we pursue ultimate
details in the construction of a building, from roof garden to
finely equiped basement, from mailbox to the integrated garbage
chamber and from the hall decorated with art to the gate sensors,
demonstrating personal detail design all around. All of this is coming
from our sincere care for our customers, and only because of our
constant pursuit of self-improvement that have made such an extent
of humanistic details, artistic moods and thoughtful courtesy, where
exactly lies what Yuzhou Properties cares the most.

During the period, through further optimisation of design process
and product standardisation, the Group has improved our
product quality, satisfied the Group’s rapid development needs,
effectively controlled construction costs and enhanced operation
efficiency. Besides, the Group paid great attention to the impact on
environment by construction works, and strived to minimise energy
consumption and waste generation from the very beginning of
product design. The Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza, our flagship investment
property which has been put in use, was awarded LEED-CS Gold
Certification by U.S Green Building Council; and the HK Caine
Road Project, will be incorporated with smart home system and
concepts of green building and environment-friendly design, aiming
to meet the high standard of BEAM on New Buildings set by Hong
Kong Green Building Council. Both projects demonstrate our
commitment to environment preservation.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BENEFITING FROM DIVERSIFIED BUSINESSES,
SUCCESSFULLY DIVERGING RISKS

The Group believes that a diversified commercial property portfolio,
including hotels, shopping malls and office buildings, may diverge
operational risks and create stable income. At the same time,
benefited from the synergy effect from hotel and commercial
property development of our projects, the values of property
projects themselves also improved.
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All the properties under the investment property portfolio had
recorded satisfactory performance. Rental income from investment
properties reached RMB79.65 million and increased by 55% in
2015. The investment properties of the Group are classified into
two main categories, namely office buildings and shopping malls.
Shanghai Yuzhou Plaza is located in Pudong New Area, which
is covered by the Shanghai Free Trade Zone, neighboring the
offices of World’s Top 500 companies such as GE, Johnson &
Johnson and Shanghai Bell and is adjacent to Biyun Community,
the largest international community of Shanghai, with convenient
transportation network. The project was put into use in the end
of 2014, with total GFA of approximately 35,837 sg.m.. During
the period, the overall occupancy rate of the project increased to
92%. The Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza is another landmark 5A-grade
office property developed by the Group. The project was put into
use in the end of 2014 with entry of large state-owned enterprises,
insurance companies, banks and financial institutions. Meanwhile,
it is where the Group’s headquarter and Xiamen Company located.

In addition, as the first city complex project in Xiamen, Yuzhou
World Trade Center is located in a transportation hub integrating
motion car station, metro station (under construction), bus terminal
and BRT. It is the most mature modern mega mall in Xiamen and
has become a famous commercial landmark in the region. The
Group adjusted the mall’s tenant mix and brands in 2015 in line
with the market conditions, and focused on introducing brands
in food & beverage and fast fashion to enrich its overall operating
environment. By now, Yuzhou World Trade Center boasts in its
portfolio notable names like Wal-Mart, Pizzahut, MUJI, China
Film Digital Cinema, Haidilao Hot Pot, Watsons, Haagen-Dazs,
Starbucks, and Yourtime Books (the first original book store in
Xiamen). In 2015, the project recorded an overall occupancy
rate of 96.15%. In the future, the Group will continue to nurture
commercial property talents, prudently and steadily conduct the
businesses in this aspect and gradually increase its investment
property portfolio in next few years. The Group targets to hold self-
owned commercial properties located at core locations in tier 1
and 2 cities.
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HOTEL

While continuing to expand its property development and sales,
the Group’s hotel business also contributed to the recurring
revenue sources of non-residential projects, thus enabling the
property revenue portfolio to be more diversified. According to the
Group’s development strategies and the future development trend
of the hotel business, we position our hotel business to 1) focus on
the development of service apartments as well as medium to high-
end business hotels to establish premium hotel brands; 2) properly
develop resort hotels to improve the existing hotels and strengthen
the core competitiveness of the brands. The Yuzhou Camelon
Hotel Apartment of the Group had its grand opening in the fourth
quarter of 2013. With a total GFA of 9,880 sq.m., the project is
located in the central area of Huli District, Xiamen, adjacent to
the government of Huli District, SM City Plaza, TESCO Mall and
Xiamen (Amoy)Gaogqi International Airport. During the period, the
hotel recorded an average occupancy rate of 62%, contributing an
operating income of RMB16.21 million for the Group. In addition,
the Group has a hotel project, Yuzhou International Hotel, which is
located at the southwest of Wuyuan Bay Bridge in Siming District
of Xiamen and with an idea to realise functional diversification so as
to satisfy different market demands. What’s more, the hotel project
close to Yuzhou Riverside City Town and Tong’an Film Studio City
in Tong’an District of Xiamen is initially positioned as a hot spring
resort thanks to its unique resources in hot spring and ecotourism.
Both projects are currently under construction.

Yuzhou « Camelon Hotel Apartment in Xiamen
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CUSTOMER SERVICE

TO IMPROVE CUSTOMER SERVICE AND
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

In 2015, Yuzhou Properties Management ranked 44th in the
“China Top 100 Property Management Companies with Strongest
Comprehensive Strengths”, which represents the highest level
of property service companies in the PRC. In October 2015,
Yuzhou Properties passed the 1ISO9001 Quality System review.
Meanwhile, it issued the Management and Operation Guidance
for House Delivery to standardise the operational procedures,
work content and time schedules in respect of the project transfer
and acceptance and risk checks, etc., with a view to provide
references and implementation standards for all real estate/
property companies. To improve customer satisfaction, Yuzhou
Properties Management renovated old facilities and equipment in
its projects, conducted return visit to home owners on a sampled
basis and carried out analysis of complaints and training of relevant
property management rules based on results from the return visits
to enhance staff's professional knowledge and skill. Upholding
the principle of “Owners First, Service First”, the Group launched
Community O20 Service Platform on WeChat in July 2015, which
features a range of “butler” services including community notice,
fees payment, engineering repair, community group purchase, with
an aim to provide customised and smart community services for
owners.

In addition, in December 2015, the Group reached strategic
cooperation with “Didi” and launched Xiamen’s first “Didi” station
in Yuzhou Lucca Town, which has gained sound feedback and
facilitated marketing, as well as provided convenience for owners,
signaling a new operating model of online property management
for the Group. In 2015, the property management companies
of the Group recorded a property management fee income of
RMB122.13 million, increasing by 38.40% year-on-year. With
an increase in the area of delivered properties, the property
management companies of the Group managed an aggregate GFA
of approximately 4.85 million sg.m. in China as of 31 December
2015.

Our 020 Service Platform - “You Life”

has been officially launched online
for operation, demonstrating Yuzhou

Properties Management’s commitment to
promoting Smart Community service model
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INVESTMENT STRATEGY &% & K W
PROPER ACQUISITION OF NEW LAND i I s B v R R K 5 R
TO CATER FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, mitEE MK EELNGEE

STRENGTHENING COOPERATION WITH REAL
ESTATE ENTERPRISES AND INVESTMENT FUNDS

The Group adhered to its strategic guideline of “Based in
West Strait and Expand Nationwide Coverage in China” in
replenishing strategically its land reserves after taking into account
comprehensively various factors i.e. land market environment,
property market development trend and its own financial
conditions. The Group will stick to high cost performance,
sustainable development and reasonable layout, and pay special
attention to the execution, sell-through rate and profit margin
of projects; furthermore, it puts in place a rigorous risk control
mechanism to achieve sustainable growth.

During the year of 2015, the Group added about 1.02 million
sg.m. to its land reserves in Xiamen, Hefei, Shanghai and Nanjing
at an average land cost of RMB8,417 per sg.m., accumulating
resources for its future development. In January 2015, the Group
acquired a parcel of quality land for commercial and residential
uses in Xiamen through open auction, at an average GFA land
cost of RMB8,979 per sg.m.. The total saleable area was 305,160
sg.m.. The land is located at the core area of Jimei New Town,
Xiamen with good transportation network, and will help to further
solidify Yuzhou Properties’ leading position in Xiamen. In July 2015,
through public tender, the Group successfully acquired a parcel of
quality land for commercial and residential uses in Hefei Xinzhan
District at a price of RMB700 million, with a planned total GFA of
144,923 sgq.m. and an average land cost of RMB4,831/sg.m.. In
fact, early in November 2014, the Group has successfully acquired
a parcel of quality land in that region through public tender,
which is the Yuzhou Central Town located in a comprehensive
development pilot zone in Hefei Xinzhan District. The land the
Group obtained this time is just across the road, which can
generate brand synergy and expand its influence in the region.
Meanwhile, the synergy between those lands can achieve resource
sharing and reduce cost. In September and November 2015, the
Group acquired two parcels of quality lands for residential use in
Xuhang Town, Jiading District and Jinhui Town, Fengxian District
of Shanghai at an average GFA land cost of RMB9,104/sg.m. and
RMB13,242/sq.m. respectively. In November and December 2015,
the Group acquired four parcels of quality land for residential use
and commercial/residential uses in Shanshuiwan, Yuhuatai District,
Riverside Development Zone, and core zone of Jiangning District
of Nanjing respectively. In 2004 and 2014, Yuzhou Properties
strategically tapped into Shanghai and Nanjing respectively, both
of which are strategically important for Yuzhou’s further expansion.
This move further consolidated the Group’s regional layout in
the Yangtze River Delta Region and enhanced its strength in the
region.
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In recent years, Yuzhou Properties has created a land purchase
model by collaborating investment funds with real estate companies,
under which we have developed Xiamen Haicang Dream Town with
Vanke and Xiamen Chunjiang Central with Longfor. The cooperation
helps to control the land cost, enhanced the financial flexibility of
land acquisition and reduced the investment risks at the preliminary
stage of development, and also substantially shortened the input-
output cycle, which helped relieve the liquidity stress while keeping a
reasonable expansion speed and accelerate to achieve economies of
scale.

At present, the Group has over 50 projects in different development
phases in Xiamen, Fuzhou, Shanghai, Hefei, Nanjing, Tianjin,
Quanzhou, Longyan, Zhangzhou, Bengbu and Hong Kong. The
quality land resources and relatively low land costs will continue to
support Yuzhou Properties’ performance in the major markets in
China in the next few years.

FINANCING STRATEGIES

STABLE OPERATION WITH SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH

Apart from adhering to its stable operating strategy, Yuzhou
Properties adopted optimised capital structure to reduce funding
costs with its overall finance costs falling to 7.00% at the end of
2015 from 8.49% at the end of 2014. The net gearing ratio was
maintained at a healthy level of 79.43% in 2015, representing an
increase of 19.58 percentage points as compared to that at the
end of last year.

To achieve sustainable development, the Group actively explores
various financing channels to further optimise its financial structure
as well as maintain a steady and sufficient cash flow. The Group
always maintains awareness and sensitivity on capital market
and firmly captures the best financing opportunities. In May
2015, the Group placed 360 million new shares at the placing
price of HK$2.20 per placing share, and the net proceeds were
approximately HK$779 milion. The placing not only helped to
improve the liquidity of the shares but also introduced Taiwan Life
Insurance Co. Ltd and TransGlobe Life Insurance Inc. to become
key strategic investors of the Group, which indicated that Taiwan
large financial institutions were optimistic on the development
of Yuzhou. On 26 October 2015, the Company early redeemed
the US$250 million 11.75% senior notes due 2017. Also, the
Company early repaid the Syndicated Loan due April 2016
amounted to HK$521 million and US$35 million respectively.
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For domestic financing, during the period, domestic bond market
provided new domestic financing channel for China’s real estate
companies, thus ushering in an opportune time for the issue of
domestic bonds by real estate companies. On 16 October 2015
and 10 December 2015, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real Estate Development
Company Limited, issued private corporate bonds of RMB2 billion
and public corporate bonds of RMB3 billion with a coupon rate
of 6.7% and 5.1% for a term of 3 years and 5 years respectively.
The issuer credit rating is AA. Meanwhile, the Group maintained
good cooperative relationships with various commercial banks and
is the VIP prime customer of the four largest state-owned banks
in China, including Bank of China, China Construction Bank and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.
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The Company successfully captured the
opportunity of domestic corporate bond issuance,
placed RMB2 billion private corporate bond and
RMB3 billion public corporate bond, with coupon
rate of 6.7% and 5.1%, respectively.
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The Group also had sufficient cash and as at 31 December
2015, cash on hand was approximately RMB11,948.79 million.
The sound financial position and development prospect of the
Group are widely recognised by the rating agencies. Fitch initially
gave an issuer credit rating of “BB-" and debt rating of “BB-" to
Yuzhou Properties with a “Stable” outlook. In addition, both Moody
and Standard & Poor have maintained the Company’s issuer
credit rating of “B1” and “B+” and debt rating of “B1” and “B”
respectively, with a “Stable” outlook.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPLYING WITH A HIGH STANDARD OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is always committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Under the full support of our outstanding
management team, an efficient board of directors has been
established with an internal control system soundly implemented.
The board of directors has all along directed and monitored
effectively the business strategies operated by the Group.
The board of directors has established the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee in assisting
the performance of its duties. The Group also established a sound
and effective internal control system to safeguard the assets of the
Group and shareholders’ interests. Under the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the management team and internal and external
auditors, the Company reviews regularly the internal control system
of the Group.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

By pursuing its mission of “Serve the community and reward the
community”, the Group has been actively committed to its social
responsibility since its establishment. Alongside the Company’s
development, we always keep this in our mind. During the year, the
Group actively participated in public welfare activities, advocated
environmental protection and low carbon lifestyle, and got involved
in areas like education, environmental protection and culture.
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PLAYING AN ACTIVE ROLE IN SOCIAL WELFARE
AND CHARITY EVENTS

In 2015, the accumulated amount of the Group’s charitable
donation reached RMB5.077 million. During the year, Yuzhou
Public Welfare Foundation launched “Mutual Help”, one of charity
programs, whereby volunteers from Yuzhou and Fire Phoenix
volunteers carried out a series of activities on fire prevention
trainings to communities. The Group has always been dedicated
to support the development of education. We have set up a
scholarship of RMB1 million for students from low-income families
at both Xiamen University and Jimei University. The Group also
donated HK$1 million to Heung To Middle School in Hong Kong
for the construction of new blocks and improvement of education
facilities.

HONORS

In 2015, with its outstanding comprehensive strength, the Group
was honored by various organisations. Such honors comprised:
Overall Ranking 61st and Real Estate Industry 16th of Greater
China Listed Companies in Terms of Best IR Management granted
by IR Magazine, 2014 International MERCURY Grand Award for
2014 Interim Report, Honors Award in the 2015 Astrid Awards
for Interim Report, Best IR Company and Best IRO granted
by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, 2015 Top 50
Comprehensive Strength of Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies
(Rank 37) and 2015 Top 5 Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies
Operating Performance (Rank 3) jointly granted by China Real
Estate Research Association, China Real Estate Association and
China Real Estate Appraisal Center. The 2015 corporate video
received two silver Questar awards for Brand image campaign and
corporate identity. Yuzhou Properties Management was honored
with the “China Top 100 Property Management Companies in
2015” jointly granted by China Index Academy and China Real
Estate Top10 Researching Group. 2014 Yuzhou annual report
gained gold award for financial data and silver award for printing
design under real estate developers category of 2015 ARC Annual
Report Awards, Yuzhou is also the Outstanding Chinese Real
Estate Developers for the third consecutive year granted by the
famous Hong Kong financial magazine Economic Digest.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND
PROSPECT

The 2016’s Report on the Work of the Government pointed out
that the major development targets in 2016 include: 1) GDP
growth at 6.5~7%, CPI increase at around 3%, creation of at
least ten million new urban jobs, registered urban unemployment
rate within 4.5%, a steady rebound in import and export, a basic
balance in international payment and an increase of personal
income largely in step with economic growth. 2) The central
government will advance new urbanisation: Firstly, China will move
faster to see that urban residency is granted to more people with
rural household registration living in urban areas, deepen reform
of household registration system, relax restrictions on eligibility
for urban residency and introduce policies for making both the
transfer payments and the land designated for urban development
granted to the governments of a local jurisdiction conditional
upon the number of people with rural household registration
who are granted permanent urban residency in that jurisdiction.
Besides, the full range of trials for developing new urbanisation
will be extended to more areas. Secondly, China will promote the
development of government-subsidised housing in urban areas
and the steady and healthy development of the real estate market.
In 2016, six million housing units are rebuilt in rundown urban
areas and that more people displaced by the rebuilding of such
areas receive monetary housing compensation rather than housing
relocation. China will also improve the tax and credit policies for
supporting justified personal housing consumption, and ensure
that cities take policies appropriate to their local conditions to ease
the real estate industry’s problem of excess inventory in order to
meet the firm demand for housing and the demand for second
homes. In addition, China will put in place a housing system
which encourages both renting and purchasing and, enables
eligible non-registered urban residents to apply for public rental
housing. 3) China will try to maintain a balance between ensuring
steady growth and making structural adjustments, ensure that
the economy operates within an appropriate range, strengthen
supply-side structural reform, accelerate the fostering of new
driving forces for development, strengthen traditional comparative
advantages, by the means of cut overcapacity and excess
inventory, deleverage, reduce costs, and strengthen points of
weakness.
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For 2016, global economy will likely continue adjustment and may
face greater challenges and uncertainties. We see unprecedented
challenges ahead as well as substantial development opportunities
as China’s economy enters a new normal of slower growth and the
real estate sector enters a stage that focuses on “quality products,
branding and differentiation and features rising concentration”.
Relevant policy environment will stay loosen as the real estate
sector remains one of the key economic pillars for China’s
development, and continued promotion of urbanisation should
open new growth room for the real estate sector. Destocking will
remain the main theme of the real estate sector. As sector growth
slows, market competition will intensify, industrial concentration will
continue rising, regional divergence will become clearer and market
will see consolidation, which should allow companies with visible
competitive edges to seize opportunity and see faster and better
growth.

Considering the macro-economic and market outlook in 2016 and
the management’s analysis on the real estate sector’s future trend,
the Group will continue to pursue focused strategy with emphasis
on the five key cities, and watch opportunities in other coastal tier
1 and 2 cities to seek quality and steady growth. In the coming five
to ten years, the Group will adhere to its strategy of “Based in West
Strait and Expand Nationwide Coverage in China”. “Based on West
Strait” implies that the Group will focus on the West Strait market,
prudent consideration of selling-through rate, profit margin and
execution will be taken before entering new cities and efforts would
be taken to generate synergy among different cities. “Expand
Nationwide Coverage in China” points to the demand for mid/
long-term strategic deployment. The Group will maintain modest
scale expansion and consolidate its current national deployment
to develop a market with West Strait Economic Zone at the core
and Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Rim’s core tier 1 and 2 cities
with great potential as regional centers. The Group will also explore
overseas cities such as Hong Kong when appropriate to realise a
prudent strategic expansion of “from the core cities to the regions

"' .. and the whole country”.
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As the current land reserve can satisfy the Group’s demand for
the next 3~5 years, the Group will stay sober and will not acquire
land blindly. In addition to public tendering, the Group will also
increase land reserve through acquiring corporate equity stake.
The Group will adhere strictly to its investment discipline and pay
attention to the execution, sell-through rate and profit margin of
projects. We expect West Strait Economic Zone will remain a focus
for the Group’s development with Xiamen at the core and the
region will take up not less than 50% of land reserve. For non-West
Strait regions that we have already entered, the Group will also
strengthen resource consolidation, increase local land reserve at a
fair price when appropriate, and expand land reserve in Shanghai,
Hefei, Xiamen, Nanjing and Fuzhou to develop them into five core
cities with RMB5 billion annual sales. In addition, efforts will be
made to expand into surrounding cities with strong economic
potential and net population inflow to generate regional stronghold
and avoid blind expansion.

In response to the general development of the property sector and
continuous adjustment of the market, the Group will transform
itself from a simplex developer to an integration of developer,
operator and service provider by leveraging on its resources. The
Group will continue to balance the ratio of income from property
sales and investment property, focusing on property sales and
selectively hold quality investment properties in tier 1 and 2 cities.
The Group will continue to establish and improve online community
service platform “You Life” project to improve added-value of
property management service. On the other hand, the Group
will keep innovating and proactively exploring different types of
products like senior housing real estate and commercial complex
etc. to develop leading diversified products in the industry.

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire in Hefei recorded

contracted sales of RMB744 million

in 2015. The project was particularly
preferred by the buyers for its “Waterside

Residences” and “Metro” resources
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In addition to ensuring growth, the Group will also proactively seek
mutual and effective communication with all kinds of institutions
in the capital market and establish long-term and stable relations,
which should help the Group expand financing channels, lowering
financing cost, optimising financial structure, accelerating fund
collection and enhancing financial risk control system. The Group
will continue to promote breakthrough in resource consolidation,
consider diversified ways of cooperation in project development
in an open and active mind like introducing mutual funds or
cooperating with peers, and keep a flexible land acquisition policy.
The Group will strengthen cooperation with financial institutions
and other strategic partners along every link of its value chain,
and proactively seek M&A opportunity amid industry consolidation
to realise quality and balanced growth. The Group will adhere to
a strict financial system and discipline, to maintain a reasonable
gearing ratio and cash position. The Group believes these
operating strategies will allow the Group to maintain competitive
edge and reduce risk amid the changing market, thus ensuring
sustainable development.

APPRECIATION

The Group has experienced challenges and opportunities and
developed in a steady and rapid manner along the path of regional
scale development and, with the support of all circles and every
employee, the Group had achieved its current success. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
our heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors, partners and
customers for their trust and support. We will continue to draw on
better corporate governance and management structure as well as
the prudent financial strategies and adhere to our spirit of “Building
Cities with Heart, Building Homes with Love” and dedicate to
maximise the value for our shareholders and investors in creating
the best returns.

Lam Lung On
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2015, China rolled out numerous policy supports for the real
estate sector, such as interest rate and reserve requirement ratio
(RRR) cut, lowered down payment ratio, taxes expense reduction
& exemption and launch of Housing Provident Funds etc., which
helped unleash market demand and promoted a sustained
rebound in the real estate market from its lows in the first quarter
of 2015, lifting the sector from the negative growth territory in
2014. According to China Index Academy, GFA of commodity
housing sold in China rose by 6.5% year-on-year to 1.28 billion
sg.m. in 2015 and sales value increased by 14.4% year-on-year to
RMB8,700 billion, hitting a record high.

As one of the pillars to the economy in mainland China, real estate
investment in China totaled RMB9,600 billion in 2015, marking a
1.0% nominal growth compared with 2014 (or actual growth of
2.8% after excluding prices factor) and keeping positive growth.
However, we noted increasing market divergence. Tier 1 and 2 cities
real estate market enjoyed sufficient demand potential and attracted
real estate investment with its net population inflow and advantages
in healthcare, education and employment. This was also reflected
in housing prices, as tier 1 cities withessed rising housing prices
and transaction volume and tier 2 cities saw steady development,
especially those with healthy supply-demand conditions in the real
estate market i.e. Xiamen, Hefei and Nanjing. Meanwhile, tier 3 and
4 cities lagged far behind tier 1 and 2 cities in both housing prices
and transaction volume due to heavy inventory pressure.

i 35 T 56 % ol A

20155 - ZIESHE M ETE R TR AL -
PIERERE - TABNEX BEMEBERET
BEABeEHEE MEFTIFERN SEHE
i HE —FaEHABFER R - TTERER2014
FHAERREY REPEIESHAEREE
20155 » 2B mE HEHEEA12.8BF 7K
FIZR6.5%  AmEHELEAARKETE
B AlEEHE I &R14.4% o

ERAMKEES RESX 2 — 20155 2B F
WEMEIEEBARKISE R  th2014F %
FER1.0% (HBREREZERER2.8%) -
HRIBRES - BMBED MG LB mE
AR — ZHERTmXERAQFERA BE-
HERBESEENTR  BHEM ST M® K
B REIEHERE ERBEENEERRZ
BT EERA BT FBEE L
HEROEHERTHARRENORT 215 &
FS - BIENFER - ER = TR - R EFE
NEX BEREKRZRBREEER— &R
A o



Management Discussion and Analysis

R R V¥R

Going with the favorable market conditions, the Group adopted
flexible strategies for project development and marketing during the
year, and strengthened the launch of projects targeting upgrade
demand and high-value-added products, which helped the Group
exceed its full year target for contracted sales and consolidate its
market share in Xiamen (ranking No.1 for the tenth consecutive
year) and Hefei (ranking Top-3). In addition to mature businesses in
Xiamen and Hefei, the Group accelerated expansion in Shanghai
and Nanjing with an view on their strong market potential,
Yuzhou Bustling Center in Shanghai and Yuzhou The Jiging in
Nanjing launched sales at end-2015 and early-2016 with decent
performance. Besides, with an investment principle focusing on
execution, sell-through rate and profitability, the Group timely
expanded its land bank to support development in the two new
key cities. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to follow the
strategy of expanding along coastal tier 1 and 2 cities to support
its sustainable development.

During the year, the Group ranked 36th in the “2015 China Top
100 Real Estate Developers” selected by the Enterprise Research
Institute of Development Research Center of the State Council,
Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and China
Index Academy. The Group was also awarded “2015 Top 50 China
Real Estate Listed Companies with Strongest Comprehensive
Strengths” from China Real Estate Research Association, China
Real Estate Association and China Real Estate Appraisal, ranking
37th. This consistently makes us a well recognised brand identity.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year, revenue of the Group was recorded high of
RMB10,375.50 million, representing an increase of 32.40% as
compared with last year, which was mainly attributed to the
increase in GFA of properties delivered during the period. Gross
profit increased by 30.39% to RMB3,709.32 million and gross
profit margin dropped by 0.55 percentage points to 35.75% as
compared with last year. Profit attributable to owners of the parent
increased by 32.08% to RMB1,656.85 million, with basic earnings
per share up by 25.00% to RMB45 cents. Core profit attributable
to owners of the parent increased by 57.99% to RMB1,619.95
million, with core basic earnings per share up by 46.67% to
RMB44 cents. Dividend of the year increased by 12.50% to HK18
cents per share from 2014, representing a payout ratio of 35.54%
of core net profit for the year of 2015.
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SALE OF PROPERTIES

In 2015, the revenue of property sales by the Group rose by
32.25% year-on-year to RMB10,157.50 million, accounting for
97.90% of the total revenue. As of 31 December 2015, the Group
delivered total GFA of approximately 1,107,416 sg.m, increased
by 50.49% as compared with last year. The average selling price
of the properties delivered and recognised as property sales was
RMB9,172 per sqg.m, representing a decrease of 12.12% as
compared with 2014.

As a leading real estate developer in West Strait Economic
Zone, the Group’s market share ranked No. 1 in Xiamen for ten
consecutive years, and has been in excellent brand identity and
on the leading edge. Property sales in Xiamen area accounted for
42.42% (2014: 71.11%) of the Group’s overall revenue of property
sales during the year. Meanwhile, with the completion and delivery
of some projects in Hefei area, i.e. Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire and
Yuzhou Central Plaza stepping into the phase of completion and
delivery in 2015, the revenue of property sales in Hefei accounted
for 33.21% of the Group’s overall revenue of property sales (2014:
18.02%), as compared to revenue recognised only from Yuzhou
Skyline Project in the past. Going forward, delivery procedures will
be completed successively for the sold properties in different cities.
With continuous revenue growth, property sales are expected to
remain the dominant source of revenue for the Group in the future.

Recognised Property Sales
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The recognised sales and GFA sold of each project in 2015 are set

out in the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone
BREKER

Yuzhou Golf

Bl e mBX

Yuzhou Shoreline
Biens

Yuzhou Central Coast
Bl e Rig=E

Yuzhou Riverside City Town
B o EIR I

Yuzhou Cloud Top International
M o ETH B B

Yuzhou Gushan No. One
B e sIL—5%

Yuzhou Oriental Venice
Bl e RIT B EHT
Yuzhou City Plaza
BN T E S

Yuzhou Castle above City
M o K 3k

Others

HAitb

Sub-total /N &t

Xiamen

=P
Xiamen
=P
Xiamen
=P
Xiamen
=P
Xiamen
=P
Fuzhou
&I
Fuzhou
&M
Quanzhou
SN
Longyan
BEa
Xiamen

EF

&

TREIZHBR2016FNHERHESELE

90,307 5,221 17,297
579,359 24,797 23,364
2,423,107 146,081 16,587
559,697 48,950 11,434
650,643 18,650 34,887
185,832 10,484 17,725
707,829 74,769 9,467
878,760 151,297 5,808
116,170 16,281 7,135
5,550 672 8,259
6,197,254 12,464
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Yangtze River Delta Region
REZAREBE

Yuzhou Jingiao International
Bl o 218 B

Yuzhou City Plaza

BN T ES

Yuzhou Skyline

Bl e X%

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire
BN e 52 AR

Yuzhou Central Plaza

RN e P RES
Sub-total /N5t

Bohai Rim Region
BRYBESE

Yuzhou Palace Country
B e B3

Sub-total /N5t

Total &5t

Shanghai
g
Shanghai
!
Hefei
Y
Hefei
e
Hefei
e

Tianjin

Rz

28,695 2,882 9,957
46,006 4,333 10,618
1,354,467 205,017 6,607
1,086,924 157,800 6,888
932,274 161,025 5,790
3,448,366 531,057 6,493
511,884 79,157 6,467
511,884 79,157 6,467
10,157,504 1,107,416 9,172
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The recognised sales and GFA sold of each project in 2014 are set

out in the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone
BREEHEERE

Yuzhou University City
Bl e KE

Yuzhou Castle above City

B o 5 3

Yuzhou Golf

Bl e BAX

Yuzhou Shoreline

Bl e B

Yuzhou Central Coast Phase |
Bl e RiEE—H

Yuzhou Central Coast Phase |l
Bl e LG = _H

Yuzhou Riverside City Town

R o R IR Rk

Yuzhou Cloud Top International
B o ETAEIRR

Yuzhou Gushan No. One
Bl e gk Il —5%

Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase |l
Bl o 7 B e HT — Hf
Yuzhou City Plaza Phase | and |l
BN T S — I k —H
Others

Hitb

Sub-total /N &t

Xiamen
=
Xiamen
Er
Xiamen
=
Xiamen
Er
Xiamen
=
Xiamen
Er
Xiamen
=
Xiamen
Er
Fuzhou
M
Fuzhou
B
Quanzhou
B
Xiamen

EF

MEiE

TREFZERBR2014FNBRFESER

73,235 20,976 3,491
87,703 12,215 7,180
191,251 14,888 12,846
1,022,716 65,105 15,709
337,728 32,846 10,282
2,450,237 192,279 12,743
314,979 30,446 10,345
929,898 28,348 32,803
199,500 12,447 16,028
12,993 658 19,746
453,262 83,878 5,404
54,094 6,294 8,595
6,127,596 500,380 12,246
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Yangtze River Delta Region
REZAREBE

Yuzhou Jingiao International
Bl o 218 B

Yuzhou Skyline Phase |

Bl o K35 —Hi

Yuzhou Skyline Phase Il

B e KR35 —Hi

Yuzhou Skyline Phase Il

Bl e K3F=Hj

Sub-total /N &t

Bohai Rim Region
RYEESE

Yuzhou Palace Country
Bl e BT

Sub-total /N5t

Total &5t

Shanghai
g
Hefei
e
Hefei
ae
Hefei
e

Tianjin

RiE

41,430 3,885 10,664
39,696 4,361 9,102
59,766 5,990 9,978
1,284,967 201,213 6,386
1,425,859 215,449 6,618
127,206 20,062 6,344
127,206 20,062 6,344
7,680,661 735,881 10,437
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CONTRACTED SALES IN 2015

The Group had set a contracted sales target of RMB13,500
million for 2015. During the year, the Group successfully seized the
opportunity of the recovery in real estate market driven by favourable
policies, overachieved the year’s contracted sales target with the
contracted sales totaling a record high of RMB14,018.01 million,
representing an increase of 16.80% year-on-year, and accomplished
103.84% of contracted sales target for the year. The total of
contracted sales GFA amounted to 1,402,197 sg.m., representing
an increase of 16.50% year-on-year. The average contracted selling
price was approximately RMB9,997 per sg.m., substantially in line
with last year. In addition, the sales of properties subscribed for but
not contracted totaled approximately RMB423 million.

Xiamen is the cradle for the Group’s development. For ten
consecutive years, the market share of Yuzhou Properties ranked
first in the real estate market in Xiamen, maintaining its leading
position. In 2015, contracted sales valued at RMB5,780.16 million
were achieved in Xiamen, accounting for 41.21% (2014: 51.54%)
of the total contracted sales of the Group. Located at Jimei District
and close to Xinglin Bridge, Yuzhou Central Coast contributed
a total of RMB1,621.70 million to contracted sales in 2015. In
Xiamen, residential properties of high quality closed to the sea are
rather scarce, leading to a rise in the property price in 2015. In
respect of the average selling price, the average contracted selling
price of Yuzhou Central Coast (including apartment, SOHO and
car park) was RMB18,985 per sg.m., representing an increase of
21.66% compared to last year. During the year, the new phases
launched by Yuzhou Riverside City Town and the opening of new
projects Yuzhou Lucca Town and Chunjiang Central in the second
half of the year have maintained the Group’s leading position in
Xiamen.

Hefei Yuzhou Central Town
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Having established a presence in Hefei for years, Yuzhou
Properties ranked among the city’s top three property developers
in terms of market share in 2015, with contracted sales amounted
to RMB4,239.13 million. Yuzhou Skyline and Yuzhou Central
Plaza both achieved excellent sales records of over RMB1 billion,
demonstrating the recognition of our brand by Hefei residents and
such recognition will in turn enhance our market share in Hefei
property market. Located at Xinzhan District, Yuzhou Central Town
recorded an sell-through rate up to 80% for the first day of its
grand opening in November, reaching remarkable sales amounted
to RMB400 million. In 2015, the average contracted selling price
of this project was RMB8,279 per sg.m., setting a new benchmark
for the average selling price in Xinzhan District.

In 2015, Yuzhou Bustling Center which is a project located at
Jiading District, Shanghai, and developed for residential purpose
only, created an excellent sales record of RMB500 million just
within two hours following its opening. Furthermore, Yuzhou
The Jiging, our first project in Nanjing Yuhuatai region has also
launched sale in early January 2016. Looking forward, our
development in Shanghai, Nanjing and Fuzhou is expected to
accelerate and these three cities together with Xiamen and Hefei
will become the top five cities for core business of the Group.

Contracted Sales
AHHE

(2013 VS. 2014 VS. 2015)

14,018

12,001
10,959

2013 2014 2015

0 2H
THF

& 1H
E¥F

BN ERHEEZF  2015FEABETIHG
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The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2015 are set N REFI & EE B R2015F A L HESTE N
out in the following table: HE:

West Strait Economic Zone Aﬁg
BARERE I—jgg
Yuzhou Golf Xiamen 8,880 511 17,370 ;ﬁ
Bl e mBX = S
Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 140,621 4,298 32,716 el
Bl e B =F9

Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 1,621,699 85,422 18,985

Bl e Rig=E =

Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 1,127,254 108,850 10,356

BN © B2 M5 &9 45
Yuzhou Cloud Top International Xiamen 413,207 10,947 37,746

S« ZTEER B v
Haicang Dream Town Xiamen 1,014,490 61,339 16,539 \/
R E R EF

Yuzhou Lucca Town Xiamen 481,463 22,733 21,179

Bl e ER/NE =

Chunjiang Central Xiamen 953,513 44112 21,615

FILBH EFr

Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 21,550 2,075 10,386

Bl e gkl —5% &I

Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase | and Il Fuzhou 10,845 606 17,892

Bl e KA BEH — —H] &I

Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase llI Fuzhou 819,030 79,000 10,368

Bl e R 77 BB HT =57 M

Yuzhou Cambridge Town Fuzhou 547,449 60,839 8,998

Bl e BIIFG 2% B

Yuzhou City Plaza Quanzhou 483,691 79,353 6,095

BN T ES SR

Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 580,526 99,607 5,828

B o 5 3 BEE

Others Xiamen 19,032 1,798 10,581

H A, =

Sub-total /&t 8,243,250 661,490 12,462
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Yangtze River Delta Region

REZAKEER

Yuzhou Jingiao International

Bl o 218 B
Yuzhou City Plaza
BN T &S

Yuzhou Commercial Plaza

BMEEES
Yuzhou Bustling Center
BiMeZHE

Yuzhou Skyline
B e X3%

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire
Bl o 5 BE
Yuzhou Central Plaza
Bl o R EI5
Yuzhou Town

B

Yuzhou Royal Seal
Bl e RE

Yuzhou Central Town
B o F IR

Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire
RN e EEFIHEB
Sub-total /N5t

Bohai Rim Region
BRYBESE

Yuzhou Palace Country
Bl g

Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire
Bl o #8530
Sub-total /N&t

Total &5t

Shanghai
g
Shanghai
!
Shanghai
g
Shanghai
i
Hefei
Gl
Hefei
e
Hefei
e
Hefei
e
Hefei
Y
Hefei
e
Bengbu
iR

Tianjin
R
Tianjin

RiE

13,517 758 17,824
87,747 9,600 9,141
206,062 15,878 12,978
656,331 28,740 22,837
1,007,087 147,403 6,832
744,476 101,630 7,325
1,031,722 156,616 6,588
422,692 43,961 9,615
616,557 90,936 6,780
416,591 50,317 8,279
131,856 31,014 4,251
5,334,638 676,853 7,882
275,430 41,559 6,627
164,696 22,295 7,387
440,126 63,854 6,893
14,018,014 1,402,197 9,997
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The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2014 are set

out in the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone

BREKHER

Yuzhou Golf

BiMemBX

Yuzhou Shoreline

BN e Eifg

Yuzhou Central Coast Phase |
(with car parks)

Bl e RGE—H (BELL)

Yuzhou Central Coast Phase |l

Bl e RiGE_H

Yuzhou Central Coast Phase |lI

Bl e LG F=H

Yuzhou Riverside City Town

B o R IR Rk

Yuzhou Cloud Top International

B o ETA BB

Haicang Dream Town

R BRIM

Yuzhou Gushan No. One

Bl e 5L —5%

Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase |l

Bl e R 7 EEHT — &7

Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase Il

Bl o 77 BLE HT = £

Yuzhou City Plaza Phase |

BN T E S —H

Yuzhou Castle above City

B o 1 3

Others

HAh

Sub-total /N &t

Xiamen
=Er
Xiamen
=P

Xiamen

=P
Xiamen
=P
Xiamen
=
Xiamen
=P
Xiamen
=
Xiamen
=P
Fuzhou
=
Fuzhou
&I
Fuzhou
=
Quanzhou
RN
Longyan
BEa
Xiamen

EF]

MEiE

TREFIZEBBER2014FNAKNFEESTER

196,268 12,744 15,401
1,150,988 58,236 19,764
208,152 22,300 9,334
200,789 19,022 10,556
1,300,306 68,211 19,063
806,184 71,628 11,255
815,319 22,710 35,901
1,416,409 94,282 15,023
207,188 10,328 20,061
22,970 1,252 18,347
300,601 30,436 9,877
587,122 86,822 6,762
398,653 73,215 5,445
91,801 18,5651 4,949
7,702,750 589,737 13,061

>
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Yangtze River Delta Region

REARERE

Yuzhou Land Dream

Bl e BB

Yuzhou City Plaza

BN T E S

Yuzhou Commercial Plaza

BMNEEES

Yuzhou Skyline Phases | and |l
(including shops)

BiMeRFE— B (E8H)

Yuzhou Skyline Phases I

Bl e RIF=Hj

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire

R e 3520

Yuzhou Central Plaza

Bl o R EIS

Yuzhou Town

=MbY

Yuzhou Royal Seal

Bl e RE

Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire

Bl e BEFIHAER

Sub-total /N&t

Bohai Rim Region

BRHBESE

Yuzhou Palace Country

B e BT

Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire

B o AR

Sub-total /)&t

Total &5t

Shanghai
IS
Shanghai
tiE
Shanghai
IS
Hefei

Gl
Hefei
e
Hefei
e
Hefei
&aiE
Hefei
e
Hefei
e
Bengbu
iR

Tianjin
R
Tianjin
RiE

61,780 7,074 8,733
58,457 5,303 11,023
86,597 4,407 19,650
71,623 6,152 11,642

1,142,912 155,404 7,354
854,372 116,642 7,325

1,082,592 177,009 6,116
205,619 23,406 8,785
160,520 25,485 6,299
222,345 45,078 4,932

3,946,817 565,960 6,974
274,620 39,083 7,027
77,106 8,781 8,781
351,726 47,864 7,348

12,001,293 1,203,561 9,971




INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

In 2015, the income from investment properties of the Group
was approximately RMB79.65 million, representing a growth
of approximately 54.53% vyear-on-year. The Group’s flagship
investment properties recorded decent occupancy rate: World
Trade Center (nearby the Xiamen train station) in Xiamen has made
an adjustment on its tenant combination and brands in 2015,
prominent brands such as MUJI, China Film Digital Cinema and
Yourtime Books were introduced, and traffic flow was enhanced
through various online and offline marketing; for office buildings,
Shanghai Yuzhou Plaza and Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza started
operation at end-2014 recorded decent occupancy rate with most
of the tenants coming from finance, apparel, insurance, trade,
engineering, investment management, [T, service, securities,
electromechanical and real estate sectors. The Group’s investment
properties portfolio will be expanded further when the projects in
Shanghai and Hefei are completed.

Shanghai Yuzhou The Bustling Center
A E Y EHE

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HOTEL OPERATION

The expansion into the hotel industry would broaden the source
of the Group’s revenue. The Yuzhou Camelon Hotel Apartment
in Xiamen contributed a hotel income of RMB16.21 million during
the year, representing a 0.18% increase year-on-year. It was a
frontrunner among 4/5-star hotels in Xiamen on online rating
websites. Most hotels of the Group are still under development and
construction, including Wyndham Grand Plaza Royale Hotel and
Howard Johnson Residence in Wuyuan Bay of Xiamen as well as
hotels in Tong’an District of Xiamen and Hui’an District of Quanzhou.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

In 2015, Yuzhou Properties Management was awarded China
Top 100 Property Management Companies, ranking No.44. To
improve customer satisfaction, Yuzhou Properties Management
renovated old facilities and equipment in its projects, conducted
return visit to home owners on a sampled basis and carried
out analysis of complaints and training of relevant property
management rules based on results from the return visiting to
enhance staff’'s professional knowledge and skills. In order to
provide customised and smart community services, the Group
launched Community O20 Service Platform — “You Life” on
WeChat in the first half of 2015, which features a range of “butler”
services including community notice, fees payment, engineering
repair, community group purchase. In addition, the Group reached
strategic cooperation with “Didi” in December 2015 and launched
Xiamen’s first “Didi” station in Yuzhou Lucca Town, which
gained sound feedback and facilitate promotion effect, provided
convenience for residents and signaled a new operating model of
online property management for the Group. In 2015, the property
management companies of the Group recorded a property
management fee income of RMB122.13 million, up by 38.40%
year-on-year. With an increase in the area of delivered properties,
the property management companies managed an aggregate GFA
of approximately 4.85 million sg.m. in China as of 31 December
2015.

By relying on Yuzhou's community layout, You
Life Store effectively consolidates supporting
facilities such as retail sales, express delivery,
ATM, payment and recharge devices, community
reading, children’s entertainment, housekeeping
service appointment, laundry & washing service
WKHEE AL A ) > AR B
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AEEPINAEREERN - EEE A ZAT
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FRZEZEERRENELRZHIE-
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2015 BN EES HRMEE B FE44
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LAND RESERVES

Adhering consistently to its strategic guideline of “Based in
West Strait and Expand Nationwide Coverage in China” and
by leveraging its brand reputation, the Group will accelerate its
development in the Yangtze River Delta to capture opportunities
from cities enjoying strong potential and rapid growth, in addition
to consolidating its deployment in West Strait Economic Zone.
Therefore, the Group speeded up its deployment in Shanghai and
Nanjing in 2015. On the principle of “Establishing strong foundation
in every city entered”, the Group selected strategic locations with
high potential for project development to save cost and create
brand premium.

As of 31 December 2015, the aggregate salable GFA of land
reserves of the Group was 8.56 million sg.m., with over 50 projects
located in eleven cities in West Strait Economic Zone, Yangtze
River Delta, Bohai Rim region and Hong Kong; the average land
cost was approximately RMB3,053 per sqg.m.. The Group believes
that its land reserves currently held and managed are sufficient for
its development over the next four or five years.

2015 Land bank breakdown (By GFA)
20154 & s Gk B 4 i (# R RE)

49
8%

20%

+ b ik
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Salable GFA of Land Reserves (sgq.m.)
(As at 31 December 2015)

T FENTHEEEERE (FHFK)
(7A20155F12H8318)

West Strait Economic Zone BARER
Xiamen =P

Fuzhou =M
Quanzhou RN

Longyan BEa
Zhangzhou R

Sub-total NET

Yangtze River Delta Region REZAREE
Shanghai 5

Nanjing EZ0

Hefei aE

Bengbu S
Sub-total INET

Bohai Rim Region BHEKER
Tianjin K
Sub-total INET
Offshore BEE

Hong Kong i
Sub-total NEt

Total P

In 2015, the Group acquired eight new parcels of quality land,
which are located in Xiamen, Hefei, Shanghai and Nanjing
respectively, providing an aggregate stable GFA of new land
reserves of 1,024,139 sqg.m., at an average land cost of
approximately RMB8,417 per sg.m., with a total land premium of
approximately RMB8,620 million. The newly acquired land parcels
are expected to generate satisfactory returns for the Group over
the next three to four years.

24 1,858,749
3 517,991
1 1,104,210
1 296,049
1 255,000

30 4,031,999
8 860,784
5 456,044
7 2,184,334
1 668,333

21 4,169,495
2 351,447
2 351,447
1 2,214
1 2,214

54 8,555,155

2015F AL EFTILSIMEE + M - BRI
EFT-&R LBRER g T mEENER
EREMAEE,024,130F 5K - FH LA A
BB TITKARES 47T EHEBAHKHOA
R#86182,0008 L B A RAR=ZEMF A
AEERMBHEANDRR -
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Particulars of the land parcels are set out in the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone
BEKERE
Yuzhou Jimei Project

BMEXER

Yangtze River Delta Region
R=EZAES

Yuzhou Xinzhan Project
SIMFT LA B

Yuzhou Xuhang Project
BIMRITIEE

Yuzhou Fengxian Project
BIMEEIRR

Yuzhou Yuhuatai Project
BIMNRERER
Jiangning Project G59
JTEIHHG59
Jiangning Project G57
/L ZEIEEG57
Jiangning Project G58
JTE I8 B G58

Total #3t

Xiamen

EFT

Hefei
&
Shanghai
!
Shanghai
&
Nanijing
MR
Nanjing
Y
Nanijing
MR
Nanjing
Y

TREIIZ MR FIE -

2,740,000 305,160 8,979
700,055 144,923 4,831
510,280 56,051 9,104

2,315,000 174,826 13,242
420,000 30,957 13,567
500,000 134,520 3,717

1,010,000 61,626 16,389
425,000 116,076 3,661

8,620,335 1,024,139 8,417
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REVENUE

The revenue of the Group mainly came from four business
categories, namely property sales, rental of investment properties,
property management and hotel operation. In 2015, the revenue
of the Group was RMB10,375.50 million, hitting a record high by
representing an increase of 32.40% over last year, mainly because
of the increase in property sales income recognised driven by the
increase in aggregate GFA of properties delivered. Specifically,
the property sales income was approximately RMB10,157.50
million, up by 32.25% compared to last year, which accounted for
97.90% of the total income; the rental income from investment
properties was approximately RMB79.65 million, up by 54.53%
compared to last year; the property management income was
about RMB122.13 million, up by 38.40% compared to last year;
the income from hotel operation was approximately RMB16.21
million, up by 0.18% compared to last year.

LGN

AEBMBAZZREAMEHE REMEMR
WA - MEEBRARBEEESERKMEAE
&S - 2015F - REBM WA B ARB103(E
7,5508 70 FILL EF32.40%  BlIE £ %15 =
EREERNMHEBELEEREIEMSMEHEE
ERWARER LA - R MEHEBANA
AR®E101185,7508 7T * M A F L F32.25%
HEERE U ARY7.00%  HEMERSIRAL B
ARMET 9658 T RAF L F54.53% : WIEE
BUWAHBARBIE2138 T B8EF LT
38.40% : BEBEWALN BARK1,6218 7T
BEF EF0.18% °

Analysis of Revenues By Category Over the Years

JEE 4E e A 5 1 B 5
RMB million
AREBETL

7,837 10,376

2014 2015

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group encompassed land cost,
construction cost and capitalised interest. In 2015, the cost of
sales of the Group was RMB6,666.18 million, up by 33.54% from
RMB4,991.86 million in 2014. The increase in the cost of sales was
mainly due to the increase in GFA of properties delivered of the
Group.

7 Sales of properties
MEHEWA

‘ Rental income
iEEAON

& Property management fees income
MEBERBERA

§ Hotel operation income
B WA

# B Bk

HERAREAEER MR  FZEKXARE
TMEFE © 20155 - REBHHEK R RARE
661%6,618& 7T ' [A] tb20144F A R #49189,186
& EF33.54% - HEX AN LA X ERKEAE
BT H Y R LA INATE




GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT
MARGIN

The gross profit of the Group was RMB3,709.32 million in 2015,
rising at a rate of 30.39% year on year. Gross profit margin was
35.75%, down by 0.55 percentage points year on year, staying at
a healthy level in the industry. The decrease in gross profit margin
was primarily attributed to the rising proportion of mid-priced
delivered properties.

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

In 2015, the Group recorded a fair value gain on investment
properties of RMB202.94 million (2014: RMB487.13 million),
which was mainly attributed to the fair value gain on investment
properties from Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza and Shanghai Yuzhou Plaza.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

In 2015, other income and gains increased by 212.88% to
RMB235.38 million. The increase was mainly due to the acquisition
of remaining interest of a joint venture company Fujian Big World
Huaxia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (the “Fujian Big World
Huaxia”) which generated a gain of RMB128.36 million (disclosed
as gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary, net of loss on
remeasurement of a pre-existing interest in a joint venture). After
the acquisition, Fujian Big World Huaxia became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
50.66% from RMB191.54 million in 2014 to RMB288.57 million
in 2015, which accounted for 2.06% (2014: 1.60%) of total
contracted sales. Such increase was mainly due to additional
expenses incurred for developing new markets including Nanjing
and Shanghai, but remained at a mid-to-lower level in the industry.
With the changes of people’s ways of receiving information and
the consumption pattern, the Group invested more resources in
the Internet marketing and expanded more diversified marketing
channels in 2015, which achieved a breakthrough in innovation.
On top of various means of traditional marketing, the Group
enhanced promotion via new media (e.g. WeChat). For example,
Yourtime Books were introduced to Xiamen Yuzhou Lucca Town,

Management Discussion and Analysis
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where there is a coffee shop and bookstore and internet available
in the sales office, with an aim to build the first sales office with a
coffee and art shop in Xiamen. And other innovative experience
marketing activities like Virtual Reality (VR) in our sample houses
were also introduced. Yuzhou Properties introduced the product
concept of Boutique Building 3.5 (#%£3.5) this year, which added
more elements like arts, humanities, experiences and services to
property development.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses grew by 29.82% from
approximately RMB228.08 million in 2014 to approximately
RMB296.10 million in 2015. In 2015, the proportion of
administrative expenses to total contracted sales increased to
2.11% (2014: 1.90%), due to the business expansion of the Group
and the increase in number of staff.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses reduced by 42.55% from RMB127.19 million in
2014 to approximately RMB73.07 million in 2015. In 2014, other
expenses included RMB119.83 million of net loss on deemed
disposal of subsidiaries upon loss of control, while no such loss
incurred in 2015.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of the Group increased by 98.95% from RMB175.44
million in 2014 to RMB349.04 million in 2015. The increase was
mainly because the Group has early redeemed a senior notes
of USD250 million with coupon rate of 11.75% in the year. The
redemption has generated a loss of RMB196.77 million.

SHARE OF PROFITS AND LOSSES OF
JOINT VENTURES

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures is from approximately
RMBO0.36 million gain in 2014 to RMB41.97 million loss in 2015.
The loss was mainly due to our joint ventures, Fujian Big World
Huaxia and Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) Eastern Town Co. Ltd
(“Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) Eastern Town”) which generated a fair
value loss, net of deferred tax of RMB87.52 million during the year.
Fujian Big World Huaxia and Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) Eastern
Town became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group during the
year.
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INCOME TAX

Income tax of the Group increased by 11.05% from approximately
RMB1,328.51 million in 2014 to approximately RMB1,475.29
million in 2015. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue and profit during the year. During the year,
the previous year over provided LAT of approximately RMB120.36
million and the deferred income tax asset related to the over
provided LAT of RMB30.09 million were reversed.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the profit attributable to
owners of the parent was approximately RMB1,656.85 million,
representing an increase of 32.08% compared to RMB1,254.38
million in 2014 mainly due to the above mentioned factors. Core
profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by 57.99%
from RMB1,025.34 million in 2014 to RMB1,619.95 million in
2015.

RER

REERFBHAH2014F 4 ARK13182,8518
TC EFH11.05% @ 220155 49 A R #514187,529
BT MEHEBR AT EHRRNFRARNE
LA M—E L —FEZHIERN T HIZER
HANRB1E2,0368 T R EEHRELEMFHE
E AR3,000& 7T IR G A [ o
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B E2015F12A31BIEFE B RAHE AR
1EFEL B AR KE16(85,6858 7T 20145 E
AR H12(85,4388 7L £ F32.08% E 22 M
PIA R MEZE - 20156 F R a1EA ARLZ
DFE B A A REE16181,9958 7T © L2014 1y

ARH10182,534& 70 EF457.99% ©

Located in Jiading District, Shanghai, Yuzhou Bustling Center was launched in November 2015 and reported impressive sales
performance, contributing contracted sales amount of RMB656 million for the 2015 whole year
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BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE AND
CORE EARNINGS PER SHARE

Bl AR A R L B A

BERZOBNOFEITERTRBES ARE
RO FER AR R BT R B INEFHEE -
BREXRZOBNIZATEME

Core earnings per share are calculated by dividing the core profit
attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period. The
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calculation of basic and core earnings per share are based on the

following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the

SRR ARIENE

parent 1,656,853 1,254,384
Less: Fair value gain on investment B BRIRIETR R IR B

properties, net of deferred tax NAERE 152,207 365,348
Less: Fair value gain on derivative JHPTHES BRI AAREKR

financial instruments 44,583 6,334
Less: Gain on bargain purchase B B EWE—EME AR

of a subsidiary net of loss on W EFHFTE R —H

remeasurement of a pre-existing AENRIC AR EE

interest in a joint venture 128,356 -
Plus: Loss on deemed disposal of a I R EVEHRERRIERE

subsidiary upon loss of control — RN B R RIAEE - 119,825
Plus: Realised fair value gains on W HEREMEFRIRTE

investment properties disposed, MENEDERKREME

net of deferred tax AnERE - 19,923
Plus: Equity-settled share option 0 AR E R R

expenses 3,959 2,886
Plus: Loss on redemption of - EReRaEELEE

financial liabilities 196,771 -
Plus: Share of fair value loss on - WIEEE AR R T R

acquisition of remaining interests MR TER 15 B A B4

in joint ventures, net of deferred tax NIAERRE 87,516 -
Core profit attributable to owners NEVHER A FESZOF)E

of the parent 1,619,953 1,025,336
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E B INE &

shares in issue ('000) (LAF&ED) 3,677,918 3,456,000
Basic earnings per share FREXRAZF

(RMB per share) (BRAR®IT) 0.45 0.36
Core earnings per share L AT

(RMB per share) (BlRAR®IT) 0.44 0.30
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Profit attributable to Owners of the Parents Core Profit
BE N B HE A O JE AL AL 1% 0 Al
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET 1,657 ARBEET 1,620
1,471 ‘
! 1,254
1,090 1,025 A
559 & 2H # 2H %
TF TF &
& 1H & 1H S
— b o8 FkE 2
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 f%
5
al
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES % # & & &k M % & i
The Group has adopted a prudent financial policy and strived to ~ EBEZETREMNBBEE  EEEREZENR
maintain a healthy debt level amid its fast expansion to support B B HIE B EHFEREKT U EEE ]
sustainable development. Meanwhile, the Group continued to HEZER -FAREEFEFRRSHEUNBER 59

explore varied channels of financing, kept an close eye on capital
market’s financing window and take reducing overall financing cost
as a goal. As China opened its domestic corporate bond market
in 2015, the Group grasped the bond issuance opportunities, via
a wholly-owned subsidiary, Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real
Estate Development Company Limited ( & F5 & M % [E] #h 7 BA 2%
ABRAT), RMB2 bilion of 3-year private corporate bond with
a coupon rate of 6.7% on 16 October 2015 and RMB3 billion
of 5-year public corporate bond with a coupon rate of 5.1%
on 10 December 2015. As assessed by Golden Credit Rating
International Co., Ltd. the credit rating of the corporate bonds are
both AA, and the credit rating of Yuzhou Grand Future is AA. In
addition, the Group redeemed USD250 million senior notes due
in 2017 with a coupon rate of 11.75% on 26 October 2015, and
early repaid HK$521 million and USD35 million syndicated loan in
Hong Kong due in April 2016. Thanks to these, the Group’s overall
financing cost dropped from 8.49% at the end of 2014 to 7.00%
at the end of 2015. The series of corporate financing measures
further replenished the Group’s cash flow in support of business
development, extended the average maturing term of the Group’s
debt portfolio and optimised debt structure, which helped lower
the Group’s overall financing cost.

In respect of bank loans, the Group maintained good cooperative
relationships with commercial banks. As of 31 December 2015, the
unused credit facilities given by domestic and foreign commercial
banks to the Group totaled RMB4,848.87 million.
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- £ B R2015F10A26H 12 R B HE B12017
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BORROWINGS

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s has total bank and other
borrowings of RMB14,616.24 million, which were secured by
the investment properties, properties held for sale and properties
under development of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of RMB18,649.03 million. The outstanding balance of senior
notes was RMB5,466.88 million. In 2015, the Group’s bank and
other borrowings and outstanding balance of senior notes totaled
RMB20,083.12 million, with the repayment periods set out as
follows:

JINE" .
B A

72015124310 AE B/ RITMEME K
AHBARE146(81,6248 0 AAEEIREAR
BERARK186184,9038 THIIREME - FH1EH
ERASHNYERERYEFEER -MEBLERE
#h58 B AR ¥54186,6888 T ° 2015F NEE K
BITMEMER RS EREREARXAARE
200188,312& 7t B HAMAT :

Bank and other borrowings 88 17 0 HL At 18 X
Within 1 year or on demand M1FZ N EEK
In the second year RE2F
In the third to fifth years, inclusive MREE3E FE5F
(BRREEREME)
Beyond five years 5F 1%
Senior Notes BERERE
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REIFEFEHF
(RIEEREMTF)
Total e
Debt Profile by Maturity
fit % £ v (4% 1 IR)

1%

8%

71%

3,987,373 3,805,451
1,665,505 1,818,074
8,845,312 2,882,673
118,050 159,650
14,616,240 8,665,848
5,466,883 6,738,562
20,083,123 15,404,410

B Within 1 year
1F R

‘ 1to 2 year
1-24F

‘3m5wm
3-5

% Over 5 year
5% A
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CASH POSITION

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had RMB11,948.79 million of
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, up by 22.12% from
RMB9,784.74 million as at 31 December 2014.

Cash Position
et

RMB million

9,785

3,884

2013 2014 2015

GEARING RATIO

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as
the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and senior notes
less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and divided
by total equity) was 79.43%, up by 19.58 percentage points when
compared to 59.85% as at 31 December 2014. The increase was
mainly attributable to the payment of land premium during the year.

Net Gearing Ratio
AR

%
100

80

60
» /

40 ®

20

2010 2011 2012

Bl ki

BHZE2015F12A31H 1L AEENEREE KRS
ZLEMNZRHRSAARKE119(84,8798 7T
BR2014F12A31HM AR KEI7TIES 4748 L £
F22.12% °
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PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF NEW
SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

As at 12 May 2015, the Company placed 360 million new shares,
which represent approximately 10.42% of the issued shares of
3,456 million of the Company, at the placing price of HK$2.20
per placing share. Placees included entities controlled by Taiwan
Life Insurance Co., Ltd., and TransGlobe Life Insurance Inc,
respectively. The net proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$779 million. The Company intends to use the net proceeds
for possible investments in the future when opportunities arise. As
of 31 December 2015, all the net proceeds from the placing has
been utilised in accordance with the intended use.

CURRENCY RISK

As of 31 December 2015, among the RMB20,083.12 million
of total borrowings of the Group, approximately 62.01% was
denominated in RMB and 37.99% was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars. In 2015, the Group
successfully tapped the onshore funding source - issuance of
onshore corporate debt and optimised the debt structure and
reduced the foreign exchange risk of the company through early
redemption of the costly senior notes in United States dollars and
early repayment of syndicated loan in Hong Kong.

Debt Profile by Currency
mHn (EE%)
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The proportions of bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
cash balance of the Group in terms of currencies were as follows:

HK$ B
RMB AR
us$ ETT
SG$ H s T
Others Hith
Total BEF

*Including restricted cash

COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments in respect
of development expenditure on real estate of approximately
RMB5,351.10 million (31 December 2014: RMB3,363.41 million).
The Group is also committed to the payment of land premium in
respect of land acquisition of approximately RMB2,098.79 million
(81 December 2014: RMB4,029.97 million) and in respect of
acquisition of a project company of approximately RMB179.46
million (31 December 2014: RMB221.46 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provides buy-back guarantees to banks, which offered
mortgages to domestic properties buyers in Mainland China of
the Group. As at 31 December 2015, outstanding buy-back
guarantees amounted to RMB9,239.47 million (31 December
2014: RMB6,573.78 million).

AEBORITREMER BERERRSEH
MEEEE T -

1,722,914 1,878,651
12,458,203 10,009,044
5,907,006 59,801
- 1,221
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20,083,123 11,948,793
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Except for i) the acquisition of the remaining interest of joint
ventures, Fujian Big World Huaxia and Yuzhou Properties (Hefei)
Eastern Town, from independent third parties on April 2015
and November 2015 respectively, which became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, and ii) the acquisition of remaining 20%
non-controlling interest of Xiamen Yuzhou Seaview Property from
an independent third party on December 2015, which became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, the Group had no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies
during the period.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is led by an experienced and professional management
team. Since the establishment of the Group in 1994, the Group
has been undergoing rapid development and expansion under the
leadership of the Board. Senior management is very experienced in
properties development industry with over 11 years’ experience for
most of the senior executives. With the strong leadership as well
as effective execution, together with strict implementation of the
best international practices according to the actual situation of the
Company, the Group has become one of the strongest real estate
developers in the PRC.

We believed that the competence of human resources, particularly
the senior executives and professional project management team,
is of critical importance to maintaining the strong competitive
strengths of the Group. The Group aims to achieve and exceed
the international standard of outstanding performance through
compliance with the best international practice in respect of
strict management system and corporate governance. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had 2,981 (2014: 2,596) staff in total.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2016 annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will
be held on 31 May, 2016. A notice convening the AGM has been
published and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company
together with the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

At the board meeting of the Company held on 30 March 2016,
the board of directors proposed a final dividend of HK18 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2015, which is subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the upcoming
AGM. The final dividend is proposed to be paid on or about 5
July 2016 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on 15 June
2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27
May 2016 to 31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered in
order to determine the identities of shareholders entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfers (accompanied by the share certificates,
as applicable) must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2016 for registration.

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 13 June 2016 to 15 June 2016 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered in order to determine the identities of shareholders
entitled to the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfers (accompanied by the share
certificates, as applicable) must be lodged with Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on
10 June 2016 for registration.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SHARE
DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers contained
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the requirements set out
in the Securities Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“‘Board”) and the management of the
Group are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Group emphasise a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

During the year, the Group had adopted, applied and complied
with the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange except the following deviation:
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Code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Lam Lung On has been assuming the roles of
both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group since
1 January 2012. Although these two roles are performed by the same
individual, certain responsibilities are shared with executive directors
to balance the power and authority. In addition, all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the board as well as
senior management. The Board has three independent non-executive
directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation
on a regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would
not impair the balance of power in the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The board of directors of the Company announces that on 20
January 2015, the Company has granted share options under its
share option scheme adopted on 24 May 2010 to certain directors
and employees of the Group which, subject to the acceptance of
the Grantees, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 16,445,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company at the exercise price per share of HK$1.892.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
policies adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND
PROSPECT

2016 will mark the first year of the 13th Five-Year-Plan and
mainland China’s economy is entering a new normal that shift
from fast expansion to stable growth with high quality. On the
11th meeting of the Leading Group for Financial and Economic
Affairs, President XI Jinping said that, ‘In addition to appropriately
expanding demand, China should also focus on strengthening
supply-side structural reform and improving the quality and
efficiency of the supply system to boost sustainable economic
momentum.’ Besides, he also called for ‘capacity cut, destocking,
deleveraging, cost cut and shoring up weak spots’, which will
bring new challenges and opportunities for the overall economy
and the real estate sector. However, we believe relevant policy
environment will stay loosen in the coming year as the real estate
sector is one of the key economic pillars for China’s development
and China is promoting urbanisation. The central government has
set a policy goal of steady consumption and stronger demand
and establishment of a long term market mechanism and further
regional integration. Local governments are expected to take more
proactive approach on policy adjustments and further loosened
control on property market accordingly. This should facilitate
transforming the sector from policy-driven to market-driven.

Corporate concentration and regional divergence is a set trend
for the real estate sector. Amid this background, the Group will
adhere to its strategic guideline of “Based in West Strait and
Expand Nationwide Coverage in China”. The Group will continue
to cultivate and root in the West Strait Economic Zone market,
and accelerate deployment in the Yangtze River Delta Region
to realise the prudent strategic expansion “from the core cities
to the regions and the whole country”. The Group will cultivate
Xiamen, Hefei, Shanghai, Fuzhou and Nanjing with the goal to
grow business in these core cities, so that a regional strong
scale can be formed and brand synergy could be generated.
In addition, the Group will also expand to tier 1 and 2 cities
with great development potentials. The Group will increase land
reserve in these cities at a fair price when appropriate, and strive
to strengthen resource consolidation. We expect housing prices
in tier 1 and 2 cities in general and in Xiamen, Hefei, Shanghai,
Nanjing and Fuzhou in particular will rise steadily on the back of
demand, while performance in tier 3 and 4 cities may be lackluster
due to oversupply. Adhering to government policy of destocking,
the Group will also speed up destocking of its limited housing
resources in tier 3 and 4 cities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LR R V¥R

In response to the general development of the property sector and
continuous adjustment of the market, the Group will transform itself
from a simplex developer to an integration of developer, operator
and service provider by leveraging on its resources. In 2015, the
Group launched its online community O20 platform — You Life,
marking its breakthroughs in housing development, community
service and other aspects in the Internet Age, and its efforts
to seek new business growth drivers. As the Group’s property
development scales up, more quality investment properties are
adding to our portfolio. Looking ahead, the Group will still focus on
property sales and selectively hold investment properties including
mall, hotels and office building situated at prime locations in tier
1 and 2 cities. What’s more, the Group will also actively explore
fundraising opportunities through innovative financing channels and
collaborations to reduce finance cost in different ways.

The Group is prudently optimistic about the prospects of the
property market in China in 2016, with its 2016 contracted sales
target at RMB16,000 million, representing an increase of 14.1%
from RMB14,018.01 million in 2015. The Group has geared
up for the sales campaign for all our projects in a bid to seize
opportunities brought by market changes. The Group is confident
in maintaining sound property development business and providing
more considerate product and services to our clients, and aims to
take the Group’s development into a new level.
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"ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION e
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The Group stresses environmental responsibility and seeks for all-
round improvement in its environmental protection performance
in respect of real estate development, building construction
and property management. The Group fulfills its commitment to
environmental protection by actively promoting green design,
implementing energy saving and emission reduction measures
at construction sites, and being environmentally friendly in every
detail of property management and daily office work. As a real
estate developer committed to its social responsibilities, the Group
believes that sustainable development is the foundation for the
long-term growth of businesses and society. In light of this, the
Group sticks to its commitment on environmental protection and
shoulders its corporate social responsibilities by carrying out a
series of corresponding measures in its different business units to
protect the environment.

Yuzhou Properties’ Commitments to Environmental Protection:
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requirements on environmental protection; HEREESK

e Avoiding pollutions; o  EBERITH

e  Reducing construction waste; o R BEREN .--4 '

e Consuming fewer natural resources; o BALRABIREFR

o Seeking continuous improvement; and . HENE l-ﬁl"'i'-

& ° Researching and designing green buildings ° HERFBTFEELE ' -%':_f
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GREEN BUILDINGS AS A FUNDAMENTAL
SOLUTION

The design and application of green buildings is significant in
fundamentally improving buildings’ environmental performance,
given the long life cycle of buildings and the huge energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emission in the whole process
of operation. The Group has been committed to adopting well-
recognised green building standards in combination with local
conditions to serve as local design codes.

HEm R ETRERRE

MR EEN S AR EEEEERBIETH
ZETERBRENAEREBHEINERA K
FRERETANEAENRRE LR EEENIRER

772&2;:
AN

i%ﬁﬁ%é%ﬁ’]n% RE-HEHIMEMEEES

EHERBEINERUENGZCERIZEESR
B AR AT AR &G



CASE STUDY: GREEN BUILDING AT
YUZHOU PLAZA

FULLY SUPPORTED BY LED LIGHTING SYSTEM

Featured a clean, beautiful and grand image, the lamps also
provide good lighting. The unique design of LED-panel lamps
enables light to spread evenly across the surface after going
through a high-transmittance light guide plates (LGP). Thus, such
lamps deliver good illuminance uniformity and soft rays, which are
able to relieve eyestrain. Theoretically, LED has a long service life of
up to 100,000 hours. Assuming that it is used eight hours per day,
LED has a theoretical service life of over 27 years, while theoretical
service life of CPL light cups even exceeds 100,000 hours.

INTEGRATED BELT SYSTEM
(APPLIED TO G/F LOBBY AND 15/F CANTEEN)

Different from integrated
ceiling, an integrated belt is
a newly upgraded equipment
belt that features a free
multifunctional integration
of different types of terminal
equipment, including fire
sprinklers, smoke detectors,
temperature detectors,
speakers, spot lighting,
wireless network coverage,
monitors, Infrared sensors,
sensor sites, intelligent
controllers and switch boxes.

In the YOUGOT integrated
belt of the building, alumina-
frosting grooves are used as
the subject illumination that
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and optimum reflection angles,
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delivering high luminaire efficiency. Its excellent characteristics
includes but not limited to environmentally friendly and energy-
saving, comfortable, advanced technology, fashionable and
durable.

According to national standards, the prevailing standard of power
density is 11 watts per square meter for average office buildings
with an illuminance of 300LX. The power density of condenser is
5.4 watts per square meter only, which means that it can save
5.6 watts per square meter. For a building with a size of 100,000
sg.m., if it uses lights five hours per day, 320 days per year and
each kilowatt hour costs RMBO0.85, it can save electricity fee of
approximately RMB750,000 annually and approximately RMB15
million over two decades.

ELEVATORS

Electricity consumption of elevators is saved and total energy
consumption can be reduced by 40% to 60% through recycling
the electric energy which is converted from mechanical energy
during the braking process of elevators.

LIGHTING DESIGN FOR THE NIGHTSCAPE OF
YUZHOU PLAZA

The Plaza adopts pointolites, pixels and projectors, with CREE
lighting chips imported from the USA which enjoy low heat
generation and a long service life. Made by famous Chinese brand
Huo Shan Yin Yu (£ LR ) , the lamps are horizontally arranged,
with adjustable radiance, pointolites and pixels, showing a dynamic
nightscape pattern with characters and artwork at the north side of
Yundang Lake to complement the beautiful night scene of the Lake.
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EMISSION REDUCTION AND
ENERGY SAVING DURING PROJECT
CONSTRUCTION

Efforts should be made by the Group to conduct hardening
treatment for construction sites and equip blenders with anti-dust
sheds; use tarpaulins to cover the bulk material carried by vehicles;
place construction materials such as cement inside temporary
storage rooms; provide washing facilities at the entrances and exits
of construction sites; allow vehicles to leave after getting cleaned;
and prevent dust. Besides, noise barriers should be set up at
construction sites, imposing stringent restriction on working hours
and enforcing measures of noise reduction on loud machines such
as blenders, air compressors and woodwork devices and tools.
In addition, efforts should be made to build pit toilets and collect
domestic sewage in a unified way, with no sewage discharged
into surface water; simple sedimentation tanks should be built
to process water for construction use and recycle it to water
construction sites and roads. For land parcels of bare soil caused
by vegetation destruction during construction periods, work should
be done to timely cover such land parcels with gravel or plant
fast-growing grass to reduce soil erosion and protect vegetation.
The end of construction should be followed by the restoration
of original vegetation and reasonable greening. In respect of
processing construction wastes, such wastes shall be transported
and dumped according to the time, route and location provided by
the municipal authority for amenities, environment and sanitation,
with no illegal dumping.

REFINED DECORATION TO REDUCE
WASTES

The Group has taken gradual steps to implement its strategy of
delivering houses with refined decoration instead of blanks, in a
bid to reduce the waste of materials and noise pollution caused by
proprietors’ own decoration. The Company has rolled out various
standards of refined decoration for customers who can also
raise their views on design style and material mixing proportion.
Furthermore, the Group adopts centralised purchasing of wooden
flooring, sanitary ware and kitchen appliance.

Environment, Social angl Governance
R HERER

Y8 H i T % BF & fi

SEME TSR EE BHBREH S
Ep &M ERAEMENERFTMNEER ]
SRR KRS ERERFEEAR : THHA
AR E Rk b - B TREFE R BB T
Mo EHBEETI - m—hE IR ER
BEREE RRREEXRR: HBHE =R
B R T EASHAROEA - SREXE
BRREBARDEAZE - BE RERER
R - WAR— R AETRISK - BB A ROKEE
REM SRR AK - &R IR [ YR
R R TS M - ¥ THIRE IR
2 BRRBEEYDARBERERNER LR
DEEEE REER - BLERE BREHR
REERIGETRER( - ERIEEENIR -
RRMARRELETREE BFIRERRRE - 3K
AR E B B AR R RSN I - BREEIRAIA A

RER A SR RS

SEETHITREEEE  WRPERELERE
B FXEETEREMERNOMEIRERRES
FeNREHZRBIBRERERTPEE HR
ARG MHESREER SRR R
A BEERFETETRE-

47 2] B40) 0 2 I S

73



poyuur| Aeduroy) senaedold noyzng

-
=

En\{jromnent, Social and Governance
R b thE R E i

PROMOTING GREEN LIFE VIA
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group also actively promotes the concepts of life that
emphasize green, environmental protection, sanitation and
health, mobilising its property management team to disseminate
the ideas of “Environmental Protection” and “Building a Green
Homeland Together” in all its communities. The Group has been
consistent in promoting green office culture and putting it into
practice. For instance, the Group adopted LED lights for office
lighting, advocated paperless office and duplex printing, unified
temperatures for air-conditioning and classified recycling for office
wastes. In addition, property management companies organised
activities and publicity education on environmental protection, in an
attempt to raise the awareness of environmental protection among
employees and customers.

GREEN PROCUREMENT FOR
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group continues with its policy of green procurement, requiring
its suppliers to obtain “China Environmental Labeling”( #1 B3R 5%
1Z55) for all their panels, adhesives and paints. The Group has
signed or renewed its strategic cooperation agreements with its
partners to ensure doors, floorings, gypsum boards and other
products with “China Environmental Labeling”, which to ensure
indoor air quality and customers’ health. The Labeling represents
the most authoritative certification of environmental protection in
China. Products with the certification are regarded as low poison,
fewer harms and less resource consumption, compared with
products of the same categories.

CHERISHING FOOD THROUGH THE
“CLEANYOUR PLATE” CAMPAIGN

M| Y/
(EBATE)
The Group has called on its staff to follow the spirit of
environmental protection in daily life. In particular, the Group
launched its “Clean Your Plate” Campaign in 2015, with
posters put up in canteen to encourage staff to cherish food
and waste nothing. The Group also plans to provide its staff

with professional training courses so that they are better
informed of environmental protection.

Posters of the “Clean Your Plate” campaign
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are put up in the canteen of Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza, to remind the staff to

cherish food
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CARBON
EMISSION

The Group understands the impact of the global environment
caused by greenhouse gas emission. With that in mind, the Group
plans to quantify its greenhouse gas emission with the help of
certification agencies in future. Based on certification results, the
Group will formulate plans and measures against such emission
to reduce its impact on global warming. The Group hopes that
the continuous improvement in monitoring its carbon standard will
reduce carbon consumption and emission which protect the global
ecological environment in a better way.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
PROMOTION

In 2015, in response to the municipal government’s concept
of “Building a Beautiful Xiamen Together”, Yuzhou Properties
Management joined hands with 14 communities in Xiamen to
launch an environmental campaign named “Your Environment,
Your Welfare”, to celebrate the International Labor Day. Participants
collected trash to advocate environmental protection and joint
efforts to build beautiful communities.

Environment, Social and Governance

Ry-HaRkER

AE R 2 % Tk Bk Bk X

ERRREREBH IS HEHRBENNF
5‘% AHEIERE  ERRERBHAKEDN
RELINEETERENL RERBERNK
RERBYER R EERIEN  UERERE
BB RRACATER N E - REAE
iﬁﬂ?bﬁ% B iR AEED R - 3B 4f i R (K AR BE
OB AP REERRERRERR 1)
HE-

|

HH} 3 B lﬂﬂm >¢FFFF
H

=
=
IIxE
ﬁ

1 J 2R Ok 05 B)

20165 REREMMIXEREF KRHE]
EEREL-SHHIRE  SMNYEAE
BEFNAELRER [ FRIMREM  RRERK]
RR1TE BERURFTREZRR 58
THEEME-

5 BT EAE

On 23 September 2015, the Eleventh “Yuzhou Cup” Lakeside Long-distance
Running Contest in Jingkai Economic Development Zone was successfully held
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Between November and December in
2015, Yuzhou Properties organised a
relay riding activity named “Riding to
Green Life”, making its contribution to
building a low-carbon city by advocating

riding
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In September, “Yuzhou Cup” Lakeside Long-distance Running
Contest is successfully organised in Hefei City. Sponsored by Hefei
Yuzhou and jointly hosted by Hefei Athletic Association and Trade
Union Federation of Hefei Economic Development Zone, the event
attracted nearly 2,000 participants, echoing the call for low-carbon
life and environmental protection and promoting mass fitness.

In November, an urban campaign named “Enjoying the Last Leg
of Delivery (%% —/2E)” was launched, with Yuzhou Properties
Management dispatching special personnel to facilitate the smooth
delivery of Yuzhou owners’ packages. “Riding to Green Life (Bt%&
S HN)”, a relay riding activity was launched to advocate individual
efforts among urbanites for energy conservation and emission
reduction, representing a challenge to modern urban lifestyle and
reflecting Yuzhou's thoughts and actions for urban life.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR REGULATIONS

As a company principally engaged in property development,
Yuzhou Properties recognises the importance of talents for
a company’s development and flourishment. With years of
experience and exploration, Yuzhou has successfully established
a sound system of human-resources management that provides
guidelines and methods for recruitment, sense of belonging
cultivation, training, appraisement, promotion and talent retention.
The system enables the Company to grow along with its
employees and share with them its fruitful achievements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 2,981 employees,
including 2,961 employees in the PRC and 20 in Hong Kong. As
of 31 December 2015, the total employee cost (including director’s
emoluments and CEQ’s remuneration) for the whole year of 2015
amounted to RMB134.35 million (2014: RMB103.30 million).

Key Performance Indicators on Human Resources
Number of Staff in 2015: 2,981
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I. Systems Development

In 2015, the Group strove to optimise and improve the
company’s performance-appraisal system. Specifically, the
Group introduced the well-practiced managerial experience
from benchmarking peer companies to push forward the
reforms of remuneration structure of the Company’s middle
and senior management, strengthen mutual interest, and
stress the appraisal approach of closely linking the middle
and senior management’s remuneration to its performance.
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II.

II.

Performance Appraisal

In 2015, the Group conducted an internal ranking for its
subsidiaries in various cities, aiming to provide more incentive
to those subsidiaries. Meanwhile, the Group optimised its
performance appraisal on property projects and revised
the appraisal period from quarterly basis to monthly basis,
through which, the Group enhanced its daily control on
projects to effectively reduce project development risks and
improve project returns.

In 2015, the monthly appraisal of real estate companies
focused on contracting sales and payment collection as
well as critical construction schedule of projects, in order to
ensure the Group’s overall sales income and cash flow.

Remuneration

The Company kept on optimising its remuneration
mechanism with reference to the industrial benchmarks,
and therefore has gradually established a remuneration and
incentive system covering short term, medium term and
long term. In view of the short term, the Group motivated
its employees by annual salary adjustment. For the mid-
and-long term, the Group addressed more attention to its
talent pool and employees’ career development while set
up a corresponding remuneration incentive mechanism. In
2015, the Group continued to grant share options to the
key management staff of the year to encourage their long-
term services and efforts on improving the Company’s
performance, achieving a return sharing and win-win situation
between the Company and our staff.

E-HR System

The Group continued to promote the application of its
electronic human-resources (E-HR) information system, to
provide employees with convenient HR services and enhance
their satisfactions.

Others

The Company continued to work on its HR management in
terms of breadth and depth. In 2015, Yuzhou studied and tried
to promote all-round talent assessment, to comprehensively
improve the Company’s HR management in respect of
recruitment, training and development, as well as employee
appraisal. The attempt also aimed to improve the level of
systematism and professionalism in HR management.
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TALENTS OVERVIEW

From January to December 2015, the Group recruited 1,989
employees in total. Since February 2015, the Group has started
to implement its training scheme for “Yuzhou Young Talents (&
)", namely, fresh graduates recruited in 2014. A total of 48 fresh
graduates participated in the three-month intensive training, and 25
of them passed the final assessment and got recruited. Besides, the
recruitment scheme for “Yuzhou Young Talents” of 2016 was carried
out in November 2015 across six renowned universities, with more
than 1,200 CVs received and over 230 students interviewed. 10 of
them were finally recruited for the first batch of recruitment. And the
recruitment will continue in the spring of 2016.

The scheme under “Yuzhou Young Talents” has laid a foundation
for developing a talent team for the Company, and injected fresh
vitality into the Company as well as facilitated the optimisation
of its talent structure. Additionally, the Company employed 29
outstanding managerial talents from other industries under its “Talent
Hunting” scheme in 2015. Most of them were elites from the top ten
enterprises in the industry, which provided the personnel guarantee
for Yuzhou Group’s new project expansion.

MEASURES AND STRATEGIES OF
RETAINING TALENTS

The Company understands that talents are important assets of a
company. As such, the Group has established an effective human-
resources system for recruiting and retaining talents.

1. Conduct standard and sound corporate governance.
This provides a good platform of career development for
employees, helping them plan their career and cultivating and
retaining the high-performance core staff as the key talents of
the Company.

AA R

2015F 1212 A EEHEIBHEE T1,980A - £ E2
BRBHE2014F BENEEEBBARE
ATE - HABABAR I T MIREEF - ESE A &Y
EFIEI - BBEZRLEEA25A R 711
AFRE T2016/8 [&im] BIEETZ  # A6FTA
ZERABRBIE WEBE1,200%% |
H230% A R E—HLERFHI0OA c A FIFTER
2016 F EEHERS -

[BEIFERRATDASBHRREREE T ER
RAFERTHENR BRRIAT EBENL
RE TN A 2016F A RRB [RE | &
- EBUMBEFEEAS2A - BLAT KER
DERBETETopI0—RBENBERAS  BE
MNEBARMNBERHT T ADERRE-

Employees performed
“Blooming Flowers” dance in

_ the Company’s annual dinner
L BETRARIEE FRE (BIE
) FEHE
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RIFBEZRYE Y RE TMIFBESE
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Formulate a remuneration and benefits
system that is industrially competitive and
fair within the Company. In January 2013,
the Company formally launched its first
incentive scheme to grant employees share
options, in a bid to diversify the Company’s
system of value return and incentive
approaches, and to retain and motivate
old and new staff who have created core
values for the Company. Subsequently,
the Company further issued three phases
of staff incentive scheme of share options
between 2014 and 2016 respectively.

The Company organised team building activities to

Environment, Social angi Governance
Ry ERER

2. HIEMNEFEEH A
N T BN AR ) A
il o 2 & PA2013%F1 A
FAMBEHE TR
SHEYEE 25
NAIEEERER:

R Z T K BB 75
N LMRBREE AL
& Bl &A% O BB B
ZB I H&MN2014
FE2016F 9 5 Bl %
TTRIH=ZHET
IR ERRE BN AT = -

encourage employees’ loyalty to the Company
NAEBE TEREREE B INE A R 6Bk

Grow a corporate culture featuring great synergy. Corporate
culture stresses uniting people through corporate spirit and
concepts, growing a sense of recognition and belonging
among employees to improve their performance, and adding
to corporate culture the values commonly recognised by
employees, so as to reduce brain drain.

Reasonably deploy talents and create fair promotion and
development opportunities for our staff. This requires efforts
to match the Company’s development needs and work
requirements with capabilities and skills of the Company’s
talent group and individuals. In staff allocation, emphasis
should also be laid on performance appraisal, which plays a
constructive role in promoting staff.

Provide employees with management and professional
training and encourage them to continue their study and
obtain professional qualifications and certificates through
vocational training programs.

Create a pleasant work atmosphere. A fund for teams’ activity
has been set up to encourage social activities among teams.

&

3.

BERBEALDNBREXE BERXERH
PEFEE ESREA  BEEEETH
EENRRE RGBT TIEER 15
MEERXEHETRRANKARNEES
A BEAR AT TR

EEREAT  REIRIERAFEME
RHEE -BARNBRTE  MUERED
EATERBMERHERE XERES-
ERAPEIEENETHE ITNHE.
fRAELER -

RETRHEEEREXFHEI R
BETHEERZE BRXBERHEE
ERBXERNEFE-

LZEMROTERE RLBBEESHE
T RREKERRBEEE -

* On 20 January 2015, Yuzhou

" Properties organized day trip to
Kinmen Island for its staff
201551 A20H & il h 2 48 &
BET£M5—B#E
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RECRUITMENT MEASURES TO AVOID
CHILD LABOR AND FORCED LABOR

Yuzhou forbids child labor in staff recruitment. The Company requires
that all employees must be at least 18 years old. According to Rules
on Staff Recruitment, qualified candidates shall fill in a “Form for Job
Application” in which they shall provide the ID number and submit
a photocopy of the ID for verification on the first day of work. The
Group headquarters conducts quarterly inspections on the execution
of human resources rules among its real estate branches.

DEVELOPMENT OF CONSTRUCTION
SAFETY

In 2015, Yuzhou adhered to its operating concept “Building Cities
with Heart, Building Homes with Love” and follows its core values
“Responsibility, Stability and Innovation”. While ensuring work
progress and the steady improvement in development quality and
quantity, the Group also rolled out its new policies on safety.

During the year, the Group amended its safety-related regulations,
including Guidelines of Safe Management and Operation and
Guidelines of Project Examination and Operation, to further
standardise and improve safety management. Workers were
arranged for study and tests. Besides, the Company conducted
monthly and quarterly inspections on its projects, with the results
listed as an important indicator in the annual performance appraisal
for the subsidiaries the Group.

The Group tried to tap into the model effect by organizing learning
tours between different projects. For instance, the Group arranged
the staff of its Nanjing and Shanghai branches to head for their Hefei
counterpart for learning. Yuzhou also sent the staff of its Quanzhou
branch to Yuzhou Lucca Town ([E-R/\E ) in Xiamen to learn related
experience. The innovative and excellent management approaches of
the “Safe Construction Planning” applied in Yuzhou Bustling Center
(£33 B ) in Shanghai are promoted in the whole Group.

With high standards and stringent requirements in place, all projects
experienced substantial improvement in safe construction, with clean
gates, garbage collected and categorised, construction wastes cleared
after work, and safety-warning signs provided. Every detail was taken
care of, with workers wearing safety helmets, some construction sites
covered in green to prevent the spread of dust and reduce noise.
Observation gatherings were successively held at 9# Land Lot in
Quanzhou (county level) and Yuzhou Lucca Town in Xiamen (district
level). The Group obtained the following safety awards during the year:

iR ML N

SEEETERERTERRENSERET:
NEIRARE B TRIEFHRF M85 HRHTE
EFREKRWET 2 (ETHERIE) RERE
EERIBETIRBMUAFR] ZEXTEBELSH
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Project Name

HE&H
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R ERER

Award

g

Xiamen 4# Land Lot, Riverside City Town Municipal Civilized Construction Site Municipal
EF EIR M A4 MRXATH ik
Phase |, 7# Land Lot, Riverside City Town Excellent Project for Safe Municipal
Construction and Standard
Production in Xiamen
SRR EHT# R — EMTEERIZZEEREL TR
BRIER
Leading Workers' Project (Xiamen Municipal Trade Union
Federation of Trade Unions)
TARET (BEFITATE) mIg
Shanghai Yuzhou Commercial Plaza Civilized Construction Site District
L8 BNEEES XA T & &
Fuzhou Section 3, E Northern Land Plot, Phase |l Exemplary Construction Site Municipal
Oriental Venice
aM R BJE = BB SR & RE T Mk
Hefei Section 1, Phase I, Royal Seal AAA Standard Site for Safe Provincial
Construction
B AE-H—BK AP Z 2 ERIZ &L Ty B
Section 2, Phase |, Royal Seal AAA Standard Site for Safe Provincial
Construction
RE-H_ER AP Z 2 XERIZ &L Ty L
Building 3#, 13# and 16#, Jade Lakeshire “Exemplary Construction Site” for Municipal
Safety Culture in Hefei
FHRIPEH 134 164E EETEEXHA [RBIH]ER TR

[0 7 2] B40) 0 2 W S
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The innovative and excellent management approaches of The “Safe

Construction Planning” applied in Yuzhou Bustling Center in Shanghai

are promoted in the whole Group

SEHERE RN o« ZEWMEBERN (X2 NHAMIRE] F8I¥ EF  branches to head for their Hefei counterpart for learning

EBRAIE SEHVESAR  AREEA CRNBRESE  fImER
EBRAHERARER

The Group tried to tap into the model effect by organising
learninging tours between different projects. For instance,
the Group arranged the staff of its Nanjing and Shanghai
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" OPERATING PRACTICES
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT MECHANISM

Drawing on good reputation and financial strength, Yuzhou
Properties adopted a strategic cooperation mechanism in relation
to construction materials. Suppliers are wiling to compete for
a share in the Group’s development projects by offering high
quality products, competitive prices and premium services.
The Group’s reputation for good payment practice allows it to
attract an increasing number of highly qualified suppliers and
expand its strategic cooperation system. Going forward, Yuzhou
will share growth opportunities with its partners drawing on
a robust cooperation mechanism, good reputation and good
communication.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

The Group identifies eligible bidders through a spot check of
prospective bidders giving special consideration to various factors
such as company size, qualifications, previous track record and
ongoing projects. Qualified parties are allowed to participate in
bidding, and suppliers who are qualified through performance
appraisal will be included in a pool of qualified contractors and
suppliers. Environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction are taken into consideration in raw material
procurement process. The Group’s related business units make a
comprehensive and objective assessment of strategic suppliers’
performance throughout the material and equipment procurement
process, including bidding, delivery of materials and equipment,
and after-sales service. Suppliers’ share in strategic cooperation
were adjusted from time to time in order to draw their attention to
resource conservation, safe production, green procurement and
legal compliance.

PRODUCT AND SERVICE COMPLAINT
MECHANISM

The Group recognises that timely and proper response to
customer complaints helps building customer’s confidence, and
it has therefore put in place a set of effective mechanisms for
handling product and service complaints.

it e 8 PR B
BHEAENOBRASHES EERDTRE
HR MBS A (e (BB A EE N E
S BAEAER R R SRR ER B E
A e E - £ BEH TR RSO RO BR
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ik 1 58 I A i
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R el E - ERM A RBBET - TR
BIRE HEERBEEREMAAZL R - KEERE
P BB A EREREMHRERERB
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In accordance with the Guideline for Customer Complaint
Response, customer service specialists maintain a detailed record
of customer complaints. Customer complaints are classified by the
degree of importance and urgency, and delegated to responsible
parties for timely response. Complaint handling progress is closely
monitored until it is completed in a satisfactory manner. Customer
service specialists in the headquarters conduct sample surveys
from time to time on the complaints which have been closed by
relevant real estate/property management companies in order to
improve product and refine services.

CONSUMER INFORMATION PROTECTION AND
PRIVACY POLICY

The Group maintains strict confidentiality on consumer information
and prohibits all kinds of information abuse and profit-making
from the unauthorised use of consumer information. The
Group’s customer information system only accepts access from
authorised persons. Should an unauthorised person or department
requests access to consumer information for the performance
of duties, they are required to follow a specified procedure to
file an application form to Customer Information Management
Department via the internal OA system, indicating the reason,
purpose, fields and time for such information access; subject to
consent from the head of department of the requesting party and
subject to approval from the competent officers of the two above-
mentioned departments.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has put in place a set of robust internal control systems
to discourage bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering, and
reports on corrupt practices are collected by various channels
including company website, e-mail and telephone hotline, anti-
corruption specialists are appointed to perform oversight and
inspection duties.

Environment, Social angl Governance
RE-HERER
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SOC LFARE ACTIVITIES

HteAEED

Brotherhood stands priceless; big love knows no boundaries. For
years, Yuzhou Properties, as a corporate citizen, has followed
and practiced the spirit of “Benefiting from Society and Benefiting
Society” by constantly participating in social welfare activities
to maintain good relations with the society and develop the
atmosphere for harmonious development. Yuzhou Properties is
committed to all types of philanthropic activities including those
on education and environmental protection. As a result, the Group
received such honors as “The Great Wall of China Advertising
Awards 2009 — The Best Charity”, “The Social Value Model of
China’s Real Estate Listed Companies in 2011”, “2012 China
Charity — Group Award” and “2013 China’s Top 50 Responsible
Real Estate Enterprises”.

In 2014, the Yuzhou Public Welfare Foundation and the Yuzhou
Volunteers Association were founded to make contribution to
developing harmonious society, by advocating concrete efforts
to spread the positive energy of public welfare. In the first half
of 2015, the Foundation launched its “Mutual Aid ( ~F:E#88)) ”
project in which Yuzhou Volunteers and Phoenix Volunteers reached
communities to host a series of public-welfare activities to promote
fire prevention. In May 2015, Yuzhou World Trade Center organised
a charity-sale event jointly with Xiamen University Tan Kah Kee
College, donating all the proceeds from the event to mountainous
regions in need. The Center won acclaim for the event.

BEEE AEEB -ZFX BMBEERE
ERR —ERAUBTE [R2RHE BE
Rite | HiEe TH2E e AR EENE
B UERBELEHEE SEBNEERAE &
MBEBRNNHE RRLBEEARTHRES
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DREE] [201FBEFME EHRFHEE
EHEH]  [2012F B B -KEBE] - [2013
B | {EETOPS0 | HEIR 4K ©
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RERAERNE - 2016F ¥ F BMARES
BBz [TER ] EXRE aMERE
HARBEEREREELELR ARIEBERR
ZIEE EEENAREX -5 B tEE
BREBEFIREERERBETEREEERE
B EEFBERLUR BRI

In April 2015, the Yuzhou Public Welfare Foundation carried out

a series of fire safety activities under the theme of “Ensuring Fire

Safety For Family” in different communities

2015548 @R =EE SRR [RRETLESZREH] £
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In May 2015, Yuzhou World Trade Center organised a
charity-sale event jointly with volunteers team in Xiamen
University, and won acclaim for the event

20154F5 A Bl o t H i3 BLE P R 2 FE & I F R il
BER  EEFT



Yuzhou Properties is consistent with
its policy of supporting the education
sector. On 9 June, the Group
donated HK$1 million to Heung To
Middle School in Hong Kong, for
expanding school buildings and
improving education environment.

Yuzhou Properties always positions
itself as a builder and explorer with
prospect for the future development
of cities. The Group aims to provide
sweet homes for customers, a
growth platform for staff and great
returns for shareholders, as well
as to make contribution to society
with love. Yuzhou presents premium
products with devotion and integrity,
interpreting the ideals and values of
urban life.

Below sets out the list of awards obtained by the Company during

2015 financial year.

No. Date Company name

REEH

F BRERE

1 13-Jan-15 Yuzhou Properties
2015F1A138  BiltE
2 23-Jan-15 Yuzhou Properties
201518238  BIE
3 Jan-15 Yuzhou Properties
Management
2015518 ESpikES

Environment, Social angl Governance
Ri-HERER

SMNHMERKEBRIIHE
EXBERNFE 6H9HM
BEEBSTEREI00EE
7L ARBEERE RREER
HEREAR-

2R M 3 2E 0 AR DA B Fa B AN A2
R ) L REULTE R K T R
BLE BEP FERER
B:RET TEKNRFE:
AR - SIS AR AR - At
g EREFHE L AHOM
HEER M RN A
BEAMEE-
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On 9 June 2015, Yuzhou Properties donated
HK$1 million to Heung To Middle School for
supporting education

20156 A9H « BMERE S+ 2B 100
BETIRHE

2015 F AR BEEEMT

Awarder
BEEN

Name of award

BRZER

5th in Top 10 Enterprises with Comprehensive
Strength in the “Top 100 HKAwards” of 2014

Jointly Awarded by the Hong Kong'’s
Authoritative Financial Media-Finet
Group and gg.com

BEREMSERTEL REMERS
Ba T

2014F BMR10058 2 SR A B N1038 E R fL

61th ranking of Overall IR Ranking and 16th in
Real Estate Industry on the List of Greater China
Listed Companies in IR Magazine

IR Magazine X F 2 & & (£ % & & B 7
BaPREI B NETES164

IR Magazine, an internationally well
known magazine

BB A2 %% (IR Magazine)
Co-organiser of the China Property Management

Association Magazine in 2015
(MENEERHE) Mt2015F Bl £

China Property Management
Association Magazine
(FENRERGE) it

(147 2] B40) i 3
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No.

Fr 35

@R E iR

Date
HREE

26-Feb-15

201552 4268

24-Mar-15

20153 A24H

24-Mar-15

2015F3 A24H

26-Mar-15

20163 H26H

26-Mar-15

201563 H26H

Company name

DAFER

Yuzhou Properties

BME

Yuzhou Group

BMEE

Yuzhou Group

BNEHE

Yuzhou Properties
Company Limited
BMHERGERAA

Yuzhou Properties
Company Limited
BiMERGERLA

Name of award Awarder

BRER EREN

Grand Award in the 2014 International Mercury MerComm
Awards Competition
2014 Mercury AwardsBl[% 2 BB RERRIRE  MerComm

2014 Grand Award for Interim Report Cover
Design (Die-cut Cover), and the Honorary Award
for the 20th Anniversary Brochure in 2014
International Mercury Awards Competition

12014 Mercury AwardsEl (2 ABEAAE T
20145 B IR ST R TR R K 22 (B0 AR
AR AR RARORF R MERER

37th in Top 50 China’s Real Estate Developers China Real Estate Research
for 2015 Association, China Real Estate
Association, China Real Estate
Appraisal Center
TEENERLE FEEMESR
e REEmER O

20157 B 5 b B 10 $£5058 5374

4th in Top 10 China’s Real Estate Developers China Real Estate Research
with Greatest Potential in 2015 Association, China Real Estate
Association, China Real Estate
Appraisal Center
2015 Bl R ER B R EEREN0RELE hERNERRE TEEMER
e B ERT R

65th in Top 100 China’s Real Estate Companies Guandian.cn, Top 100 Ranking Chinese

of 2014 Real Estate Companies
20144 E B 55 4 22 2 #1008 55664 BEMENKR THEHES Y
10085
30th in TOP 30 China’s Listed Real Estate Guandian.cn, Top 100 Ranking Chinese
Enterprises of 2014 Real Estate Companies
2014FEHBERE ME ik E30% BEMENEE PEEMESY

(#EG30) 1001



No.
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Date
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Company name

DFER

Name of award

BRZER

Environment, Social and Governance

By HaRER

Awarder
BEEN

[ X7 2 B 46) 2 2 T B

87

9  26-Mar-15 Yuzhou Properties 1stin 2014 Top 10 Real Estate Enterprises with Guandian.cn, Top 100 Ranking Chinese
Company Limited Most Overall Strength in Xiamen Region in Real Estate Companies
Ranking of China’s 100 Best Real Estate
Enterprises
20153260 BIMERMERAR  2014FEHRER HESH1008EM RS BEMENKR THEFRHES M
FEEN0REIH 10085
10 27-Mar-15 Yuzhou Group 36th in 2015 China TOP 100 Real Estate The Corporate Research Institute of the
Developers, listing on the ranking for tenth Development Research Center of
consecutive year State Council, Real Estate Institute
of Tsinghua University, China Index
Research Institute
2015%3A278 BNEE 2015 EEHERREREH RBkERFART OCERRABE
EEETELE AEEHERLTHN : PEEEHRR
11 27-Mar-15 Yuzhou Group 3rd in The Star Developers among the 2015 The Corporate Research Institute of the
China TOP 100 Real Estate Developers, listing Development Research Center of
on the ranking for tenth consecutive year State Council, Real Estate Institute
of Tsinghua University, China Index
Research Institute
20153727 BMEE 015 EFNERR EE3E ERETF L BEBRERMEPLORWARMN: FE
AEEHERRAHN : PEEEHRR
12 27-Mar-15 Lam Lung On, Top 100 Property Entrepreneurs in Chinain 2015 China Real Estate Top 10 Research
Yuzhou Group Group
20155327 BMEEMES 015REFHERRERER Bl 5 # ZE TOP10H 42
13 Apr-15 Yuzhou Properties Council Unit of the Fourth China Property China Property Management
Management Management Association Association
2015448 BN FRETENEEEREREEN RENEEEHE
14 Apr-15 Interim Report 2015 of Honors Award in the 2015 Astrid Award MerComm
Yuzhou Properties
201544 BME015FPHRE  2015F Astrid AwardsR B 2 MerComm
15 7-May-15 Yuzhou Properties The Best IR Company of 2015 Hong Kong Investor Relations

Association

2015F5A7H BME 2015 EREERELT BEREEREGS
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No. Date

Fi: BREAE

16 7-May-15
201555H7H

17 21-May-15
20155210

18  28-May-15
2015F5H28H

19  28-May-15
2015957 28H

20 5-dun-15
20156 H5H

21 12-dun-15
2015F6H12H

22 Ju-15

201557 A

Company name

DAFER

Yuzhou Properties

BME

Yuzhou Properties

BME

Yuzhou Properties

BiME

Yuzhou Properties

BiME

Corporate video of
Yuzhou Properties

BNECXERR

Yuzhou Properties
Management

EYIkIES

Annual Report 2014 of
Yuzhou Properties
BN E0145 5

Name of award

BRER

The Best IRO of 2015
0155 EREEBRAE

The Fourth Rotating Presidencies of City
Development Entrepreneurs Alliance
HTAECERMBRENERETREQL

37th in 2015 Top 50 Comprehensive Strength of
Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies

2015 BB E EM A RIEA E /15058 5374

3rd in 2015 Top 5 Chinese Real Estate Listed
Companies Operating Performance

2015 BB HhE F A RIS & B 538 535

2015 Questar Awards - Brand Image Campaign
and Corporate Identity Silver Awards

2015 Questar Awards m 27 % 251 E {& (Brand
Image Campaign) & (> % Z 87 & (Corporate
Identity)$R 2%

2015 Top 100 Chinese Property Service
Enterprises, listing on the ranking for the first
time

15FEMERBEALE  BREE

2015 LACP Vision Awards Gold Award
in Real Estate Category
20154 LACP Vision AwardsfE i & 48 Bl & 5%

Awarder

EREN

Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association
BEREEBEWS

City Development Magazine

(BmF%) Mt

China Real Estate Research
Association, China Real Estate
Association, China Real Estate
Assessment Center

HEFENERRE FEEMER
e REEmER RO

China Real Estate Research
Association, China Real Estate
Association, China Real Estate
Assessment Center

HERNERRE TEEMER
e REEmERT R

MerComm

MerComm

The Corporate Research Institute of the
Development Research Center of
State Council, Real Estate Institute
of Tsinghua University, China Index
Research Institute

AR ERBRAPOCERRM:FE
REFEMEWRAN : EEHHAR

LACP

FEEREXHEA



No.

35

23

24

25

26

27

28

Date
piEE3isd!

25-Aug-15

20158 A25H

25-Aug-15

201558 4250

8-Sep-15
2015F9H8H

8-Sep-15

2015F9H8H

24-Sep-15

201569 H24H

15-Oct-15

20156104158

Company name

DAFER

Annual Report 2014 of
Yuzhou Properties

BMHE20145 5
Annual Report 2014 of
Yuzhou Properties

BIMHE20145 5
Annual Report 2014 of
Yuzhou Properties

BiMhE20145 5

Yuzhou Properties
Bl E

Yuzhou Properties

BME

Yuzhou Properties
Management

Bz

L.am Lung On,
Yuzhou Properties

BMBENER

Environment, Social angl Governance
RE-HERER

Name of award

BRER

Gold Award (Financial Data: Property
Development: Residential) in the 2015 ARC
Awards

2015 ARC Awards A EF &5 & 5
(MBEE-TTHERE)

Silver Award (Printing & Production: Property
Development: Residential) in the 2015 ARC
Awards

2015 ARC Awards A EF [F &5 R 5
(BN R e — e E %)

2015 ARC Top 100 Brand Strength - Rank 85

ARC 2015 € Fx & 310038 5854

2015 Outstanding China Real Estate Developer
2015 Bl R s EE 7

37th in 2015 Top 50 China Real Estate Developer
Corporate Brand

20159 Bl s B b 5 R (B (HB0R 5374

44th in China Top 100 Property Management
Enterprises with Comprehensive Strengths
in 2015

015RENEERGAENAREMA

Innovation Tutor of the Innovation Alliance of
China’s City Development and Property
Management

e 350 T R B N ) 3 B2 B AR Bk R R BT S AT

Awarder
BEEN

MerComm

MerComm

MerComm

MerComm

MerComm

MerComm

Economic Digest

KE—E

China Real Estate Research
Association, China Real Estate
Association, China Real Estate
Assessment Center

HEFRNERRE TEEMER
e REIEE RO

China Property Management
Association

PEMXEEHE

City Development Magazine

(HmB%) MRt

(147 2] B40) i 3
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Business and Landbank Summary
ES ER XLk S

1 Yuzhou Overseas City B e EFE R
2 Yuzhou Shuilian Manor RN e K L §E
3 Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza BB RES
4 Yuzhou Harbour City B o BT
5 Yuzhou New City =
6 Yuzhou Garden RIMNIEE
7 Yuzhou Galaxy Garden =M e 2MIEE
8 Yuzhou New Manor RIMNETHS
9 Yuzhou World Trade Center RN e & L
10 Yuzhou Golden Seacoast BN EFEL G
11 Yuzhou University City B e K
12 Yuzhou Castle above City B e i _E I
XIAMEN 5 vuzhou Sunshine Gity Bl o 5 k7L
P 14 Yuzhou Golf MoK
15 Yuzhou Shoreline RN e B
16 Yuzhou Cloud Top International i e == T8 E7 B
17 Yuzhou Plaza RBIMNES
18 Yuzhou International Hotel BMBIBR RBE
19 Yuzhou Central Coast RMeF G F
20 Yuzhou Riverside City Town B o K1 1H
21 Haicang Vanke City A BRIk
22 Yuzhou Lucca Town BN o ER/NE
23 Chunjiang Central HILENA
24 Yuzhou Xiang'an Commercial/ Sl % 738 B
Office Project
25 Yuzhou Skyline B e KIE
26 Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire =M e 352 A0
27 Yuzhou Central Plaza RN e R RE
HAEFEI 28 Yuzhou Royal Seal B e REE
e 20 Yuzhou Town SN
30 Yuzhou Central Town RN e Hp R
31 Yuzhou Xinzhan Project ENFFUEIE B
S 32 Yuzhou Gushan No. One %f)‘“ o S 11l f%ﬁ
_ 33 Yuzhou Oriental Venice RN e B 5 E e AT
&M 34 Yuzhou Cambridge Town Bl e RIBELL
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BENGBU _ . .
it O . NANJING BE;;(;BU 35 Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire B e B2 T IHAER
HE SHANGHAI :
‘B‘ﬂ‘ﬁ e i 36 Yuzhou Jingiao International &M ¢ £ 1EE K
37 Yuzhou Plaza BINES
38 Yuzhou Commercial Plaza BMeEmEES
3 SHANGHAI = 39 Yuzhou City Plaza BN T ES
: i 40 Yuzhou Bustling Center BiMe i E
- 41 Yuzhou Xuhang Project SMERITEE
42 Yuzhou Fengxia Project BNMNFEBIEE
43 Yuzhou Jinshan Project &MEILEE
- . %;H%HOU QUA;T;OU 44 Yuzhou City Plaza BN T ES
LONGYAN z
= A ' . %%?NZHOU 45 Yuzhou The Jiging EMeFTER
ZHANGZHOU o @& XIAMEN 46 Yuzhout Yuhuatai Project BMNEIEAEE
. ) 5 NANJING N . N
. 47 Jiangning JV Project EA1EEE
=
48 Jiangning JV Project I=SEHE
- 49 Jiangning JV Project IES{EHE
@ QNORONG LONG YAN
wik " 50 Yuzhou Castle above City BB o B 4k
EE
TIANJIN 51 Yuzhou Palace Country RN BT
KiE 52 Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire RN o 1E AR
il 53 Yuzhou Zhangzhou Project BIMEMNIER
EM
HONG KONG 54 Yuzhou Caine Road Project BMEEIBE
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YUZHOU WORLD TRADE CENTER  /§ P9
B e it B o XIAMEN

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 19,454 sg.m.
Total Saleable GFA: 182,640 sg.m.

12 H fif v

IR EAE : 19,454 753K
48 n] EEEEE - 182,640F 5K

Geographical Environment # # 2 5

e Yuzhou World Trade Center occupies a supreme location, the intersection between o &M o tt & 1 Az 7 B P A B 3k A & T
Xiamen Train Station and Xiamen BRT, with flourishing flows of people and logistics. RRARGRIERE - (R BER IR
B FAE AR -

Project Highlights 1 H 5 &

* Yuzhou World Trade Center is the first city complex project and the highest landmark BNttt ERLREME — @M mES
project for commerce and residence in Xiamen. Located in central downtown, the BBIEE  hRAKEM &SN HIEERD
Center integrates shopping, leisure and residence, forming a “World-Trade-Center FEB AT OLRZ O £
Business Circle” across the area. Y KE BEA—B TERAEEKT

[t B R B ] o

Planning #! #

* The project is composed of the 66,000 sq.m. and has two 43-storey high-rises which 18 B H6.68 Y 75 oK &Y 2 5 35k A0 /R R
divided into two phases. World Trade Center enjoys well established and premium AEHRBEEBREANK -ZBEED AW
leisure facilities in Xiamen City. Apart from securing a number of anchor tenants such Blott B A B MK AR EE
as Wal-Mart, Pizza Hut, MUJI, China Film Digital Cinema, Yourtime Books (£ & & REERBIRE AR NERKARIE .
%), Haidilao Hot Pot, Watsons, Haagen-Dazs, Starbucks, La Chapelle and Sushi PR -MUJI (DR &) R T
Express, the center also introduced over 400 merchants with different sizes from B=REE EEH EBEEX BIRE
various industry. -2B% NEER FHEZEEN

JESN - EAPRIE A T 400Z AR/ NI
REMER -



YUZHOU PLAZA
& M 5 5

/A.P9
XIAMEN

PILLLBOLELETL ) ol g

o

Geographical Location # # fi &

The project is situated at the heart of Xiamen CBD, a gathering place of government
institutions, financial agencies and business circles, and is 15-minute drives from Gaogi
International Airport, Xiang’an Tunnel and the International Conference & Exhibition
Center, 8-minute drive from Haicang Bridge and the train station, and 5-minute drive
from the ferry terminal.

Project Highlights 1 H 5 &

Lakeside view at hand: With its building by Yundang Lake, the project has a nearly
4,000 sg.m. outdoor green plaza connected to the boardwalk of the lakeside park.

Premium facilities: Supreme lobby with a height of 10.3 meters, well-decorated office
space with a height of four meters, 12 high-speed Fujitec elevators in efficient operation,
LOW-E insulating tempered glass and central air-conditioning with household-based
charging.

Well-established business facilities: As Xiamen'’s sole super Class A office building
with a full lake view, the project is equipped with supreme business facilities such as
high-end conference centers, corporate exhibition halls, staff cafeterias, VIP elevators
and a three-storey smart car park — the largest of its kind by Yundang Lake.

Star property service: The project adopts one-stop star service of customer-oriented
property management.

Energy-saving and environmentally friendly: The project is decorated in the
architectural style of Art Deco and supported by a 5A smart system designed
for international first-class office buildings. The project is also energy-saving and
environmentally friendly by implementing the standard of green buildings.

Business

%

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 3,333 sq.m.
Total GFA: 60,130 sg.m.
Number of Floors and Height:

38 above ground and three
underground, 163.5 meters

A H f§ /v

R AE : 3,333 752K
4R TE 60,130 ;2K
REEBHNSE ) F38E

i N3fE - 163.5K

o IR E PP REGH R AZ DI - ERR
ZHTHE SREBLSAME 15
DEESIFEFEES ARBE BHEe
EARL 8N EEBARBRNEY 5
DIBE G EIGE o

BEMEEE ABEWEEZ MRS
&K » 34,000°F 5 2K B oAb B 15 i 6
N AREE -

EREBEE A0KITERAE 4
KESRERAZRE 1288 tESR
SRS BUEL  EELOW-Eh =3
B HOPERRZESR-
EEAKRE: omeZP L ERE
E-BETZE VPEBER SETERE
HERZEEHNSANEERLER
BEE 2EMAM—2HEBRRBF
igo
ERMERE KA XN ERME
EERE UABRE-

B REER R | FR A Art DecoZ: iy 2 4 22 58
B LB R AR B F AT E(L R
B ERERE  BERR

1037 R B40) 0 0 e !
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YUZHOU LUCCA TOWN /A P9
XIAMEN

B e F /3

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 54,323 sg.m.

Total Saleable GFA: 136,000 sg.m.

Architectural Form: Villas/high-rises/
garden houses/commercial

Total Households: 1,078 (876 high-
rises, 64 garden houses and 138
Villas)

T H fif fr

b FE : 54,323 75 K

48 A] & R EEE S - 136,000 77 K

BEME:RE QB FE/ %

BEE:1,078( R [EST6E  F 5
64E ' FIEE138E)

Geographical Environment # 3 # 5

¢ Yuzhou Lucca Town is located at the intersection between the Hongzhong Road in the o &illl & /NAELL R 2 S E & 4t 4%
recreational and educational district of Xiang'an and the Puwei Road, adopting the Italian NERBERIER EITRAEBER
architectural style as its main design. %o

> 110doy] renuuy

L0C
poyuur| Atreduioy) sﬁmadmd noyzng

°

©
=

<

e The project is characterised by the ingenious design that turns a 14 meters height
hillside into a terrace, creating the only project that features Italian style terrace villas
in Xiamen. Across the community, a sunken commercial street is built to separate the
residential high-rises area from the villas area, forming two independent and distinctive
districts featured with various unique scenic spots with different levels, offering a
recreational living place with cultural flavors in the new city center. Housing units are
designed to be residential high-rises, garden houses and villas with the size ranging from
75 to 220 sqg.m..

s HERABERER  EFaEmE14KMN
Wi E &1L IT SR EPTE — 2R
Wi EF (@ o R BS B EA— & T
ANEEANEESEERESH  ITEM
EHATRMHTR  FREEEFEBXN
ZESEEHZ EHPLORRABEEE
5o PRURE| A75E220F R Z S E -
FHERRIE -

2015 Best Potential Property in West Strait - ‘ 2015 B FE higk
2015 Benchmarking Marketing Team with Most Potential in the Real 20155 POt 2= & A & 8515 5 IS E B

Estate Industry in West Strait

2015 Benchmarking Property in West Strait 20158 A EIRITIE AR
2015 Most Valuable Property Expected by Real Estate Media 015F M EBESESHAEEER




YUZHOU CENTRAL TOWN
B e g3k

Geographical Environment # #

e Yuzhou Central Town is located at the intersection between Xinbengbu Road and Wuliu
Road in Xinzhan District, and in the center of the “141 city ancillary blocks”, integrated
into the main town, facing Yaohai, connecting Xinzhan, and linking the north town.
The project is next to Wuliu Road Station along the extension line of Subway Line 1.
Two main streets, being Xinbengbu Road and Wuliu Road, meet here to provide highly
convenient transportation.

Planning and Design #1 # % & :

Total GFA around 440,000 sg.m., consisting of a French-style central residence area and
a British-style community block. Fully upgraded multi-function, high-quality and much
comfort to redefine town.

The project’s self-built British-style double-ground-floor block with a GFA of 55,000
sg.m. brings in light-luxury living quality and lifestyle. Its enrich experiences of all sectors,
all fashion, around the clock and by all access, are creating exotic commercial streets
with Yuzhou’s unigue characteristics.

A kindergarten with a GFA of 3,500 sg.m. providing international pre-school education.

Dominated by units with the average area ranging from 78 to 112 sg.m..

 HONORS IN 2015"_
CRBREY

“Famous Property for Healthy Living in China” by MHURC
“Famous Property with the Highest Brand Value in Jianghuai”
“The Property with Innovative Marketing Campaign, 2015” in the
7th Anhui Housing Market Final Ranking
“The Property with Convenient Transportation, 2015” in the
7th Anhui Housing Market Final Ranking
The Chinese Properties Starlight Award for the
“The Property Benchmark with High Quality, 2015”
“The Urban New Landmark” Award in the 2015 Chinese Properties U-Power Ranking

Business

%

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 97,467 sg.m.

Total Saleable GFA: 341,135 sg.m.

Architectural Form: High-rise/
commercial

TH H i 4t

1R 7E © 97,467 F K
] EEEME 341,135 K
BEFE: 0B BE

B

o M o A Sk 7 A FT Uk [ T 5 4R B R 4
MABRIER S E[1415 m 4
ElL 8 mER BRES B
U~ BAE I o HhBR M S 1 SR R T R AR A
RiEW T ERREY R REE T HE
TEPE AR B + T 3R 3R A2 3 o

AR R EEEN44E T IR AR

FRAEE R IR AT AR A TR

mmE - AR EARKEN

cHEBEMSSBET I KEEERR
block# [ » 8 & 4R mE REE TR
SIA-ZIERBR 2XE 2HR -2
B~ 2R TERBEERNNRER
(GIES-TE

o tHRAEA3,500F K HEE - EEFR
RIZ2RAE

o PRIST8EI12F J7 KRAT o

FEEEEN [PREEEERE] BIR

IHEHME [FERAREEEBEZS]

FLERRBEMBTE [2015FE
TR EER

FLERBEMBTE [2015FE
RiBYEAREER

AR B i EE 2 22 [2015F 2
mEHASERE |

2015 BB EH S N85 [ iz | 48

107 R B 40) 0 0 e !
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YUZHOU CAMBRIDGE TOWN ié \’»I!l
W o 5l 15 £
% (}H ﬁlj | = }E FUZH OU

Geographical Environment 3 # 5

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 54,507 sg.m.

Total Saleable GFA: 136,268 sg.m.
Architectural Form: High-rise

Total Households: 1,195

TH H fif v

{H 7S : 54,507 F 75 K

Al EESEMEIE 186,268 5 K
BERE: - 5E

BPE 1,195

5t

e Adjacent to the exit of Shenyang-Haikou Expressway to the north. It only takes half-hour
drive to reach the Fuzhou downtown and the nearby towns and counties.

e Enjoying optimal resources of various shopping malls and supermarkets, and branches
of Bank of China and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. The project is only 100
meters away from the People’s Square.

e L ocal Tax and National Tax Bureau, Finance Bureau, Industrial and Commercial Bureau,
Bureau of Labor, and Judicial Bureau also gather around the project, enabling the
property owners easy to deal with their business.

e |Located at the school area of a cluster of elementary schools and kindergartens.

Planning and Design # # % it

o JbERIDERRE OB - ¥/ B IR A
AR T [ N 52 & E 40 A -

o FEERESEMLE  PERT ITH
ROTEBEERERSE BHEIARE
15 {£1007K EE B

s BB HE MBBE ITHR S8R
AERSEMBITHT LR ELR i FiE

o ZR/NE B SLAENTIE  RAE AR
BENEES -

e Designed for building 12 high-rises, with 6,800 sq.m. ground-floor shops, the lowest
density residential-only project in Lianjiang.

e Unit size ranging from 77 to 130 sg.m. Featured by classic design, all units are designed
in spacious room style to ensure adequate lighting and ventilation. Most units are
equipped with balconies, offering excellent vision and wonderful living experience.

o EREN2RBEET LA E6,800F
FTAEREE TEAZLRRERE
HAL(ERE -

o PRI 2MmERT7TEI30F K iR
- PrEPERE BT NBR - 28
FPEEGERG SBRBFHIETLT-

2015 Most Expected Property in Fuzhou . 2015F M ESHFIERE
2016 Benchmarking Property in Lianjiang County 20165 & T S W IZ 12 AR 4%
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YUZHOU PLAZA ‘t }'.&
N 18
5 SHANGHAI
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Geographical Environment 3 # &

Site Area: 6,818 sq.m.

Total GFA: Approximately
35,837 sg.m.

Number of Floors: 21 above
ground and 2 underground,
with commercial facilities on
1-8/F and standard office space
on 4-23/F.

H H i ft

fhHbETE : 6,818 5 K

4R EATE 1S : #935,837F 5 K

BEBEH M 21 2B
1Z3ERELE  4E23E

B

Situated at the heart of Jingiao Development Zone, the project is adjacent to Biyun and
Lianyang International Communities, one street away from Office Park Il, and six km
away from Waigaoqgiao Free Trade Zone. That is a rare 5A first-class smart office building
at Jingiao CBD.

Project Highlights 1 H 5 &

o MEBRSBRAZE AL MER - Bt AREEEE B
FERM A BB A& - OFFICE PARK || —#7
2 BEIEBEEERERERE -21F
PREBEMRENAFRREEE &

Located at the heart of Jingiao CBD, the project offers the advantage of a three-minute
drive to all facilities for international business and life central to Biyun Community, with
optimal resources of hotels, finance and commerce and large-scale business circles.

All the office space at Yuzhou Plaza is delivered with refined decoration. In a clear height
of 2.8 meters, the office space is equipped with VRV central air-conditioning with flexible
time-sharing and household-based control, which can deliver a substantially higher
efficiency and lower cost of air-conditioning.

The overall project is designed in the principle of simplicity, modernity and smoothness,

with an exterior of full-glass curtain wall, an elegant and fashionable style and sufficient
attractiveness for business.

fIE &£ BCBDRL = DEHEEFEE
BREEHERROHNEBREREERE
EEAEE o/ BEEREER A2
IR

BMNESHANRFH  HREBEEER
it o WA ZERFE =2.8K - VRVAR R ZEER -
DD P EEE AR ERE
1 B AR A R AN FR T AR -

BB BERFEREREGR  R/E RG
[RA 2FE M BEERSER
M EERAEIE RIS A o

/

T

A >>

%
[ 37 30 B4 3
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YUZHOU BUSTLING CENTER
B ek

L%
SHANGHAI

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 55,017 sg.m.

Total Saleable GFA: 126,540 sg.m.
Architectural Form: ARTDECO
Total Households: 1,056

TH H i fr

S : 55,017F 77 K
AR E RTINS 126,540 5 K
EE R ARTDECO
BEE:1,056

Geographical Environment 3 # # 5

>
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Located 2 km away from the most prosperous commercial street in the old urban district
of Jiading, embracing complete well-established commercial facilities. The project is
also adjacent to the North Jiading Subway Station of the No.11 Line of Metro Transit,
enjoying abundant high quality educational resources. Moreover, the project occupies
the supreme location near several parks which form a natural oxygen bar of aimost one
hundred mu. Designed in the classic architectural style of Art Deco, the project features
a 20,000 sqg.m. central garden.

Planning and Design # # % it

o PR EEN G REERREE2AR

EXMERMEEZERARLE - A
BAREMEIREEIL U Y HEEH
BEERES FEEZEARIAME
RAMBRE ERAII2E T 5 KH
RIEE - 15 TArtdecofZ 5 R 5T A8 4t o

e The project is composed of eleven 11 to 26-storey residential high-rises and an

approximately 6,000 sg.m. refined commercial street. Phase | of the project which is
comprised of two-room and three-room units with sizes ranging from 85 to 125 sg.m.
has recorded strong sales performance and was sold out. And the Phase Il which is
comprised of deluxe apartments with the size ranging from 106 to 127 sg.m. was
launched in March 2016.

Excellent Contribution Award For the 3rd Game of Juyuan New Commuty

Sohu: Most Influential Property in 2015
fang.com: Gold Award of Hot Sale Property in Shanghai in 2015

L]

HEBEIEEZ26ESEEERD
6,000 F KM Em ¥ —Hi85%E
1256 AR —_EEZEFAAEIEE
B —HH106 127 F KRB E AT R
20163 A E -

— Yuzhou Bustling Center

[BMle 2B HEHRE=EEDHSHRI AR

BN 2016F ERE NIER
BEM: 2016 L/BAHB RS 17




YUZHOU THE JIQING
Biflerm ER

Geographical Environment 3 7 5

e | ocated at the intersection of the southern old city area of Nanjing and the international
Hexi New City, landscape belt alongside the Nanhe River under construction will be the

most beautiful section of the Nanhe River when completed.

e Bus station in front of its main entrance. 10 minutes’ walk to the Zhonghuamen Station
of Subway Line 1 or 5 minutes’ walk to the Fengtainanlu Station of Subway Line 8 under

planning.

e Supporting facilities including commercial centers, schools, transportation and hospitals.
e Education facilities: one self-built public kindergarten, Yuhua Experimental Primary

School, No.1 Branch of Nanjing Experimental School (private).

Planning and Design # #] % 3t

e The first project offering duplex apartments in the district.

e Designed for building all high-rise houses (flat or penthouse) ranging from 89 to 143

sgm..

e The system of “Boutique Building 3.5” perfectly demonstrates the developer’s care to
the product details, among which the roof garden and the balcony for clothes drying are

rare designs in Nanjing.

&5

* “You Life Store” will be built to provide the owners with 24-hour convenience.

..-'.'.';-E'- Py el '
“ HONORS IN 2015
13 L33 '¢£

2015 Quality Houses in Nanjing

2015 Gold Property Awards in Nanjing
2015 Most Expected Property

Living Environment Trendsetter Award

ol

=

J—

=
-

b

NANJING

Business
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Site Area: 41,494 sq.m.
Total Saleable GFA: 112,865 sg.m.
Architectural Form:
Residential high-rises / community
commercial

18 H i 4

R EAE 1 41,494 5 2K
MR EEEMIE  112,865F K
BHEpE - gBEE MHERmE

5

o B R T R LT TR
R TEHT RS ERABRET
FRSZEEBRIE-

o T AARBIRAEY  H17105EE1A
M — SR I BN B
8% B & PB4 34 - PR A B (865 8
B

- BEREBN BE PR 2B B
2R+ H 5

c HERE: ERIFARHRE FEE
I PRERB R DR (RhiD) -

cBAEMEMREANZR -

s EMRBEEE  PEABIE143F K
FRERER -

* RS LR R TXRIABMENERM
AL KR EEER BARKES
RERFR 2Rzt

s HARHRKE [RELEE REXH
24/ MR AR R (E OB 3 -

2015 EMRmEER
2015F R & & 48
20155 B 15 BAfFIEAR
A JE HR 5
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Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA under for Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed  Development  Development Total GFA
Bl b
EH fEER fug BEHE it BREEE  AEEER HEER  ABREER
(sqm.) (RMB/sa.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m.)
(F5K) (7/F5K) (FK) (FAK) (FRK) (TAK)
Completed Projects
ERTER
Yuzhou Overseas City 27,703 Xiamen 830  North of the Junction of Hexiang West Road 239,627 - - 239,627
Bl EEERY & and Hubin West Road, Siming District
BHEREERDRERERI XA
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor 12,909 Xiamen 910 West of Jinshang Road North 29,126 - - 29,126
BilleKEWE EF] SHBILRER
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza 6,316 Xiamen 396 Xiagang Yongfugong, Siming District 65,104 - - 65,104
Bille ERES i BHEEEAES
Yuzhou Harbour City 20,089 Xiamen 761 Hubin North Road, Siming District 191,649 - - 191,649
Bille g [EF BARMELE
Yuzhou New City 25,610 Xiamen 647 Haotou, Dongdu, Huli District 93,473 - - 93,473
BT EF] HRERERE
Yuzhou Garden 27,345 Xiamen 586  Jinshang Road, Huli District 92,888 - - 92,888
BMEE i NER S HE
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden 26,367 Xiamen 1,718 Fanghu, Huli District 93,925 - - 93,925
Bl 2R [EF E )
Yuzhou New Manor 45,619 Xiamen 493 No. 414-417, Nanshan Road, Huli District 118,892 - - 118,892
BN EF] HEEEILBA4-475
Yuzhou World Trade Center 19,454 Xiamen 845 No.75, Xiahe Road 204,476 - - 204,476
Bt BRI i ERET55:
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast 70,793 Xiamen 1,690 West of Xinggang Road, Haicang District 245,073 - - 245,073
BlleEE2ER [EF BARRERAR
Yuzhou University City 90,750 Xiamen 932 Tongji Road, Xike Town, Tong'an District 480,252 - - 480,252
Bl XE3 EF] AZEAFRREE
Yuzhou Castle above City 52,715 Xiamen 1,278 Fanghu, Hul District 235,984 - - 235,984
il el Lot i HERMH
Yuzhou Sunshine City 22,868 Xiamen 1,301 North of Wulu Road, West of Tongsheng 72,733 - - 72,733
Bif o5 EF Road, Tong'an Industrial Zone
AEI4ETRERRLE REBAES
Yuzhou Golf 55,986 Xiamen 1,165 Maging Road, Haicang District 129,187 - - 129,187
SV LT PS [EF BRAREER
Yuzhou Shoreline 107,622 Xiamen 3560  Areaof 05-11, East of Xinggang Road and 473,184 - - 473,184
BileEig 1! North of Jiaosong Road, Haicang District
BERS-1AE BERIR BRI
Yuzhou Cloud Top International 15,652 Xiamen 3,174 South of West Liangian Road, West of 98,294 - - 98,294
Bl e ZTEEIR B Yundingzhong Road, Siming District

RRRENARDA BRTEAN




Landbank Summary

+ s ik A AL 56
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
BUECEREDR BUERERE
Sold and
Total Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interest in Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
anE agg 2& BE A" ER
EEEE (i EXEER KARXEER BAEER BERHE BERE it ER{L EEEE /\
(sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) % (sam.)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAR) (FAR) (FAR) (FAR) (FAR) (FAR) (FAR)
B
S
T
236,745 235,644 235,644 - 1,101 - 1,101 1,101 100% 1,101 jfi
"
>
27,325 27,325 27,305 - - - - - 100% - =
64,575 63,359 63,359 - 1,216 365 861 1,216 100% 1,216
186,013 186,013 186,013 - - - - - 100% -
90,770 87,144 87,144 - 3,626 262 3,364 3,626 100% 3,626
101
92,119 90,042 89,753 289 2,077 385 1,692 2,366 100% 2,366
91,689 91,463 91,463 - 226 226 - 226 100% 226 v
118,652 118,590 118,590 - 62 62 - 62 100% 62
182,640 133,049 131,872 1177 49,591 491 49,100 50,768 100% 50,768
226,679 195,029 187,706 7,323 31,650 - 31,650 38973 100% 38973
467,112 445,006 444,818 187 22,107 15,011 7,096 22,294 100% 22,294
231,017 218,306 166,522 51,783 12,712 9,954 2,758 04,495 100% 04,495
72,257 59,413 59,413 - 12,844 12,844 - 12,844 100% 12,844
114,574 74,650 73,607 1,043 39,924 39,924 - 40,967 100% 40,967
421,316 326,494 326,217 217 94,822 80,422 14,400 95,099 100% 95,099
71,214 51,081 46,998 4,083 20,133 1,627 18,506 24,216 100% 24,216




Landbank Summary

+ b ik £ HE
Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA under for Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed  Development  Development Total GFA
Bl b
HH fEER g BEYE it BREER ALEER HRER  AREEON
(sqm.) (RMB/sa.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (R/FFR) (FAK) (FH7K) (FHK) (FAHK)
Yuzhou Plaza 3,333 Xiamen 2,417 North of Minggong Building, Hubin South 60,130 - - 60,130
BHES EF Road, Siming District
BHENERBREEAELE
Yuzhou Jingiao International 49,738 Shanghai 1,242 No.333 Jin'gang Road, Pudong New Area 234,484 - - 234,484
Bille & BER 1 HRITE 213335
Yuzhou Plaza 6,818  Shanghai 2,620 Qiu3/6, Qiu 2, No 9 Street, Jingiao Export 35,837 - - 35,837
BMES i Processing Zone, Pudong New Area
BRIESBLONIEIENI6E 28
Yuzhou Gushan No. One 234,160 Fuzhou 1,831 No.333 Jin'gang Road, Pudong New Area 88,287 - - 88,287
Bife gL -5 &M ERBIUAFEF LA
Sub-total 921,847 1,476 3,282,605 - - 3,282,605
Uty
Projects Under Development
ERER
Yuzhou International Hotel 60,018 Xiamen 1,175 East of Huli Avenue, South of Huandao East - 125,221 - 125,221
BNERAERE &P Road, Huli District
HERBERBEIUA MERBEIUR
/\ Yuzhou Central Coast 123,240 Xiamen 2,225 Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road and 557,135 86,926 - 644,061
A BiflerRiFE P North of Xingdong Road, Jimei District
EXEV0RBRABBRA  ARBELH
o Yuzhou Riverside City Town 284,414 Xiamen 1,656 Area of 12-07, North of Movie & TV City, 195,978 417,266 - 613,244
°E B ZRM A P South Wuxian Area, tong'an District
28 RZE12-07REwm K EZEs LA
ég Haicang Vanke City 189,752 Xiamen 2,773 Northwest of the Intersection with Wengjiao 204,713 340,516 - 545,229
i g HRER P Road and Xinyang Bridge, Haicang
—2 District
g BAESAREHBEABR ALY
E Chunjiang Central (Previously 70,109 Xiamen 8,979  South of the junction of Xinglin North Road - 156,687 148,473 305,160
? known as Jimei Project) Ef and Xingjin Road, Jimei
g BB (ABEXER) EXEAMILBEABBEIXARBA
= Yuzhou Lucca Town 54,323 Xiamen 12,069 Southeast of the junction of Xiyan Road and - 136,000 - 136,000
BiMeERNE B Honggjan Central Road, Xiang'an
AREAEEHEEAFERXAREE
1 02 Yuzhou Commercial Plaza 40911 Shanghai 2,367 No 9868 Hunan Road, Nanhui Industrial 110,154 25,726 - 135,880
Bl eTEES i} Park,Pudong New Area

<
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Landbank Summary

1 s ik A AL 56
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
BUECEREDR BUERERE
Sold and
Total Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interest in Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
anE agg 2& BE A" ER
EEEE (i BREER KARXEER BAEER BERHE BERE it ER{L EEEE /\
(sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) % (sam.)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FAK) (FHK)
B
57,861 - - - 57,861 - 57,861 57,861 100% 57,861 ; H‘%N
8
=
230,955 195,124 172,250 22,874 35,831 3,116 32,715 58,705 100% 58,705 7%
>
28,624 - - - 28,624 - 28,624 28,624 100% 28,624
79,923 61,539 60,985 554 18,384 18,384 - 18,938 100% 18,938
3,092,060 2,659,269 2,569,679 89,590 439,791 183,063 249,728 522,381 522,381 103
102,142 - - - 102,142 - 102,142 102,142 100% 102,142
615,331 541,467 514,507 26,960 73,864 48,864 25,000 100,824 100% 100,824
559,276 238,105 114,500 123,605 321,171 240,671 80,500 444,776 100% 444,776
545,229 477,113 280,796 196,317 08,116 08,116 - 264,433 20% 52,887
305,160 44,112 - 44,112 261,048 176,048 85,000 305,160 51% 155,632
136,000 22,733 - 22,733 113,267 113,267 - 136,000 100% 136,000
110,460 20,285 - 20,285 90,175 64,324 25,851 110,460 100% 110,460




Landbank Summary

+ b ik £ HE
Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA under for Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed  Development  Development Total GFA
Bl b
HH fEHER g BEYE it BREER  ALEER GRER  AREEON
(sqm.) (RMB/sa.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m.)
(FH%) (R/FFR) (%) (F5K) (FA%) (FA%)
Yuzhou City Plaza 50,628  Shanghai 1,445 Site A0403, College Community, Lin'gang 75,941 24,548 - 100,489
BT ES i} New Town
BRI BRI EAA03M 1
Yuzhou Bustliing Center (Previously 55,017 Shanghai 10,405 North of Huancheng Road, East of Liuhu - 107,801 18,739 126,540
known as Jiading Project) i Road, Juyuan New District, Jiading
BiMleZHE (MBETER) District
REBREMEMBRAR RHRKIAL
Yuzhou Skyline 446,757 Hefei 388 West of Songlin Road, Northeast of Planning 1,069,452 144,312 - 1,203,764
Bife X% A Road, Ranfang Village, Taohua Town, Feixi
County
EREHRERR G BRIILE
TRRE AR
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire 95,978 Hefei 1,765  East of Ziyun Road, South of Feicui Road, 287,934 64,334 - 352,268
Bl e HEBH Ale Taohua Town,Feixi County
ERAEHEALERIR  FRRUE
Yuzhou Central Plaza 279,535 Hefei 1,421 South of Changjiangdong Road, East of 235,180 531,775 161,743 918,698
Bifem RES AIE Liaoyuan Road, East Urban District
RPRERIRER BRER
Yuzhou Royal Seal 156,667 Hefei 2,825 South of Fanhua Avenue, West of Taishan - 242,200 227,800 470,000
Bl XE Ale Road, Taohua Town,Feixi County
///\\\ EREH AL EREUE RILRIE
A Yuzhou Town 36,387 Hefei 3,900  North of Yangtze River West Road, West of 7,202 101,958 - 109,160
B AIE Fanwa Road, Shushan District
FUERIER L BERIFA
§ g Yuzhou Central Town (Previously 97,467 Hefei 4,286 Intersection of Xin Beng Bu Road and Wu Liu - 341,135 - 341,135
; S known as Xinzhan Project) Ale Da Dao Road, Xinzhan District
zy Bilf et sg (RIEHINER) MlEREERENRABLZNO
k) Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire 133,667 Bengbu 660  South of City Hall, West of Longhu Road 188,035 89,981 390,317 668,333
g% Bille 27 M3 HiE BRTEE - EREEE
oQ Yuzhou Oriental Venice 706,397 Fuzhou 2,846 Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, 256,910 237,887 64,469 559,266
£ B FARRH il Cangshan Disrict
g BUBHFERIH
g Yuzhou Cambridge Town 54,507 Fuzhou 4,256 North of Wenbidonglu, West of Qiming - 136,268 - 136,268
g (Previously known as &M Middle School, Lianjiang County,
Lianjiang Project) EIENERBLE BHREAEM
Bl 8IS (MBETER)
Yuzhou The Jiging (Previously 41,49 Nanjing 16,657 West of Fengtainanlu, north of Xinglong - 106,483 6,382 112,865
1 04 known as Yuhuatai Project) Street, Yuhuatai District
Bl e EEE (MEVIEAER) R BEEREAEBAER  BEXELE
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Landbank Summary

1 s ik A AL 56
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
BUECEREDR BUERERE
Sold and
Total Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interest in Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
anE agg B& BE A" ER
EEEE A% BREER KARXEER BAEER BERHE BERE it ER{L EEEE /\
(sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) % (sam.)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK)
B
98,494 14,908 4,333 10,570 83,591 48,314 35,277 94,161 100% 94,161 ; H‘%N
8
=
126,540 28,740 - 28,740 97,800 97,800 - 126,540 100% 126,540 7%
e
oy
1,187,376 986,054 955,336 30,718 201,322 104,022 97,300 232,040 100% 232,040
287,934 219,787 157,800 61,987 68,147 68,147 - 130,134 100% 130,134 1 05
918,698 333,625 161,025 172,600 585,073 485,073 100,000 757,673 100% 757,673 v
470,000 116,421 - 116,421 353,579 353,579 - 470,000 49% 230,300
109,160 67,367 732 66,635 4,793 40,009 1,784 108,428 51% 55,298
341,135 50,317 - 50,317 290,818 290,818 - 341,135 100% 341,135
668,333 76,092 - 76,092 592,241 592,241 - 668,333 100% 668,333
549,185 265,701 186,400 79,301 283,484 267,751 15,733 362,785 100% 362,785
136,268 60,839 - 60,839 75,429 75,429 - 136,268 100% 136,268
112,865 - - - 112,865 112,865 - 112,865 100% 112,865




Landbank Summary

-+ 1 Bt 5
Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA under for Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed  Development  Development Total GFA
Bl b
HH fEER g BEYE it BREER ALEER HRER  AREEON
(sqm.) (RMB/sa.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (R/FFR) (F7%) (F5K) (FHK) (FAHK)
Yuzhou Palace Country 135,173 Tianjin 1,060  South of Beihua Road, East of Guihua Chunxi 211,374 72,000 37,000 320,374
Bile B K3 Avenue, Jinghai New Town
FEMALEREA RAFRERE
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire 109,090 Tianjin 1,062 East of Tuanbo Road, South of Duliujian River - 130,908 - 130,908
B o A P South Road, Tuanboxi District
ENRREAAENE BT ERAE
Yuzhou Castle above City 100,878 Longyan 1,921 East of Lianzhuang Road, Xinluo District 29,871 282,459 - 312,330
Bl 4t 4 MERENRRA
Yuzhou City Plaza 428,188 Quanzhou 374 South New Zone of Huian County 630,549 314,296 536,146 1,480,991
BT ES M ERENRHE
Yuzhou Caine Road Project 278 Hong 135,140 Caine Road 48, Central, Hong Kong - 2,886 - 2,886
B2 ER Kong EEAE R
X
Sub-total 3,750,875 2,281 4,050,428 4,219,573 1,581,069 9,851,070
Pt
Projects Held for Future
Development
AN e
A Yuzhou Xiang'an Com/Offi Project 8,264 Xiamen 3,013 Intersection of Xiang'an Avenue and Xiang'an - - 89,300 89,300
BMAZERER EF] West Road, Southern part of Xiang'an
- New Town
5 AREBTAARAREIRERENN
zj 2 Yuzhou Xinzhan Project 49,126 Hefei 4,831 Southeast of the junction of Wuliu Road and - - 144,923 144,923
éf_g:? BMHIAEE Ak New Bengbu Road, Xinzhan District
- MUENRABEN G ERRAREA
—2 Yuzhou Xuhang Project 31,139 Shanghai 9,104 East of Chengliu Road, West of Chuangxi - - 56,051 56,051
- § BMBRITEE i} Road, Xuhang Town, Juyuan New District,
E Jiading District
= EREEFEATHEYAREA.
g il
3 Yuzhou Fengxian Project 109,266  Shanghai 13,242 East of Daye Road and South of Puxing - - 174,826 174,826
BNEBER i Road, East of Xianpu Road, Jinhui Town,
Fengxian District
106 FECEEAENBRARAERRAER

<

ERRRRA




Landbank Summary

+ s ik A AL 56
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
BUECEREDR BUERERE
Sold and
Total Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interest in Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
anE agg 2& BE A" ER
EEEE (i BREER KARXEER BAEER BERHE BERE it ER{L EEEE /\
(sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) % (sam.)
(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FAK) (FHK)
B
319,748 130,698 99,209 31,489 189,050 189,050 - 220,539 100% 220,539 ; H‘%N
HE
o=
130,908 31,076 - 31,076 99,832 99,832 - 130,908 100% 130,908 7%
>
]
312,330 188,999 16,281 172,718 123,331 108,731 14,600 296,049 100% 296,049
1,425,866 376,142 321,656 54,486 1,049,724 891,004 158,720 1,104,210 100% 1,104,210
2,214 - - - 2,214 2,214 - 2,214 100% 2,214
107
9,570,652 4,290,576 2,812,575 1,478,001 5,280,076 4,538,169 741,907 6,758,077 6,104,172 v
89,300 - - - 89,300 - 89,300 89,300 100% 89,300
144,923 - - - 144,923 144,923 - 144,923 100% 144,923
56,051 - - - 56,051 56,051 - 56,051 100% 56,051
174,826 - - - 174,826 174,826 - 174,826 40% 69,930




Landbank Summary

T kAl
Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA under for Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed  Development  Development Total GFA
BRI BA
HH fEER g BEYE it BREER ALEER GRER  AREEON
(sqm.) (RMB/sa.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m.)
(F7H%) (R/FFR) (F5%) (F5K) (FA%) (FA%)
Yuzhou Jinshan Project 174,814 Shanghai 1,324 Site 2988, North of Tingfeng Road, Zhujing - - 211,418 211,418
BMSILEE i} Town, Jinshan District
IIERTAZ AR 120885 11k
Yuzhou Yuhuatai Project 17,199 Nanjing 13,667 Shangjao Street, West of Shanshui Wan, - - 30,957 30,957
BMWEAEE AR Yuhuatai District
BEEBREBHEEKERD
Jiangning Project G59 61,145 Nanjing 3,717 West of Jingsan Road, South of Weiliu Road, - - 134,520 134,520
TEIERG59 HR Binjiang Development Zone, Jiangning
District
TERBTIREEE=RINE & BUE
Jiangning Project G57 28,257 Nanjing 16,389 North of Shengtai Road, East of Shengtai - - 61,626 61,626
IEEEG57 MR 14 Road, Binjlang Development Zone,
Jiangning District
TERERBABUL BATILE
AR
Jiangning Project G58 57,763 Nanjing 3,661 East of Jinsang Road,South of weiliu Road, - - 116,076 116,076
TEIEFG58 HR Binjiang Development Zone, Jiangning
District
IEBIRERE=RIR B1R%
SAR SR
/\ Zhangzhou Project 100,067  Zhangzhou 2,400 South of Zhanghua Central Road, West of - - 279,309 279,309
A EMNEE EM Lianke harbour, Urban district
MEEERFEIAR BRERE
o
E § Sub-total 637,030 5,524 - - 1,299,006 1,299,006
;: E Nt
§ & Total 5,309,752 2,39 7,333,033 4,219,573 2,880,075 14,432,681
g Es
ko)
%
E Projects with Primary Land Development Qualification
2 BE-RLHHBEENER
Yuzhou City Plaza 478,225  Quanzhou NA  No 1 Yingbin Avenue, Chengnan Industrial 757,009
BT ES FM TR Zone, Huian
ERENENROEAEIE
108 ERFRAAER OB BN
Total 478,225 757,009
v Ef




Landbank Summary

& o fak o R 2

Total Sold Saleable GFA

Total Unsold Saleable GFA

BUECEREDR BUEREER
Sold and

Total Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interest in Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
anE agg B& BE A" ER
EEEE (i BREER KRXEER BAEER BEHE BERE it ER{L EEER
(sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) (sam.) % (sam.)
(FHK) (FHK) (FAK) (FHK) (FHK) (FAHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK)
211,418 - - - 211,418 211,418 - 211,418 100% 211,418
30,957 - - - 30,957 30,957 - 30,957 100% 30,957
134,520 - - - 134,520 134,520 - 134,520 51% 68,605
61,626 - - - 61,626 61,626 - 61,626 40% 24,650
116,076 - - - 116,076 116,076 - 116,076 49% 56,877
255,000 - - - 255,000 255,000 - 255,000 100% 255,000
1,274,697 - - - 1,274,697 1,185,397 89,300 1,274,697 1,007,712
13,937,409 6,949,845 5,382,254 1,567,591 6,987,564 5,906,629 1,080,935 8,555,155 7,634,266
701,885 - - - 701,885 701,885 - 701,885 100% 701,885
701,885 - - - 701,885 701,885 - 701,885 701,885

>
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Investor Relations
% & &R

Since its listing, the Company has gradually formed a scientific
and systematic management mechanism for investor relations
after plenty of exploration and practice, which serves as a bridge
for effective communication between the Company and the
capital market. Adhering to the disclosure principles of openness,
fairness, transparency and multi-channel, the Company discloses
its financial and operation information to the capital market timely.
It also listens attentively to various suggestions and proposals
with regards to the Company’s management and operation in
a proactive, sincere and humble manner so as to improve the
Company’s management quality, enhance shareholders’ value
and maximise their interests. In 2015, the Corporate Finance and
Investor Relations team of Yuzhou Properties was awarded by
IR Magazine two awards, namely Overall Ranking 61st and Real
Estate Industry 16th of Greater China Listed Companies in terms of
Best IR. The team also won Best IR Company (Market Cap below
HK$10 billion) in HKIRA 1st IR Awards and Best IRO (Market Cap
below HK$10 billion) in HKIRA 1st IR Awards, organised by the
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA).

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

2015

Price per share of the Company (HK$)
RRFEIRRE (BE)

Share Price Performance in 2015 (percentage change)
(From 2 January 2015 to 31 December 2015)
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BlEE FM AR RRRIMEE HBERIIELE
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BEEBRERKS BARARMERTISZ
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i TEREARARINKEERKTE AR
RABRREBEMNERRENF =&AL 2015
FRMNMECKXRERKEEAREFESR
Magazinef & KR E @ F M AR REREEH
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As of 31 December 2015, the total number of shares outstanding
of the Company was 3,816 million with market price of HK$2.10
each. Based on the closing price as of 31 December 2015, the
Company’s market capitalisation was approximately HK$8,014
million.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the shareholders’
views on its dividend policy. The Company determines its dividend
policy with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term
development needs and potential investment opportunities. The
dividend payout ratio of 2015 is about 35.54%.

DEPLOYING INTERACTIVE MULIT-
CHANNELLED COMMUNICATION
TO REALISE EFFECTIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS

ENHANCING INVESTOR RELATIONS
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Company has been committed to establishing a scientific and
systematic management system of investor relations. In 2015, the
Company further defined and improved the procedures of major
investor relations practices, including results announcement, non-
deal roadshows, reverse roadshow and disclosure of material
information, etc. The Company also further upgraded the investor
database with the support of its established investor relations
management platform, thus standardising and systematising
the major work on investor relations, including investor meeting
scheduling, investor information’s collection and classification as
well as investor shareholding analysis.

BAREEEERZR

In November 2015, the Group held
Reverse Roadshow for investors in
Xiamen and Hefei. Many buy-side
and sell-side analysts as well as
fund managers participated in the
event, having on-site visits of project
developed by Yuzhou Properties and
communication with the management
EER20165F11 AREFI R A IEETT
REERMBEE ZREH BEHH |
MARESKESE 2B RMHE

Investor Relations

& & & W #

—E-RAFFTZA=+—HB XRABREHEAE
38.16(E K BRI ER B K210 LA=ZF
—AE+-A=1+—BHKTEFE AQF
BT {EA) BB 80.1418 7T °

ik 3% Il

ARemEERRREBRENER TemnA
AMFBRR REERFZENRERBER
EREBERAINDALIEN - 2015F B9 4L 5k
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ETHREENEHLHE BEEERHEERM
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Investor Relations

& & & B iF

FACILITATING DIVERSIFIED AND MULTI-
CHANNELLED INVESTOR ACTIVITIES

The Company communicated its development philosophy and
strategies and its latest operation results in the capital market in a
timely manner through various investor communication channels,
including analyst briefings, non-deal roadshows, one-on-one
meetings, investor forums organised by investment banks,
telephone conferences, emails, and investors’ on-site visits,
the Company’s website as well as Investor Relations WeChat
Platform. Meanwhile, according to the needs and styles of different
analysts and investors, the Company flexibly arranged senior
managements with different responsibilities to participate various
investor relations’ activities. Since the listing, the Company’s
senior managements including Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
and Chief Financial Officer have participated in plenty of investor
activities to fully communicate with the capital market, which truly
realised multi-channelled communications. In 2015, the Company
hosted two analyst presentations and two press conferences
on its annual results and interim results respectively, held 12
non-deal roadshows, participated in 10 international investor
forums held by investment banks, and conducted hundreds of
one-on-one meetings and telephone conferences in the usual
course. Throughout 2015, the Company facilitated interactive
communications with investors or analysts over 1,000 person-
time. Upon the request of investors, the Company also arranged
investor and media on-site visits to help investors to have a direct
communication with the Company’s operating frontier, and these
activities have enhanced the investors’ understanding on the
Company’s businesses and operations.

ZHit-2REMBRKETE
NREEBOEEN 2 ERHEE —H—§
&R ﬁﬁ?)ﬁm&ﬁ%awg%& AR
REEBEMER QAP REEBEBRET
éi%mkﬁﬂxéﬁ%iﬁﬁ?&%*&H%ﬁ>§$ﬁ
LEETARERNESNRE KE2EEN
RATBREM AR - IR - “ﬂﬂ?‘d)ﬁ D AT EM A1
*E’*”Txéf%élﬁﬁ-aiﬂﬁ% WE IR
ETETRES AT RBA EI’JEEE Z2EF
KREERERD - LMK RBEZERERE
BENTENMBEESREEEENHZET
RENZHAREE LS RO REANHHET
Rm BELERTZRENEB —T—0%"
NREAABRTRMRAEREFEENTHERD
DITEHEN SNEBEMRS + -RERHE
BEARZMT T RERRITERNREER
B BMEARN—H-—3ZMEFZER 2F
H 1,000 N RN EEXDENETT T ES
Rt ARIEERIREENER FAHLETEZR
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In August 2015, the Group hosted interim results investor
Jf___brieﬂng, with over a hundred of investors’ attendance
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ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS OF INVESTOR
RELATIONS’ ACTIVITIES IN 2015

LIST OF INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES OF

25%
Non-deal roadshow
x50

16%
Investor forum
B E

15%

Site-visit

SRS

THE COMPANY CONDUCTED IN 2015

R

1

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)

Bf(B/ A/ %)

26/01/2015

10-12/02/2015

25/03/2015

26-27/03/2015

30/03/2015

04-06/05/2015

07-08/05/2015

15/05/2015

Location

ok

Hong Kong
E
Singapore
13K
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
E

Hong Kong
5B

Hong Kong
E
Taiwan

AN
==

Hong Kong
i

Investor Relations

& & # B f#

CE-LERABEFHAKRD

16%
Results announcement
presentation
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Meeting and conference call
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Goldman Sachs Fixed Income Corporate Day
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Citi 12th Annual Asia Pacific Investor Conference
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2014 Annual Result Announcement Presentation
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Non deal Roadshow
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Macquarie Greater China Conference 2015
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ADHERING TO TIMELY, JUST, FAIR AND
ACCURATE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company has strictly complied with the information disclosure
requirements for listed companies and made information
disclosure in a timely, just, fair and accurate manner so as to
enhance the transparency of the Company, established smooth
communication channels, and enhanced communications with
the capital market. In 2015, the Company published more than
50 corporate communications such as announcements and
circulars. Such publications have objectively and comprehensively
disclosed information regarding the Company’s results, operating
performance, financial information, dividend payment, the change
of important executive positions and composition of the Board,
poll results of shareholder meetings and certain other voluntary
disclosures. The Company’s IR website (http://irxmyuzhou.com.cn)
is not only a distribution channel for relevant information
dissemination as required by the Listing Rules, it is also an
important means for the capital market to access information and
contact with the Company.

HEARING INVESTORS
COMPREHENSIVELY AND REALISING
INTERACTIVE COMMUNICATIONS

As the Company enhances investor communications and
information disclosure, the Company also attaches great
importance to its investors’ recommendations and opinions. With
a proactive, sincere and modest attitude, the Company collected
and filed the opinions and recommendations on the Company’s
operation and management through different channels of investor
communications. These initiatives also included the provision of
the investor relations electronic mailbox on its website and the
telephone line for investors to express their views. The Company
actively inquired investors of their recommendations on the
Company’s operation and management during investor activities
and forwarded these opinions and recommendations to the
management and supervisors at all levels on a regular and timely
basis, hence enabling a two-way interaction with the investors and
helping the Company to formulate its development strategies and
improve its operation and management.
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OTHER NECESSARY INFORMATION FOR H it kA Mz B
SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES 1 AR B

Any matters relating to shareholding, such as transfer of shares, N AME FHAEFERMHHOEEMRMDIBE  BHH
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates should ~— kil  BARES  BAUZEEBABLE
be addressed in writing to the Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited EBPRELEEZLERAA

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, BB BT B KER1835

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong BB LT7TEI7TI2E1716F
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628 T % © (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2529 6087 {55 : (852) 2529 6087
SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES 1 R 2 5

Enquiry hotline during normal office hours: RAERAERHARBEERRERT
Telephone: (852) 2508 1718 &L 1 (852) 2508 1718

INVESTOR RELATIONS % & & B 1%

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, &I E & REHFDITAINAE B B4
please contact:

Corporate Finance and Investor Relations Department, RN E D B R A A

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited PERERIEEEBERES

Units 4905-086, 49/F, The Centre, FERPREFAEFHRFIRF O
99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong 49124905-06F

Telephone: (852) 2508 1718 A ¢ (852) 2508 1718

Facsimile: (852) 2510 0265 fBEE& : (852) 2510 0265

Email: ir@xmyuzhou.com.cn B : ir@xmyuzhou.com.cn
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of seven Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors and the remaining three are independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors are appointed for a term
not exceeding three years. The power and duties of our Board of
Directors include convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting
the Board’s work at shareholders’ meetings, implementing
resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings, determining our
business plans and investment plans, formulating our annual
budget and final accounts, formulating our proposals for profit
distributions and for the increase or reduction of registered capital
as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Lung On (#M#E %), aged 51, was designated as the
Chairman of our Board and our Executive Director on 9 October
2009. He founded our Group in December 1994. He is also a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of our Company. Since December 1994, Mr. Lam has
held positions including but not limited to chairman, vice chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the development planning
and strategic layout of the Group as well as the major decisions
on the investment and human resources of the Group. He has
over 20 years of experience in residential, commercial and hotel
property development and investment. In 2006, Mr. Lam became
an honorary citizen of Xiamen accredited by the mayor of Xiamen.
He has been a member of the Standing Committee of the All-China
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, the Central Committee
of the China Democratic National Construction Association and
a member of the Fujian Committee, Tianjing Committee and the

Directors’ Biographies
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Standing Committee of the Xiamen Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Lam also
serves as the president of the Hong-Kong Xiamen Friendship
Union, the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations, the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese
Importer’s & Exporter’'s Association, executive deputy chairman of
the board of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation, the executive
deputy chairman of the China Federation of Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs, the visiting professor of the University of Science
and Technology of China and the executive director and visiting
professor of Jimei University. Mr. Lam graduated from the University
of Science and Technology of China with a master’s degree in
Engineering in November 1996. Mr. Lam is the spouse of Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive Director, and the brother of Mr. Lin
Longzhi, our Executive Director and brother-in-law Mr. Lin Conghui,
our Executive Director. Mr. Lam has not held any directorship in
any other public listed companies in the past three years. Mr. Lam
worked for Xiamen Land Development Company, a state-owned
enterprise, before he founded our Group.

Kwok Ying Lan (% B ), aged 45, was designated as our
Executive Director on 9 October 2009. She is also the Vice
Chairman of our Board. Since joining our Group in April 1997, Ms.
Kwok has held positions including but not limited to chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for the financial, capital and auditing work
of the Company. Ms. Kwok has over 18 years of experience in
property development and financial management. Ms. Kwok has
been an executive director of the Xiamen Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment, a director of Fujian Overseas Women'’s
Friendship Association, the life honorary chairman of the Hong-
Kong Xiamen Friendship Union, and a director of the Hong Kong
Chinese Importer's & Exporter’s Association. She is the spouse
of Mr. Lam Lung On, our Executive Director, and the sister-in-law
of Mr. Lin Longzhi and Mr. Lin Conghui, our Executive Directors.
Ms. Kwok has not held any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the past three years. Ms. Kwok worked for China
Construction Bank Xiamen Branch, a state-owned bank, before
she joined our Company.
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Lin Longzhi (%% &), aged 47, was designated as our
Executive Director on 9 October 2009. Since joining our Group
in December 1997, Mr. Lin has held positions including but not
limited to chairman, director and general manager in most of our
subsidiaries and is primarily responsible for coordinating with
the public relationship and strategic layout of the Group. Mr. Lin
has almost 18 years of experience in property development and
investment. Mr. Lin was a member of the 12th Xiamen Municipal
People’s Congress. He also serves as the vice president of the
6th Xiamen Real Estate Association, the vice president of the 7th
China Real Estate Association and deputy chairman of the Xiamen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. Mr. Lin is the
younger brother of Mr. Lam Lung On, our Executive Director, the
brother-in-law of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive Director and
the brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Conghui, who is also our Executive
Director. Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in any other public
listed companies in the past three years.

Lin Conghui (#E&#8) , aged 45, was designated as our
Executive Director on 9 October 2009. Since joining our Group in
July 1998, Mr. Lin has held positions including but not limited to
chairman and director in most of our subsidiaries and is primarily
responsible for the daily operation management of Fuzhou
subsidiary and Longyan subsidiary. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of
experience in project management. He graduated from Tongji
University with a diploma in Architecture Engineering in January
2006. Mr. Lin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms. Kwok
Ying Lan and Mr. Lin Longzhi, our Executive Directors. Mr. Lin has
not held any directorship in any other public listed companies in the
past three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Gu Jiande (&) , aged 73, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2009. He is also a member
of the audit committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of our Company. He
has been an independent director of Xiamen International Trade
Group Corp., Ltd., a PRC incorporated company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (600755), since May 2009. He has
been an independent director of Xiamen International Airport
Co., Ltd., a PRC incorporated company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (600897), since May 2008. He was the president
of Jimei University from May 1997 to September 2009, and is
an executive member and secretary-general of the Council of
Jimei University. Mr. Gu has been awarded Special Government
Allowance by State Council of the People’s Republic of China
since October 1993 recognising his outstanding contribution to the
national higher education; Tan Kah Kee Outstanding Contribution
Awards by Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Fund in October
2002; second prize of Scientific and Technical Development of
Fujian Province and Xiamen City by Fujian provincial People’s
Government in 1992 and Xiamen Municipal People’s Government
in 1995, respectively; the second prize of Institute of Higher
Learning Scientific and Technical Achievement by Department of
Education of Fujian Province in June 1984. Mr. Gu is the author of
a number of publications and articles on various natural science
and social science publications, including Ordinary Differential
Equations (Xiamen University Press, August 1993); Systems
Engineering and Forecasting of Talents Demand (Xiamen University
Press, November 1991); Forecasting of Talents Demand in Fujian
(Xiamen University Press, September 1991); Economic and Social
Development and Demand for Talents in Fujian (Xiamen University
Press, April 1991); Stability and Boundary of a Class of Generalised
Continuous Hopfield Neural Network (Dalian Maritime University
Press, August 1996); Stability and Boundedness of a Class of
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Second Order Ordinary Differential Equations (Journal of Xiamen
University (Natural Science), August 1993); The Stability of the
Large Scale Systems of a Class of Differential Equation with Delay
(Theory of Ordinary Differential Equation and its Applications,
Science Press, October 1992); Estimation of Delayed Quantity
of a Class of Differential Equation with Delay (Journal of Xiamen
University (Natural Science), March 1991); and Motion Stability of
Linear Large Scale Systems (Control Theory & Applications, 2nd
Phase, 1985). Mr. Gu graduated from Peking University with an
undergraduate certificate in mathematics in August 1966.

Lam Kwong Siu (#EJK) , aged 81, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 October 2009. He is also
a member of the audit committee of our Company. He has more
than fifty years of banking experience. In addition, Mr. Lam had
held the following positions in the banking sector:

o a non-executive director of Bank of China International
Limited (formerly known as BOCI Capital Limited) since July
2002;

° the vice chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank of China Ltd since
October 2001;

° an executive director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited, a Cayman
Islands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (01125), from June 1999 to July 2001;

° an independent non-executive director of Ananda Wing On
Travel (Holdings) Limited (now known as Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited), a Bermuda incorporated company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (01189), until January
2003; and

° an independent non-executive director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as CITIC Ka Wah
Bank Limited), a Hong Kong incorporated company which
was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00183), since
1996 until the withdrawal of its listing in November 2008.
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Mr. Lam has been serving the following companies which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in the capacity of:

° an independent non-executive director of Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited (00868) since August 2004;

° an independent non-executive director of Fujian Holdings
Ltd., (00181) since December 2003;

° an independent non-executive director of China Overseas
Land & Investment Ltd. (00688) since September 2003; and

° an executive director of Far East Consortium International
Limited (00035), since September 2011;

Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003. He
was a delegate of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC to the 10th National People’s Congress. He currently
serves as the honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Associations, life honorary chairman of the Hong Kong
Fukien Chamber of Commerce, deputy chairman of the Fujian
Hong Kong Economic Co-operation, life honorary chairman of
the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, adviser of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and the honorary president
of the Chinese Bankers Club of Hong Kong.

Wee Henny Soon Chiang (also known as Wee Toon Kian) (&= 1&
%), aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 October 2009. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of our Company. He has more than thirty
years of experience in public accounting practice. Mr. Wee was an
independent non-executive director of The Quaypoint Corporation
Limited (now known as China Uptown Group Company Limited),
a Cayman Islands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (02330), from September 2001 to November
2006. He is the founder of Henny Wee & Co., a firm of Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) registered at Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 1988. Mr. Wee is the
partner of Henny Wee & Co. since 1988. He worked at Glass
Radcliffe Chan & Wee as a partner. Mr. Wee received a bachelor’s
degree in Commerce from the University of Newcastle, New South
Wales, Australia, in March 1971. He became an Associate Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants (Australia) in July 1975,
and a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, now known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, since 1988.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Hui Chun Yip, aged 36, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Hui joined our Company
in March 2015 and is responsible for our Group’s strategic
planning, corporate finance activities, investor relations and
oversight of financial reporting procedures, company secretary
matters, internal controls and compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Hui worked
for China South City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock code: 01668), and was
responsible for corporate finance activities, financial management
and financial reporting. He has also worked in an international
C.PA. firm. Mr. Hui has over 14 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Hui graduated with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors
EFgWRE

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise property
development, property investment, the provision of management
services and hotel operation. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 200 to 330.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the year and
discussion on the Company’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this annual report. Description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Company are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
“Income Statement Highlights” and “Statement of Financial Position
Highlights” section on page 10 and 11 of this annual report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

At the board meeting of the Company held on 30 March 2016,
the board of directors proposed a final dividend of HK18 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2015, which is subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 31 May 2016. The
final dividend is proposed to be paid on or about 5 July 2016 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 15 June 2016.

EEENREEEETERERART NAEERE
E2015F12A31A L FEMNLCEZTEHRE -

FEEH

ARBETBEREREZER -MBRARNEIEE
BREMERE DERE EHEERSRE
BBE-FARAEETIZEBHEELEER

¥4

REEEHZE2015F12831B IEFEBHFE - LA
T AR B A B A% B BB AR SR 55200
E330E M P IEIREK A ©

¥ 5 I

EBRRRIFREBR DT RARREREREH
WHERNEAFE[XERE]I RIEEETHRRE
DT A A AR R AL £ /78 H R &
TRABAA =R MR ATFER [ERE
WRAW] A AR BREREE B 12 MK
RERER A B 78 3% M 7543 © 1820154612 A 31
B BFERERBEETHARNRATAFEN
ERFEMHENGEEYBRERMTL4 - KREE
1ORMMBE [REXBEIRIBBRAEREE]
ATE A EBARERBEEST AR AFAE
o

A ik Bk %

KAREEEHN2016F3A0HEf T ESES
#H L EREREHE2015F12A318 LFE R
HARR B SR8l - EAEAR R B 2 BRERN
201655 A31AR T R AF KE ([IREKX
g ) EHER - ARIEE - REIRR S HER 20164
7 A5H AT BIRE TH20169F6 415 H & ¥R
EREFZINANTIRREM 2R -



CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27
May 2016 to 31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered in
order to determine the identities of shareholders entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfers (accompanied by the share certificates,
as applicable) must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2016 for registration.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 13
June 2016 to 15 June 2016 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered in
order to determine the identities of shareholders entitled to the
proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers (accompanied by the share certificates,
as applicable) must be lodged with Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on 10 June 2016
for registration.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

A summary of the Group’s results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
pages 331 to 332. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment properties
are set out on pages 333 to 334.
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SENIOR NOTES

The Company issued US$200 million senior notes, US$250 million
senior notes, US$300 million senior notes, US$300 million senior
notes and US$250 million senior notes with a maturity of five years
and bearing a coupon interest rate of 13.5%, 11.75%, 8.75%,
8.625% and 9.0% in December 2010, October 2012, October
2018, January 2014 and December 2014 respectively. The 2015
due senior notes amounted to US$200 million was fully redeemed
in December 2013. The 2017 due senior notes amounted to
US$250 million was fully redeemed in October 2015. For the
details of the senior notes of the Company, please refer to note 27
to the financial statements.

BONDS ISSUE

On 25 July 2013, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with China Life Trustees Limited (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company agreed to issue, 10% guaranteed bonds (the “Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1.5 billion due in 2019.
The Bonds were guaranteed by Mr. Lam Lung On (“‘Mr. Lam”) and
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (“Ms. Kwok”), directors of the Company, and
certain subsidiaries of the Group and secured by share charge of
21.73% of the entire issued share capital (i.e. 829,094,400 shares)
of the Company held by Mr. Lam and Mr. Kwok. On 25 February
2016, the Company redeemed in full the Bonds and the personal
guarantees and the share charge given by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok
under the Bonds were released, details of which are set out in note
44(b) to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32 and 45 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
RMB963,784,000, of which RMB575,662,000 has been declared
as final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB5,077,000 (2014: RMB7,060,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, no sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 30% or more of the total sales for the year and of
the total purchases for the year, respectively.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman)

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lin Longzhi

Mr. Lin Conghui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Jiande
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang
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The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of Messrs. Gu Jiande, Lam Kwong Siu and Wee Henny
Soon Chiang, and as at the date of this report still considers them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 117 to 123 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, Mr. Lin Longzhi
and Mr. Lin Conghui, being executive directors, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 2 November 2012, which has been renewed for
another term of three years commencing from 2 November 2015,
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
months’ written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr.Gu
Jiande, Mr. Lam Kwong Su and Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang,
being independent non-executive directors, for a term of three
years commencing from 2 November 2012. Upon expiry of the
term, the Company has issued a letter of appointment to each
of Mr.Gu Jiande, Mr. Lam Kwong Su and Mr. Wee Henny Soon
Chiang, to renew the term for another three years commencing
from 2 November 2015, which is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than one months’written notice and retirement
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of directors
are considered to have interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees and emoluments are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board which are
determined with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, no
director had an interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by
him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he
is acquitted. In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior
management of the Company is maintained by the Company with
appropriate coverage for certain legal actions against the Directors.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain Directors and
companies controlled by certain Directors entered into transactions
with the Company which are disclosed in note 40 “Related Party
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statemetns of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF THE
COMPANY:
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Ms. Kwok Ying Lan
MWEML L

@) 1,299,879,000

(@ Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lam Lung On are married to each other.

Save as provided above and in the sub-section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the directors have any interests in
the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests of relevant persons (other than
the directors of the Company) in the share capital of the Company,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of SFO, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF THE
COMPANY:

China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited
R EASZRER O8N RO BIRAF]

(@ China Life Trustees Limited is directly wholly-owned by China Life
Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited which is, in turn, directly
wholly-owned by China Life Insurance (Group) Company; therefore,
each of China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited and China
Life Insurance (Group) Company is deemed to be interested in the
829,094,400 shares held by China Life Trustees Limited.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 May 2010, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
time for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint
venture business partners, service providers of any member of
the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group to participate in the
Scheme (“Participants”).

On 31 December 2012, the Company granted share options
(the “Share Options”) under the Scheme to certain directors
and employees of the Group (the “Grantees”) which, subject to
their acceptance, entitles them to subscribe for an aggregate of
43,693,200 new shares of HK$0.1 each (the “Shares”) in the share
capital of the Company, as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue
of the Shares by the Company in July 2013.

On 31 December 2013, the Company further granted the Share
Options under the Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for
an aggregate of 11,626,000 new Shares. On 20 January 2015,
the Company granted the Share Options under the Scheme to the
Grantees which, subject to their acceptance, entitles the Grantees
to subscribe for an aggregate of 16,445,000 new Shares, the
details of which are disclosed as below:
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Share
options Closing price
Share Share reclassified/ Share of shares
options options  cancelled/ options immediately
Share granted vested lapsed exercised Share before
Executive Director, options during during during during options  the date on
Key Management outstanding the year the year the year the year outstanding  which share
Personnel and asat ended ended ended ended Exercise asat options were
other eligible Period during which 1January 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December price 31 December granted
employees Date of grant  share options exercisable 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 (HKS) 2015 (HKS)
HE015F /\
HE0158  EHE20155 128318 EZ2015F gl
#2015% 124318 12A318 LEER 125318 R015%  REEEH
1B18 LEER LEER  ENSE/ LLEER 128318 BREAE -
HiTES TEEEAE FETREM RILK BEN /KRN e EE  ABAES  ANKTE et
REMEERES REAH BRETFIRZEE BREZE BRENE BREHE BREZE BREYS (Br) BREHA (Bx) =
=
Executive Director =
nrEs o=
Lam Lung On 31/12/2012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 480,000 - - - - 1.8750 480,000 1.87501 §
ER 3112/2012 1/1/2018 - 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.8750" Bf
31/12/2012 1/1/2020 - 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.87501
31/12/2013 1/1/2017 - 31/12/2023 400,000 - - - - 1.9300 400,000 1.9300
3112/2013 1/1/2019 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
31/12/2013 1/1/2021 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
20/01/2015 21/1/2018 - 20/1/2025 - 400,000 - - - 1.8920 400,000 1.8920
20/01/2015 21/1/2020 - 20/1/2025 - 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
20/01/2015 21/1/2022 - 20/1/2025 - 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
Kwok Ying Lan 3112/2012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 480,000 - - - - 1.8750 480,000 1.8750" 1 33
DEH 31/12/2012 1/1/2018 - 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.87501
31/12/2012 1/1/2020 - 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.8750"
31/12/2013 1/1/2017 - 31/12/2023 400,000 - - - - 1.9300 400,000 1.9300
31/12/2013 1/1/2019 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300 \/
3112/2013 1/1/2021 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - - 19300 300,000 1.9300
20/01/2015 21/1/2018 - 20/1/2025 - 400,000 - - - 1.8920 400,000 1.8920
20/01/2015 21/1/2020 - 20/1/2025 - 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
20/01/2015 21/1/2022 - 20/1/2025 - 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
Lin Longzhi 31/12/2012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 9,840,000" - - - - 1.8750 9,840,000 1.8750"
wER 31/12/2012 1/1/2018 - 31/12/2022 7,380,000 - - - - 1.8750 7,380,000 1.87501
31/12/2012 1/1/2020 - 31/12/2022 7,380,000 - - - - 1.8750 7,380,000 1.8750"
Lin Conghui 3112/2012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 5,040,000" - - - - 1.8750 5,040,000 1.87501
HEE 31/12/2012 1/1/2018 - 31/12/2022 3,780,000 - - - - 1.8750 3,780,000 1.87501
31/12/2012 1/1/2020 - 31/12/2022 3,780,000 _ - - - 1.8750 3,780,000 1.87501
Key Management Personnel and other eligible employees
TEEEARRAMGERER
N/A 3112/2012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 973 4400 - - 261,600 - 1.8750 711,840 1.87501
TER
N/A 31/12/2012 1/1/2018 - 31/12/2022 730,080 - - 196,200 - 1.8750 533,880 1.87501
T
N/A 31/12/2012 1/1/2020 - 31/12/2022 730,080 - - 196,200 - 1.8750 533,880 1.8750"
TiEf
N/A 31/12/2013 1/1/2017 - 31/12/2023 3,286,000 - - 798,000 - 1.9300 2,488,000 1.9300
TR
N/A 31/12/2013 1/1/2019 - 31/12/2023 2,464,500 - - 598,500 - 1.9300 1,866,000 1.9300
TR
N/A 31/12/2013 1/1/2021 - 31/12/2023 2,464,500 - - 598,500 - 1.9300 1,866,000 1.9300
TER
N/A 20/01/2015 21/1/2018 - 20/1/2025 - 5,778,000 - 1,262,000 - 1.8920 4,516,000 1.8920
TER
N/A 20/01/2015 21/1/2020 - 20/1/2025 - 4,333,500 - 946,500 - 1.8920 3,387,000 1.8920
TiEf
N/A 20/01/2015 21/1/2022 - 20/1/2025 - 4,333,500 - 946,500 - 1.8920 3,387,000 1.8920
TR

(1) Adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares by the Company in (1)

July 2013
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On 27 January 2016, the Company further granted the Share
Options under the Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
19,790,000 new Shares, among which 1,000,000, 1,000,000 and
500,000 Share Options were granted to Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lin Conghui respectively. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Grantees is a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules).

The grant of Share Options to each of the above directors had
been approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company in accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and
approved by the remuneration committee of the Company.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide Participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company, to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to Participants.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Scheme shall
not exceed 345,599,999 shares of the Company in aggregate,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the date of adoption of the Scheme (i.e. 24 May 2010), as adjusted
as a result of the bonus issues of the Shares by the Company in
July 2012 and July 2013, and the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to each Participant in any 12 month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue. At the time
of grant of the options under the Scheme, the Company may
specify any minimum period(s) for which the options must be held
before it can be exercised. The period within which the options
under the Scheme may be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than
10 years from the relevant date of grant.

P2016F1A27H AR A B RIEZEBR
AEEABELBRE (EREFARAZRTAE
T AR ARE A £19,790,00088 # A (5 -
H d11,000,00017 + 1,000,00017 }500,00017 &
AR Ty B T B % S5 A - DI 20 & RAARER
PESHE o B E XTI FRE N AR REFRA
HIEARFESE  HRTHRABXEZRE 5
FWECHMBEA(EER MR -

M EMEERE ZBREDS K AQTIELIEH
ITEERE FHEBIE7.04(N)IERIE & B &R
UNGIE 31 g =R i3

ZAtBEER2EERHEBEBANKRFN
BE#ED USB2EER/ARRRERRNOE
BAGEMBHRAARRB REBRONEE LA
RBARRRREEEDAARER  BE - 2E)-
MH2EE M2EEFERRIE SRS HE
ERRHAER

IRBZETEIE R R TR OB REETT
R PTEE 1T RS T BATH R (D B8 S H TS
i8345,599,9998 AR A T I (FE R AR TR
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RABATARRMELAE) - A (1218 A HifH
W IR AERZ AT 8 K A 2 B fA] B b B AR A AT &
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AIEEBRERAIITEA N ARBENEMRE
HAR o 3Z AT EITE N BB ARAE A T 1T R0 BAR
AAARNREEEETE AR NUENERS
BRI AR TFEm-
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The amount payable on acceptance of an option to be granted
under the Scheme is HK$1.00 and the exercise price of the
option shall be such price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to the Participant at the time an offer of the
grant of an option is made, but in any event, shall be no less than
the higher of:

(@) the closing price of the share of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c)  the nominal value of the share of the Company on the date of
grant.

PLACEMENT OF NEW SHARES AND USE
OF PROCEEDS

As at 12 May 2015, the Company placed 360 million new shares,
which represent approximately 10.42% of the issued shares of
3,456 million of the Company, at the placing price of HK$2.20
per placing share. Placees included entities controlled by Taiwan
Life Insurance Co., Ltd., and TransGlobe Life Insurance Inc,
respectively. The net proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$779 million. The Company intends to use the net proceeds for
possible investments in the future when opportunities arise. As of
31 December 2015, all the net proceeds from the placing has been
utilised in accordance with the intended use.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report, being the latest practicable date prior to the
date of this report.

KB MIRIE L 81 T 1% /0 BB AR AR B A R A
SEB1.008TT MEBERENTEEARESS
RELBREREZERNBEEELNE2EEN
BRER ERMEMABER T THFER TSR
MR=mE:

(@) ARFRRMHMNIFL B BEE BB AT %
MR REXMIIAEHE:

b) ARBEOHUEERFH AR AEZEA
ERBMRXATIENE R RERMIINF
BWTE K
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2015858128 « AR FIAZIRELE G B
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Al B #1TIR 1345618 /% 2 #910.42% * AL A B
FaBASRBBROERATREZKASRRE
RO BRARIFFEGEE R BLEEHRIEF
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the accounting
policies, accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters, and reviewed the consolidated financial statements and
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China.
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and
administrative office in Hong Kong.

Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, as far as the Company is aware
of, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change of the auditors of the
Company since the listing of the Company’s shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 2 November 2009.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lam Lung On
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all, except A.2.1, where applicable, of the rules
of the Main Board, code provisions and, where applicable, most
of the recommended best practices as set out in Appendix 14
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

Key corporate governance principles and corporate governance
practices of the Company are summarised below:

I. CODE PROVISIONS

A DIRECTORS
Bz

A1 THE BOARD
Exg

Corporate Governance Principle

ARRIEFE ([EFE) REEEBRNARR
R ERERRRIER - ARBRERFNHE
XERE/BEUMER - RENRAIXE KT
MEBERNMREENRITHEIIER - RNQF)
FrBITEXRERRAZESRERCESE &
2ZAMEE  URHE2RBER ZERAEREE
M- BE_T-—RAF+_A=T—HIEFER"
ARFCEREBEEMERXZMERAA ([BR
Prl) &S AR (T EmRR])ME+mz i
EBRTA(TRETA) MR &
PR (20EM) ERRA AN 7RI R (anE A )
EEsETHR (BA2ARIN) -

ARBZETEBLEERRANREGEE AERM
Ul I

L F X

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the

Company'’s affairs.

The Board should reguiarly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibillties to the Company, and whether he is spending

sufficient time performing them.
PREELBEA

EZEERFFERENANFMAEL VERRANEREEXRAEK-

EXRETHRIEENARFRETRANBILNER UARGHEERE L EHGHETHE
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Al1 Regular board meetings should be held C o
at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through o
electronic means of communication, of
majority of directors. o
EZeTHeREsFR RN AR .
PEERILE ABREFRASEEE
B

A1.2 All directors are given an opportunity to C o
include matters in the agenda for regular
board meetings. o
PREFEANERIBNFEIAESS
EHERARE

The Board meets regularly and held meetings in March, July, August and
December of 2015.
EZerfRe R_T-R&=R-tA - NARTZABRgH-

Directors’ attendance records in 2015 are as follows:
EERN_T-AFMERLEERNT:

Members of the Board Attendance
EzgnE HERE
Executive Directors

HTES

Lam Lung On (Chairman) 4/4
WER (/)

Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) 4/4
BERF (F/EE)

Lin Longzhi 4/4
mEes

Lin Conghui 4/4
MBI

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYHTES

Gu Jiande 4/4
ZRE

Lam Kwong Siu 4/4
B

Wee Henny Soon Chiang 4/4
EfAR

Note:  The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or
through other means of electronic communication or by their alternate
Directors (if applicable) in accordance with the Company’s Articles.

FizE: READRERMER EF0URS BRETAXEMET AN
HESH JHHEEAES (NER)RALRE-

All Directors are consulted as to whether they may wish to include any matter
in the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board mesting is issued.
RREFETHERRLARN FAMAEEEAA B RN EMNENFE
UVIVN-+ & T2
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A13

Al4

A5

= At least 14 days notice for regular
board meetings

= REFerHeRRELE T
REBA-

- Reasonable notice for other board
meetings

- BRENESFEeRREHAEA
Ao

Minutes of board meetings and meetings

of board committees should be kept by a
duly appointed secretary of the meeting

and should be open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
director.
BEAZENSZNERBFEZERAE
TREEMERDE ARTNESELA
BEA BAREHGRLHERERME
BREREH -

- Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of board committees
should record in sufficient detail the
matters considered and decisions
reached.

- ESeRABETREeNEHR.
EHEE LMZESERERMA
EERAF ML

- Draft and final versions of minutes
for all directors to comment and to
keep records within a reasonable
time after the board meeting.

- EXEERERE ERAERRR
FleieHTHN DR RRLER
EREBES TRAEESRER
R REERIERTHEZA-

Regular Board meetings in a particular year are usually scheduled towards the
end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to
plan their schedules to attend the meetings.

BEARCESERAeANEERNHRR IR EH -

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular meeting.
REREREHERANEDTOREHEABA -

According to the Company’s Articles, any Director may waive notice of any
meeting.

REDRERAN CAESAREENER BN

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
and Board Committee meetings.
ARNERENEEZEREETZE 02 EMARRA AL T
HE LEENEESHERNATE -

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/
Board Committee members within a reasonable time after each Board and
Board Committee meeting.

BREFERAETZERERARE NEBRRALESSREETZ
BREELH/ RERER2BES /HETREERE

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are available for inspection
by Directors/Board Committee members.
ERSREETZESERRN/ RERTHES HETEZEEMEE
5

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board
Committees and decisions reached.

ERIBHERE HETZEeMEANSERERNATER A
faCE% o

Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes.

EXAMENESRERNBRRERR

Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a reasonable time
after the Board meeting.

EEERRARE NAEKBRAREEZCENREERIELE M-
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A.1.6 =

AT =

A procedure agreed by the board to
enable directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the company’s
expense

EZQEAHTIET BEERAE
R EEENBATERELE
%58 BRAARAZM-

The board should resolve to provide
separate independent professional
advice to directors to assist them
perform their duties to the company.
EZeRAASINRESRMEY
EXER UM AETEEAR
MEE-

If a substantial shareholder or a
director has a conflict of interest

in a matter to be considered by

the board which the board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
physical board meeting rather than a
written resolution.
ERARRAEFHEEEEHTE
ENEETFEESERREAN
HNafR ARERRENETESE
eF (MEEMAR) FARE

Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction
should be present at that board
meeting.
ERSRERGREBMEAREE
ARNBUFNTEZEZLE
FRNEZEES-

A1.8 Arrange appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal action against the directors
AREREZT L EERNEETDEEER
HBRRE B -

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company should such
advice be considered necessary by any Director

EZORBY EEMESRREVESKBUEEER RANETRA
T BRARRARZM-

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that
all Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) can note and
comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.
EEZE-RUEEAZRAARE UFE2EES (BEBUENTESR)
EAZEWER UHARKER (WER)® FREZFE

Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the
resolution, if applicable.
EXRBABRANEFRBZERRENE (HER)

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and
regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up
to deal with the matter.
ERARRAESEEZERTERNFETFAESEERREANR
BR FHFEAREERNRARAPIEE TEEEER TR IEES
ETMBUZEERE-

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers liability
insurance coverage for its Directors and officers since 2009 including the year
2015/2016.

ARARBZZENFES (BE-Z-HE-F—"5E) HUEAEER
BETHEENESRESRERR -
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A2

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
IRRABAH

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group Managing Director of the Company to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

PREREA

FRALEREBMEFELENR FREEES UERENFRES 1 -

>
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A22 The Chairman should ensure that all

Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings.
IEERREZECE LMAESHEE
BEAMEE-

A23 The chairman should be responsible for
ensuring that directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable.
IEREARREFRRRIZANER
B BE RN AE RS R e e 5 o

The chairman to provide leadership
for the board
TRABRAEESE.

The chairman should ensure that
the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that
all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by it in a timely manner.
IEERRESCHWHER AR
TEERE ¥ REFHAEEENE
BERETTHR

The chairman should be primarily
responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each
board meeting. He should take

into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the

other directors for inclusion in the
agenda. The chairman may delegate
this responsibility to a designated
director or the company secretary.
IREIZEEETURESRE
ZLeRNERE WEAEBR T
REMESRAMAREOENS
HoFRAKEHAABRIEENE
ERAAME-

With the assistance of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary,
the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information on a
timely basis.
EHAEERARMERH T IRBNBREFCCR LMEESIEE
HABERNEE WEARESRARAISENER

The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background
information are normally sent to the Directors at least three days before Board
meetings.

ETgea eRERANMREBESREN —RINGZARA T IR=
RERES

Communications between Independent Non-executive Directors on the one
hand, and the Company Secretary as co-ordinator for the other business
units of the Group on the other, is a dynamic and interactive process to
ensure that queries raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt
with and further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
appropriate.
BUFATEZEASEREBHMI HNER AARNERA - EXE
PRRT BREZHARMREXR B EHEGOE WEREE—F
EBERR/ 3 (EE) -

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director who is responsible for the

leadership and effective running of the Board.
ESeIRAANESLAE BREERENERERE

The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction of the
Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level
oversight of management.

EEe IR EAAES RN AREERER IR YERARZEERE
BEREMIfE-

The Board meets regularly and held meetings in March, July, August and
December of 2015.
EzerfRe Rn_T-h&=R-tA NARtZABRg=

With the support of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary,

the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and
appropriate issues in a timely manner.
ERTEZRARNERH T ERENERAEESLEE 1 ERDEH
REEZRERAEE:

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
each Board meeting and ensures that, where applicable, matters proposed by
other Directors are included in the agenda; and that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.
ARWERDEERERESQQHEZE TRRAEMES R OEME
AEE(WER)VBIIAGEER URABEERRARADIEET-
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A25

A2.6

The chairman should take primary

responsibility for ensuring that good

corporate governance practices and

procedures are established.

FTREEFERME BROAMNERFNHE

EERERRIER -

= The chairman should encourage all
directors to make a full and active
contribution to the board’s affairs
and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the
company.

- IRESBMEEEENRAES
SEB WA BREFETT

EHARTRER S

= The chairman should encourage
directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure
that board decisions fairly reflect
board consensus.

- IRESERTAERNESRHER
ENASEINEE LTELER
FRERN®R ARBREZEHR
ERAERMESEMILE-

The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures.
ARRREEERERERBNARRINCEEREARER -

EAA 272 T

Please refer to A.2.3 and A.2.4 above for the details.
HEBEL2M L NEA23RA245

Wrely Ay 1F -
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A28

A29

The chairman should ensure that appropriate C o
steps are taken to provide effective

communication with shareholders and that

their views are communicated to the board

as a whole.

FRERRERAESRRFERREN

B2 URBRREZRIEEIZEES

@0

The chairman should promote a culture C o
of openness and debate by facilitating

the effective contribution of non-executive

directors in particular and ensuring o
constructive relations between executive and

non-executive directors.

IREREBAR BEMROXL RES

2 (FRIRFRNITES) HESRELEX

BE TRRBTESEENTES 2 Mg

RERINHERE-

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders
and investors, including (i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices of
meetings, circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules, and
shareholders can choose to receive such documents using electronic means
through the Company’s website; (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board;
(iii) updated and key information on the Group is available on the website of
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and stakeholders; (v) press
conferences and briefing meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time
to update on the performance of the Group; (vi) the Company’s Branch Share
Registrar deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vii) the Investor Relations Department of the Company handles enquiries
from shareholders and investors generally.
RARERREREERUAROBARE: (R ETRARTE  FEAA
B (AP EREIRRER THEE 2BE BRARRREERR)
EVRIAR - RERTAEZNE T A RBBAR RAFHEBIRZE XN : ()RR
RERBFAG LERERREEEERAER: (IARAMUHFAEH
ZERAREEEMN: (WAL AANARR RFNERBERRFABER &
% WARRNEBRMEEAERRESMEMMEREASERNFE
B MARAIZRDE RS RARREE IR EZIIEEER : R(vi)
ARAREEBEDRERRRREE 2 —REH-

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and has
made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject to review on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

B RIRREBALCR U EBHRARR RBE - ZBR S E Bt
HeRE AR

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in the
Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions.
FERERAL TEEHEFTRARNESRLER UREASH
EZENER NHESNBAMELER-
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A3 BOARD COMPOSITION
ESg4AR

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and
should include a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercisea.
PEELRA

EZERRBEALIRBMAGHENZT # ERRECHEEHAE EELHH T EFHIH TEZNHAR AR

118 L BREAE S L B 7 H B -
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A3.2

A4

A41

The company should maintain on its website C o
and on HKEx's website an updated list of its

directors identifying their role and function

and whether they are independent non-

executive directors.

AR EFEE AUk R R FTAS L b A IR
BNNESERELE  YHREAGNR

B ARERARDBUFATES

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
ZE EERER

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company maintains on its website an updated list of its Directors
identifying their respective roles and functions together with their biographical
information, and whether they are independent non-executive directors.

Since February 2012, the updated list of Directors has been posted on the
website of HKEx. The Company has also posted on its website and the
website of HKEx the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees to enable
the shareholders to understand the roles played by those Independent Non-
executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board Committees.
ARREEBURFRNCEZELE WIREEAZ AEREE URE
BEAER RESTHAERE BN TES - AT ——F A &
ZEFHBERENERAANL A AR NN E B RAR B EH AR
Al EZQETZEeRESE -BRIRR T MBELFNTESHATRE
EEeRETZEeKEMEECLAE.

There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. Al Directors should be subject to re-election at requiar intervals.

DPEERRA

HEEZAEFRIER KEEZEVAENE VEREERFHEFL IS FEEFLESEE THEETER

Non-executive directors should be appointed C o
for a specific term, subject to re-election.
FRTESNREERERTEL

B YAEXEIER. o

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles and the
CG Code.

REARRZRAUARCEERTUZIRAE MEESAB=FHRER
WREEES(E

Wy Ay T1 -
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A43

A5

= If an independent non-executive C o Each Independent Non-executive Director who was subject to retirement by
director serves more than 9 years, rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the Company’s annual
his further appointment should be general meeting. Each Independent Non-executive Director who was eligible
subject to a separate resolution to for re-election at the annual general meeting had made a confirmation of
be approved by shareholders. independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

= EBEUFRTESAEEBASE: . RARRIZBRRAFAE L BUABRERZBUFATETHNELR
HERTEEFENBLRRRT R HREA - BURNRRBFAG LEEEA BUFHTESHERRLT
HRREZRB B33 TE BB LM BERR -

= The papers to shareholders C o N/A. None of our Independent Non-executive Directors has been serving for
accompanying that resolution should more than nine years.
include the reasons why the board . MR RBRA— B A TESRBBANE

believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected.

= BZARR —RELRRH MG
T EHEEZERAARRZEAL
NEBIALREREENRA -

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEE

Corporate Governance Principle

In carrying out its responsibillties, the nomination commitiee should give adequate consideration to the Principles under Sections A.8 and A.4 in the CG
Code.

PEELRA

BEZEEETRER BErrZRIEERTHEAIRAGANIRA

EAA 272 T
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A5.1 - The Company should establish a
nomination committee. A majority
of the members of the nomination
committee should be independent
non-executive Directors.
- RRERUREZRG REZEE
BUABUFRTERERZH -

>

<
£
oY
B
S0 A5.2 - The nomination committee should
g be established with specific terms of
? reference which deal clearly with the
E committee’s authority and duties.
= - RAEEEARAZEEAEN
REEE BEHARE e nBEN
Effe
150

<

o The Company established a nomination committee on 9 October 2009.
The nomination committee consists of three members, comprising two of
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Gu Jiande and Mr. Wee Henny Soon
Chiang, and one executive Director, Mr. Lam Lung On. The chairman of the
nomination committee is Mr. Gu Jiande.

. ARAR-EEAFTANARURLEZEG - REREEM=2NEAK
EhMARBUFATES NEZEREENERREE 5 —ARNTE
FOMER AL -EREAERREZEENIRE-

o Since the publication of the Company’s 2014 annual report in April 2015,
a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held in July and December
2015. Detalils of the attendance records of the members of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

. E-E-RGMATHRARAI_S—NFEFHRE REZE8EN_S—AF
TART-REREH REZEQZEZHREFBEMT

Members of the Nomination Committee Attendance
REZEBZE HERE
Gu Jiande (Chairman) 2/2
ERE(2E)

Lam Lung On 22
HEeR

Wee Henny Soon Chiang 2/2
HE®

Note:  The members of the Nomination Committee may attend meetings in person,
by telephone or through other means of electronic communication or by their
alternates (if applicable) in accordance with the Company’s Articles.

fisr: REARAERMA REZECZENRS ERTESAMETR
AAXHESS IHEEEA (WER)RALRE-

° The Company has terms of reference for the nomination committee.
. ARABEMIAREEZEERE

° The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at lease once every year to ensure that it has a
balanced composition of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the businesses of the Company, identifying, screening and recommending
to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors, overseeing
the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

. REZEQABBF U LENES S LR AURER BRESE
HARBRAARAEBMERERERZIALAR HE HERNESS
REEARAEFEMEMAR BENEESSRENER FRBLHE
HITERNBUE -




B M T 7 L2 )
St

fEERERE

g
e
8
g
5
3
O
8
5]
g8
&
O




Corporate Governance Report

EEERESE

>

C10g Hoday renuuy

poyur| Aeduroy) senaadold noyzng

152

<

A5.3 =

The nomination committee should
make available its terms of reference
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the Board by
including them on HKEX's website
and the Company’s website.
REZEQREBRABURAA
B EAFRAMESE REEAER
NREZEERTHEMEN -

The Company should provide the
nomination committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties,
where necessary, the nomination
committee should seek independent
professional advice at the
Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.
AREMREEEERURRER
NRITHBE - REZECRTHEA
BOERE ESRBEUEEER
BERMmARIR(T

Where the board proposes a
resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, it should set
out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the
reasons why they consider him to be
independent.
FEFERRRRAG LRERSE
REEXALABUERTES:
BRRRA S @5 PR A R R
BER/ SRR S HE
ZERREEEZEALTHEEN
Rt FRAZAATBELALH
RE-

The Company has made the terms of reference of the nomination committee
on HKEx's website and the Company’s website.
ARAEMRAZEENBREEE EHZEIMRAAML

Each Independent Non-executive Director who was subject to retirement by
rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the Company’s annual
general meeting. Each Independent Non-executive Director who was eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting had made a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
had expressed the view in its circular that each Independent Non-executive
Director who was eligible for re-election had met the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and was independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines. While in accordance with the recommended
best practices, the Company has to include its own recommendation in the
circular to explain why a particular candidate should be re-elected, as their
relevant credentials have been included in the circular for the shareholders’
information, the Company opines that it is more important for the shareholders
themselves to make their own independent decision on whether to approve a
particular re-election or not.
RARAIZREBERE L BUABRERZBLFHTESINELR
BREA-BURREBFAE LEREE 7 BUFNTESHERR LT
RAIESBGEREREB LM ELRER AR AR BHARAREEEE
BYIEMTESE BT EMRRIE3.136 2B RS WREZE S B
BUAT BERSSEFHR FARABRBEAGENESBEEEZR
RiehiEs anEBBEREEEE 2 EBRREIENBRANRKRES
B AARRARERRETEIREREH AN ESEATREE
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A5.6

The nomination committee (or

the board) should have a policy
concerning diversity of board
members, and should disclose the
policy or a summary of the policy in
the Corporate Governance Report.
REZEE (FEFE)EITEIR
EZeRESTLILMBR YR E
ERRENREANRIIRAE

o In August 2013, the Company has established a policy concerning diversity
of Board members (‘Board Diversity Policy”) and has made it available on the
Company’s website.

. RZZE—ZF\A ARAEHRESZERELLIHITEE ([EEE8KES
TALBUR]) - WEEERAA R4

Purpose
A4
o This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s

board of directors.

. ARRERIGALAESE ([EF2]) RERME LM RN 5 -

Vision

=

o The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
. ARAPAYACESERESLIHRARANKAZERGRS -

Policy Statement
HEEY

o With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

. REBIRENAEER ARARESERAB S T A HEH
KEBRRERITREERDERTR

o In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

. ARAERTEZSERELAR LA BERESERES T B
BETRAMER Fi XERARER Bk BELR R ARER
BRER-EFEMEREHURART RRE YEZENZRUZB I
ROBREZENE LTINS

Hhedy oy

[EA A e
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A6

Monitoring and Record
EERi#

o The Nomination Committee will record annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this Policy.

J RAZEENBFIBREZS SRS TICBANAK TERABRONT

Review of this Policy

BT PBHE

o The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

. REZEERAERERRERIARE ARRARRT AR -REZES
BeNREMIRELNET BREFSRNETEE nEFESE-

Disclosure of this Policy

FHFRIKE

o This Policy will be published on the Company’s website for public information.
o AEREHEAARGHEARERM
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEfE

Corporate Governance Principle

Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conauct, business activities and development.
PEELRA

BEEFRRAEHRERALAEEZNBE U RERAINEET FHEGRER -
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A6.1

Every newly appointed director of the
company should receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on
appointment. Subsequently he should
receive any briefing and professional
development necessary to ensure that o
he has a proper understanding of the

company's operations and business and

is fully aware of his responsibilities under

statute and common law, the Listing Rules, o
legal and other regulatory requirements and

the company’s business and governance

policies.

BENZENESUREXZARESFS

- EARBREMRNAEAR K&
EEGMENNAREFER  ARRMM
HRRMEEREBHERENER AR
TERMBAFEERRE®E EHRAN .
FERAMEERTEARARANEBRER

BURT BB E -

The Company Secretary and key officers of the Company Secretarial
Department liaise closely with newly appointed Directors both immediately
before and after his/her appointment to acquaint them with the duties and
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and the business operation of the
Company.

AETEEZLRAGARARNESNBREREL URARANERE
B RARERAANEDEEAENTAEEZRZ AR AN EARKERER
BE.

A package, that has been compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal
advisers setting out the duties and responsibilities of directors under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements is provided to each

newly appointed Director. Further information package comprising the

latest developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to the duties and
responsibilities of directors will be forwarded to each Director from time to time
for his/her information and ready reference. Guidelines for directors have also
been forwarded to each Director for his/her information and ready reference.
BUMEBEFHEE—NEARAEEERMNT REHNEBER 515 L
TRAREREGR MR ESHERER - SESHIRERRER
NSZREXEWREZREREE LN RARAPINRTER -EXK
SINERTEESUELERBE -

During the year, the Company had arranged at the cost of the Company
Directors seminar sessions conducted by qualified professionals experienced
on topics relating to the roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

EN ARABRHEZSHREARAXAEBRMALR I AEREEA
THREHESZ AR BEREESRECHEE-

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided information and
briefings to Directors on the latest developments in the laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company

had also, on an individual basis, advised Directors on queries raised or issues
which arise in the performance of their duties as directors.

IEoh ARRE TR REBHERRE REE AN R RAFIE R %
BZEARERTESLZ -ARAMERERBERREZRBETAERE
EVREMEERRNCEAREEREER

>
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Every director should ensure that he can
give sufficient time and attention to the
company’s affairs and should not accept the
appointment if he cannot do so.
BREZEBRAEN LR AR RIE AR
BRAMNER GUTEERZE-

There s satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year. Please
refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.

FRREZEERLMEXSANE - HR BRI LXEAIIE-

Every Executive Director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas
and operation in which he/she is charged with. Appropriate attention to the
affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of
such attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to
his/her area of knowledge and expertise, and his/her global perspective.
BHTESHEBENEABHE REENFER NEERER - EFHA
AREBNBIRE ERARANER X URRELDE SRER
WRRE AL 2 BRI T LG 2
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A6.5

All directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant. The company
should be responsible for arranging

and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director.
MEESE2EBESEER BRIEHN
HARREE ARRELETEGRZEE
ARDAFENEL THES LA
RREEERHEENT I RAE AL
B RBYEELTRAREZNAL B
ERER.

A package, that has been compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal
advisers, setting out the duties and responsibilities of directors under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements is provided to each

newly appointed Director. Further information package comprising the

latest developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to the duties and
responsibilities of directors will be forwarded to each Director from time to time
for his/her information and ready reference. Guidelines for directors have also
been forwarded to each Director for his/her information and ready reference.
BUMEEFHEE—HAARREEZRRMNT REMNEEER 58 L
TR AGIR T Az EERARAE - R ESHIREREER
NSZREFEREZRERBE LN RARAPINRTER -ESHK
SIMERTRESUHLERBE

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided information and
briefings to Directors on the latest developments in the laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company

had also, on an individual basis, advised Directors on queries raised or issues
which arise in the performance of their duties as directors.

IS ARRIEFNEREEHESRE RBEED ER BRI RTE
BZEARBRTEFZE -ARANERERNBERANESHBTEERE
EZRBAELIRECEAREEREER

During the year, the Company had arranged at the cost of the Company
Directors seminar sessions conducted by qualified professionals experienced
on topics relating to the roles, functions and duties of the Directors. Certificates
were issued to Directors who had attended the seminar sessions. Directors
have also participated in continuous professional training organised by
professional bodies and/or government authorities.

FR ARRERHBESHFEAARANEERHEALRZAEREXA
THRERESZ A BREREASREZEE LREEC ESERER
REE-ZZNC2MBZERER SRTRERKEZ FEZEE -

The Directors” knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed
by, inter alia, the following means:
B (AR aE) 2B EI AT IR R ERNES 2 MR

1) Reading memoranda issued or materials provided (for example, in-
house directors’ seminar) from time to time by the Company to
Directors, and as applicable, briefings and reports by the Company
Secretary, as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties with the
latest developments in public consultations, laws, rules and regulations
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors and corporate
governance;

(1) BERRATERETEZZERHIEN (WARNBEN E
EHE) R (ER) hARMEEL 2 B RRE  AEEREER
REZD NREZRTABEZEBZE RERAREAZRINE
ERBRESBR 2 EZE RORERRCRERSE
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A6.6

A6.7

Each director should disclose to the
company at the time of his appointment,
and in a timely manner for any change, the
number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other
significant commitments. The identity of the
public companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved should also be
disclosed. The board should determine for
itself how frequently this disclosure should
be made.
BREZENESZARRARRELRA
FRARNABEEBRLOHE REEUAR
HtERAE ERERENEDERER
o WLAMIERBATS KA ARD Al AR
M AT RBT AT BB R
B-EFQRATREERZ AL KR
Zo

Independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal
board members, should give the board and
any committees on which they serve the
benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation.
They should also attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders.

BUERTESE REMIERTESERER
tEEEFRSLNESSKE TS
HEESERARRLAZEE@NENZE
eNeRTER2 RSN UHKE X
HERTNRANERREBIELER - M1
FEHREBRRAE HARNRRNEREALE
BT

@ Participation in continuous professional training seminars/conferences/
courses/workshops on subjects relating to directors’ duties and
corporate governance, etc. organised by the Company and/or
professional bodies and/or government authorities; and

@ 2HARRAR/IEEBER /SBRNEEREEEESRER
CEERCHBRBZSERESBE g%/ R/ g

©)] Reading news/journal/magazine/other reading materials as regards
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors
in the discharge of their duties.

0 HEEREERAEER ULEMEREZENEEMERESE
2B/ A EER o

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment
and from time to time thereafter the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments, identifying the
public companies or organisations involved.
ESNEXZARERALAIRE (WRARIEHRE) AR AR A ANA
BEABUNEEREE UREMEARE TREZSARAARMAE
B

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee
meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the Independent
Non-executive Directors and the general meeting during the year. Please refer
toA1.1,A2.7,A5.1,B.1.2, C.3.1 and E.1.2 for the attendance records.
FRARERSSS BEFQE 28083 TREFITES (BHEEL
FHTEF)ERRRRAG ZHEERALARE - BRLREHFLHE
A11-A27-A51:B12 C31RE12E"
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AT SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
ERRERER

Corporate Governance Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an informed decision and
perform their duties and responsibilities.

PEELRA

BEERBHEENENEN AEARKEAREFNELEGHEMEL TIELRE VB TABERE -
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A7.2

AT73

Management has an obligation to
supply the board and its committees
with adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner

to enable it to make informed
decisions.
ERERRERNEFERAETZ
BERMERERAIENHESER
NREFEHELEFHEHNE
RTEHRTE

The board and individual

directors should have separate

and independent access to the
company’s senior management

for making further enquiries where
necessary.
BEZeRERIESEEATERA
ASREEAENBELAE UER
FEBREE-—SEA-

All directors are entitled to have
access to board papers and related
materials.
MEESHERENES SR
EBER

Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response, if
possible.
HRESRENME D RNERA
RELARRZEMNEE-

The Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, and
accounting and financial matters, as appropriate.
ARNERMBRELNNEREESEERER URCEER KOIES
REFEMKEEHNESFERERZR (HEE) -

Communications between Directors on the one hand, and the Company
Secretary, who acts as co-ordinator for the other business units of the Group
on the other, is a dynamic and interactive process to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further
supporting information is provided, as appropriate.
ESEASEREBAM ANER ARARERA EREDRIET B
RESHERMRELB B FEEFEE WERME—SEZER (W

BE) °

Please see A.7.1 and A.7.2 above.
FRHEXFEATIRATIE.

Wy Ay TL -

[ERAV A T

161

<




Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

>

C10g Hoday renuuy

poyur| Ateduroy) senaedold noyzng

162

<

B.1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
ESRBREEABNTHRESETIN

THE LEVEL AND MAKE-UP OF REMUNERATION AND DISCLOSURE

FHREEN KT RAR

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The proceadure for setting policy on Executive
Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and transparent.

PEERRE

ARCERFAZEN R REAMBEGHGENEE  JEREERMEERENES KT EHHTEENE REEEFHH T ENHE -

The Remuneration Committee should
consult the Chairman and/or Chief Executive
Officer about their proposals relating to the
remuneration of other executive Directors
and have access to professional advice if
considered necessary.
FMZEeERE N TESNFMERRE
AEER/STRER WRABRE 71
ERBUEEER -

C

The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman and/or Group Chief
Executive Officer about the proposals relating to the remuneration packages
and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management,
including but not limited to, the succession plan and key personnel movements
as well as the policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
FHZEEERESRAREBAEZ EMEAREANERRE (85
BERRRETTE BEAZEY URBERERSERAT R ) HHE
BRIFEETHAHNER

The emoluments of Directors are based on the skill, knowledge, involvement
in the Company’s affairs and the performance of each Director, together with
reference to the profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions.
ARAIZEEMe DENERES 2 KEE ABKERZERREHZRE
RER U2RAFABNKARTZREMEE -

To enable them to provide better advice on the Group’s future remuneration
policy and related strategies, the Remuneration Committee has been advised
of the Group’s existing remuneration policy and succession plan, such as
guidelines on designing employees’ remuneration packages and related
market trends and information.
RERFHZS@URASERRFMRRREERE LREEEER &
HEEQEEANAEERAHMBRREEHS (B THMERREILE
Bz msBs RER) 25
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B.1.3

The remuneration committee should make
available its terms of reference, explaining its
role and the authority delegated to it by the
board.

FHMEZEGRARARARE BEAAE
REERSERNES

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and Stock Exchange’s website.

FHMZE g RABEDBHRNALR AP R 0A-

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of all executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors and senior
management, reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts
and fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management,
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

FHEE v T ERA SN2 RITESNFMERLRE NG
ESZRERERAENIARR RAMBHE BHEZNREEOUR
ET2REZNSEERASNTMEE ARMBLFATESZOHMA
EESh £
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B.1.4

B.1.5

C.1

C.11

C.1.2

The remuneration committee should

be provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.
FMEEEREMLRRERABTAR
o

The company should disclose details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management by band in the annual reports.
AREEHERNEFHEARERRER
AEMMES -

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
BERKEY

FINANCIAL REPORTING
B5E 5

Corporate Governance Principle

The Human Resources Department provides administrative support and
implements the approved remuneration packages and other human resources
related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee.
ANBRBEERETBXERMIEEHES e TMFBRA M
ANERATE °

The Board has resolved that the senior management of the Company
comprises only the Executive Directors of the Company. Please refer to note
8 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of the
remuneration payable to the Directors.

BARAEZEHR ARARREBASEAARARTESAR -BH
ERHM A ER2HRe B RN T FeE

The Board should present a balancea), clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

LRERRA

BERETE BMREAMTEALANZE BEARAR

Management should provide sufficient
explanation and information to the board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before it
for approval.
ERERAESSRATINRERER
EEZ QA NARRAR B A AR R A
&R (EHBRER TS -

Management should provide all members

of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment
of the company’s performance, position

and prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties.
ERERBANESSHERMEENER
HIEBRAINKE MR RARHA
ERSGREROIE NERAEEERET
HBE-

C

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities
and key financial information on a half-yearly basis.

EEGYFORRAASE I REXBEHLER BN BER

Monthly updates had been provided to all members of the Board since April
2012, the effective date of code provision C.1.2, for the purpose of providing
a balance and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties.
BREERTAECI BN S ——FHALNE ESCMERECER
HEREHEN FRHIEEADARE BRI RASHAERSR
BRI URESERZEEETARE
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C.1.4

C.1.5

C.2

The directors should include in the separate
statement containing a discussion and
analysis of the group’s performance in the
annual report, an explanation of the basis on
which the company generates or preserves
value over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering the
company’s objectives.
EREEFRAAH AT EBRRNBEL
AN BMAAREREEEXREEEN
Eif (FBER) RER AR A RAK
BE o

The board should present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in annual
and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules. It
should also do so for reports to regulators
and information disclosed under statutory
requirements.
BUEESEEFERE LT HRE RRE
FHRARERTRBENAMABEERR
HARKRAELTE BWRAZHERNT
Boltsh HMEEREEERINBRESE
RARBEDIFERENER AL RERAE
it o

INTERNAL CONTROLS
REER

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s Long Term Development Strategy in the Annual Report
2015.

EZg RN E-REERNRIRRINMASEREERRRIEB LR

o

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance and position in all shareholder communications.
EZeNMARREAT HASEZ RARMAELEN  FERINE
BHTE.

The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations about timely disclosure of inside information
or matters regarding the Company and will authorise the publication of such
announcements as and when the occasion arises. The Company Secretary
and key officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and

in consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and sensitivity of
transactions and proposed transactions and advise the Board accordingly.
EFQNBRENERRURATIPERESREARRIBBANEE K
EENAE URERERIETEERAL - RANERAANESEE
ABERFEBRRRAE RRHIFERRIEENEEN REBEEFA
HER UBRHMEFSRLES

The Board should ensure that the Company maintains sound and efffective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Company’s

assets.
PREELRA

EFERBERAA NS EEFARRREENEEN UREKRHRERT L ANEE -
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fEERERE

The board’s annual review should,

in particular, consider the adequacy

of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

EZQRTERRIN ERAIZEQAE
SHRMBERBETANER BTEE
L% AREIFEINEIREREHE
BEREGRHM

The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function at the Board meeting held in March 2016 and
noted that the Company has been in compliance with the Code Provision for
the year 2015. Please also refer to C.3.3 below.

EZeEN_T - "EoARAZEZC R AR AEGH RUBE
BB ENER BIEERER URBIMEINTIRERERE
ERBRWETRT UEEARAR-Z—AFEETHBTAIRI B
2B TXECIIE-
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C.3.1

Full minutes of audit committee
meetings should be kept by a duly
appointed secretary of the meeting.
EREECN TR e RO EAL
REENGHEUERT -

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
eRLHNIRRRRERELE
FR-BABRRNLRERZE
SRBNE PREKEREER
BEERELZE2 A

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the
Audit Committee within a reasonable time after each meeting.
CHLHMARUERE RERLER —RABRENERAEERES
=g

Audit Committee meetings were held in January, March and August 2015.
Details of the attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are
as follows:

EREZECN_Z-Nn45—-R ZAR\RBRGZR -BREEEZEE 2
BESENT

Members of the Audit Committee Attendance
ENEEEZE HERE
Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Chairman) 3/3
HER(ZE)

Gu Jiande 3/3
R

Lam Kwong Siu 3/3
B

Note:  The members of the Audit Committee may attend meetings in person,
by telephone or through other means of electronic communication or
by their alternates (if applicable) in accordance with the Company's
Articles.

izt BEARRZRAN FREEGREMNRS FREAIAME
TRASALFEE S FRABEA (PER)KAHE-

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2015:
EREZEEN_T-HFMNTEHRAMT

1. Review the financial reports for 2014 annual results and 2015 interim
results;

1. BH-Z-NEFEEER_T-LEETHREZMBRE:

2. Review the findings and recommendations of the Group Internal Audit
on the work of various divisions/departments and related companies;

2. FHEEANBEBRIAWESHBPIMEBERRLENERERR
2

8, Review the effectiveness of the internal control system;
8, B AP E I R AR

4. Review the external auditor’s audit findings;

4. ENSNEREMOETA

& Review the auditor’s remuneration;

5. ENREMEE:
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After due and careful consideration of reports from management and the
internal and external auditors, the Audit Committee noted that no suspected
fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or suspected
infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found, and concluded

at the meeting held on 30 March, 2016 that the internal control system was
adequate and effective.

ERZEEFAREHZEERERAS NEREMRRNEEE BE
TEFRSRFRLER BEORNBEEPRIFRERED  RAFHR
PIER YR=ZE-—A"F=A=THRRINERE LELELE ERPERE
MERRAMA K

On 30 March, 2016, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2015
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external
auditor. After review and discussions with the management, internal auditor
and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment
adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its
ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual
Report 2015 complied with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend
for the Board's approval the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December, 2015.

RZE-—R"E=ZA=1H BREECRTe3 BRAARIMNELENE
MASE_Z-hFENGESUBERE REASERBNEHRAIRER
B - RBLSENEEREEEE AFB B RMNERUD ARG B
REZEERERARRMRANERELN TESNBRR-_Z-LFFH
RENSBEERFSERNGHER EHRAMET A 2B At &
BEEERARREE e ERRRE T A T A= T—HLEEFE
WERA BB RE -

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as the Company’s external auditor for 2016 and that the related
resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’ consideration and approval at the
2016 annual general meeting.

EREEETMESEERE BNMEARKEHNEBMARARZE—R
FEMMNEREN TREBEEABR _Z— R FRRBFRG LERT
BRZBRBER-

The Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December, 2015 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
EREEeRENAREEZE T RF T AT -BILEECER-
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C.3.2 A former partner of existing auditing firm shall
not act as a member of the committee for
1 year from the date of his ceasing to be a
partner of or to have any financial interest in,
the firm, whichever is later.
BREERA A ARENRBLARNAEE
BAERRIERBZAREBARBE 3
A EZ A %A R # B H (A
BEREE AE)RH—FR THIELEE
BREEEHKE -

C.33 The audit committee’s terms of reference

should include:

ERZReNBEREREE:

recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor

and approval of their terms of
engagement

RINERBENEL  ENEERE
EMEFGRMHER RIEINER
AR B AR 150

review and monitor external auditor's
independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of audit process

et RERIMNEZ BN B RS
REERFHOEMRL

review of the company’s financial
information
EHRANABER: R

oversight of the company’s financial
reporting system and internal control
procedures, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and
budget of the company’s accounting
and financial reporting function

EE N AR IREIE R A
B BEEEARESTRUHB
BB A ENER B TERERE
BREDRHA URETREZ M
HEREREERTRR

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing
firm of the Company during the one year after he/she ceases to be a partner of
the auditing firm.
BERREEERARARBEENBAARRARRARKLERAZARE
BABBES—FEN EEARRELEZEEKE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee (both English and Chinese
versions), which follow closely the requirements of the CG Code and are
modified from time to time and adopted by the Board, are posted on the
websites of the Company and HKEXx.

BB CXERFAREMET 2 EREE g RESE (X RPXR)
ETRELETREEZERA YEBHRAARRBER AL -
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C35

C.3.6

C3.7

Where the board disagrees with the audit
committee’s view regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of

the external auditors, the Company should
include in the Corporate Governance Report
a statement from the audit committee
explaining its recommendation and also the
reason(s) why the board has taken a different
view.
NEFETREERZEGHEE -
BRI EREMEENER AAE
ECEERARETIHABEGZEGMIL AR
HNER AREFERIRAERNRE-
The audit committee should be provided
with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.
BREEEEEMLRRERABTAR

Fo

The terms of reference of the audit
committee should also require it:

ERZReNRBERENARE:

- to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other
matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action; and

- RARARENA TR DrlER
AR TRIER WA E I A A
FEAGEEENTEETRRLEA
ToBRZECERRAEETH
FLAHEEFEERATEIN
RERFREZ T8 K

- to act as the key representative

body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.

= RERRENMELHMHZANEE

R& BEER-EZHHOBE.

N/A

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ernst &
Young be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for 2016.
EREECRNEFERAE BHEATKEHMEBMUEARR -
FREOMEZHD HELRERDERTORREAEARES HiE - HalfE

=,
=

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the external auditor of the Company
received approximately RMB2,700,000 for annual audit services and
approximately RMB450,000 for other non-audit services rendered.
REZEZZ-RE+-A=+—HILFE ARRNEZERMEREEZHUR
BERHARE2,700,0007 R IBA E At IEF At RS 2 B A 4 A K #450,000
T

The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can
arrange independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
should the seeking of such advice be considered necessary by the Audit
Committee.

ERZECEERN EERRECRRBLESKBEUEEER NAW
EARARE BRAADAIS(-

The Company has established the Procedures for Reporting Possible
Improprieties in Matters of Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other
Matters for employees and those who deal with the Group to raise concerns,
in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in
matters of financial reporting, internal control or other matters relating to

the Group. Such procedures were included into the Company’s employees
handbook and posted on the Company’s website.
AARBHTRESREBABER APERIEMFE A RBTEN
RZEF ZEEREMEASEEARZAL ARRAEKEELHE
BASEHBER ANEASEMEEZ TRBEIE ZTRIELRR.
FZRFEHIRARAZEEFM UEBHRAR AR

The Company has issued an employee’s handbook to its staff, which contains
the mechanism for employees to raise any issues they may have to their
department heads and to the human resources department for necessary
action (whether these relate to their career development or any other
grievances and complaints they may have).

ARRMEIREZEEFM EhHERETREDHIEERANER
REERNSEE (THetBETEFEERI B TARRE 2 EMEMTRR
B AR AFELRRTENE S -
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D.1

D.1.1

D.1.2

D.1.3

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
ESeRINER

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS
EER

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to management.

PEERRA

ARAEE—BIERN BT S J| BRI REF RN ERFRRREEERRENER -

When the board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions
to management, it must at the same time
give clear directions as to the management’s
power, in particular, where management
should report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on the company’s
behalf.
EEFEREERRIBOE T ENENE
RTERER YEARKREREMNEN
BTEMNIES BRREEERENES
SREGNRERR AR EHEMRERFTL
ARG ES S ESEE A

Formalise functions reserved to the board
and those delegated to management and

to review those arrangements periodically to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the
company’s needs.
RRAEEMLRE TES SR B R
RYEBENRAE D RITEE TR YEHE
RANEREBLATEARNEE -

The company should disclose the respective
responsibilities, accountabilities and
contributions of the board and management.
ARERBEESEHERERANRE A
EENMERARAERIELER

C

Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional
divisions in accordance with their respective areas of expertise.

BOEEREAFRARTANEB RBETM

Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 196.

F2HFIENE196E 2 EERER-

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to
the Board for approval.

—HBEERZFRARFURMESEF -

For matters or transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the
Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure
will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’
approval will be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable
rules and regulations.

RE EHRBFEMBERORNARATINATREZERFERRS Hg
{EHEE 2 RE WRFERREER 2 AR RBO Bk FIRHEE R
GREZ k-

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future
development directions; overall strategies and policies; evaluation of the
performance of the Group and the management; and approval of matters that
are of a material or substantial nature.

EXREET BB ASEARERAERN BERKRICK Wik
EEREEENERR URBAESAREEFE

Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
ESESAHTET EREAEEENHREEE

Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 196.
F2MIBNE16E 2 EREEE

Trelydy L — %~
1237 20 B 46) 30 3 ot >>
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D.1.4 Directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. The
company should have formal letters of
appointment for directors setting out the key
terms and conditions of their appointment.
EZEERBERAENENERRY A7
EEEANESZZMEE THERZANE
A R et -

D.2.1 Where board committees are established
to deal with matters, the board should give
them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions
properly.

FERVEREERESH %
ERMEBZEERERHBEENBES
EAREEHRTERE

>

107 Modoy [enuuy
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&

In November 2015, formal letters of appointment have been issued to

all Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointment. Each newly appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of
appointment.

RZZE-R2F+-R ARAERMAESRHERAZEE UEETHE
RECFEGRR RGN -BERNEEESTREREHNEES

Three Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, have been established with specific terms of
reference.

EFeRU-ME L8 HERZEE REZEQRFMZEE &
BERIFTABESE -
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D.3.2 The board should be responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the terms of reference in D.3.1
or it may delegate the responsibility to a
committee or committees.
EFeRAERIDIIGRESEREN
CEERBE TAUKEERET —E%Z
EZEg-

E1 EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION
AXER

Corporate Governance Principle

PEERRA

>

107 Modoy [enuuy

payruar| Aueduwo)) sonaedol ] noyznx

&

The board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee. To that effect, the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee as set out in D.3.1 above were effected from
9 October 2009 to include the corporate governance functions delegated by
the Board.

EZ QR ERCEEABECRTARTERZE. -FIR EXEDIIEY
EREEEVREERER _SENFTANBEN ARMESSERY

bEERRE-

The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dlalogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

EFERREERRFERIYZ LECRRTAFAEXAMKEASERTEERZA OIS E
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E1.2

The chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.
He should also invite the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, nomination
and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. In their
absence, he should invite another
member of the committee to be
available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.
EZQTRENRRRBFAS:
THEEREZEE HHEEE R
AZEeRAMEMEZEEE (RE
BRmME)NFRLE - EEHEE
SFEARLE EFCERELE
S—REEERRBFAG LEZE
R’

The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions

at any general meeting to approve

a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires
independent shareholders’ approval.
EZRETHEYZEE (MA)H
FRMEEEMPEAT X HER
RAE FEERE - HEER S E
AEMASBUHENT S

The company’s management should
ensure the external auditor attend
the annual general meeting to
answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor
independence.

AR B IR E FERERINERZ RN i
BREBFAS BZEWENT
fE REZBRMBREREND S5t
BUR DA R % SRR 8 S 1 R

C

In 2015 annual general meeting, Executive Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee Chairman of Nomination Committee and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee attended the 2015 annual general meeting and were
available to answer questions.
RIZ-DFRRAFAG 78S EREEREER REZEGIRR
FMEESFRLANE S AFRRBFAL VARG FRERRH-

Directors’ attendance records of the 2015 annual general meeting are as
follows:

BEEN T OISERRAFASHERMT

Members of the Board Attendance
EZgns HERE
Executive Director

HTES

LAM Lung On (Chairman of the Board) 0n
MER(EFETE)

KWOK Ying Lan 11
DHEB

LIN Longzhi 0N
mEs

LIN Conghui 0N
MIBHE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYHTES

GU Jiande 11
ERE

WEE Henny Soon Chiang 11
HER

LAM Kwong Siu 11
B

In 2015, the Company’s external auditor attended the annual general meeting
and was available to answer questions.

RIB-0F ARFNERBHLERRAFAE  LAIRE LEIERA -
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E13

E14

E.2

E.2.1

The company should arrange for the notice C o The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2015 annual general meeting of
to shareholders to be sent for annual general the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
meeting at least 20 clear business days . ARABEZE-AFRIZRRBFAGETAZELR-THEEER
before the meeting and to be sent at least RRER BB

10 clear business days for all other general

meetings.

RRRBAFAEME RAELHEASE
THELR-TEEXARRRELERN
e EEMRRASMm s MAEASE
TAES R THEEXERXEM-

The board should establish a shareholders’ C o The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and made
communication policy and review it on a it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject to review on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

EEeRNERRBARE 1LEHRat b o EZRAHIERRBARRL BEHARA AR  ZHR B E B R e
FERE B R o AR E B o

VOTING BY POLL

UREAARR

Corporate Governance Principle
The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conaucting a poll.

PEERRA

AL A ERRRR AT RE T A TRANFES -

The chairman of a meeting should ensure C o At the 2015 annual general meeting, the Chairman of the meeting explained
that an explanation is provided of the (through the Company Secretary) the detailed procedures for conducting a
detailed procedures for conducting a poll poll, and answered questions from shareholders.

and answer any questions from shareholders . RIZ-HFERFBEEAE L AR (KARNE) RENRE LT
on voting by poll. RRZFEER  WEERRRER -

AREIREERESE LARRBBARR

AAETRANFAEST CEEREEH . At the 2015 annual general meeting, the Chairman of the meeting exercised
MRZEH A RRE E IR - his power under the Company’s Articles to put each resolution set out in the

notice to be voted by way of a poll.
. RIZ-RFRRBFAG L AQEROEARAERMAE T 2N
RRREFAGRENZ EHRERETRER R

o Representatives of the Branch Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2015
annual general meeting.

o ARARHBELDRZRREZEE-S—AFREBFASHESES 'L
ERRERMER

o Since the Company’s 2010 annual general meeting, all the resolutions (other
than procedural or administrative resolutions) put to vote at the Company’s
general meetings were taken by poll.

. ARREZZ-SERRBERNGE MERARARRAG LREZ R
R (FBARFIITRIRBRRIN ABEBREFAETRR

o Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and HKEx.
. RERREREBHRARAIRAZMBY
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F1.2

F1.3

COMPANY SECRETARY
RABE

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary Is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Group Managing Director on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional development of Directors.

LRERRA

RANEEXREFE [ REERAE BREFEAREENINRY UREBEFSHRRET RANERRFELRER LEBE
FHMEEF A E R ER AR U HEFNABEIRERER -

The company secretary should be an C
employee of the company and have day-to-

day knowledge of the company’s affairs.
ARMERRARMNES HARAMNBEEE

B AR -

The board should approve the selection, C
appointment or dismissal of the company

secretary.

RAMENEE ZEFIRERLHESS

i

The company secretary should report to the C

board chairman and/or the chief executive.
ARMEERESSER L/ FTHAHE
o

The Company Secretary of the Company has been appointed in 2015 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.
ADAIZARAIMER S —RFREZME THAKE ARSHEMRH -

The Company Secretary ensures the effective conduct of board meetings and
that Board procedures are duly followed.
ARNERRES SRR ETRERESERFEGE T,

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
and Board Committee meetings.
ARNEREFEESEREETZE 882 EMARRA S ALH T
HE LEENEESHERNAT

The Company Secretary also advises on compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations in relation to the investments of the Group and keeps
the Board fully abreast of all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments.

RRMENERAEERERE RETLAMEEREN  RARAPHREE
R NRMESESGREMELE RERCEERZENER -

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board

approval in accordance with the Company’s Articles.

RANEZZERBREIBBEALR  ERMALHES SR E-

The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman whilst all
members of the Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.
ARNERRTRNEZCER MAAESEKNEYIREARMEZE
Bo
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0. Shareholders’ Right
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P. Investor Relations C There is no significant changes in the issuer’s constitutional documents during the year.
REERE FRABTAZEBERXHHEE RS-
Any significant changes in the issuer’s
constitutional documents during the year.
FRETABBERXMZ
EMEXREE-

II. RECOMMENDED BEST PRACTICES II. 2dxEEH

>

A DIRECTORS
B

107 Modoy [enuuy
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There is no recommended best practice under Section A.1 in the CG Code.
CEERTHEA DAL ERZZETH
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There is no recommended best practice under Section A.2 in the CG Code.
CEERTAEAM AT EZAZERR

There is no recommended best practice under Section A.3 in the CG Code.
CEERTHEASMAT ERERERR

There is no recommended best practice under Section A.4 in the CG Code.
CEERTFUEALGAY BRZZEFHR -

There is no recommended best practice under Section A.5 in the CG Code.
CEERTUEASTANT ERZZETR -

>
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There is no recommended best practice under Section A.6 in the CG Code.
TEEATUEACL AL ERERET R

There is no recommended best practice under Section A.7 in the CG Code.
PEERTFUEATERNL BRERETR

B.1 THE LEVEL AND MAKE-UP OF REMUNERATION AND DISCLOSURE
FWRHEENKTRAR

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The proceaure for setting policy on Executive
Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and transparent.

PEELRA

FRRERFREZNEBEREMAT WG ER  ERE R TEEREOET WAGT R TEEZN G REEE

EHWFENBE
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B.1.7

A significant proportion of executive C ° In 2015, a significant proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration has been
directors’ remuneration should link rewards structured to link rewards to corporate and individual performance.

to corporate and individual performance. . RIZ—RAF HOESNEMERTEAD L EMYERA R REARRE
HITEFNFHERRABHERARMEA #o

KGN

B.1.9

The board should conduct a regular E o The performance of the Board is best reflected by the Company’s results and
evaluation of its performance. stock price performance during the year.
ERQRTHARARSE . ARAINEREXERRERGRARBRESE 2 RE -

FINANCIAL REPORTING
MBER

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
PEELRA

EZRRTE FHREEMTEARANZE ERRAR -
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C.2

INTERNAL CONTROLS
BRI

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safequard shareholders’ investment and the Company’s
assets.

PREBEA

EZERERARANNHERRARRRZEMNARIN URERRNRERLR G EE

>

Weeyeby I — % —
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C.24

= significant control failings or

weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes or
contingencies that have had, could
have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the company’s
financial performance or conditions;
and

= HREENERERRRAERN
BREMRSEE  URALEHRER
ROGRRIRZBEANRERE
MAZERRSERERANFBER
BYERBES  AIREEERER
HEEENEAYE R

- the effectiveness of the company’s
processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rule compliance.

- REABBHB]E REF LHRA
RENBFEEAM-

The company should disclose, in the
Corporate Governance Report, a narrative
statement on how they have complied with
internal control code provisions during the
reporting period. The disclosures should also
include:
RREECEERARENASLT A REL
IR S EA A T O EP B A0 <R AR o
BRRBEARHERSE:

- the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
- BRHER R EBE AR B
BF:

- additional information to explain its
risk management processes and
internal control system;

= REARRBERRERRNHEE
ZEMBINER

In the Corporate Governance Report, the Company, in particular item C.2.1
above, discloses:
ARRARAREERRE | P (EER EXEC21H) RE

o the process used to identify, evaluate and manage the significant risks;
. WR AERERERRR KRR

o any additional information to explain its risk management processes
and internal control system;
J EREH T REARERRFRABEERFNENEH

o an acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible for the internal
control system and for reviewing its effectiveness;
. EFeRRHAEAREE RS REA R

U the process used to review the effectiveness of internal control system;
and
. Rt A B RGBT R |

o the process used to resolve material internal control defects for
significant problems disclosed in its Annual Reports and Financial
Statements.

. REBRIBREAREEARMBY RNEZ AP EEFRMER
MEREREF-
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C.25

C.2.6

= an acknowledgement by the board
that it is responsible for the internal
control system and reviewing its
effectiveness;

- Ee i A RHNBERRRA
B EEERTZHNENKRC

= the process used to review the
effectiveness of the internal control
system; and

- AR AP RS R AR
K

= the process used to resolve material
internal control defects for any
significant problems disclosed in its
annual reports and accounts.

- AN EERE LR NFTRE
EREARRENRREENNEHE
ERRBER

The company should ensure that their
disclosures provide meaningful information
and do not give a misleading impression.
ARERRARENREEENEL ME
REBANEREHEE

The company without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on
an annual basis and should disclose the
outcome of this review in the Corporate
Governance Report.
RERBEGENENAREEFRARTR
ERJNIBIR ARECEEAREAR
BREHER

N/A

TEm

The Company aims to ensure disclosures provide meaningful information and
do not give a misleading impression.

ARAHNERAEREDRAERNEN NEFETARENER-

Please refer to C.2 above for the details.
HEFLHLEXECE-

EAA 272 T

Hhedy oy 1L
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c3 AUDIT COMMITTEE
EREZRE

Corporate Governance Principle
The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will aoply financial reporting and internal control principles and
maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company's auditors.

PEERRA

EZOEHNAEFY HERR A EFERA RIS+ 5K 2 A Z A8 £ BB R (E L [ R A B BRI ZH
C.3.8 The audit committee should establish C o Please refer to C.3.7 above for the details.

a whistleblowing policy and system for . FEFLBLEXECITE

employees and those who deal with the
company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to
raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the company.
BEREZECRHEERUERZS EES
REMERABERE (MFF RAER)
AR REGE 8 SR H AR R

ARMTE MR

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
ESERANER

D.1 MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS
BRI

Corporate Governance Principle
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to management.
PREEBRA
ARAEE—HIEANEETE BT EEEEH ) FRRAEEEERENFE
There is no recommended best practice under Section D.1 in the CG Code.
TEERATFUEDIBATEEZARERR -

D.2 BOARD COMMITTEES
ESEBTHZEES

Corporate Governance Principle
Board Committees should be formed with Specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
PEELRA
EERE SR ONA TR AN ERERE BRI EEER I REE -
There is no recommended best practice under Section D.2 in the CG Code.
SEERTHEDHNY ERARERR

D.3 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
ERERBE

There is no recommended best practice under Section D.3 in the CG Code.
PERERTUEDIHNL ERARERR
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
BRRWBE

There is no recommended best practice under Section E.1 in the CG Code.
CREERFUEEITATERZZETR -

There is no recommended best practice under Section E.2 in the CG Code.
CEERTAEEMANT ERZRET R

There is no recommended best practice under Section F in the CG Code.
CEERTAEFHANTERERETH

>
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE CHART

Board of Directors

EHE

Executive Directors:
WATEE :
Lam Lung On
MEER

Kwok Ying Lan
B
Lin Longzhi
MEER
Lin Conghui
PREESE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
LR TE & 3
Gu Jiande
Ei2E
Lam Kwong Siu
MEIE

Wee HenQy Soon Chiang
E=ER

[ . S S e :‘J

—

Chairman of the Board
and Group Chief Executive Officer

BRI

HEBERAATE
Lam Lung On
MEER
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Group Executi\]e President
HATHE 2
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e

RS SR

Ernst & Young BB RSB Tel E&%: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPRREE IR Fax 8 H: +852 2868 4432
ﬁﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{EARE221E ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Yuzhou Properties Company Limited HEMNGERGERAARKRE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 200 to 330, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

(RESFHEZTMALAERLA)

RAZ BN E B 5 R 5200E 3308 &M E
BHOBRAR ([EAR]) REWBARNGA
FIEWME R A B RERBIENR2015F12A8
STHNGAUBERRAREEZZ B L FEHER
AEZR BAXEREIR GAEREHEN
eEReRER UEETESFHEMEREM
R E R

£ 5 A B R UK 3R B

H At

ERREFEAERBELSHSARM
MEBMBRE LR RES QBRI ER
ERBEEMAFHEAMBEERE  REERR
BEMEBEABES ARRENGS T BHR
RIGFEANRFRERMEBNEKRERR
it o
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

178 /4 i

AZBENE TR BBEAZBEDER TIENLES
RUZFHRAMHREELER - AZHBERE
ERZEBRREL BRIt ZINRIEEM B & - K
BB T ERARENABTRETAMEMBALE
FRAEEE
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ETEEAE WRERRTERIE UAEE
EREHAPBRRRE T FEERERR

o

B
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2016

=3

TZBMRE ZEEREVMEBRREBRED Y
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B RARIR2015F12 A3TH MBIk R EHE
ZHIEFENPBERARASRE  WEIRRE
BRREHNHERTZ BRE -

RKBFTEERAT
BE B A

BB
20163 H30H

>

Wby oy T

[11 57 30 B 0 20 TR

199

<




payrur] Aueduwio)) senaadol ] noyznx

200

Consolidated Statement of Profit or LLoss

GEEEE

Year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 A 31 AILFE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P AREBT ARBFT
REVENUE KA 5 10,375,501 7,836,633
Cost of sales $HE KA (6,666,178) (4,991,860)
Gross profit EH 3,709,323 2,844,773
Fair value gain on investment WEMENRARE
properties, net W58 14 202,942 487,130
Fair value gain on derivative financial ~ T4 &gt TE QA
instruments W & 44,583 6,334
Other income and gains H b g A R Uz 5 235,379 75,230
Selling and distribution expenses $HE Moy SERK AR (288,573) (191,541)
Administrative expenses TEAX (296,097) (228,076)
Other expenses HEmis (73,068) (127,185)
Finance costs =N 6 (349,040) (175,438)
Share of profits and losses of joint i /NI k= F o
ventures (41,965) 356
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B4 AT R 7 3,143,484 2,691,583
Income tax Frig#t 10 (1,475,294) (1,328,513)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EERE 1,668,190 1,363,070
Attributable to: A& L
Owners of the parent YNGIET SN 1,656,853 1,254,384
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR M 2 11,337 108,686
1,668,190 1,363,070
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRARAEEREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic (RMB per share) AR (BRARK) 12 0.45 0.36
Diluted (RMB per share) e (BRARE) 12 0.45 0.36




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 201544 12 A 31 HILFE ‘%;—j:: é\ é ﬁ l'lk ﬁ %‘_‘é
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 1,668,190 1,363,070
Other comprehensive loss to be REZBHEABER>ERBER
reclassified to profit or loss in Hih2WER - BINEHRBREZ
subsequent periods — Exchange ME =58
differences on translation of foreign
operations (288,857) (155,283)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ F£E2MHKFHAHE
FOR THE YEAR 1,379,333 1,207,787
Attributable to: AT & 77 JEAh
Owners of the parent B RBIHEE A 1,371,502 1,099,332
Non-controlling interests JEIZE IR M 7,831 108,455
1,379,333 1,207,787

107 R B 40) 0 0 !
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EAMBRRE

31 December 2015 20154 12 B 31 A

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AREBT ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W HE REE 13 870,632 794,624
Investment properties "EME 14 6,470,630 5,960,488
Goodwill EES 15 264,666 -
Investments in joint ventures REERQNFIEE 16 88,736 2,507,657
Deferred tax assets EETIAEE 29 412,674 252,374
Total non-current assets ERBEEREA 8,107,338 9,515,143
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Land held for property development — #F{E¥) #5234 A ik
for sale ojamp:id 17 645,673 665,462
Properties under development Ve ES 18 20,849,382 12,276,088
Properties held for sale REHERENYE 19 7,417,797 4,037,040
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B + 10 78 1 FRIE 1,459,619 984,905
Prepayments, deposits and other TERT R R I A b FE UL
receivables IR 20 2,162,582 1,678,957
Prepaid corporate income tax AR TEMEH 57,149 28,590
Prepaid land appreciation tax TEf L IR E T 151,430 19,082
Derivative financial instruments THEEMIT A 25 46,095 84,998
Restricted cash ZRRERE 21 975,525 488,765
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 21 10,973,268 9,295,977
Total current assets MENEEEE 44,738,520 29,559,864
. CURRENT LIABILITIES REBRE
g Receipts in advance TE W FIE 22 7,221,316 3,893,049
¥ Trade payables B ENFIA 23 6,296,764 3,690,128
! Other payables and accruals E B RIERERTER 24 5,854,748 3,877,582
g Interest-bearing bank and other SFERITR
: borrowings H b fE B 26 3,987,373 3,805,451
= Corporate income tax payables JEN D EFTIS 1,102,815 998,253
% Provision for land appreciation tax + b IR E R R 28 1,162,886 1,014,147
Total current liabilities MBI B EETE 25,625,902 17,278,610
202  NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 19,112,618 12,281,254
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 27,219,956 21,796,397




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 H ﬁgﬁﬁj‘f;}ﬂk(}iiﬁ
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITR
borrowings HmEE 26 10,628,867 4,860,397 /\
Senior notes BEEE 27 5,466,883 6,738,562 A
Deferred tax liabilities REBIBEE 29 882,851 807,639
B
Total non-current liabilities eI N=E gt 16,978,601 12,406,598 e
A
Net assets BEFE 10,241,355 9,389,799 ;‘g
soaf
=
EQUITY i b
Al
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREEA
the parent PEAG FE 2%
Issued capital BEITRR A 30 324,472 296,439
Reserves Gk 32 9,297,330 7,876,885
9,621,802 8,173,324 203
Non-controlling interests FERER 619,553 1,216,475 v
Total equity R 4B 10,241,355 9,389,799 \/

Lam Lung On
MEZ
Director

EF

Kwok Ying Lan
By
Director

EF




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= I\ ki 2% &R
?\;‘I‘: ] *E EIL\L ?ﬁ ij i’% Year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 A 31 AILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARREAES
Share  Statutory  Exchange Share Non-
Issued  premium surplus  fluctuation option Capital  Retained controlling Total
Notes capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BRI RE  EERH EXRD BRE FER

53 23 BBk 1 1 B EXHE RENE @t B BRAR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Note 30) Note 32() Note 321i)
CiE:2 (i
(3+30) 320) 32())
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A1H 296,439 851,235 62,642 272,040 2,178 33677 5843421 7,361,632 110,273 7,471,905
Profit for the year FEAE . - - - - - 1254384 1,254,384 108,686 1,363,070
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZERR:
for the year:
Exchange differences on NEBIREY
translation of foreign EXZER
operations . . - (15508) - - o I55089) 031) (155289
Total comprehensive income/  FE 2z
(lss) for the year (58) 2% - - - (155052 - o 1054384 1099332 108455 1,207,787
Deemed partial disposal of RIEDHLERT
interests in subsidiaries BREEIE
without loss of control WBAR R - - - - - 114,253 - 114253 007,747 1,112,000
Finel 2013 dvidend 013EFBIRE R - - - - - (0479 - {o4T9)
Equity-settled share option NERETHEREL
arrangements ZH 31 - - - - 2,886 - - 2,886 - 2,886

At 31 December 2014 and 20145128318 &
1 January 2015 20151 A1B 296,439 446,456 62,642 116,988 5064 147,930 7,097,805 8,173,324 1216475 9,389,799

Profit for the year FEHE - - - - - - 1656853 1,656,853 11,337 1,668,190
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZESE:
for the year:
Exchange differences BNEBREL
on translation of EXER
foreign operations - - - (285351) - - - (285351) (3,506) (288,857

Total comprenensive income/ B 2EME/

(loss) for the year (BB EE - - - (285351) - - 1656853 1,371,502 7831 1,379,333
_ Interim 2014 dividend 0145 RERE - (442,687) - - - - - (42687) S (u2,87)
S% Issues of shares BRH 20 2808 59,139 - - - - - 63172 - 617
% Acquisition of non-controling M8 3EiZ MR 5

E interests . . . - - (107.469) ~ (07468 (629253  (736,721)
o Incorporation of a subsidiary ~ #E A — RN B LA - - - - - - - - 24,500 24,500

% Equity-settled share option IR HEREZ
= amangements Zi 31(a) - - - - 3,959 - - 3,959 - 3959
At 31 December 2015 "2015F 127318 324,472 598,908 62,642 (168,363 9,023 40462 8,754,668" 9,621,802 619,553 10,241,355

204

RMB9,297,330,000 (2014: RMB7,876,885,000) in the consolidated {55 A R #9,297,330,0007T (20144 : A R #

v * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBEERLEREVBMRRARFPHINEGRE
\/ statement of financial position. 7,876,885,0007T ) °




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN N =
Year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 201544 12 A 31 HILFE "ﬁ';i‘: ] iﬁ» ét} {JIL H %‘_:(:
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®FTR ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEEELEDN

ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before tax B 5 BT R E 3,143,484 2,691,583
Adjustments for: FATIEBEHAE:
Finance costs & A 6 152,269 175,438
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (85,110) (53,744)
Depreciation and amortisation E REH 7 42,655 24,086
Fair value gain on derivative MESRIARARE 2
financial instruments LG (44,583) (6,334) S
Loss on disposal of items of LEME - - BE K B
property, plant and equipment REIEEREER 7 - 37 5
Loss on extinguishment of HiEcmaENER b
financial liabilities 196,771 - E
Loss on disposal of HEREYENEIRF5E
investment properties, net 7 - 5,398
Loss on deemed disposal of R EIEHI R AR VE T &
subsidiaries upon loss of g NS e o) == bess
control, net 7 - 119,825
Gain on bargain purchase of HEWE-—ERBAT
a subsidiary, net of loss on ek MBREFFTER 205
remeasurement of a pre-existing —RH&aERa
interest in a joint venture BEAERZEIE 34(a) (128,356) -
Share of losses/(profits) of i ]
joint ventures &iE, CaFl) 41,965 (356)
Fair value gain on investment KREMENRARE
properties, net W s 58 14 (202,942) (487,130)
Equity-settled share option LA % 4 45 5 B e
expense F 31(a) 3,959 2,886
3,120,112 2,471,689
Increase in properties under TEEEIZ
development (3,649,471) (6,165,110)
(Increase)/decrease in properties held = {ESH & R G ) 2
for sale (1#m) /m (1,912,187) 2,262,878
Increase in prepayments for W B - T8 A5 SRIB 0
acquisition of land (1,150,029) (606,215)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  JENTE - 24 & E fth fE UG
deposits and other receivables SRR A (3 0) 1,045,704 (109,847)
Increase in receipts in advance TEUR FRIELE AN 1,145,680 507,788
Increase in trade payables B 5 e SRIBE N 1,690,466 1,308,961
Increase in other payables and o Ath JE A~ 5/ I8 &
accruals fETE A& AN 1,806,730 2,570,249
Cash generated from operations KETHEANIRS 2,097,005 2,240,393
Interest received B UH B 85,110 53,744
Interest paid [=ENE/ESS (1,295,125) (1,129,863)
PRC corporate income tax paid B EEETEH (894,073) (403,076)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B8R E g E R (460,746) (413,427)
Net cash flows (used in)/from EES (FTAR) EEZ

operating activities HeEREFRE (467,829) 347,771




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EAHARER Year ended 31 December 2015 &% 2015 4 12 A 31 HIL4FE
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iix=2 ARET ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETZHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease in loans to joint ventures A& ERRIREZEFR D 312,071 1,027,529
Increase in land held for property BIEMEREZEERS
development for sale A9 - 38 A0 17 - (85,150)
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment ®BIEE 13 (111,575) (54,807)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries upon 7 2k 2 122 il #E B 48 1
loss of control &S M A A 35 - (714,393)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB B B A A (880,944) (330,632)
Additions of investment properties RNEREYE 14 (233,964) (518,284)
Increase in restricted cash SR B3R &N (486,760) (113,079)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMSRIA
investment properties - 16,932
Net cash flows used in investing REFHMARSRE
activities HEE (1,401,172) (771,884)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHEEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Capital contributions from non- FEIERARER 2
controlling shareholders BAREA 24,500 1,112,000
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y B8 FE % A% 25 (736,721) -
A New bank and other borrowings FERITREMEE 9,782,456 4,627,407
Repayment of bank and other BERITEEMEE
. borrowings (4,087,894) (2,461,798)
£ Proceeds from issue of senior notes ~ #{T{B L EE A5 A - 3,317,545
igo Redemption of senior notes ERELERE (1,638,112) -
?E* Proceed from issuance of shares BITRM TS A 623,172 -
¢ Dividends paid EANY:ES) (442,687) (404,779)
é Net cash flows from financing BB EBEEN
E activities RERNEFR 3,524,714 6,190,375
- NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B nFEE 1,655,713 5,766,262
206 Cash and cash equivalents FUReNIASEFED
at beginning of year 9,295,977 3,507,940
v Effect of foreign exchange rate fER B e BT
\/ changes, net 21,578 21,775
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRERERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 10,973,268 9,295,977
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and shares of which are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
located at 4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KKY1-1110, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located
at Units 4905-06, 49th Floor, The Centre, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
property developments, property investments, property
management and hotel operations in mainland of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”)
and Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, Mr. Lam Lung On and Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan, both being directors of the Company, are
considered as the controlling shareholders of the Company.

2wl R EEE R

BMHERNDERAE (TEARF]) TR
HAEeRSIMATHERTEERR AR
MREEBERGABER LR ([HABBR
FT)) AR 70 o AR R s B R A 7
4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden
Road, George Town, Grand Cayman
KKY1-1110, Cayman Islands - & £ & & *
TZEEMILABTAPIREF/RKEBEFHH
IRH L 49124905-06F ©

FA-ARBREMBAR (FRHE[A%
B ) EERREARKMEARE ([HE]
HPBERE)RBENREDEFRE Y
ERE MEEBUNBEEEB-

EERR ARBEFMERTERSR
WL HAR BAR AR R -
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

1.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

ZN

R ES N 3C T

KA 2B H
AEXZMBARZFHBWT:

follows:
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HEMAL/ ERR BREARMEREK/
ARER mEnLY ERBEAEE ARREEER TEEH
Direct Indirect
B B
Xiamen Yaozhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,800,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EMENEHERBERAG" (M) B/ REAR AK%10,800,0007 - 100% MERE
Xiamen Gangyi Real Estate Marketing PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 - 100% Marketing
Agent Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EMEEREL BRBERA (M) T/ REAR 7 15,000,0007 - 100% B
Xiamen Yuzhou Commercial Investment PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 - 100% Property management
& Management Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EMSNEEREAERER DA’ (M) T/ REAR 7 15,000,0007 - 100% MEEE
Xiamen Diyuan Bonded Storage and PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development
Distribution Co., Ltd. # (Note)
ERBIRHEERER AR (M) B/ RE AR AR #20,000,0007C - 100% MERE
Xiamen Kim International Realty PRC/Mainland China US$113,600,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EMeBRMERRERAA" (M) e/ B KR 113,600,000 7T - 100% NERE
Xiamen Richville Development Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China US$55,000,000 - 100% Property development
EFEERHEREBRAR (M) B/ REARE 55,000,000% 7T - 100% MER%E
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2AalRk&EBER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES WEE 2 E Z &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ EME BEARMEREK/
AEER REmLE SRBRAEE ARREEER TEEH
Direct Indirect
B 5k
Xiamen Gangyi Real-Estate Co., Ltd.  (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB160,000,000 - 100% Property development
EMEEEEERAA" (M) B/ E KR AR #160,000,00070 - 100% NERE
Xiamen Fengzhou Real-Estate Co., Ltd. (Note) PRC/Mainland China HK$18,000,000 - 100% Property development
EFMENEZERLR (M) B/ KR 718,000,000 - 100% mERE
Xiamen Yuzhou Hotel Invest & PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 - 100% Hotel operation
Manage Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
EMBNEEREERERRRC (M) B/ E AR AR #400,000,0007 - 100% RS
Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 - 100% Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Xiamen Yuzhou
Group Realty Invest Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EMENBEMEREERLA B/ E KR A H#1,500,000,0007T - 100% MERE
(7178 EMBMEEHEREBRAR) "
(5E)
Xiamen Skyplaz Realty & PRC/Mainland China US$25,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EFEXREHERBEERAG (F) HE/REAKE 25,000,000% 7T - 100% ELE

>
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 26l Rk&EBEER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES WE 25 2 &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ EZMR BRETRAZRE/
DAREE BEMBH EfRAEE ARRELER TEEH
Direct Indirect
B EF:3
Hefei Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China 1S$90,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. * (Note)
AESNEHERBERAF" (M) RE/REARE 90,000,000 7T - 100% NER%E
Xiamen Huagiao City Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EREBIRNEREARLR (M) RE/REARE A& 20,000,000 - 100% NER%E
Anhui Overseas City Construction PRC/Mainland China US$3,000,000 - 100% Property investment
& Development Co., Ltd. * (Note)
A ZHEBHRRIBRERLA (M) RE/REARE 3,000,000% 7T - 100% NERE
L Xiamen Yuzhou Group Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB116,064,000 - 100% Property investment
§§ EFBNERRNEBRATFe (F) mE/ mEARE AR¥116,064,0007C - 100% nERE
=2
B
22‘3 Shanghai Kangtai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development
; g Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
g FERREHERBERAFC (M) B/ E KR AR #30,000,0007C - 100% MEFRE
c
g Shanghai Jinyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
- Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
HESBREHEREERAR® (M) B/ RE AR ARE%100,000,0007 - 100% nERE
210
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. Al Rk&EBER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W& 25 2 &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
SR/ EZMR BETREARRE/
DAAEE BEMwH ZMBRAEE ARRELER TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE GF:3
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
Investment Co. @ (Note)
HEBNEREREERARC (M) RE /P E AR AR 100,000,000 - 100% VELES
Shanghai Yanhai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB48,450,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
TERORMERZEREREMCAR (M) HE/REAE AR #48,450,0007C - 100% VELES
Shanghai Liyade Property Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB42,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
FENEGREEEBRAAC (M) R/ P E AR AR #42,000,0007 - 100% NER%E
Shanghai Yuzhou Hotel Management PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100% Hotel management
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
HEBMBEERERARC (Fi) ME/ mEARE AR %2,000,0007C - 100% EEER
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property management
BNNERBERAF® (M) B/ RE AR AR 50,000,007 - 100% NRER
Xiamen Yuzhou Property PRC/Mainland China RMB23,600,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
EMBNREREERAR® (M) HE /B AR AR #23,600,0007C - 100% ESEES
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. GNEB-3XC
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W& 25 2 &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ EZMR BRETRAZRE/
DAREE BEMBH SMBRAEE ARRELER TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE EF:3
Fujian Yingfeng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property investment
Investment Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
REBEMEREBRAF® (M) RE/REARE AR #50,000,0007C - 100% NERE
Fujian Wanlong Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
REERNEEERBERLRC (M) RE/REARE AR #5,000,00070 - 100% NEER
Hefei Ludong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
AEEREHERBEREALRC (M) B/ RE AR A& 80,000,000 - 100% NER%E
_ Hefei Kangli Realty Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development
§ ARTEBELERAA (KiE) RE/REARE AR 20,000,007 - 100% nERE
=1
£t
g Goastal Greenland Development PRC/Mainland China 1US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development
2 (Fujian) Limited * (Note)
é nEREFERR (BR)ERAA (M) HE /B AR 10,000,000% 7T - 100% UELES
c
g Xiamen Shunzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 100% Property development
- Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
EMRNEHEREERAR () HE /B AR K #:800,000,0007 - 100% NERE




31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
W B ok W sk

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 26l R&EBER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES WEE 2 E Z &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ ERER BRETREAZRE/
DAAEE BENLHY EMBRAEE ANTEEER TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE EF:3
Xiamen Yuzhou Seaview Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Yuzhou Seaview”) @ (Note)
EMBNERHEHEERRR B/ E AR AR #1,500,000,00070 - 100% NERE
(IB&MEs]) e (M)
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
HEENEHERBERARC (M) B/ KR AR #100,000,0007C - 100% NERE
Shanghai Nankai Realty PRC/Mainland China RMB90,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Ltd.  (Note)
LREIBERXREERARC (M) B/ KR AR #90,000,0007T - 100% NERE
Shanghai Kangyi Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMBA48,714,300 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
TERREHERBERAAC (M) B/ KR AR¥48,714,3007T - 100% NERE
Yuzhou Properties (Beiing) Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
BME (L) BRARS () B/ E AR AR #100,000,0007 - 100% NERE
Yuzhou Properties (Quanzhou) Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100% Property development
BMuwE (FM) BRARC (K3) R/ E AR AR 150,000,000 - 100% NER%E
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 2alk&EBEER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W& 25 2 &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ ERER BRTRBRRE/
ARER BEMHY EMRAEE ARRELER TEER
Direct Indirect
B EF:3
Xin Yi Fang Tian (Quanzhou) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Trading of building
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. * (Note) materials
MHAR (M) BEMHERAF) (FiF) B/ REARE A& 10,000,000 - 100% EBERENH
Tianjin Yuzhou Jinhai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100% Property development
Investment Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
RESNZFHEREER AR (M) RE/REARE A& #200,000,0007 - 100% NER%E
Xiamen Xiang'anwan Baseball and PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 76.25% Property development
Softball Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (Note)
ERAREESRELREFRAR (M) RE/REARE A& 10,000,000 - 76.25% NER%E
_ Xiamen Gangyi Communication Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100% Property development
§ EFBRBAERAT (K5) HE /B AR AR #5,000,0007 - 100% ELES
=1
£t
g Xiamen Junyu Trade Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Trading of construction
% materials
=]
é EFEFESERAAC (F) HE /B AR AR 50,000,0007C - 100% BEREMH
c
é Xiamen Xin Cheng Li Da Trading Co., Ltd. © (Note) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Trading of construction
- materials
EFEREEHRRARC (Fi) HE /B AR AR#20,000,0007 - 100% EEREMH
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. 26l R&EBER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W& 2 B Z &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMKYL/ EZMR BRETREARRE/
DAREE BEmwH ZMBRAEE ARRELER FTEEH
Direct Indirect
B G}
Longyan Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
REBNEHERBERAAC (M) R/ P E AR AR 500,000,000 - 100% NER%E
Anhui Shengtian Property Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100% Property development
ZHBREEERDAC (M) HE /B AR AK#150,000,0007 - 100% MERE
Anhui Shenghe Property Co. Ltd.  (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property development
ZHRNEZBRAF® (ML) B/ KR AR #10,000,0007T - 100% mERE
Huainan Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB16,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note)
EERNEHEREERAF® (M) HE/ KR AR %16,000,0007T - 100% NERE
Yuzhou Properties (Shanghai) PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited @ (Note)
BNEE(LE)BRAR® () B/ KR AR #600,000,0007 - 100% NERE
Fujian Yu Gang Construction Materials PRC/Mainland China RMB18,290,700 - 100% Trading of building
Company Limited * (Note) materials
RESBRAMBERAR (F3) B/ KR AR #18,200,7007T - 100% EEREMH
Xiamen Rungang Property Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB18,348,300 - 100% Property investment
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
EMEBREEEARAR (M) B/ KR AR %18,348,3007T - 100% NERE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. A6l R&EBEER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES W E 2 B Z &R )
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ ERR ERTRARRE/
ARER mENLY SR BAEE ANTEEER TEER
Direct Indirect
B &
Xiamen Gangzhou Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 - 100% Property development
EMmEMERAR () B/ KR AR #300,000,0007 - 100% MERE
Xiamen Yuzhou City Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,680,000,000 - 100% Property development
EFMSMAARAG () E/ B KR AR 1,680,000,0007C - 100% NERE
Xiamen Honggang Cultural and PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100% Property development
Creative Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
EFRLESLRIBER AR (Ki) B/ B AR AR #1,000,0007 - 100% NERE
Xiamen Yihai Consulting Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100% Property development
EMREHEARAT (M) hE /AR AR 1,000,007 - 100% ESE
=
5 Hefei Shunzhou Realty Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 - 49%" Property development
g M1t »
s (*Hefei Shunzhou”) * (Note)
EE AEZNEZERAR ([AEAM]) - (M) B/ PEAE AR #1,200,000,0007C - 49% mERE
o
E Fujian Big World Huaxia Real PRC/Mainland China RMB1,110,000,000 - 100% Property development
% Estate Development Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
é BRAtREREMESRAR® () B/ hEAE AR %1,110,000,0007C - 100% B
(=}
Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,800,000,000 - 100% Property development
Eastern Town Co., Ltd. * (Note)
BNEE (GR)RABRAR" (Ki) B/ RE AR AR #1,800,000,00070 - 100% MER%E
Great Bonus Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% Property development
EEARAA 6 BEIT - 100% NER%E
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CORPORATE AND GROUP AENE S B2 3¢ )
INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES WEAR &R (4)
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Equity interest
registration paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/ ZMR BETREAZRE/
DAAEE BEmwH SMBRAEE ARRELER TEEH
Direct Indirect
B EF:3
Nanjing Bozhou Real Estate Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB1,880,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. ®Note)
ARENEHEREERARC (M) HE /B AR AK¥1,880,000,0007C - 100% ESEES

All the principal subsidiaries disclosed above are not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

#

@

Note:

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

Registered as domestic limited liability companies under the
PRC law.

Registered as Sino-foreign equity entities under the PRC law.

The Group considers that it controls Hefei Shunzhou even
though it owns less than 50% of the equity interests in Hefei
Shunzhou. Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Hefei Shunzhou, the board of directors is the
highest authority in the management and the Group is entitled
to appoint a majority of directors in the board of directors
of Hefei Shunzhou. Except for certain protective clauses
which require unanimous consent of all directors, all major
decisions including operating and financing activities of Hefei
Shunzhou are being determined by a simple majority vote in
the board meetings. The Group is able to control and direct
the operating and financing activities of Hefei Shunzhou.

The English names of these companies represent the best
effort made by management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

EXHBENREIEMBARNIFHEE
KT BB LK BRI 2 Eoftb
B AREZ -

#  BETEZZIMAIEBEERE-

@ RETEEEZMATHMAEREMERF -

* RETEZETIMATIIGERDERE-

A RRERR BEEEASREMORN
50% 2 Bt - EL 3 & A 5 N PR A 15 1) 4% -
RIBE N 2 BEEIRAM AR &
EERESEREBARNEEEREE
BIEFNEZESBESR [RE TRER
RAZREZ—HREBIN GIEFMEAT
BERAR (BEEERMBEDY) DA
EER NGBS ERERE - AKE
Be SRt K fe R A B SR B AR & N BE 7%
Ao

M ARZEFARLARTMEMERRS
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1 W%

HEHBRRDBEEEGHAOMLE ([F
BEREAE]) BB BV BREER
(IBAMBREEAN]) (BEMBENER
MR EEL  BEGF LR ([HB G
HERDEZRE) BEARGARAINE
BRRED 2 WEREMBRE - WEH
WRIIIRBELKALRE EREWE
EOTHE BT AARREFE/RIN Bt
FWHHREAARE (TARE ) IE KR
HRBIEBPEIN MBEEHCEAEZR
e TE (ARETT) -

Gadil
REMBHRERBEARRRENB QR
E2015F12A31 B IEFE M Bk 3k o MY
BARAAARERXEEEINER
(BRREEBEEER) EAEEHL2HEE
HREEMSHAIZOMAZERSZE
BEFA RS BEIRERRMES (AR
EEERTRAERENAETEREHRAM
EBRIBTITEE ) ) R B 5% B - BIES
P o

WARFERAFMEERIRREERAK
ZHRRYBLENEF > BIAREER
HEEEEHAUREHRNENIRS
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@ HEEHRHMEEFAEANGD
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits/
accumulated losses, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 @itk R EHHMEH
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of
employee service, for example, employee contributions
that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of
salary. If the amount of the contributions is independent
of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted
to recognise such contributions as a reduction of
service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Group does not have defined benefit
plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

o HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria
in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of
operating segments that have been aggregated
and the economic characteristics used to
assess whether the segments are similar. The
amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to
be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the
chief operating decision maker. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

° HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 38 /ntangible Assets: Clarifies
the treatment of gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation of
revalued items of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the revaluation model for the measurement
of these assets.

° HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity that
provides key management personnel services) is
a related party subject to related party disclosure
requirements. In addition, an entity that uses a
management entity is required to disclose the
expenses incurred for management services. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not receive any management
services from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

° HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself. The amendment is applied prospectively.
The amendment has had no impact on the Group
as the Company is not a joint arrangement and
the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

HKFRS 183 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be
applied not only to financial assets and financial
liabilities, but also to other contracts within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively from the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS
13 was initially applied. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.

HKAS 40 /nvestment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or a
business combination. The amendment is applied
prospectively for acquisitions of investment
properties. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group did not acquire any
investment properties during the year and so this
amendment is not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial
year. The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS Investment Entities: Applying the
10, HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception’
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable

and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16  Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
and HKAS 41
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 (2011) Financial Statements’
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs!
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

s Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date is determined but is available for
early adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

(@)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(c)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an
acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant principles for business
combinations in HKFRS 3. The amendments also
clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation
is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments
do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party. The
amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial
interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA
issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a
one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
cClarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may
be disaggregated;

@iy that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

()  Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The amendments are not expected
to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based
method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-
current assets.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of a joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exists.

Notes to Financial Statements
W % s

%1@%*%%2?%%
i)

fi
BimE

EREHENF1HR LB BGTE
R38R 2 B8R BB BB G T %R
F165 R A B4R ZE385R A &Y
A BRI B R EER (BE
BE—ID) EEREEN M IEB
BEAEEBRNCOENZAESR
Bt WaEZTERRITEDE &
BEREE WEEEEEBRNER
THARBHEREE -ZSETR
15 FE R - TA HAZ B8 RT 201641 A
1B ERMNE ST EHAREBN IS
RARKRBEETMTE FRRAN
SEYWARE ARG EFEHIERS
BEMFTE-

=

24 FEGFBOEME

ReEBARRE
BEAREBARTE YR HERX
FRZEHIENETATBEHEERARNEE
FEHEEREN  KREHIEZRAOHE
BIARAT AR ES - ARZEHIERE
BRASEREAEFIENTOT L —
HRABHRE R

AEERALABNRE NEAKRERE
RE SRR A EEFERTMAMERE
RERE B IR R IR -

HRAEEFEENEMNTAUNSHBRS
HEITHHE  UFEE B

IS

1037 R0 B40) 30 0 e

227



Notes to Financial Statements
W ok M sk

31 December 2015 20154 12 B 31 A

>

> 110doy] renuuy

¢10g
poyuur| Ateduioy) sﬁmadmd noyzng

228

<

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHRME 9

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

RAEBENEKE (8

AEBMEHASARKEELERLME
BAURES B AL BRXEREAR LS
Erzsko loh WRARARMERSE
BRALREE HAEMeNGAES
FPHERERL T AED ((EH) - &
E@BEEASAFNRHELN RS R
HREBEUAAEBNALATNRES
YIS MM ASB RIS EEE
WEEEERIRS - WA SRR EE
MEEDH AEREERA S AFIMIRE

-5 -

$%a 0 kA
EBAastINKBEEAR BE2RETS
NEBHHAAENE RN ERLE
BrrEEEENRBRMz  E N
AU T R AREN BB REAS
[ 31T DASR B U B T 42 1) 2 B AN g 2
M- EREBHBMS A REREE
AR ESRAR MR T Al B B I E R R
B A EBRERREAARDZLM T %
BABRNEBREFIRLOIDIEFEE R
WUWIE TS 2 SRR S o SR IR R a2 —
PDEAMEBD R ASENE - WERAR
EERIRFE-




31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
W % s

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHREME 9

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
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either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the FTESRAEZMISEAREETEAN :;ﬁ
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous MG -EESBBENAABNERTISZ ?ﬁ
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most HEAEENBETERMANBRITE =
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. (BREMS2EERBESENSELSERN
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the #=ITE) °
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest. 231

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into EEMEEMNANBEEBEENLTEHER v
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic %Luﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ’ﬂﬂim&ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by ZEERETHREREGS REEAED

selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
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in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are BUHEFAEAAENGEERE UWEEF
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant RHEEABEEGASBERZERSEAT

observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHRME 9

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
investment properties, properties under development,
properties held for sale, land held for property development
for sale, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

AR EEE o)
FAAREREBERETERRENEE
BABNERYAAEHEEETEBE
KR B 8 A B R A T B A fo (B B
WoosE

—H - ENBEREERABERER
MmIZERE CREFHE)

F-H — ERNYAREHEMNFTEE
AWABR (ERAER) &
EE&HABENGEELZE

EF= — ERNERIAEAENFTEE
RO BRREEH AR
B ETA

HIRE B EER B RRERNEER
BEMES AKEEARNSHREHHEELE
BEMTHEIB(EREAREAESEE
MEBEANZEERASR ETRE
BEEBLANTREHNER-

I 2 R & W
WERRBRIFERE iMFEREEE
TFERENR(TREREME T
ME - BIEHERENYE  FIEMERE
HERGEH T BEEMBEERSRE
E)FEedtEEn KEeE  EEMNT
ek %E&é{?_}zfﬁigiﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
BHALBEBRHEN A ZESEME
Wt AR EEMETE RIZEENLTE
ERABELBYNEMEELEEMAR
MR EBERTAIKEEEZE
EFBReELSBMERT-




31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
W % s

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

)

(V)

(vi)

(i)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of lease
terms and 20 years

Leasehold land and buildings

Over the shorter of lease
terms and 5 years

Leasehold improvements

QOver the shorter of lease
terms and 20 years

Hotel properties

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years

Yacht 20 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents a hotel property under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Property under construction or development for future use as
an investment property is classified as investment property
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction will
be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the period of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development
of a self-constructed investment property, any difference
between the fair value of the property at the completion
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use and its then carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHREME @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of total land and building costs attributable to
the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as
other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as other expenses in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHRME @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
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later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in ij
the statement of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS ARG E

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial SRMEE(K—HEMEEN—HBozk—

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily HRESREEN—Ho (WER) )EE 243

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of the consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, senior notes, and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

(@) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

(b)  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive, and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

24 FEGHBERME a0

Pt 3 B

TSR BIE AR BIE RIEEBIE - A RR
1835 DA SME R 408 B KBTS BER B2 AS
B IR E A 2 E AR B RS
R

AYRBEERBE KA RAEEZE
PIEBRNBITRERED  RENKRS
HHERBDRMKELIDBHNHHE
(BRRBED)) BB RRE B A
XN TFRBEOEEE-

RERRERHESERE EERBENIH
HEEHNPBREDHRE SR ZENA
BERUEZRE NABAHEECHER
e

ARG R ZREREERESR
(RN

s HREINTHER-ERH (FEH
B TNEELREMELLNR
SR H G A HK RN B E R
TRREENRELERARGERN: &

s ABRWEBAREAEZEAREIEME
R ERMEER (AR ERMEE
MR XS MEREEER
AR R KSR AT R N =) BRI




31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
W % s

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@

from the sale of completed properties, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the buyers, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the completed properties, that
is when the construction of the relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have been
delivered to the buyers pursuant to the sale agreement,
and the collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured;

from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

hotel revenue from room rentals, food and beverage
and other ancillary services, when the services have
been rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEFHHRME 9

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries and joint ventures are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DIVIDENDS

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB. The
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group’s operations are mainly
in the PRC, the use of RMB as the presentation currency is
more appropriate for the presentation of the Group’s results
and financial position.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising from settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or l0ss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the Company and
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EE e AR

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Classification between investment properties
and properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management in determining whether
a property is designated as an investment property or a
property held for sale. The Group considers its intention of
holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted for as
properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after its completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets
if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties developed for sale are transferred
to properties held for sale and are stated at cost, while
the properties developed to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to investment properties and are
subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EE e A E R

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015
was HK$264,666,000 (2014: Nil). Further details are given in
note 15.

Estimation of net realisable value of properties
under development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling price
less selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion
(if any), which are estimated based on the best available
information.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allocation of construction cost on properties
under development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related
to the development of a phase are recorded as the cost
of such phase. Costs that are common to each phase are
allocated to each phase based on the saleable floor area of
each phase as a percentage of the total saleable floor area of
the entire project. The cost of the unit sold is determined by
the floor area in sgq.m. sold during the year multiplied by the
average cost/sq.m. of that particular phase of the project.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to CIT in the PRC. As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for
LAT is based on management’s best estimates according to
its understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and any differences will have impact on the
land appreciation tax expense and the related provision in the
period in which the differences realise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for provision of land
appreciation tax and fair value adjustments from acquisition
of subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction are
revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market value,
existing use basis by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date are used.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the property development segment engages in the
development and sale of properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in properties
for their rental income potential and/or for capital
appreciation;

4.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) the property management segment engages in the
provision of property management services;

(d) the hotel operation segment engages in the operation
of a hotel; and

(e) the others segment comprises corporate income and
expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income and finance costs are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid
corporate income tax, prepaid land appreciation tax,
derivative financial instruments, restricted cash, and cash and
cash equivalents as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, corporate income tax payables,
provision for land appreciation tax and deferred tax liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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— B
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &% % i & ¥ (s
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E2015F12A31B L FE
Property Property Property Hotel
development investment  management operation Others Total
MERR WERE NEER BIELE Hits @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Segment revenue: DEHWBA
Sales to external customers MINPE PR A EE R 10,157,504 79,651 122,134 16,212 - 10,375,501
Other income and gains Hip A R 140,419 458 5,925 3,467 - 150,269
Total B 10,297,923 80,109 128,059 19,679 - 10,525,770
Segment results SHBEHE 3,221,210 224,529 (3,692) (428) (34,205) 3,407,414
Reconciliation: B
Interest income SN 85,110
Finance costs AR (349,040
Profit before tax BrEiRIAE 3,143,484
Income tax FEH (1,475,294)
Profit for the year FEHE 1,668,190
Segment assets THEE 34,452,496 6,857,819 120,040 287,946 2,680,781 44,399,082
Reconcilation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables #1378 & & U 5t (4,169,365)
Corporate and other unallocated assets (¥ R EM AN EEE 12,616,141
/\ Total assets EEBE 52,845,858
A Segment liabilities AEE 17,849,711 458,159 78,534 28,223 5,127,566 23,542,193
o Reconciliation: k-
; g Elimination of intersegment payables i & 7 &6 & fE (3% (4,169,365)
= Corporate and other unallocated CEREMAIEEE
3 liabilities 23,231,675
@
-5 Total liabilties afies 42,604,503
o Q
Q ——
2 Other segment information: HitpEHEH:
g Depreciation nE 12,797 14,324 3,248 5 12,281 42,655
g Capital expenditure” EREX 14,044 237,817 848 91,901 929 345,530
i‘ Fair value gain on investment properties 1% & ¥ % A E K - 202,942 - - - 202,942
Share of losses of joint ventures EEaERRER 41,965 - - - - 41,965
Investments in joint ventures RAEERFIRE 88,736 - - - - 88,736
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * EARXBIEABYE WEREH &

development for sale.

<

equipment, investment properties and land held for property
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

gEFWEHR @0

HE2014FE12A31A LEE

Property Property Property Hotel
development investment management operation Others Total
MmERE MERE MEER BIEEE it @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Segment revenue: DEBA:
Sales to external customers MNP P EHMHER 7,680,661 51,544 88,245 16,183 - 7,836,633
Other income and gains HAA R s 17,470 512 3,504 - - 21,486
Total ko] 7,698,131 52,056 91,749 16,183 - 7,868,119
Segment results EET | 2,353,216 500,207 (11,534) (160) (37,542) 2813277
Reconcilation: HiE-
Interest income FIBHA 53,744
Finance costs BA R (175,438)
Profit before tax BB A 2,691,583
Income tax i (1,328,513)
Profit for the year FEHE 1,363,070
Segment assets AHEE 34,262,389 9,265,810 198,045 232,904 4,284,310 48,243,458
Reconcilation: k-
Elimination of intersegment receivables #4726 & JE 43¢ (19,338,237)
Corporate and other unallocated assets 1% £tk DB & E 10,169,786
Total assets AEBE 39,075,007
Segment liabilities AHEE 23,934,681 1,046,632 157,781 42,103 5,617,799 30,798,996
Reconcilation: Hik-
Elimination of intersegment payables i & 7 &0 & & < 3% (19,338,237)
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMANEEE
liabilities 18,224,449
Total liabilities BEEE 29,685,208
Other segment information: HtAHEH:
Depreciation ne 6,422 96 3,041 7,922 6,605 24,086
Capital expenditure* BARHY 119,726 514,610 1,372 13,976 8,557 658,241
Fair value gain on investment properties & & ¥ % A G2 - 487,130 - - - 487,130
Share of profits of joint ventures (LA AR TS 356 - - - - 356
Investments in joint ventures REBARIRE 2,507,657 - - - - 2,507,657

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, investment properties and land held for property

development for sale.

N EXRAXBEREYE BERRE K
EMERFENEREHE RGN L -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Geographical information is not presented since over 90% of
the Group’s revenue from external customers is generated
in Mainland China and over 90% of the segment assets of
the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the presentation of geographical
information would provide no additional useful information to
the users of these financial statements.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER

During the current and prior years, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue represents the gross proceeds from the sale of
properties, gross rental income from investment properties,
property management fee income and gross revenue from
hotel operation, all net of business tax, value-added tax and
surcharges, during the year.

gETWEHR @

i & & B

P 70 7K 22 B 3190% 1 51 2B B g A 7R 6 o
A N E90% M D EEE EM K F B A
oMW EESHEER -EHi - FER
B2y RESTEREE LY %R
REEAEBRANER -

A - A EREFHEH
RAFERE—FE WmA G RE—S
HEFXFHRAEREBRABEY
10%3 A L

WA 3l A K g

WARFAMEHEASHRBEE RE
VMEBESWA DEREBEWALARE
JERREBRA (IR EER  RERK
B IR IR R )
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

5. WA H AU A Kk % s

AEBHUA - B RS 2T E

is as follows: HIE -
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff 5 AR®T ARMEF T
Revenue KA
Sale of properties LES R 10,157,504 7,680,661
Rental income from investment KREFREMENES A
properties 79,651 51,544
Property management fee income YEEREBUA 122,134 88,245
Hotel operation income B IS &I 16,212 16,183
10,375,501 7,836,633
Other income and gains Habg A & WS
Bank interest income IRITF B U A 85,110 53,744
Rental income from properties REFHEHEMENES
held for sale A 6,027 4,981
Gain on bargain purchase of HERE—HENBARZ
a subsidiary, net of loss e MBREFFHE
on remeasurement of a pre-existing R —H&E R ARIEH
interest in a joint venture of w2 BEARE
RMB105,210,000 (2014: Nil) 105,210,0007T (2014
FE) 34(a) 128,356 -
Others HAth 15,886 16,505
235,379 75,230
FINANCE COSTS 6. Hh#E WA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB AR DT -
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR®BT ARMBF T
Interest on bank loans, RITEF At ERRE
other loans and senior notes SEBERF B 1,299,240 1,159,238
Less: Interest capitalised B BEAREFE (1,146,971) (983,800)
152,269 175,438
Loss on early redemption of RATERELEEE 2 EE
senior notes 27(a) 196,771 -
349,040 175,438
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. B Bt wi A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBERBRTBTFE AR A TS EEZ
1S
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR%T ARBF T
Cost of properties sold EEMERR 6,535,982 4,907,230
Cost of services provided Pt AR 7 2 A 7R 130,196 84,630
Depreciation e 13 42,655 24,086
Minimum lease payments under KEHEE THRERE
operating leases (NN 16,797 7,230
Loss on deemed disposal of RAREEHERRIELS
subsidiaries upon loss of control, net [ & /A 7] B9 /&5 18 /% %8 35 - 119,825
Loss on disposal of items of property, HHE W BB M REE
plant and equipment, net B e EE 55 - 37
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMENBETE
properties, net - 5,398
Auditors’ remuneration 2% SR 3 B 2,700 2,650
Employee benefit expense (including 1E @A X (BiEESE
directors’ and chief executive AT B 4B =
officer’s remuneration (note 8)) (MF3E8) )
Wages and salaries TERFHS 114,384 90,291
/\ Equity-settled share option expense  LARS #E 4% & B8 A% 4 B 2 3,959 2,886
A Retirement benefit scheme RIKAEFIET B 3K
contributions 16,009 10,127
P
% 134,352 108,304
%5 Direct operating expenses (including BEVFE SR EWEEEN
%5 repairs and maintenance) arising on = EE&E Y L (BIEE
;'g rental-earning investment properties & & # 7% ) 21,892 14,702
[=9
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8.

OFFICER’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

AT ARG

AFEERRITBEBHFHRE - TR
Al BB R EEGIZE383(1)(@)  (0) () K (16
RnE (RBEESEFI@ER) ROIF2H
B

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR ARETIT

Fees ik 486 474

Other emoluments: HAnii < -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R LREYETR

in kind 5,588 5,625

Equity-settled share option expense NERAEENERER 3,327 2,175

Pension scheme contributions RIRNEETEI R 74 84

8,989 7,884

9,475 8,358

During the current year and in prior years, certain directors
and the chief executive officer were granted options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial
statements for the current and prior years are included in the
above directors’ and chief executive officer’'s remuneration
disclosures.

RAFESCBEFE REBEAREERE
AEOETEERTREAHEARSAAS
ERHEzREMERBRE BRE—F
AHIFEN M B RRM IS - AEERED
REBREBERRAER EAALEIR
ROBHETE AR FERBEFER
MBEBRROTBIEA LM ESR RITHAE
B Hr I R
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. #HERfTHAHKFM o)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

The remuneration of each of the directors and the chief SMNEERITHARME WS MT
executive officer is set out below:

Salaries, Equity- Retirement
allowances settled benefit

and benefits  share option scheme Total

Fees in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
& 2MRE  AERLEEN  BAKEANHE

we ENEN  BRERX #% Wels

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTRE  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

2015 2015
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Lam Lung On* MERfE - 1,544 215 15 1,774
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan PEETT - 1,544 215 19 1,778
Mr. Lin Longzhi MEBEE - 1,500 1,326 18 2,844
Mr. Lin Conghui WEELE - 1,000 1,51 2 2,593
- 5,588 3,327 74 8,989
Independent non-executive directors; B FHTES:
Mr. Gu Jiande SRERE 162 - - - 162
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu WEKEE 162 - - - 162
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EfRELE 162 - - - 162
486 - - - 486
A 486 5,588 3,327 74 9,475
2014 20145
» Executive directors: HIES:
K Mr. Lam Lung On* MER T - 1,592 137 13 1,742
£ Ms. Kwok Ying Lan BRMat - 1592 137 18 1,747
Er Mr. Lin Longzhi MEERE - 1474 1257 2 2,763
- Mr. Lin Conghui RS & - 967 644 21 1,632
ST«
§ - 5,625 2,175 84 7,884
5 —
& Independent non-executive directors; B IFHTEE:
) Mr. Gu Jiande ZRELs 158 - - - 158
= Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEKEE 158 - - - 158
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang BRELE 158 - - - 158
268 474 - - - 474
v 474 5,625 2,175 84 8,358
. Mr. Lam Lung On is also the chief executive officer of the * MBLEENMBARRAZITHEH -
Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director or REXN BEEENTHEIREXR=
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any TRE AT A N e 8k -
remuneration during the year.
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2014: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2014: one) non-director, highest paid
employee for the year are as follows:

9.

hotm i w R A

RER EE&EFHEBREHENE (2014
FOR)ES ZFEFNHFHFBIR
EXX 8 o 88 T — % (20145 - — &) 3F
EERmFEENFEHFMFENT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMLREYER
in kind 946 891
Equity-settled share option expense AR E B AR - 93
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B R 10 13
956 997

The remuneration of the non-director, highest paid employee
for the year fell within the band of HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000 (2014: HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000).

During the prior years, share options were granted to the
non-director, highest paid employee in respect of his services
to the Group, further details of which are included in note 31
to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which had been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amounts included in the financial statements
for the prior years are included in the above non-director,
highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.

ZEIEERSFRERENFEFIHNTE
#1,000,0017C & 7% #1,500,0007T (2014
F 7% 1,000,001 7T & 75 #1,500,0007T )
ZFEﬂ °©

RBEFE —RFEERSFHEERE
A AN SR B 1R fft 2 BR 765 1 JE IR BB i - B
E—THBHENM B RERMES - ZFHE
FRCREBRERERAER Kok
ENELRHREE  FFABTEFENY
BHRENSENFFANLLEEZSZESHES
) 367 B 45¢ %
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/ ),
10. INCOME TAX 10. Ji 15 i
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as RN ASEBERFRN BT T BEEERE
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in ARUAE WHARBEBNESHELBE
Hong Kong during the year (2014: Nil). The income tax for (20145 - f&) - AR B KBEAL 2 HIMT B A
the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China is calculated at A PTS TR IR F Ay E R T A B ik A
the applicable tax rates on the taxable profits for the year. MEE-
An analysis of the income tax charges for the year is as REZMEHI BRI :
follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T
Current: BVHA -
PRC corporate income tax R EMEH 967,011 644,913
PRC land appreciation tax (note 28) AR L a3 E R (BT EE28)
— Charge for the year —ARFELZH 591,333 627,000
— Overprovision in prior years* —BEFEBRBEEE (120,358) (11,327)
1,437,986 1,260,586
Deferred (note 29): EIE (F5E29) -
Current year REEZE 7,218 65,095
Reversal of deferred tax assets on BEN BT FEHEE
LAT overprovided in prior years BN LIS ER N
BIET IR E BE 30,090 2,832
<
= 37,308 67,927
=1
av)
£ Total tax charge for the year AFERIBX LA 1,475,294 1,328,513
% * Based on the PRC local tax bureau’s assessments in : /%Eéﬁ?éé?i&ﬁf%%ﬁ%@ljﬁéi@
é respect of the LAT liabilities of certain property development Effgﬂﬁ%ﬂlﬁf@%"xflﬁg EORs
% projects that had been completed and sold in previous i Ejiﬁ fEE R 1J‘i'rm’;$‘7’< B E/\\$i
?_Lf years, the Group reversed and recognised an overprovision E Rz &G %ﬁ& Eb B *E Ffa e
for LAT on the relevant property development projects of & IE B K L b 35 @ i 8 %E B {;
RMB120,358,000 (2014: RMB11,327,000) in profit or loss for X #120,358,0007T (2014%F « AR¥
the year. 11,327,0007T) °
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

10.

Bt 3 B (s
R RAAREEE B EHHER S EA

tax using the statutory rate for Mainland China in which B R EE TR X d‘fﬁiﬁﬁﬁ Bf\ﬁffﬂﬁ MR
majority of the Group’s operations are domiciled to the tax X IR BRI R E BRSO
expense at the effective tax rate, and a recondiliation of the AR L/\&Lﬁﬁfﬁi (E’I]/ZifoR <) BB PR
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax EHERAT
rate for the year, are as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR ARETFT

Profit before tax CRIRYE 3,143,484 2,691,583
Tax charge at the statutory income  1&/ETEFTE T R 3T E K

tax rate MBEFRY 785,871 25.0 672,896 25.0
Tax losses utiised from HRENEBEHEER

previous periods (10,228) 0.3 (3,247) 0.1
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 277,637 8.8 154,849 5.8
Tax losses not recognised AHERRIARR 68,782 22 42,260 1.6
Reversal of overprovision for LAT BO i ER R (120,358) (3.8) (11,327) (0.4)
Reversal of deferred tax effect on BETiEET AR

overprovision for LAT HELERE T E 30,090 0.9 2,832 0.1
LAT provided BT ER 591,333 18.8 627,000 23.3
Tax effect on LAT THEERNRETE (147,833) 4.7) (156,750) (5.8)
Tax charge at the Group’s BREASEERBEHEY

effective rate RERX 1,475,294 46.9 1,328,513 49.4

The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures
amounting to RMB30,717,000 (2014: share of tax expense
of RMB24,623,000) is included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

JE(h& & QR IEE 2 A R#30,717,000
T (2014F - EEBRERAIARYE
24,623,0007T) B BIERREERK 2 [E
HAEREIEE]F-
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. ik &
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT R ARBTT
Interim — Nil (2014: HK16 cents) PHIRR B — R T AR
per ordinary share (20144 : B HA16(l) - 442 687
Proposed final — HK18 cents BIRARHRE -SRI R
(2014: Nil) per ordinary share BEA8L (20144 - 47) 575,662 -
575,662 442,687
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REZEIRAR R EAFAR R R E
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming EREAFRSH ELFTIIER-
annual general meeting.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12, B 2 m) & 3 B 5 5 A N JEAS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 5 1% & A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for HZE20156F12A31H L FEMNEHRELRE
the year ended 31 December 2015 is based on the profit MEEDEG RG] LRERTEE ARBLSE
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the A FE A R #1,656,853,0007T (20144 :
parent of RMB1,656,853,000 (2014: RMB1,254,384,000) AR #1,254,384,00070) M F A B #1TE
/\ and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of A% O AE - 15 £13,677,917,8080% (2014
3,677,917,808 (2014: 3,455,999,999) in issue during the 4 1 3,455,999,0000% ) 5+ & o
year.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(Continued)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year ended 31 December 2015 is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent of
RMB1,656,853,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the total of (i) the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and (i) the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares (see below).

12.

Notes to Financial Statements
Wt B % Mgk

HZE2015F 1231 B L FEr BREER
FlE&REIIET R a B AEGGREFBA
R ¥1,656,853,0007C5T & - Mt EFTAR
TERNETFAEROIARTEGRER
ANHFADETLBRINEF S EH
Sl &(u)fﬁ“’lﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂz%@Hx
WRIEEITE N L B D A EERE A R
TTHY S mAR I B R (RT3 »

Number
of shares
2015
R4 EE
20155
Shares iz 5
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F W E %’“‘ TEBAR . MRETHE
in issue during the year, used in the basic N EERELRAT
earnings per share calculation 3,677,917,808
Effect of dilution of share options — ERETRR ZINEESSBETE
weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,028,532
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FREBITEBRR 2 METHE
in issue during the year, used in the diluted ARFTE SR ERT
earnings per share calculation 3,678,946,340

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 December
2014 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding during the prior years had no dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share amount presented in
the prior year.

BRBTFERRITENERESNEF
27N ERERRNSEILEAESEY
2 WA EREE2014F12A31HLFE
EIWNERERZN EIEHEERE-
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W%~ W B B #k fi

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Hotel Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
buildings property Yacht improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
RELHE Bl EER
R BENE BE HENEEE  BOZEE RE EEIR @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARET:R ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2015 20155127318
At1 January 2015: Ho015%1A1R:
Cost A 314,028 147,738 100918 3,685 60,000 38,206 196,577 861,152
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (3,032 (7,815) (2621) (2,296) (21,317) (29,447) - (66,528)
Net carrying amount REFE 310,996 139,923 98,297 1,389 38,683 8,759 196,577 794,624
At 1 January 2015, net of Ho015%1A18
accumulated depreciation ABEHTE 310,99 139,923 98,207 1,389 38,683 8,759 196,577 794,624
Acquisition of subsiciaries (note 34 (a)  MEEMB A (H3E34(a)) - - - - 1,788 872 - 2,660
Additions wE 4783 - - 1,491 10,882 2493 91,926 111,575
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERzHEHITE (13,364) (8,051) (5,238) (161) (12,009) (3,832 - (42,655)
Exchange realignment EREE - - 4428 - - - - 4,428
At 31 December 2015, net of 20155124318 -
accumulated depreciation AR EiHE 302,415 131,872 97,487 27119 39,344 8,292 288,503 870,632
At 31 December 2015: #2015 12F31A
Cost KA 318,811 147,738 100,918 5,176 72,670 41,511 288,503 975,387
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (16,396) (15,866) (8,431) (2,457) (33,326) (33,279) - (104,755)
Net carrying amount REFE 302,415 131,872 97,487 27119 39,344 8,292 288,503 870,632
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Bt B % M Rk

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y %~ B bs B Ml (a0

(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Hotel Leasehold and office Motor ~ Construction
buildings property Yacht  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
BELH il RER
RigF BENE EE EEMERE  BAZRE AE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETr  AR¥ETr  ARETR
31 December 2014 2014125318
At 1 January 2014: R2014F1A18:

Cost R 3,655 139,180 100918 4772 30,843 40,79 183,779 503,94

Accumulated depreciation ZitHE 2,130) - - 2,201) (17,949) (27,208) - (49,576)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,525 139,180 100,918 2,481 12,894 13,588 183,779 454,365
At 1 January 2014, net of R2014F1A18

accumulated depreciation MRZHTE 1,625 139,180 100,918 2,481 12,8%4 13,588 183,779 454,365
Addtions AE 134 8,568 - 478 31,418 1,421 12,798 54,807
Transfer from investment properties BRARENE (Wi14)

(note 14) 310,240 - - - - - - 310,240
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERzH R E (903) (7.815) (5,174) (502) (4.948) (4,744) - (04,086)
Disposal HE - - - - (37 - - 37)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries upon Ak E IR B

loss of control (note 35) HERBAR (H35) - - - (1,068) (644) (1,506) - (3218
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 2,553 - - - - 2,558
At 31 December 2014, net of H2014512F318

accumulated depreciation Nk 2anE 310,99 139,923 98,297 1,389 38,683 8,759 196,577 794,624
At 31 December 2014: R2014F12R31R

Cost KA 314,028 147,738 100,918 3,685 60,000 38,206 196,577 861,152

Accurulated depreciation 238 (3,039) (7.815) (2.621) (2,296) (21,317) (09.447) - (66,528)
Net carrying amount REFE 310,99 139,923 98,297 1,389 38,683 8,759 196,577 794,624
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. &Y %

Under
Completed construction Total
[SF: T2 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTTT ARBTT
Carrying amount at R2014F1 A1 B MEREE
1 January 2014 2,535,480 2,316,000 4,851,480
Additions NE - 518,284 518,284
Transfer upon completion FA MR T BeF 8 43 1,916,824 (1,916,824) -
Transfer from properties under & # B fE 2 %
development - 73,788 73,788
Transfer from properties held & BFEHEERERDN
for sale LIES 375,576 - 375,576
Transfer to property, plant and EE =W  HE &
equipment (note 13) i (MIEE13) (310,240) - (310,240)
Disposal o & (22,330) - (22,330)
Deemed disposal of REETHIERGELES
subsidiaries upon loss of Bt~ A (FI5E35)
control (note 35) (13,200) - (13,200)
Net gains from fair value NAERBWFE
adjustments 476,590 10,540 487,130
Carrying amount at 2014512318 &
31 December 2014 and 20151 A1 B M EREE
1 January 2015 4,958,700 1,001,788 5,960,488
Additions NE 62,046 171,918 233,964
Transfer upon completion AR T e 8 1,092,778 (1,092,778) -
Transfer from properties held — ## E #5 VE 44 & iR HY
for sale L/ES 60,536 - 60,536
Acquisition of subsidiaries W g B A | (MIFE34)
(note 34) 12,700 - 12,700
Net gains from fair value NAERBW=FHE
adjustments 202,942 - 202,942
Carrying amount at R20156F12A31HHK)
31 December 2015 RMAE 6,389,702 80,928 6,470,630
Notes: P 5E

(@) At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB4,447,380,000 (2014: RMB4,159,630,000) were pledged
to banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note
26(a)(ii)).

(@) R2015%12A31H AL EH T ERE
418 A A R#4,447,380,0007T (2014
£ ARM4,159,630,0007T ) B8 & ) 2
EREFIRITIEALASEEERBITER

B R (BT 7E26() () )
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

The Group’s completed investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 38(a).

The Group’s completed investment properties and investment
properties under construction were revalued on 31 December
2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers.

For completed investment properties, valuations were either
based on the capitalisation of net rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the properties or made with reference to
comparable market transactions and consider adjustments to
reflect differences in transaction timing, location and tenure.

For investment properties under construction which were
stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period,
valuations were based on the residual approach, and have
taken into account the expended construction costs and the
costs that will be expended to complete the development
to reflect the quality of the completed development on the
basis that the properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the Group’s latest development plan.

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that
are measured at fair value, the current use of the properties is
their highest and best use.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, all of the investment
properties were measured at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

At 31 December 2015, the fair value measurement of all of
the Group’s investment properties were using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as defined in HKFRS 13.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 (quoted prices in active
markets) and Level 2 (significant observable inputs) and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

14. &YW % ()

Mizr: (4)

)

AEEBNER TREMERBLEEAE
HHETE=F EZHEFBEHNM T
38(a) °

AEENERTREMERERZILEY
¥HBVEESERGEMPEETE
FHERE B R AR N2015F12 A31
AEffe

MERTREMEMNS  [HEERHKE
BEHONESWAFRENE  WEE
FTAESER R ARNRA - HBER]
BHEmER S TEBRHENRRZ S
B (LB R AR Z R -

HRmE B R IRAAEARNIE
BREMEMNS HEERHKEE LE
JB TR A AR AR AR T 5 e A B 35 R S HH Y
RAARBRERTHERBNRE K&
R E M E A RN B Y & ¥ B B AT 8
GELS SR

BEERR ARANESENMEREY
s ZENENREREREZRSU
N ERE-

MA2015% K2014F12A31H TR E
MELE AR ETE

R fE g

2015512 A31H  REBEREY
¥NARENRAETERNEEHA
IR (B3) (TERBEBMBREER
F135)Fr=°

FR - AREFEWTENEIR (RIER
TISHRE) BFE2R (AERNETEHA
IR 2B EEE  EEAREHE
3% (20144 - 4&) ©

Wy oy T
ERAVERE EL T >>
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. % E W% (2

Notes: (Continued) Mg (&)

©  (Continued) © (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 2R e & (8
Descriptions of valuation techniques used and key inputs to HIEEMEHEERANEERTREE
valuation on investment properties: AR

Range or weighted average

EE S MET S
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
RER FABENTEGAHE 2015 2014
Completed
BAT
Retalil Income approach Estimated annual rental 1,825-73,000 3,650-62,050
value/sg.m. (RMB)
L WA BHABIHRFHEGEE(ARET)
Capitalisation rate 2.5%-6% 3%-5.5%
BAL®
Car parking spaces Market approach Unit price (RMB/unit) 90,000-294,000 100,000-700,000
85 misE BE(ARET/ET)
Under construction
ER
Retalil Residual approach Estimated annual rental 12,000-35,000 20,000-25,000
value/sg.m. (RMB)
e BIEZE BHABIHRFHEGEE(ARET)
Capitalisation rate 5% 5%
BAL®
Development profit 15% 28%
FE A
Car parking spaces Residual approach Unit price (RMB/unit) N/A 80,000
FES BIEE BE(ARET/ET) TER
Capitalisation rate N/A 3%-5%
BAL® TER
Development profit N/A 28%
FHEAE TER
Significant increase (decrease) in estimated annual rental Bt F A RFHSEEEBEABEM
value/sg.m. in isolation would result in a significantly higher (B 2LREMERIABEAREE M O
(lower) fair value of the investment properties. Significant D) AR EEFHAREM Ok )EL
increase (decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation BEMERARBEBRIBRD (3EN) - BE
would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the RNIEE I CRD ) ESREMELIAEKR
investment properties. Significant increase (decrease) in unit fBig i (k) -

price would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of
the investment properties.
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15. GOODWILL 15. 1 &
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost and net carrying amount at A2014F1A18 - 2014F12A31H &
1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 20151 418 2 A R AR E A
1 January 2015 _
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34(a)) I i — M B 2 7] (MI5E34()) 264,666
Cost and net carrying amount at MR2015F 12831 H 2 A K R FE
31 December 2015 264,666

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

The Group’s goodwill acquired through a business
combination was allocated to a cash-generating unit for the
property development segment, which principally engaged in
the property development in the PRC, for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of the
property development segment was determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using a cash flow projection based
on a financial budget covering a four-year period approved
by senior management.

The development project comprises 2 phases. As at
31 December 2015, the first phase was completed and
commenced the handover of properties to buyers, and
the second phase was in progress of construction. The
management estimated that the construction of the second
phase shall be completed in 2017 and the properties of both
phases shall be completely sold to and handed over to the
buyers by the end of 2019. In view of the expected tenure
of the business, the financial budget only covered a four-
year period and no perpetual growth rate was applied in the
calculation of value-in-use. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projection of the cash-generating unit was 19.0%.

EEAA R

AETRER R AREEBERA I
BeRBEIEEMERESII (XER
RENEYERE) CREELEN W
FMENBReELEM 2P RB SR IIE
KAReREBTA (UAeREEEHEL
MERREMEREREEEL)FENRE
REEEE-

FEIE B B IE M HA - 70201512 A318 ¢
BEHEERIUHABAERIE M=
FEEET - B EMET B TR KR2017
FrI MEYEER2019F F KAl T
PHEWRNTFER -EREB2EIF
H-myBEEERENFHE AR
TEFEABENTERAKEERE &
EREeELEM B RERAMANR
[T A19.0% °

M >>

Wy ol
[ 3730 B4 3
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15.

16.

GOODWILL (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
(Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of
the above mentioned property development segment’s
cash-generating unit for 31 December 2015. The following
describes each key assumption on which management had
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Business environment — There was no major change in the
existing political, legal and economic conditions in the PRC in
which the cash-generating unit carried on its business.

Expected tenure of the business — The property development

project is estimated to be completed in a four-year period up
to year 2019.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

15. B8 ()

HE R ALRIENE D

AELAMERES B RSEEEMR
201512 A31A 2 EAEEDERRKRK -
TXHMEEEENRS RENETHE
NERER RN ORI CE &

B E—FIRITRE R AT R R AE R
BB AR E AR

EHEH RSB B HRERFE
B YRR AR REER ST EY
REAED -

TERf# 5 F R — Y ¥ FETE B (AT R E
20194 |- MY F HRfE] SEAK ©

16. PEEAFMRE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBF T

Share of net assets JELEEFE 88,736 2,195,586
Loans to joint ventures BTAERFIMER - 312,071
88,736 2,507,657

Notes:

(@) The loans to the joint ventures as at 31 December 2014 were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group’s other payable balances due to joint ventures are
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

(@ 20145 12A31H B TFTAERFNE
REEEE e N EETFENE-

AEBERNZESERAHEMBENR
TR R BE N M AR 24 o
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

16. REEAFEMRE (8

s (48)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are as b) BHAEERFEMNFEEEARMNFEN
follows: ik
Percentage of
Places of THEBERER DL
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit
Company name and paid-up capital and business interest power sharing Principal activity
AEER SMERMEREA ZMREERE  FAEEER B 2ERRE ZEER
Xiamen Vanke Maluan Bay RMB30,000,000  PRC/ 20% 20% 20%  Property development
Properties Limited® (Note) Mainland China
EFTENFREER AR¥300000000C RE/REARE 20% 20% 0% MERE
BRARC ()
Fujian Big World Huaxia Real RMB1,110,000,000 PRC/ 45% 45% 45%  Property development
Estate Development Co., Mainland China
Ltd. (*Fujian Big World
Huaxia")** (Note)
BREAEARZERHE AR1,110,000,0000 B/ REIAR 45% 45% 45%  NERE
BRAR ([RRAH
REE]) e (M)
Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) RMB1,800,000,000 PRC/ 2% 72% 72%  Property development
Eastern Town Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(‘Hefei Eastern Town”)*
(Note)
BMEX (ARE)RAERAA  ARE18000000000 HE/HEAE 72% 72% % NERE
([aiEsml ) (Fsr)
Hefei Ruiyun Realty Co., Ltd.®* RMB19,600,000  PRC/ 51% 51% 51%  Property development
(Note) Mainland China
AEREEEARAT AR¥19,6000000C B/ REARE 51% 51% 51%  MEHRE

(FzE)

All the above joint ventures are indirectly held by the Company
and are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

LitFrE &R RRTHAARREERE
B0 3F &8 %Ak & SR = T AT 3k R oK
BRI EMRERREZ-

>

by

o
:

|
X

[11 57 30 B 0 20 TR
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

@

Note:

Registered as domestic limited liability companies under
the PRC law.

Registered as Sino-foreign equity entities under the
PRC law.

Fujian Big World Huaxia and Hefei Eastern Town, which
are considered to be material joint ventures of the
Group, are accounted for using equity method until the
acquisition of all the minority interests during the current
year by the Group, and Fujian Big World Huaxia and
Hefei Eastern Town have since then become wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group. The percentage of
ownership interest, voting power and profit sharing
disclosed in the table above represent the Group’s
interest as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December
2015, the Group’s interest in Fujian Big World Huaxia
and Hefei Eastern Town was 100%.

The English names of these entities represent the best
effort made by management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they did not register
any official English names.

16. R EEAFEMRE (8

Misx: (4)

(b)

(%)

@

CES

REBETEEEEMARBEREE

NG

REFEIEREM ARG EER

g

BERAMAREERAPERER (118
EREBEZEBALNR])NAE
EAREBRENA DB ERESA
HIRAESENER  MEEAER
EERAEEBMALEKALTEE
ZEEMBAR EREENMA
R BEEERSEFBEES L
AR EER2014F 128310 2 #
o M2015F12A31H  REB K
BEAMREERAIEEM Z EE
A100% °

MR ZEERBILARTMEMER
BB A ER BB AR
AEEEENERBEATNA
WS -




31 December 2015 20154 12 A 31 B

Notes to Financial Statements
W B ok W sk

16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial (c)
information in respect of two material joint ventures, namely

Fujian Big World Huaxia and Hefei Eastern Town, adjusted for

any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying amounts in the financial statements:

Fujian Big World Huaxia

16. A%

s (48)

28 {8 E (a0

TRITMEEESERRBREAMER
FERAERANTHEMZ (Tite
SRR 2 (E ] 2 R AF 1 398 I BB 7 4R
REEEYER)

WEAHFER

31 December

2014
2014412 A31H
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Financial position B RS AR R
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 125,034
Other current assets HEMREEE 1,849,334
Current assets MENVEE 1,974,368
Non-current assets IERBEE 19,302
Other current liabilities HEmReEhats (417,927)
Current liabilities mENaE (417,927)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding nBermaE(TEEESR
trade and other payables and provisions o BN RRIB A R Bk ) -
Other non-current liabilities HindEme g & (1,969)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (1,969)
Net assets AEFE 1,573,774
Recongiliation to the Group’s interest HAEEREGE AR ER R
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBZHEEBS 45%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEDHEER TﬁF@E
the joint venture 708,907
Amount due from the joint venture G & R AR 53,497
Carrying amount of the investment EERAEE 762,404

Trelydy T — %~
(1237 0 B 46) 30 3 ot B >>
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTVENTURES 16. R A2 A G M H & @)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
©  (Continued) © (&)

Fujian Big World Huaxia (Continued) mEktREg (4)

>
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2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Operating performance BERE

Revenue LON - 42136
Interest income F B A 121 269
Depreciation and amortisation e R (142) (83)
Income tax Frisii 100,901 (33,834)

Loss and total comprehensive HRNEBEREABBRE
loss for the period (106,542) (49,091)

Hefei Eastern Town A MK %
31 December
2014
2014512 A31H
RMB’000
ARBFT
Financial position AR
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 353,048
Other current assets HEMREEE 2,674,611
Current assets MENE E 2,927,659
Non-current assets FEMENE E 557
Other current liabilities HEmreEhats (918,755)
Current liabilities mENAE (913,755)
Net assets BEFE 2,014,461
Recondiliation to the Group’s interest HAEBEREERRIMNERYRER:
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBZHE#EBS 72%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEDhEERREEFE
the joint venture 1,455,733
Carrying amount of the investment RAERMEE 1,455,733
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
() (Continued)

Hefei Eastern Town (Continued)

16. REEAFEMRE (8

M (&)
© (&)

ok (4)

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Operating performance RERE

Revenue LON - -
Interest income F BUA 817 728
Depreciation and amortisation Pree ey (131) 37)
Income tax FrisHt 19,415 -

Loss and total comprehensive BHABERZHEEERE
loss for the period (71,736) (4,886)

(d)  The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

@ TRIITAEERZAT (LFEBEE)

information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not KRB ER:
individually material:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit DIEEERRFE R T
for the year 57,788 24,085
Share of the joint ventures’ total DA ERREEKEETE
comprehensive income 57,788 24,085
Aggregate carrying amount of REBEREERAZREN
the Group’s investments in the FREBE
joint ventures 88,736 289,520

Wy oy T
ERAVERE EL T >>
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17.

18.

LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY

31 December 2015 20154 12 B 31 A

17. (e EMBHERRN L

DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE Hh
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARBTT
Carrying amount at beginning of year IR & 58 665,462 2,196,544
Additions during the year FARE - 85,150

Transfer to properties under EEREEEYE

development (19,789) (1,616,232)
Carrying amount at end of year FREEESR 645,673 665,462

In the opinion of the directors, the construction on the
Group’s land held for property development for sale as at
31 December 2015 are expected to complete within the
Group’s normal operating cycle and so they are classified as
current assets.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

E=RA P2015F12A31 BEEY 2R
BIHE R BN FREETEHENASE
B EEEERBARNERT Bt EAR

18. Y ¥

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Properties under development TEHIR B BEEEMAER TR
expected to be completed within NERMEEEMTEYE
normal operating cycle and TEEAR T HHEA R Mkl -

classified as current assets are
expected to be recoverable:

Within one year —FR 9,596,161 8,992,442
After one year —F1& 11,253,221 3,283,646
20,849,382 12,276,088

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying amount
of RMB11,737,177,000 (2014: RMB8,270,199,000) were
pledged to banks to secure certain of the bank loans granted
to the Group (note 26(a)(i)).

M201565F12A31H - A& EE THRAMAE
B AR #141,737,177,0007T (20144 = A
R #8,270,199,0007T ) WY fE ;2 ¥) % B2 K 1
FIRITERAEBEEE TIRITERMNIK
(M E26(a)) ) °
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19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19. 5 1F 4 & M iz 19 B %
At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s properties MR20156F12A31H AL EEKEEMEEA
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of AR #2,464,471,0007T (20144F : AR
RMB2,464,471,000 (2014: RMB530,739,000) were pledged 530,739,0007T ) K& TH{EHE BE N Y
to banks to secure certain of the bank loans granted to the ¥EERTRITUMERREEERNE T
Group (note 26(a)(iii)). RITE AR R (EE26()i) ) ©
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 20. T8 A 3K ~ @ K i E Wk 8
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Prepayments TR 688,330 425,009
Deposits and other receivables e &E b U R IE 1,474,252 1,253,948
2,162,582 1,678,957
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. i EEREARIRE BIER L4
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to BREY S mhE 2 R T A HE X R0 8% B9 JIE LUK
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. HER-

21.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND 2. XMB e ke kB 2%

CASH EQUIVALENTS k7
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Cash and bank balances 0% MIRTTHE 64 11,948,793 9,784,742
Less: Restricted cash (note (c)) B ZBRHIER (MsE(c)) (975,525) (488,765)
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREZEY 10,973,268 9,295,977
Notes: GEX
(@) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily (@) RITHFHRIRES B ﬁﬁ?i@%% ‘Jg}?ﬁf%
bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and REFI S - BB LR D EEYMORE R

cash equivalents approximate to their fair values. BEEDERE -

107 R B 40) 0 0 !
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21. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND 21. MWW B2 kB2 R 2%
CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) W (s0)

Notes: (Continued) BisE: (&)

() At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank b) RHEHHERT AEENRE R

balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to BITHEBUARBFTE AARK
RMB10,009,044,000 (2014: RMB6,751,178,000). The RMB 10,009,044,0007C (20145 : AR ¥
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under 6,751,178,0007T ) - AR 1] 5 K i
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and REMEE AW R B A RE R SNE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign B D) & 4 E - EIE R EEIEMRE
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange NEBER EBBEEEITINEZERKH
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to BITHARBHBBEMES -

conduct foreign exchange business.

() A summary of the restricted cash of the Group as at 31 € AEER2015F12A31HHNZRHIH &
December 2015 is as follows: Bt
() According to relevant documents issued by the Xiamen 0] BEEMTLIHEEEREBEM
Municipal Land and Housing Administrative Bureau, MEBXH AEBEAETHEE
certain property management companies of the BRAAAKIS>BENDHKER
Group are required to place part of their management BEARIT ERBEMEA KLY
fees received at banks as guarantee deposits for the BEESNEREE ZSReE
public maintenance fund of the related properties. AR BT ERN S 1K2015
The deposits can only be used for the maintenance of F12A31H ZEEREEAA
the relevant properties. At 31 December 2015, such R#7,072,0007 (20144 : ARME
guarantee deposits amounted to RMB7,072,000 (2014 17,788,0007T ) °

RMB17,788,000).

(i)  As further detailed in note 36 to the financial (i) BB A5 R R P sES6ATIE — S EF

statements, guarantee deposits RMB189,738,000 it 2015128318 » £R LS

/\ (2014: RMB161,556,000) as at 31 December 2015 AR #189,738,0007T (20144 : A
A were pledged to banks which provide mortgages to R#161,556,0007T ) B A T AR
the purchasers of the Group’s properties, for potential EEMFEEIREIRIBZIRIT F

default of mortgage loans advanced to property BETEYHEERBER I NZIBER

purchasers. Such guarantee deposits will be released iR ZEERESHERBAY

after property ownership certificates of the relevant EMEEFERZ TIRITIETT A Rk -

properties have been passed to the banks.

C10g Moday] Tenuuy
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@iy  According to relevant loan facility agreements signed @iy ARBEAEEETHEBLQREELRT

by certain subsidiaries of the Group with the banks, the ZENHEBERRERZ 25

subsidiaries are required to place the pre-sale proceeds BRRABEMENTEEMERIE

of their properties at designated bank accounts. The GFABERITERF ZEReKE

deposits can only be used for the payment of property AARENZENRBARELR

development costs incurred by the subsidiaries and the MERERARBEERBER R

repayment of the relevant loans. At 31 December 2015, 2015512 A31H SR AAR

such deposits amounted to RMB218,743,000 (2014: #218,743,0007T (20144 : AR

288 RMB175,053,000). 175,053,0007T ) ©

(v)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group are required to vy AEEMNETHBREINEREE

\/ place certain amounts at specific bank accounts as FITRPEAE TeEEREREZ
guarantee deposits for the use of the loan proceeds. % LABR #Il & SR IE A i 0 7R2015

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount F12A31H  ZEReBRBEAAR

of such deposits was RMB559,972,000 (2014: #559,972,0007T (20144 : ARH

RMB134,368,000) (note 26(a)(vi)). 134,368,0007T) (FFEE26(a)Vi)) ©
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22. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represented amounts received from
buyers in connection with pre-sale of properties.

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the due date, is as follows:

22.

23.

Notes to Financial Statements
Wt 7 7% Mgk

T8 e 3 18

TEUWGRIAIE BLIE & Y3 1 (A B S WA 3R
Ho

H 5 ME £ 5K 1

K& B A REHE Z RN RIRR D
HERRE DTN T :

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Due within 1 year or on demand 1FNHBREREEE 5,050,971 2,784,053
Due within 1 to 2 years 122FNEBEEE 1,245,793 906,075
6,296,764 3,690,128

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

B 5 RN RE RN B R BT -

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. H fh fE £ 2% 1E K ME G & A
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFIT
Accruals Bt EH 145,680 100,445
Other payables H e 5B 5,709,068 3,777,137
5,854,748 3,877,582

Included in the Group’s other payables as at 31 December
2015 are amounts due to joint ventures of RMB344,002,000
(2014: RMB867,940,000), amounts due to a director
of nil (2014: RMB210,000,000), an amount due to a
company controlled by a director of the Company of
nil (2014: RMB253,046,000), amounts due to non-
controlling equity holders of the Group’s subsidiaries of
RMB1,987,624,000 (2014: RMB6,084,000), an amount due
to an affiliate associated with a director of the Company of
RMB65,000,000 (2014: RMB65,000,000). These balances
are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

MR20155F12 431 B MRS [E H Ath fE - 5008
BN G &R a5 AR #E344,002,000
7T (20145 + A R #867,940,0007T) * fiE
N—RZFFREAREZ T (20145 :
AR #210,000,0007T)  fEff— R B A
NA—HBREZFEHNATZHIBBARE
Z T (20144 « AR #253,046,0007T)
ERAEENBARMIELERERITE
A B TE A R #1,987,624,0007T (2014
F: AR ¥6,084,0007T) « BT — [ £
AR —RESFAREZHEBEATFHIE
A R #65,000,0007T (20144 : AR
65,000,0007T) * s E4EHBIEE HMHE -
mIEI o B HEETEERBEH-

107 R0 B40) 0 0 e !
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

25. fik ¢ m LR

INSTRUMENTS
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR¥ETR ARET T
Assets BE
2012 Call Options - 11.75% 20126 RIBHE - 11.75% (a) - 83,810
2013 Call Options - 8.75% 20135 RIERE — 8.75% (b) - 1,188
China Life Bonds Options PEEFEER (©) 46,095 -
46,095 84,998
Notes: Bt o
(@)  In October 2012, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes @@ H2012F108 AR A BETAE
(the “2012 Senior Notes — 11.75%”) with an aggregate #{E250,000,000E T (4 AR
principal value of US$250,000,000 (approximately 1,575,000,0007T ) KJ11.75%18 % & &
RMB1,575,000,000). The Company, at its option, could ([2012FBEEE - 11.75% 1) - AR
redeem all or a portion of the 2012 Senior Notes — 11.75% AR L A RTBER ARB BRI (B (A1 A &
(the “2012 Call Options — 11.75%”) at any time prior to the BNERAZEE)MEZEL A ET
maturity date at the redemption price (principal amount plus AR A BB IS B E 2 E ek 5l 52012
applicable premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest up to FELEZE - 11.75% ([2012F R B
the redemption date. On 25 October 2015, the Company - 11.75% 1) - 7R2015%10H251 -
redeemed in full the outstanding aggregate principal amount RARREEATESE R R4 A S 858
of US$250,000,000 of the 2012 Senior Notes — 11.75% 250,000,000% JT #I2012F B L E W -
before their maturity. Further details of the 2012 Senior Notes 11.75% ° 2012FB L FZHE - 11.75% 2
- 11.75% are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements. —HHBEHR M B IREM 27
(o)  In October 2013, the Company issued 8.75% senior notes (o) H2013F 108 AR ABETAS
(the “2013 Senior Notes — 8.75%”) with an aggregate #{E300,000,000% T (M AR
principal value of US$300,000,000 (approximately 1,836,304,0007T ) H8.75% 18 5t Z &
RMB1,836,304,000). The Company, at its option, can ([2013F B ZE - 8.75% 1) - KA A
redeem all or a portion of the 2013 Senior Notes — 8.75% AIER B A ATBE R ARE B B (BN AN S 58
(the “2013 Call Options — 8.75%”) at any time prior to the IE AR E) N E BB B AR EE
maturity date at the redemption price (principal amount plus AT R BB 15 BB B &2 308k 26 920134
applicable premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest up to BREEE - 875% ([2013F R —
the redemption date. Further details of the 2013 Senior Notes 8.75% 1) ° 2013F B EE - 8.75%
- 8.75% are set out in note 27(b) to the financial statements. E— BN M B REMF270)
(¢)  In July 2018, the Company issued 10% guarantee bonds © M2013F7A ARABEITASH

(the “China Life Bonds”) of an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,500,000,000 (approximately RMB1,184,834,000). The
Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of the
China Life Bonds (the “China Life Bonds Options”) at any time
on or after the third anniversary of the bond issues date at the
redemption price (principal amount plus applicable premium)
plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date.

#8781 ,500,000,0007C (4 A B #
1,184,834,0007T ) AI10%E R E F ([
EEEH]) ARBARNESFHTEMRSE
ZBFE 7 ARERE ATERE (BIAR S50
BEARE) MEEE D B B fERT R
FERBEEREDRBLLOIEES ([H
SEHFBERE] -
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

The China Life Bonds Options (2014: the 2012 Call Options (d)
- 11.75% and 2013 Call Options — 8.75%) are recorded as

derivative assets in the consolidated statement of financial

position and carried at fair value with reference to a valuation

using the discounted cash flow model.

25. frEem T B ()

s ()

hEESEREZER (20145 2012 2
E—11.75%N2013F REE —8.75% )
RERE W BRRRIN AITEEERBR
SRR EAEITHEER A EYR-

>

Descriptions of the valuation technique used and the key input FrREERERREEGEENEZEZH A ‘E}S\
to the valuation of the call options are as follows: BEFHAWT: ;ﬁ
T

2015 2014 i

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Range Range %i

HEH % IUBENTERHARE wE %2 Z

Discounted cash flow Credit spread 6.86% - 8.61% 7.06% — 7.89%

REMANERE EEB=E

Significant increase (decrease) in the credit spread would FEEBERREN CRD)BELTES

result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the derivative BTERABEANERD (38m) - 201

financial instruments.

<
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 26. # S AT

Bk R 5 f5 B

OTHER BORROWINGS
2015 2014
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRAIE (%) 38R ARBTRT  BREAE©%) 2588 ARET L
Current B
Bank loans - unsecured SRITE I — B 1.39 - 5.60 2016 422,500 2.10-10.00 2015 701,982
Bank loans - secured BOBR-BHERE 1.82-9.00 2016 3,564,873  2.11-10.10 2015 3,103,469
3,087,373 3,805,451
Non-current FEE
Bank loans - secured fﬁﬁ‘é?x BER 2.38-7.08  2017-2024 4422624  2.38-10.10  2016-2023 3,661,727
Other loans — unsecured - 531-7.12 2018 -2020 4,951,000 - - -
Other loans — secured ﬁfﬂﬁ%ﬂ* HHER 10.00 2019 1,255,243 10.00 2019 1,198,670
10,628,867 4,860,397
14,616,240 8,665,848
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®Tx ARBF T
Analysed into: DT :
Bank loans repayable: EEBRITERNHR
Within one year or on demand RIFERREE K 3,987,373 3,805,451
In the second year REE2F 1,665,505 1,818,074
In the third to fifth years, inclusive NEBEIFEHHF
(BEERME) 2,639,069 1,684,003
Beyond five years 5F 1% 118,050 159,650
8,409,997 7,467,178
Other loans repayable: EEBEMERAHR
In the third to fifth years, inclusive MREIFEFHF
(BREEEMF) 6,206,243 1,198,670
14,616,240 8,665,848
Notes: B A
(@)  Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured @ AEENETRITERREMERH
or guaranteed by: AT 77 s R S 4R
() mortgages over the Group’s properties under (i) AEERBESHBELERTE RBE

development with an aggregate carrying amount
at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB11,737,177,000 (2014: RMB8,270,199,000) (note
18);

#WEY B ANR11,737,177,000
7 (20144 : A R #58,270,199,000
TC) KT Y R IRE (M5E18)
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a  (Continued)

(i)

(il

(v)

pledges over the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB4,447,380,000 (2014:
RMB4,159,630,000) (note 14(a));

pledges over the Group’s properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB2,464,471,000
(2014: RMB530,739,000) (note 19).

corporate guarantees executed by certain subsidiaries
of the Group to the extent of RMB4,374,700,000 (2014
RMB5,401,700,000);

joint and several personal guarantees executed by
Mr. Lam Lung On (“Mr. Lam”) and Ms. Kwok Ying Lan
(“Ms. Kwok”), directors of the Company, to the extent
of RMB1,327,493,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB1,286,270,000); and

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are required to
place certain amounts at specific bank accounts as
guarantee deposits for the use of the loan proceeds.
As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of such deposits was RMB559,972,000 (2014:
RMB134,368,000) (note 21(c)(iv)).

(b)  Other loans of the Group are bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of:

M

HK$1,500,000,000 due in 2019 issued by the
Company to China Life Trustee Limited in July 2013
(the “2013 China Life Bonds”). The 2013 China Life
Bonds have a term of six years and bear interest at a
rate of 10% per annum. The 2013 China Life Bonds
are guaranteed by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok and certain
subsidiaries of the Group and secured by share charge
over 829,094,400 shares in the Company held by Mr.
Lam and Ms. Kwok. Under the terms and conditions
of the 2013 China Life Bonds, Mr. Lam and Ms.
Kwok shall collectively maintain an ultimate beneficial
shareholding of not less than 51% in aggregate of
the total issued share capital of the Company. On 25
February 2016, the Company redeemed in full the 2013
China Life Bonds and the personal guarantees and the
share charge given by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok under
the 2013 China Life Bonds were released, as set out in
note 44(b) to the financial statements;

26. 5 SR AT B K R I b fa B

(80)

Mz (&)

(@)

(%)

(i

(i)

(iv)

S HA

AEBRBFEHEERE FEm
BIEY A AR ¥4,447,380,0007C
(20144 : AR 4,159,630,000
TT)MEEMENER (W=
14(@)) :

AEBRBFESHELERE FE@
wEY A ANREE2 464,471,0007T
(20144 : A R #530,739,0007T)
E@%gﬁ%%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ (M
£319) ©

AEBETHBRAAIZEENTES
AR #4,374,700,0007C (20144 :
AR #5 401,700,0007T ) B9 A 71 H&
%

R2015FE12 A31B AR A1 & E
BELEE (MEE]) RBERBL
T ([ BLEDNEBNSEAAR
#1,327,493,0007T (2014F : AR
#1,286,270,0007T ) & £ A & 1& 5
BAER: &

AEENETHBRRERETER
TEFHEAETSBEIEAERE
& DR BIE FGRIE A B - 582015
F12A318 ZEREREBAR
#£559,972,0007T (20144 : AR
134,368,0007T) (Ff&E21(c)(iv)) °

ERRATES:

ARARR2013F7AAAEAFE
AERARBITHAS BEASE
1,500,000,0007T A 20194 2 £ =~
&% ([2013F R EES]) - 2013
FHREBESFBNTHESWIZTF)
R10%:T 8 ° 2013 F R FHEH M
Sk R ARAREEETH B
NEREER WAL RS L
+ B 8 A R F1829,094,4000% i%
DRI AR - IRIZ2013F P H
EH IR R e E R
TEHREF AR IHE BT
AR E KR DRI %M HEE =S
FERR = o 55 40 BA 755 R 2% I 5144 (o) T
& A FIR20165E2 A25H FE
FEE2013F R HES BMAEER
L HR2013F R B EHIE TR
HIEAER R D 1RRC B ER R

A

(637 2 B0 0 T o
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

27

(0)

(Continued)

(i)

)

RMB2,000,000,000 corporate bonds due in 2018
issued by a subsidiary of the Group in October 2015
(the “6.7% Corporate Bonds”). The 6.7% Corporate
Bonds have a term of three years and bear interest at
a rate of 6.7% per annum. The 6.7% Corporate Bonds
are unsecured; and

RMB3,000,000,000 corporate bonds due in 2020
issued by a subsidiary of the Group in December 2015
(the “5.1% Corporate Bonds”). The 5.1% Corporate
Bonds have a term of five years and bear interest at a
rate of 5.1% per annum. The 5.1% Corporate Bonds
are unsecured.

26. & 2R AT B Ak & I b fe B

(40

PaE: (&)

)

(%)

iy AEE-—RHKHERQAR2015%
10T ZASBRBEAARE
2,000,000,0007T 720184 2| # >
DEBH([6.7THDREFESH]) -
B7NNEBEHAZFHESTIX
FHRE.7%E - 6.7% D EFEH
BEEIE K

@iy ANEE-—EHBRER20154F
12ATZAGBEARARE
3,000,000,0007T /A20204F EI| B 2
PEBH([BA%DERE]) -
51% ¥ BEHFABRATFHEST L
FRE5A%T B 51% D EEH
B AR o

() The Group’s bank and other borrowings with carrying (©) AEBIAARBE BERETFE
amounts of RMB12,453,203,000 (2014: RMB6,258,750,000), MIRTERKEMERZEEESD
RMB1,722,914,000 (2014: RMB1,717,870,000) and Al & AR %12,453,203,0007T (2014
RMB440,123,000 (2014: RMB689,228,000) are denominated F: AR%6,258,750,0007T) - AR
in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars, #1,722,914,0007C (20145 : AR
respectively. 1,717,870,0007% ) & A R #440,123,000

7 (20144 : AR™689,228,0007T) ©

SENIOR NOTES 27. Bk ¥k

2015 2014
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ERRAIE%) BBE  AREBTFR  EEAE®) e ARETR
Non-current and repayable in FMARAREIEZESF
the third to fifth years, inclusive ~(BEEEME)EE

2012 Senior Notes - 11.75% 2012FBREE - 11.75% 1243 2017 - 12.43 2017 1,527,403

2013 Senior Notes - 8.75% 2013FBERE -8.75% 9.16 2018 1,929,419 9.16 2018 1,838,350

2014 Senior Notes - 8.625% 2014FERERE -8.625% 8.98 2019 1,930,447 8.98 2019 1,840,219

2014 Senior Notes - 9% 014FBEEE - 9% 9.32 2019 1,607,017 9.32 2019 1,632,590

5,466,883 6,738,562
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In October 2012, the Company issued the 2012 Senior
Notes — 11.75% with an aggregate principal value of
US$250,000,000 (approximately RMB1,575,000,000).
The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately US$243,790,000 (approximately
RMB1,5635,877,000). The 2012 Senior Notes — 11.756%
would mature on 25 October 2017. On 25 October 2015, the
Company redeemed in full the outstanding aggregate principal
amount of US$250,000,000 of the 2012 Senior Notes —
11.75% before their maturity at a total redemption price of
US$264,687,500 representing 105.875% of the principal
amount of the outstanding 2012 Senior Notes - 11.75%
plus accrued and unpaid interest. Upon completion of the
redemption, the Company had no outstanding 2012 Senior
Notes — 11.75%.

In October 2013, the Company issued the 2013 Senior Notes
- 8.75% with an aggregate principal value of US$300,000,000
(approximately RMB1,836,304,000). The net proceeds, after
deducting the issuance costs, amounted to approximately
US$295,132,000 (approximately RMB1,806,503,000). The
20183 Senior Notes — 8.75% will mature on 4 October 2018.

In January 2014, the Company issued the 2014 Senior
Notes — 8.625% with an aggregate principal value of
US$300,000,000 (approximately RMB1,814,745,000).
The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately US$295,797,000 (approximately
RMB1,789,322,000). The 2014 Senior Notes — 8.625% wiill
mature on 24 January 2019.

In December 2014, the Company issued the 2014
Senior Notes — 9% with an aggregate principal value of
US$250,000,000 (approximately RMB1,547,665,000).
The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately US$246,860,000 (approximately
RMB1,528,223,000). The 2014 Senior Notes — 9% will mature
on 24 January 2019.

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of
the senior notes at any time prior to the maturity date at the
redemption prices (principal amount plus applicable premium)
plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date,
as set forth in the written agreements between the Company
and the trustees of the senior notes.

The senior notes of the Group and the Company are
denominated in United States dollars and are secured by
pledges over the equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

27. B EH ()

fi g

(@)

B2012F 108 AR A BT A&
#{E250,000,000EF T (M AR
1,575,000,0007T ) BJ20126F @ L 2% -
11.75% - S MBR BT ERABOE R
I8 % 58 4) 5243,790,000E 7T (4 AR
#1,535,877,00070 ) ° 20124F (& 5 Z &
- 11.75% 18 R2017E10A25H B Hi -
2015510 H25H » AR A B B B BT %
4a % 0] {2264,687,5003 7T (1B E i K (&
B012FBAZEE - 11.75% K& %2
105.875% M fE AT R R+ 7 B) B 8 [
F £4 7N & 44 58250,000,0003€ 7T K92012
FE/EZE - 11.75% - NEBERT/KE
NARIEAREEZ2012FBAEEE -
11.75%

R2013F 108 AR A EITA S
#%{5300,000,000E 7T (Y AR
1,836,304,0007T ) FJ2013F B £ =i —
8.75% ° MR 1T B A& M TS 3E
SEAE 49 /295,132,000 7T (K AR
1,806,503,0007T ) ° 2013F @ £ ZiE —
8.75% 51201810 A4 B & & -

R2014F1RA  RAQARBEITRE
#%{5300,000,000E T (AR
1,814,745,0007T ) FI2014F B R Z= 4 —
8.625% o 4L PR 1T B HIE M TS
T8 5 58 #) /295,797,000 7T (#) A R #E
1,789,322,0007T ) ° 2014F B L ZiE -
8.625% 15 1120194F1 F24 H % # -

R2014F128 AR RFETARS
#%{E250,000,000E 7T (G AR
1,547,665,0007T) KI2014F B L E &
- 9% MK EITEABNTERE
B HE 40 /246,860,000 7T (A R
1,528,223,0007T ) ° 20144F B £ = —
9%#51 20191 24 H B8 -

BARREBAEREXEAGENEE
ek - AN A R AR HI A ATRERS LARE (B
(A BIEREE) MEEER B A
R R AN A S RIEE R 2 A ko
BERRE-

AEBRARBHELRBRIAXITAHE
R AZR N YA T M1 B 2 Rl A AR A (43 -

A >>

Wely by
[ 3730 B4 3
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28. PROVISION FOR LAND 28. 1 1 {H B 45

APPRECIATION TAX
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥T ARBF T
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,014,147 845,823
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EERKT B~ A 34(a) 6,162 -
Charged to profit or loss during AR BBk
the year 10 591,333 627,000
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBERE 10 (120,358) (11,327)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries Rk EiEHEREEL &
upon loss of control Sy EERNG| 35 - (10,147)
Payment during the year FARRR (328,398) (437,202)
At 31 December MW12A31H 1,162,886 1,014,147

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (F#E AR HFE + 12 EHE T
1515 ) effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT (F#E AR KEFE + 8 EH LT KO E
4B A1) effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from
the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings
and their attached facilities in Mainland China are subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, with an exemption provided for the sale
of ordinary residential properties (B IZ %X =) if their
appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items.

The Group has estimated, made and included in taxation
a provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth
in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities may disagree with the basis
on which the provision for LAT is calculated.

RIZEE1904F1 A1HRBREMN (FEAR
FANE A IR EHE TR & E19955F
1A27ARBEMMN (hEARLFME L i
BERGITEOERMAA) MFE EF
BIARE N EkEEEE T thFERAE BT
REWELBEENA WS BENT
HEEEMS0%E60%H) RHER RN+
HIgER FIEEEETBBEE AT INH
JH B 8 MK20% - Al S @IEEEERNHEE
A EA R 4 + M AR (E S o

AEE D RIBEERT BEREAPERTE
M A R REB ARG A LI
EREH BERNTEERAGEESD
XFARHEERIR ANBERET M
BB ERAI e TR EAREFGE L IRE
TR E 2 o
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. i % Hi 18
Net deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the RERE BN ER P ERNIELETIEEE
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: rMeaEFEnT:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 /\
AR® T ARBTIT A
Deferred tax assets recognised KRG M B R R PR =
in the consolidated statement of RIETHIRE B g
financial position 412,674 252,374 - @
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RER A MR R T R B
in the consolidated statement of BERIEEE 2
financial position (882,851) (807,639) =
(470,177) (555,265)
297
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 29. & & B 1H (20
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FAORLEHBEENBENESHNT
the year are as follows:
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS i JE B IE &
Fair value
Arising adjustments
from arising from
provision acquisition of
for LAT subsidiaries Total
BB AR
EEBLTH EEZDAE
BEHRE AR @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(k3 AREFT AREFL AREFL
At 1 January 2014 20141 A1H 209,209 - 209,209
Credited to profit or loss FNFABE
during the year 10 47,215 - 47,215
Deemed disposal of R AR R IE
subsidiaries upon HERNBAA
loss of control 35 (4,050) - (4,050)

A At 31 December 2014 and #2014 128318 &

A 1 January 2015 201551718 252,374 - 252,374
& g Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A A 34(a) - 146,872 146,872
58 Credited to profit or loss EAOEIYN =E
2% :

28 during the year 10 13,428 - 13,428
=
gg, At 31 December 2015 #2015 12 A31H 265,802 146,872 412,674
=
2
B
o
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 29. i & B W (@)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES % B TE A iR
Fair value
Arising from adjustments
revaluation arising from
on investment acquisition of /\
properties subsidiaries Total
B I 8 ) 3
ELBRE EEZRAAE §
MEER HE @t "‘ig
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 :f‘;
(i3 ARETL AREFL AREFIL S
al
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 681,405 - 681,405
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wb — R B 2 34(0) - 13,060 13,060
Charged to profit or loss FREERAR
during the year 10 115,142 - 115,142 209
Deemed disposal of PSR R R By
subsidiaries upon RIEHEWBAR v
loss of control %5 (1,968) _ (1,968) \/
At 31 December 2014 and 120145124318 &
1 January 2015 20151 A1H 794,579 13,060 807,639
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKBAR 34(a) - 24,476 24,476
Charged to profit or loss FREERAR
during the year 10 50,736 - 50,736
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 845,315 37,536 882,851
The Group had unutilised tax losses of approximately REBR2015F12 A31 B A B AR
RMB713,924,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: BB ANR713,924,0007T (20144 = A
RMB479,708,000) that can be carried forward for five years R #479,708,0007T) * % L HiIEE B 7]
from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against FEETENFEREERT WEKHTR
future taxable profits of the tax entity in which the losses FIENREERRRNERBFE - AR
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for RRFEA AT BRME  WARMZEZERIE
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit E B ERIEETIIB & E (201445 1 #&) o
streams (2014: Nil).
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As 31 December 2015 and 2014, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will settle any dividends declared
on such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totaled approximately
RMB10,175,378,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB8,969,887,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

29. ¥ 1B JE (@)

RIEFT B ZERRBHE TR RERA
SNE D ERINRIREE T IR B BB
10%M) FE I #% © 5% #1 ' B200841 A1H #
A R I 200712 A1 BB EB N AT
HEA W B KPEEZEINRIEE E T
AVERE R A E T B IRA - BIAT R BR Y
EEMENMB A AREERZEE
Fh B K B X 32 A B /BB 2 5] B 200841 A1 H
BESHNAT SRR SEMATENG -

MR20154F &2014F12 A31H » WERL AL
] A H B K R B 37 B B B A R FE T B9 R
P BF (BEMNTET) MEEMNTEN
MERELEMIB-EFRA ZEMER
AR RBERIKAIgEEN R EART
TIRAER IR B - R20155F12H31H + I
ApEFRAENBERARERBENY
REEBEREEHBEEENEENAA
R #10,175,378,0007TC (2014 : AR ¥
8,969,887,0007T) °

AR AR RS REAEHRE

> B2 48R
AR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. fk &
SHARES & 12
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBFT /\
Authorised: JETE A
100,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 100,000,000,000/% &% HE &
HK$0.1 each B0 TR B 8,813,679 8,813,679 P
=3
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRETE: 7%
3,815,999,999 (2014: 3,455,999,999)  3,815,999,999% :E
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (20144 : 3,455,999,999) ?ﬁ
SREEBEATH =
TiER 324,472 296,439
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital REZE2015F12 A1 B ILFEARA R 2%
and share premium account during the year ended 31 AEBHmERSSMARMT 301

December 2015 is as follows:

Share

Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERITRAHA SRITRAK B R EE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETF ARETT
At 1 January 2015 1201561418 3,455,999,999 296,439 446,456 742,895
Interim 2014 dividend 20145 R HIRR 8. - - (442,687) (442,687)
Issue of shares (note) IR (M) 360,000,000 28,033 595,139 623,172
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12 4311 3,815,999,999 324,472 598,908 923,380

Note: In May 2015, an aggregate of 360,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued at the placing price of HK$2.2 per share for a
cash consideration of HK$792 million (RMB634 million) before
share expense of appropriately HK$779 million (RMB623
million). The Company intends to use the net proceeds for
possible investments in the future when opportunities arise.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 31 to
the financial statements.

MsE: 2015558 AR R & BB N
72 27T 3 17 4 $£360,000,0000% 3 8@
f% - AREUR @ REBE7.92(8L (AR
¥6.341870) (RIMBIRMHAL LB
7798 L (ARM6.23/B L) ) e ANAR]
BRBBEE LB EREREFER
RBERE -

Wi Mix

AR w8 RARBAT BB TT 2B IR
RRF BN B mRMEESD -

V
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors and other employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 24 May 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if
earlier.

31. B Mk AE s &)

RRrlRA—BERETS ([%FE]) -
EEMARNKBEER s KNNEEERZE
BRSEERFRE RSB ZtEl 26
BR2EERFEANFESTRAEEHM
B8 - st 202010 F5 524 H B A - Br
FEERUHSIEE] - BRI BEZ AR +F
NIRFFB R

IRIE L A 81 3R B AT % B0 (8 R 7T (8 S RSO
ZEEB RASRETERIERRAR
EAREZ D EITRN10%ZHE - HE
mM2EAMEAR TRt EZ2BUAE
RemREZBREZATETRNRSH
B UARBREAIEEZ 2 #TRM1%
BR o JUE — PR BRI R 2 BB g
BHERRRS BRI E -

BYARREE TR EBRER
HBEF BB A BREALE Y IENTT
EEERE LN REMT =@ A H
A WETFARAEEERRIELIEH
TEFIHETMHEA T WBERER
AR R EHE 2 BB TTARD0.1% 3R
BRAREASRARARBRHERAEZEE
B3B8 785,000,000t + A ZB BT R A I
REEFEkE-

RHOBEREZEZNOAARNELD B HES
“HNARABEEARAZNEZERESKE
BATLIR T DA - PRI h AR Z 1T (E
DHEFET ITREBHEHSR &R
TERBREZEL B + F a8
[Eim B E A (UREERE)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Hong Kong Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

31.

W M B a0

BEREZTEERESET  TBER
AT z8SE: (VA REIRONBRESE
HMBMERBBRIMZWHE: Ri)AR
ARMHNERZHOBERABARSAAER
BB P 2 YT E -

BB T T A AR B SRR
REWEZIERN -

AT BRERZBIET W ARTTRZBR
1

2015 2014
Weighted* Weighted*
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
o il
FOTKE  BREREA THEARE  BREHA
HK$ HKS
per share per share
BREMT BRABET
At 1 January ®1A1H 1.886 52,248,600 1.889 54,077,200
Granted during the year FRARS 1.892 16,445,000 - -
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.903 (5,804,000) 1.917 (1,828,600)
At 31 December RK12H31H 1.889 62,889,600 1.886 52,248,600

A >>
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. B AR BE S 3 o)
The exercise price and exercise period of the share options FA SRS HA R 45 R i R T 2 BE AR A 2 77
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as FEERITERABAT
follows:
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE TEE THEHE
HKS$ per share
2015 2014 HBRBE®R
16,551,840 16,813,440 1.875 01-01-2016 to 31-12-2022
3,288,000 4,086,000 1.930 01-01-2017 to 31-12-2023
5,316,000 - 1.892 21-01-2018 to 20-01-2025
12,413,880 12,610,080 1.875 01-01-2018 to 31-12-2022
2,466,000 3,064,500 1.930 01-01-2019 to 31-12-2023
3,987,000 - 1.892 21-01-2020 to 20-01-2025
12,413,880 12,610,080 1.875 01-01-2020 to 31-12-2022
2,466,000 3,064,500 1.930 01-01-2021 to 31-12-2023
3,987,000 - 1.892 21-01-2022 to 20-01-2025
62,889,600 52,248,600
Notes: B 5T
(@)  The fair value of the share options granted during the year was @ FTFAREMHNERELIAEARBE
/\ HK$2,329,000 (range from RMBO0.112 to RMB0.176 each) 2,329,0007C (N FH/HM ARBOI12TE
A (2014: Nil), of which the Group recognised a share option ARM0.1767T) (2014 : Z)  Fhitk -
expense of RMB3,959,000 (2014: RMB2,886,000) during the NEBRE E2015F12A31H L FE#E
L year ended 31 December 2015. 288 B B &2 AR #53,959,0007T (2014
=K F: AR¥2,886,0007T) °
59
=]
éjg The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during REAFERLHORETEEBERENQA
! the current year was estimated as at the date of grant, taking BERFELEREE ALEREDER
;i into account the terms and conditions upon which the options T VG M G T LAE T o NREFIFTHE
§ were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model FERIE 28
g used:
£
g‘ 2015 20154
(=}
Dividend vield (%) 10.260 AR R (%) 10.260
Expected volatility (%) 30.800 T8 AR 18 (%) 30.800
304 Historical volatility (%) 30.800 JFE 52K 118 (%) 30.800
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.430 47 3 B 1) 2 (%) 1.430
Expected life of options (year) 10.000 ERER R ETFE (F) 10.000
\/ Weighted average share price (HK$) 1.892 g RRAE (BT 1.892
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. Bk RESE 3 o)
Notes: (Continued) e : (&)
@  (Continued) (a) (%)
The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of ERERN AT FEAR VBRI LR
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility 1T R 12 o T8 HRIM 18 [ B JFF 52 )% 18 ] BB R
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative REBENRE  BNRAVAEBERER-
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into AEAAERTEFRERLEREZ
the measurement of fair value. HAnSFIE -
(o) At the end of the reporting period, the Company had (o) MIRMEEFLRE AR AN ZTEE

62,889,600 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 62,889,600 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of appropriately
RMB5,271,000 and share premium of RMB94,292,000
(before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 27 January
2016, a total of 19,790,000 share options were granted to
certain of the directors and employees of the Company in
respect of their services to the Group in the forthcoming year.
40%, 30% and 30% of the share options will be vested on
27 January 2019, 27 January 2021 and 27 January 2023,
respectively. These share options have an exercise price of
HK$1.812 per share and an exercise period ranging from
27 January 2019 to 27 January 2026. The price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$1.76 per
share.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 81,649,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 2% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

T 562,889,60017 i f% # A & 1T {F - IR
BARNRREEARNZER BHITE R
1718 B8 A% 4 #% 8 B 38 H) 35 7762,889,600
B AN A R AR N E RN A A
R#5,271,000c kB aEARE
94,292,0007T ( RINBREITHZ) ©

R ERE R A RE%Z  K2016F1A27
B AEERAR—FESZRIEAAR
AIBETEERREBEEA $£19,790,00013
B R - Z M IR 2 40% ~ 30% & 30%
1% 5 BIIR201941 527 H ~ 202141 27
HK2023F1 A27HSRE -2 S BRE Y
1TEEB AT MBE1.8127T 1TEH
N F201941 27 H £20265F1527H »
REHBHARRRG ZERBERS
#1.767T ©

REZEVHRRELEZR ARAE
81,649,00010 #% 7t &I 28 T~ i K17 (£ 8
B - HEREBARASHEITHRM L
2% °

Trelydy L — %~
1237 20 B 46) 30 3 ot >>
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32. RESERVES

33.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

M

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory
surplus reserve were made in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC, and were approved by the respective boards
of directors.

CAPITAL RESERVE

Certain amount of gain or loss arising on the acquisition
of non-controlling interests and disposal of the Group’s
subsidiaries without loss of control was recognised as
capital reserve.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

32. 1k

33.

AEERAER RBEEENREELER
HEDIMRGARREDE -

i 5 BB ik i
ARBFBEEETEERBEET
14 o B0 48 B4R R FOE AR DA R A
[ 75 o B ST O B R R 0 4 A B
RAAIEE WEMEENESTL
o

)

% A fik fi

T L B 342 R 4 35 T ) 5 A S
BAR CREXZHE) MELNE
FRENERFRRERBE R
e

A
Wt

EDNE XY AR |
JB A%

oL

#
%

al

BEERIEEREZNAEENB AR
BT

2015 2014
Percentage of equity interest held by HRIEERERIEAN
non-controlling interests: fRER DL :
Yuzhou Seaview 2NEF = - 20%
Hefei Shunzhou L 51% 51%
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIESWITH 33. #iffi & kS I 2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 5 It B 2~ ) ()
INTERESTS (Continued)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to D ELE IR R = A
non-controlling interests: wmAl (EE)
Yuzhou Seaview 28 - 96,571
Hefei Shunzhou & s (9,152) (3,083)
Accumulated balances of MR B EFEIERR A=A
non-controlling interests at ZEtHER:
reporting dates:
Yuzhou Seaview NG - 485,407
Hefei Shunzhou A e zE M 602,848 608,917

)X E T >>
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH  33.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

31 December 2015 20154 12 B 31 A

X
& W

)HHST =

KIS MR 2
NE

&
J& 2 ) (41)

o

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRIREMMB AR 2 HBEERTE -
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed it EeBEAIKRTMERRR R MK
are before any inter-company eliminations: HE R
Hefei
Shunzhou
SR
RMB’000
ARE TR
2015 20154
Revenue A -
Total expenses X 4858 (11,899)
Loss for the year FEEE (11,899)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FETHEBELE (11,899)
Current assets MEEE 2,755,481
Non-current assets IEMENEE 4
Current liabilities nEaE (1,573,431)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE -
Net cash flows from operating activities KEREHEREMEFE 250,979
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEZSHFARSREF5E (315,177)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHMERE 255 99,987
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HWe MRS EMEINFERE 35,789
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIESWITH 33. i & AR Mk 2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING EMfEAE (HF)
INTERESTS (Continued)
Yuzhou Hefei
Seaview Shunzhou
BMERR AN A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTIT -
2014 20144 :}ﬁ%
=
Revenue ON 2,787,978 - e
Total expenses s 4858 (2,354,614) (6,046) %
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF, (EE) 433,364 (6,046)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2EWES (EE) @858
for the year 433,364 (6,046)
Current assets mENEE 4,861,394 2,017,955
Non-current assets EmEEE 262,383 5 309
Current liabilities MENBE (1,851,622) (574,005)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (845,120) (250,000) v
Net cash flows from/(used in) KRG (BTA) \/
operating activities HeneEFaE 808,480 (1,433,934)
Net cash flows used in HEEHMAREREFRE
investing activities (8,111) (504,253)
Net cash flows from financing activities Bt E EBFTEIR & REFHE 99,648 1,966,671
Net increase in cash and ReRReEEY
cash equivalents HAERE 905,017 28,484
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In April 2015, the Group acquired a 55% interest in
Fujian Big World Huaxia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Fujian Big World Huaxia”). After the completion
of the acquisition, Fujian Big World Huaxia became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Fujian Big
World Huaxia is engaged in property development
in Fuzhou, the PRC. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand market share
of property development in Fuzhou. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of
cash of RMB678,019,000 which had been fully paid at
the acquisition date.

In November 2015, the Group acquired a 27.8%
interest in Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) Eastern Town
(“Hefei Eastern Town”). After the completion of the
acquisition, Hefei Eastern Town became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Hefei Eastern Town
is engaged in property development in Hefei, the
PRC. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand market share of property
development in Hefei. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash of
RMB803,469,000 which had been fully paid at the
acquisition date.

R20155F4 F - A& BB Z AT
REEFMEARAR ([FREAHY
REE ) M55% - NI EET
PRi& - RIEAMREERBAEE 2
E2EMB AR - EEAMREERS
BEMNEEMRBEREH - WBFEA
RAREBEAREMNDERRTIS
MM R — 80 - WE =
HZBERECRWBARNES
A E#678,019,0007T & H & it

R20156F 11 A REBEBERIMNE %
(BR)RMARAE ([GREH])
B27.8% M 7 o IR UL BB F B ST A 1% -
BIERRKALEE 2 2EHBA
Al AIERBNPEE BN EERE
BEK - WEEFBEARNEEREANRE
M EERTISH TS0 E 2R
W—Ho WESE2BEREESR
Uz B8 B HRLAIE © A R 803,469,000
TAEHE T
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Fujian Big World Huaxia and Hefei Eastern Town as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

34. W B BB A B ()

£% 40 (50

BREAMAES REREEMMNUE
BHAEANEERBEZARERN
—F:

(a)

Fair value recognised on acquisition

AUEEERAZANE
Fujian Big  Hefei Eastern
World Huaxia Town Total
BRAHREE EERY @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 ARBTT ARBT ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment 9%+ = &% & 13 1,783 877 2,660
Investment properties REME 14 12,700 - 12,700
Deferred tax assets EERERE 29 127,458 19,414 146,872
Properties under development  EZE#W % 1,603,100 2,811,500 4,414,600
Properties held for sales BIEHERRNME 196,254 - 196,254
Prepayments, deposit and BRREER
other receivables it KR 193,533 1,335,796 1,529,329
Cash and bank balances B RFTHER 294,262 306,282 600,544
Trade payables BHREMNIA (356,058) (560,112) (916,170)
Other payables and accruals ~ E B FUE R BT & (12,655) (157,781) (170,436)
Receipts in advance A (369,336) (1,813,251) (2,182,587
Corporate income tax payables [EfH 1 7157 (3,085) - (3,085)
Provision for land T EREE
appreciation tax 28 (6,162) - (6,162)
Deferred tax liabilities ERTEAE 29 (24,476) - (24,476)
Interest-bearing bank AERITEE
borrowings (190,000) - (190,000)
Total identifiable net assets DWARESRZ
at fair value AHNEEFERE 1,467,338 1,942,725 3,410,063
Gain on bargain purchase, SEWE 2 E
net of loss on remeasurement  EFFFER —HAE AR
of a pre-existing interest EERRZFBE
in a joint venture 5 (128,356) - (128,356)
Goodwill HE 15 - 264,666 264,666
1,338,982 2,207,391 3,546,373
Satisfied by: ANy ESEE
Cash Re 678,019 803,469 1,481,488
Reclassification from a BRAEERE
pre-existing interest ERERENNE
in joint ventures ZRIMBARMNERE
to investment in
subsidiaries 660,963 1,403,922 2,064,885
1,338,982 2,207,391 3,046,373
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. W B BB A B ()
(Continued)
(a) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) (a) ¥%a 050
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the WA AER RE BRI
acquisition of Fujian Big World Huaxia and Hefei ReREoMoT :

Eastern Town is as follows:

Fujian Big Hefei Eastern

World Huaxia Town
FEAEREE EERHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Cash consideration ReRE (678,019) (803,469)
Cash and cash equivalents FrkER e RIREEED
acquired 294,262 306,282
Net outflow of cash and cash AR EIEE)
equivalents included in cash FIEEREREL
flows from investing activities HeRReEEBMRLFEE (383,757) (497,187)
Notes: B 5
0] Since the acquisition, Fujian Big World Huaxia and Hefei 0] B URBELAZK - IRE 22015912 A 31
Eastern Town contributed revenue of RMB707,829,000 AEFE RBEAHREZEREE
/\ and RMB932,274,000 to the Group’s turnover and R RIMAER 2 B EEAERUK
profit of RMB235,187,000 and RMB185,266,000 to A AR ¥707,829,0007T & A R ¥
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 932,274,0007T & M 4R & FH & B
o 2015, respectively. FE A R #235,187,000t R A R
£ #185,266,0007T °
e
&% . I
et (i) Had the combination taken place at the beginning of iy MAEHRBYEET AEEH
gg the period, the revenue and the profit of the Group for FAZWARTBESE DRI AA
5o the year would have been RMB10,375,501,000 and R #10,375,501,0007C & A R ¥
g RMB1,620,560,000, respectively. 1,620,560,0007T °
<
o
)
<
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. W B MHB 2 (a)
(Continued)
(b) ACQUISITION OF AN ASSET (b) Wk —TE & E

In August 2014, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
for the acquisition of the entire issued capital of Great
Bloom Holdings Limited (“Great Bloom”) and the
assignment of shareholder’s loan to Great Bloom at
an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$374 million (approximately RMB299 million).
As at the date of acquisition, Great Bloom had not
carried out any significant business transactions
except for holding a residential building in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the transaction is not accounted for as a
business combination but an acquisition of an asset.
The acquisition was completed in October 2014 and
Great Bloom then became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

2014568 H  AEEE —EBBFBIE
=RV EERH A EENAE
B & KRB 48 #374,000,0007T (4
A R #299,000,0007T ) Ut B Great
Bloom Holdings Limited ([ Great
Bloom]) 2z 22 EITRA KM
Great Bloom#2 i i% 3 & 8 - iU EE
SEAH BRREBSRE EEZKE
4N Great Bloomill’ £ # 17 {£ {a] 82 X
¥BR G Bt ZBERHWIIER
(%A MEEAUE—EHEEA
AR Z M =1 2 20145108 78
X » H 14 Great BloomfX & A& £ E 2
2EMB AR
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35. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF

35.7‘%‘ & W R I A0 i

SUBSIDIARIES UPON LOSS OF /|
CONTROL
2014
Notes RMB’000
K=2 ARBTT
Net assets deconsolidated: BUBtRE c EEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W W E ks 13 3,218
Investment properties mEYE 14 13,200
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBEEE 29 4,050
Properties held for sale HIEHEWE 161,725
Properties under development e 3,489,908
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables TER 30 12 & R E b FE R GRTE 88,512
Cash and bank balances Be MB1THES 714,393
Trade payables B RN FIE (122,350)
Other payables and accruals E B RIB R ERTE R (1,379,927)
Receipts in advance TR SR TE (617,972)
Corporate income tax payables FET R ZEFRIS R (27,587)
Provision for land appreciation tax T b IE(E TR B 28 (10,147)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE 29 (1,968)
2,315,055
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries PR AT B R AR AE
upon loss of control HENB AR ZEE 7 (119,825)
Reclassification from interests in subsidiaries BRI E QA 2 EmEH DA
to investments in joint ventures EREERNAIZKRE 2,195,230
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35. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES UPON LOSS OF
CONTROL (Continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the deemed disposal of subsidiaries upon loss of
control is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
W % s

35. B Sk % ) RE B AL AR B
JB A 8 (4)

BHERKEESIEERIELENBARZ
HeReSEYRTFBEZTOT

2014
RMB’000
AREEF T
Cash and bank balances deconsolidated and BUB#r A 2B RIRITHEHR K
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BREARKEEHERRIELE
respect of the deemed disposal of ﬁﬁ% AZIRE K
subsidiaries upon loss of control ReFEYRL T (714,393)
36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 36. Bt ¥ # fx
The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the AEBRFEHEERSFOTHEERD
end of the reporting period: R
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARMBF T
Guarantees in respect of AREBEMER
the mortgage facilities provided to ETERRMHIZBER
certain purchasers of the Group’s i VE BV PE R
properties 9,239,472 6,573,776

As at 31 December 2015, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default on mortgage payments by
these purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any
auction proceeds as described below.

MR2015F 128318 REE A TIRITHE
P EBEALAEEMENETERLHN
RIBERMIZBRME REER  RIEER
B Wz S ERRIEREMATREEES
RIBHIE AAEEAEEEENERRK
MIBITTHREEEBACERETF B

R EVF BRI R T Tt A E TSR
17 o
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by these
purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open
auction. The Group is responsible for repaying the banks
when the proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot
cover the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties. In addition, according to the
relevant agreements signed by certain subsidiaries of the
Group with the banks, property purchasers of the Group
can arrange mortgage with these banks and the subsidiaries
are required to place at designated bank accounts certain
amounts as deposits for potential default of mortgage
loans advanced to property purchasers. Such guarantee
deposits will be released after the property ownership
certificates of the relevant properties have been passed to
the bank. At 31 December 2015, such deposits amounted to
RMB189,738,000 (2014: RMB161,556,000) (note 21(c)(ii)).

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance
of real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which
will generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant, and in case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.
Therefore, no provision for the guarantees has been made in
the financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s banks loans and senior notes which
are secured by the assets of the Group are included in note
26(a) and note 27 to the financial statements respectively.

36.

37.

W B 9 1R can)

BIEA L EEMECIEARIRBER
PR MIERTRT WZEER K
BERIBHE ARTEEERETE
B WKBEBRARMBESRKBEYE - 2
EHBEMBREEERMAAREENZBAR
SEREFFEREFE  ARNEEES
BRRITIER LA IRIBASE S THWE
ARBERTEENEBHZE XE5END
X¥BRULTHAZERITIZIE ZEHEB
NAEEBETEENRIET AETRITER
F {ERBEWMEERER L TIRITIZE
BERMZES ZERRIESEBNBEME
MEEFERRTIRITE S 0B - R2015F
12A318 ' &% e A AR189,738,000
7T (20144« A R #161,556,0007T) (Fff
21 (c)i)) °

AEE 2 EROBRBARZBERZH
HEEMERBRLFER /L —RME
REFWBRZ —EMFAR-

ARREZRR/AZERRNANELTE
KB FORBE N FIR - M E A
HBIRFERNEHEEMRIEBASER
RN B BB Bt BRI E
REZFERELEE-

& 7 K A

AAREEEEFEERNAEBRITERR
BREEFBED BIBN Y oK M 7E26(a)
Ko fff&E27 -
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

38. BEME L

AS LESSOR (a) fERMHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) AEBERBLELEHELHHAER
under operating lease arrangements, with leases B (WE14) - HEIRE RN T
negotiated for terms ranging from one to 15 years. The FE15FTE - ZFHERNBER—RIP
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to ZREMAZINTRES T RIEE H
pay security deposits and to provide for periodic rent KIS AR T E S -
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had PSR 25 HA R A5 SR IS+ 2N = AR R B
total future minimum lease receivables under non- T AFT LR 5178 B A ) AR A9 1 ]
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due B EHEm BRI R R&EDHE
as follows: DEFEMT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBF T
Within one year 1F RN 141,387 48,743
In the second to fifth years, PENSEIN
inclusive (BREEREMF) 318,417 10,911
459,804 59,654
AS LESSEE (b) fEREMA

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

AEEREGEEETHBAET
MRENE - BEREE AN T1ESE
T

REREERE > ARERER T
JIHEAR B AR EEEHE
MM RKZOHESEBENAT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within one year 1FR 5,925 2,275
In the second to fifth years, 2E5F K

inclusive (RIEEREMTF) 8,769 827

14,694 3,102

A >>
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39. CAPITAL AND OTHER 39. & A& K H ik i
COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B RF B SR REG8 () B AT & FE B A
note 38(b) above, the Group had the following capital and SN REBRBEAMEREHERARE
other commitments as at the end of the reporting period: AN
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBF T
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESIEESE
Investment properties under ERREMER
construction and properties ey ES
under development 5,351,102 3,363,412
Acquisition of land use rights U s b (5 R AR 2,098,786 4,029,965
Acquisition of a project company WiE—MIEE A A 179,460 221,460
7,629,348 7,614,837
In addition, the Group’s share of joint ventures’ own capital AN REE RS 2 R RTER B E A K
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as E(ARBEREXOHIWT:
follows:
2015 2014
/\ RMB’000 RMB’000
A AR¥T T ARBTT
Contracted, but not provided for BETLBARBE 145,372 253,054
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during
the year:

40. HEFT R 5

@)

BREZSVHRREMEBY FAH
SRR 5 R AEERIN - F R B LR
BB

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T
Service fees paid to TR FEPFMEEEEZE
Xiamen Zongheng Group BRATA
Communication Management ([EEEAA]W
Co., Ltd. (“Zongheng Rk 7% &
Communication Management
Co.”) 43,570 3,303

The service fees were incurred for the design,
installation and testing of house entrance intelligence
systems provided by Zongheng Communication
Management Co. in relation to properties held for
sale, at rates similar to the terms and conditions set
out in the contracts entered into with the other major
suppliers of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the directors
and the chief executive officer of the Company
represented the key management personnel of the
Group and details of the compensation of the key
management personnel are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

As at the end of the reporting period, certain
other borrowings of the Group in the amount of
RMB1,255,243,000 (2014: RMB1,198,670,000) were
guaranteed by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok, directors of
the Company, and secured by a share charge over
829,094,400 shares in the Company held by Mr. Lam
and Ms. Kwok.

ZRIEE RAEE X DB R EH
ERENMERNEEMIERRD
Rt RRMARER BRRESR
AEBEAEMTEHERRING
IR BT IR B AR AR

AEBEEEEEABRFB

RABEERR ARARESZRITH
BEEASENTIREEEEAS =
REEBAENHFMFRHNMG
AT ES

RIS RE  KQATE S
EERBRLTAAEENSE T HA
B8 AR#1,255,243,0007T (2014
F: AR#1,198,670,0007T ) 1F H #&
R TAMREERBLEMFED
829,094,4000% 28 2 B Bz 17 LA B 17 #7
T B

A >>
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40.

41.

42.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) As at the end of the reporting period, certain bank
and other borrowings of the Group in the amount
of RMB72,250,000 (2014: RMB87,600,000) were
guaranteed by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, all financial
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 were loans and receivables and financial liabilities
stated at amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 approximate to their fair
values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of deposits
and other receivables, derivative financial instruments,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group uses fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
financial instruments which comprise derivative financial
instruments were measured at fair value and determined as
level 2 financial instruments.

40.

41.

42.

31 December 2015 20154 12 B 31 A

BT R 5 )

d RB|EBBERE 2BAAR
#72,250,0007T (20145 : AR
87,600,0007T) 2 ANEEH FR1TE
HREMEERNEERDLTIR
IR

EENE eI R

BrEF IR M 25T IR BN D B AR AR
BREZPLENeREENITESRT
B 4N 20154 K2014F12 8310 K&
ErfEcmEERAED B AEHEE
WA RIZE KR AR R A E -

M ITRMALTHRALH
J& %

R2015%F K2014F12 A31H » NEBE 4 &l
TEMEEEREQAARBERE

EEEN TR REMEKRE - TES
MTE ZRHBES REMREFEY-
BHRENRA HENRBERESE
ASAERTEFREBEENAAER
BHENREERS TRZFTAHREK

g o

AEEBETAFEESCRMTAENARER

ERERYRSARBEEEATEY
AREABBEYH T EESBEHRBER Y
HEFEFNE Z RS E - 2015912 531
A AEEepmT A(BETESHTA)
IR AREE WEEBTASHESHT
Ho
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at
fair value other than derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2015.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2015.

For the Group’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial position but
for which the fair value is disclosed, the carrying amounts
of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings approximate to their fair values and
determined as Level 3, and the fair value of the senior notes
was RMB5,573,478,000 (2014: RMB6,799,894,000) and
determined as Level 1.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The fair value of the senior
notes is calculated with reference to price quotations from
financial institutions at the reporting date. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2015 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The details of the valuation technique and the inputs used
in the fair value measurement of investment properties and
derivative financial instruments have been disclosed in note
14 and note 25, respectively.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2014: Nil).

2. ¢ TRMATHRALH

J& & (m)

BROTESm T AN RERENK2015F 127
SIRBWELAZARBFENSREE-

AREBR2015F12 A31 B W ET[IR AR
B ENEmalE-

REBRERE M BARRET AL IEAR A
HERBBEHAAENEERABE FHEA
RITERREMEEIENAR S WEEE
HENAERE TEBTAFEIMR-EL
EENANERAREES573,478,0007T
(20144 : AR ¥56,799,894,0007T ) * i %
EBERFEIL-

ATERITERREMEEIENEBINA
B TIATEHAAR R &7 - F B A SR EUE
FEERRMFE ST EARITAHER
TEMAERBRMAE - BAZEBNHAR
EN2EREDSABERETEMS-
MR2015F12A31 8 AEBEH R EIET
BERMEMEENE FTRARBRETS
TEK-

BEMERITES R TENBETERA
AETENEAREES S BIRH 145
Bt 5259 55 o

FA-REREENERAENS  ANE
AAETENFIRAFT 2R WELER
TR A S FE3MH (20145 - &) o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other borrowings and cash and short term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of
land held for property development for sale, investment
properties, properties under development and properties held
for sale. In the event of a severe downturn in the property
market, these assets may not be readily realised.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Other than deposits held at banks, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were
held at banks in Mainland China at the same saving rate
as unrestricted deposits throughout the year. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings
with floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk,
and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

43. B A By i B A B R K BOR

AEENTESHITABRERITREME
EURBRSRERER - ZFERTAN
TZENEBPAREEREEES A
SEGRAESREAMEREERAE W
MREPEREENE S RN KA

AEENESRM T ARSI EZRER ST
SRk - MXRER - MNERR  EERR K
mBMRR EEeEHNLFAEABER
BIEZERAROBR - ZBam T o

i 5 & by
AEBEENEENAARENENTY
ERBN LI RENE EENERS
{EHERBRNME - EMED B+ 5 ER
MERT ZEAEAETHER -

EY
AEENABOBWARKLRAERETT
TSN REFFTE - RI/ITHERZIN K
SETESEAFEEE - REEAFEAN
B RBE SRTT IR H 7 5K B IE X2 IR il 77 5K
B B N R AR R - A 5% [ P A T 35 A R
FEAER T EEARERT BN EGE
MIRTT R EMERR R - AEE W EEH
EAIF Ry A SR BRI R a2 - M R
B 15 E B R EAM KRR -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax. There is no material impact on
other components of the Group’s equity.

43. M B E e & B A B R R BUR
()

Al % i By (@)
TEHPEREEMEEEBRTENER
T+ 32 HA RS 4 o B AN £ [ R R AT R D
FIRA DA AL E B GRS - A= @R
MEMBHOTREEATE.-

Increase/ Effect
(decrease) in on profit
basis points before tax
#m, Od) HBRBL AT
HEE FERE e
RMB’000
ARBFT

2015 20154

Renminbi AR 50 (29,524)
Renminbi AR (50) 29,524

Hong Kong dollar ok 50 (2,325)
Hong Kong dollar ok (50) 2,325

United States dollar ETT 50 (2,201)
United States dollar EP (50) 2,201

2014 20144

Renminbi AR 50 (20,854)
Renminbi AR (50) 20,854

Hong Kong dollar B 50 (1,848)
Hong Kong dollar B (50) 1,848
United States dollar eV 50 (3,446)
United States dollar eV (50) 3,446
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

All of the Group’s turnover and substantially all of the
Group’s operating expenses are denominated in RMB,
which is currently not a freely convertible currency. The
PRC Government imposes controls on the convertibility
of RMB into foreign currencies and, in certain cases, the
remittance of currency out of Mainland China. Shortages in
the availability of foreign currencies may restrict the ability
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to remit sufficient foreign
currencies to pay dividends or other amounts to the Group.

Under the existing PRC foreign exchange regulations,
payments of current account items, including dividends,
trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, can
be made in foreign currencies without prior approval from
the State Administration for the Foreign Exchange Bureau by
complying with certain procedural requirements. However,
approval from appropriate PRC governmental authorities
is required where RMB is to be converted into a foreign
currency and remitted out of Mainland China to pay capital
account items, such as the repayment of bank and other
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

Currently, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries may purchase
foreign currencies for settlement of current account
transactions, including payment of dividends to the
Company, without prior approval of the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
may also retain foreign currencies in their current accounts to
satisfy foreign currency liabilities or to pay dividends. Since
foreign currency transactions on the capital account are still
subject to limitations and require approval from the State
Administration for Foreign Exchange Bureau, this could affect
the Group’s subsidiaries’ ability to obtain required foreign
exchange through debt or equity financing, including by
means of loans or capital contributions from the Company.

43. B A By i B A B R K BOOR

(80)

o W Bt
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MIARBEHE MARBBAXIEAA B
AR ER - P BEBA L H AR L #%
AINER (RMFEBRT) BEBE LD E
R BE b DN I o AT PR SIS ) 5 1R mT BE FR I
AR EE BB BB R REE R SN LA
RER B SR S E R IA R BE

RIFRANFBESNEER  EHERER K
[k (BREEE - B 5 M AR ER A SNE
RF)EETETRRFERKIEA AIMNE
7 MEBEABRINEEIERHE LI E-
AT - AR SR R HNEE R B AR B K
FELAX M EARRIE B (LU fEI&E PASMNE R
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities including certain
amounts due from/to related parties denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, certain short term deposits denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and certain bank and other borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars are subject to foreign currency risk. Therefore, the
fluctuations in the exchange rates of RMB against foreign
currencies could affect the Group’s results of operations.

A reasonably possible appreciation of 1% in the exchange
rate of the Hong Kong dollar or United States dollar against
the Renminbi would have material impact on the Group’s
profit during the year and this would result in an increase in
other components of the Group’s equity by RMB60,179,000
(2014: increase of RMB66,360,000) in 2015.

CREDIT RISK

It is the Group’s policy that all customers are required to
pay deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In
addition, the Group does not have any significant credit risk
as the credit given to any individual or corporate entity is not
significant. There is no significant concentration of credit risk
within the Group.

On top of the credit risk arising from the financial guarantees
provided by the Group as detailed in note 36, the credit risk
of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly comprise
cash and short term deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

43. W A by &

LY RERE Y Y@
(#)

Ah s R By (450

AEENSHEAEREE (BENEET

B RN, FET RIS & T 208 RUAB

SHEME TR B SR S RETHE
MEFRTERR L E) BETINE

B o L+ AR B 3 5 s i O SR B
A EREBMMELEE-

BERETEARBZENERNEE
A LEA1% BEHFRRNEEHFBHE
EERYE BEHR2015F RN EBiER
#Y L i 48 X BB 90 18 hn A R #60,179,0007T
(20144 : # 0 A R #66,360,0007T) °

f5 & o b
MAEFBENERARNES WWAK
EE OB - Lo R T AEMEAR
AAEBNEEEEYTEN HALH
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. B B e B B A B OBE R WK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#)
LIQUIDITY RISK i B & 2 A by
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s business, ARASEENEBBRERT &R K&
the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit ERREFTENE e REEBELRE
lines to meet its liquidity requirements. The Group’s objective MBESFER - AEEEBERAEERER
is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and fﬁﬁg\?ﬂ&ﬁ@fﬁ% LESEFBER
flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings. BRM ARG &l REEINME
In addition, banking facilities are available for contingency BRITMENEYNEETEH - ARRIES
purposes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RAE AEEREBRENEERNE
Group will have adequate sources of funding to finance its HEmERERERBESMMA -

operation needs and manage its liquidity position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REEFHERNASESREEN R
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual A (AEAETHBRMIBN R AERE) N
undiscounted payments, was as follows: N
At 31 December 2015
R2015612831H
On demand
or within In the Beyond
1year secondyear 3to5years 5 years Total
REX
FIER $2FER 3Z5F 54 E Foy

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARHTR AR®TR ARBTR ARET:R

g Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings it BSRITEFR R EMEE 4,876,092 2326470 10,114,428 140,576 17,457,566
=

S-%u Senior notes BREE 499,876 499,876 6,573,855 - 7,573,607
g Trade payables BAEMNTIE 5,050,971 1,245,793 - - 6,296,764
é‘- Other payables and accruals HitENZIERENER 5,825,065 - - - 5,825,065
(@]

Q

g 16,252,004 4,072,139 16,688,283 140,576 37,153,002
<

5 Financiel guarantees issued: BEHBBRR

2 Maximum amount guaranteed (note 36) B @124 %8 (fi{:136) 9,239,472 - - - 9,230,472
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43. B A By B A B K BOOR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) &2 A s
At 31 December 2014
#2014F12A31R
On demand
or within In the Beyond
1year secondyear 3to5 years 5 years Total
FIER E2ER REE:S 5L Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT ARBTx
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings it BRITER R EMEE 4,353,282 2134870 3,291,346 183987 9,963,485
Senior notes BAEE 666,381 666,381 7,951,470 - 9,284,232
Trade payables ECl B 2,784,053 906,075 - - 3,690,128
Other payables and accruals HiENTERESER 3,870,987 - - - 3,870,987
11,674,703 3,707,326 11,242,816 183,987 26,808,832
Financial guarantees issued: ERELMBER:
Maximum amount guaranteed (note 36) B EREE (M336) 6,573,776 - - - 6573776
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT EAEH

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

AEEEAERNEEZRRIEERARE
FEKENR #RRBRENEARL R
SEARD ARRBRRGEREKEH -

AEEEEEENRREL FEEEMNRN
EEHHAFLHAE  RERAHBREAR
B AEEAREHEN TRRAOKE &
BERNTRRABTHR - AKETZAE
SN B A E AR BSKATARIR - F R E 2
BEANBR BRIBEFLEBETAES-

A >>

Wy ol
(113730 B4 3
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors working capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by the total equity of the
Company. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and senior notes less cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

43. M B E e & A B R R BUR
(4)

BEAEH (4)
AEEEREAABELEEREELS
S E DIRESFER UKD R e
Wi E BB ERET A RTERRE
wiEEREL=E BARERSRES
SEYAZRGIE S - PBRE HIR E R S
BRBELEMT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT ARBF T

Interest-bearing bank and FTERITER R

other borrowings HEmEE 14,616,240 8,665,848
Senior notes BAEER 5,466,883 6,738,562
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReRkReEEY (10,973,268) (9,295,977)
Less: Restricted cash B X RAIR e (975,525) (488,765)
Net debt B H5E 8,134,330 5,619,668
Total equity of the Company KRR BEE 10,241,355 9,389,799
Gearing ratio BEARGELE 79.4% 59.9%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@ On 27 January 2016, the Company granted
19,790,000 share options under its share option
scheme to certain directors and employees of the
Group, as set out in note 31(b) to the financial
statements.

(b) On 25 February 2016, the Company redeemed in full
the 2013 China Life Bonds at the redemption price
equal to its aggregate principal amount multiplied by
103.75% together with all accrued and unpaid interest.
Further details are set out in note 26(b)(i).

44. ;R E M E F R

@ 201651 A27H AR AIBIEEE
RiETERMASEETEERES
% 1119,790,00017 BE A 7 (FFIBER
B SRR M 5E31(0) ) ©

(b) MR201642H25H AR AL ELE
(FHERERE REEFELA03.75%5
META ER M AR FLR) BEE D
2013F R HES - E—F BN
FE26(b)() ©
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45. & 7 8] Z B %k %

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

B BAR R BRI E B A R P IS AR
ZEREINT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014 /\
RMB’000 RMB’000 A
ARET R ARETIT
)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE §
Property, plant and equipment I ERN YR 99,284 99,881 M
Interest in a subsidiary R—EMREAFRERE 1 1 i‘ﬁ
Total non-current assets FERBEEHLE 99,285 99,882 ?ﬁ
oy
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JEUS BT JB R R FR 0B 7,642,715 8,028,113
Prepayments, deposits and other AR EZE R
receivables E fth fE W Fk08 1,426 1,355
Derivative financial instruments TESIT A 46,095 84,998
Restricted cash FRETES 12,088 5,886 329
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 330,624 1,906,802 v
Total current assets MEEELE 8,032,948 10,027,154 \/
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HMENFIBERESER 183,284 280,205
Due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B R RIFRIE 1,247,858 777,450
Interest-bearing bank and other STEHRITERK
borrowings HMEE 748,537 782,185
Total current liabilities MEBEERS 2,179,679 1,839,840
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 5,853,269 8,187,314
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBAERE
LIABILITIES 5,952,554 8,287,196
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITR
borrowings HiEE 1,255,243 1,475,285
Senior notes BREERE 5,466,883 6,738,562
Total non-current liabilities R EEEEE 6,722,126 8,213,847
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFR) EESE (769,572) 73,349
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 324,472 296,439
Reserves & (1,094,044) (223,090)
Total equity T BT (769,572) 73,349
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45. A% w2z KRR )
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Btz -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARARHBERSN 0T
Retained
Share Share Exchange profits/
premium option fluctuation (accumulated Total
account reserve reserve losses)
R4 BRE HNERE RENE/
BER 1 e (REER) @t

RMB'000O ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETRZ ARBTL ARETZ ARBTE

Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014F1 BB 2 % 1,216,111 2,178 (166,712)  (1,225,998) (174,421)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2ANEHE - - (4,412) 357,636 353,224
Equity-settled share option arrangements DR T MERE T8 - 2,886 - - 2,886
Final 2013 dividend 2013E R (404,779) - - - (404,779)
At 31 December 2014 Ro014%E12 318 811,332 5064 (171,124)  (868,362)  (223,090)
Interim 2014 dividend 2014FHH R 8 (442,687) - - - (442,687)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2ANGEHE - - (21,026)  (1,006,339)  (1,027,365)
Issue of shares Bk 595,139 - - - 595,139
Equity-settled share option arrangements PARE R S BE AR A 2 T - 3,959 - - 3,959
At 31 December 2015 Ro015%12 8318 963,784 9,023 (192,150)  (1,874701) (1,004,044
A 46. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 46. b 2 #
As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, BN TS R I FE2 2f T — SR A R
] due to the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies AFRETEARRGRD ($622%) &
- Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current year, the M HmsE THE RERNZS RIKE
g presentation and disclosures of certain items and balances in ETFEBIINHAFHAE - BETHERSED
= the financial statements have been revised to comply with the TEI UNAAFEZ2 RFE-

new requirements. Certain comparative amounts have been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and

¢10
poyur| Aeduroy) sentadold noyzng

disclosures.
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 47. it e B &k
330 STATEMENTS
v The financial statements were approved and authorised for EE= g R201643 308 Hit /& IF 5% 4 1| 5
\/ issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2016. BFF5 Rk o




Five Year Financial Summary

5 B M

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements, is set out below:

NTRREERBERBMBFEENFEEINARL
EE ABERESRE DHRACTRLEEZ
FAF R

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARET:
RESULTS E4
REVENUE WA 10,375,501 7,836,633 7,470,608 3,893,836 3,839,076
Cost of sales HEMTR (6,666,178)  (4,991,860)  (5,151,527)  (2,350,771)  (1,954,615)
Gross profit ER 3,709,323 2,844,773 2,319,081 1,543,065 1,884,461
Fair value gains/(losses) REWELLE
on investment properties, net W/ (BB 38 202,942 487,130 617,459 (132,386) 478,180
Fair value gain on derivative TEeRIAY
financial instruments DRERE 44,583 6,334 62,976 15,078 -
Other income and gains Hiol A\ R 235,379 75,230 142,157 53,356 93,366
Seling and distribution costs HERDHEKA (288,573) (191,541) (182,027) (108,361) (116,356)
Administrative expenses THAX (296,097) (228,076) (214,855) (176,325) (159,762)
Other expenses Hiof% (73,068) (127,185) (1,548) 4,127) (5,196)
Finance costs BEMK (349,040) (175,438) (277,471) (154,546) (156,238)
Share of profits and losses of ElEEe N AERFE
joint ventures, net (41,965) 356 (2,826) (3,174) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A0 A8 3,143,484 2691583 2462946 1032580 2,018,455
Income tax s (1,475,294)  (1,328,513) (971,354) (308,071)  (1,025,247)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFH 1,668,190 1,363,070 1,491,502 724,509 993,208
Attributable to: DA T REL -
Owners of the parent SRREEA 1,656,853 1,254,384 1,471,221 726,214 941,628
Non-controlling interests IR E R 11,337 108,686 20,371 (1,705) 51,580
1,668,190 1,363,070 1,491,502 724,509 993,208

B >>
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AREFTRT AR®EFT ARETR

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE -SERER

EQUITY
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAE 52,845,858 39,075,007 27,362,321 22,277,843 18,253,111
TOTAL LIABILITIES EERE (42,604,503) (29,685,208) (19,890,416) (16,186,358)  (12,597,191)
NET ASSETS EEFE 10,241,355 9,389,799 7,471,905 6,091,485 5655920
Attributable to: ATEREMR:

OWNERS OF THE PARENT BATREAA 9,621,802 8,173,324 7,361,632 6,000,684 5351298
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32 jR 5 619,553 1,216,475 110,273 90,801 304,622
TOTAL EQUITY BERas 10,241,355 9,389,799 7,471,905 6,091,485 5655920

>
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEWE-BX

MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FTERED R

Attributable
interest of
Project Location Use Tenure the Group
HH E R HE rEBEEGES
The Mall of Yuzhou World Phase | of Yuzhou World Trade Center Commercial and car Medium term 100%
Trade Center Phase | on Lot No. 75, Xiahe Road, Xiamen, parking space lease
Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl e B L — MM hElERE EFImEREETR BRREEN hHHE 100%
RSNt L —
The Mall of Yuzhou World Phase Il of Yuzhou World Trade Center on Commercial and car Medium term 100%
Trade Genter Phase I Lot No. 76, Xiahe Road, Xiamen, parking space lease
Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl e bl B hElERE BFITEREET6R BRREEN hHEE 100%
bub =) Rl o
The Commercial Podium of Phase | of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Yuzhou Jingiao International No. 333 Jingang Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Phase | Shanghai, the PRC
Bl 2 BEKR—HRE Rl TR R AR € 8 5R333% ki hHEE 100%
BN ERER -5
The Commercial Podium of Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Yuzhou Jingiao International Lane 50 Jinyu Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Phase Il Shanghai, the PRC
Bille £ BRI _ B2 hEl TR R AR € RIK50F Bk hHEE 100%
BNERER_H
The Commercial Podium of Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Yuzhou Jingiao International Jinyu Road and Jinxian Road, lease
Phase lll Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC
B« e BEIR=HRE hE FETRRATR S BER Bl HHRE 100%
EERENeRER=H
The Commercial Podium of Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Yuzhou Jingiao International No.69 Jinhu Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Phase IV Shanghai, the PRC
Bille e BEIRMAEE HE EETERHE S K605 Bl HHEE 100%

BN RERDS
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEWR-KE

MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
FERAEWE (5)

Attributable
interest of
Project Location Use Tenure the Group
HE fLE R# ik rEEEGER
Lot A of Yuzhou Haicang WTC Mall Lot A of Yuzhou Golden Seacoast, West of Commercial Medium term 100%
the Xinggang Road, Haicang District, lease
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bille g At EEBAR HEBREEMTERREBKAR ELi hHRE 100%
BNEGRLFFALR
Lot B of Yuzhou Haicang WTC Mall Lot B of Yuzhou Golden Seacoast, Commercial Medium term 100%
West of the Xinggang Road, lease
Haicang District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province, the PRC
Bille g At ZHHBRE HEBREEMTERREBRAR Bl hHRE 100%
BilEEeEFBIR
Yuzhou Plaza North of Minggong Building, Office and car Medium term 100%
Hubin South Road,Siming District, parking space lease
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
BMES hERREEMTRRRNERE BRAERFEN hHHE 100%
BERELH
Yuzhou Plaza Qiu 3/6, Qiu2, No 9 Street, Office and commercial Medium term 100%
/\ Jingiao Export Processing Zone, lease
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC
BMES FEEETRRAREBLAMIE WAERER hHHE 100%
13 O3B 2
=2
g
g
-
gi
Q.
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEDE-RE
MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
» D
FTEARY X
Expected Attributable
Stage of completion interest of
Project Location Use Site area GFA  Completion date the 2(‘Egroup
ER LE i} EHER BEER AIRR BHMIAN EiES
(sgm.) (sqm.)
(F5K)  (FrK) /\
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, Residential and 706,397 559,266 Under- June 2016 100%
Cangshan District, Fuzhou, commercial development
Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl eRAERE TERRERMTR LM IEEL FERER 706,397 550266 EE 201646 100% ii‘
Yuzhou Central Coast Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road and Residential and 123,240 563,730 Under- March 2016 100% =
North of Xingdong Road, Jimei District, commercial development =
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC =
Blfehaigi HEREEEMTEXEN-10RE FERER 123,240 563730 ER 20163/ 100% o=
BERRRE ARELE 2
Yuzhou Riverside City Town Area of 12-07, North of Movie & Residential and 284,414 613,244 Under- November 2016 100% >
TV City,South Wuxian Area,Tongan commercial development i
District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl e BRI TERREEMNTRZEI2-07FE FEEREA 284,414 613,244 et 2016511 A 100%
hEEARYAELA
Yuzhou Lucca Town Southeast of the junction of Xiyan Road and ~ Residential and 54,323 136,000 Under- May 2017 100%
Honggian Central Road, Xiang'an District, commercial development
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bife ERNE PEERERMTARERERE FERER 54,323 136,000 R 201765A 100%
HATPBERXOREE 335
Yuzhou Skyline West of Songlin Road, Northeast of Residential and 446,757 1,203,764  Under- June 2016 100%
Planning Road, Ranfang Vilage, Tachua commercial development
Town, Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui Province, v
the PRC
Bl e X5 PETHAQETLAGKIEERINGE  FERER 448,757 1,203,764 R 2016564 100% v
BRI BRI T
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire East of Ziyun Road, South of Feicui Road, Residential and retail 95,978 362,268 Under- June 2016 100%
Taohua Town, Feixi County, Hefei, development
Anhui Province, the PRC
Biff e HRME PEZE B QI ER A HKIEH FEREE 95,978 352,208  frit 2016564 100%
FERIR HREUE
Yuzhou Central Plaza South of Changjiangdong Road, Residential and 279,535 918,698  Under- November 2016 100%
East of Liaoyuan Road, commercial development
East Urban District, Hefel,
Anhui Province, the PRC
Bl e RES FEZPERETRINE FEREA 279,535 918698 R 2016511 100%
RIEEH BREE
Yuzhou Royal Seal South of Fanhua Avenue, West of Taishan Residential and 156,667 470,000 Under- June 2017 49%
Road, Taohua Town,Feixi County, Hefei, commercial development
Anhui Province, the PRC
B e RE PERHE QIETERZHILE FERER 156,667 470000 e 2017568 49%
ZERENE FILEAA
Yuzhou City Plaza South New Zone of Huian County, Residential and 428,188 1,480,991 Under- December 2016 100%
Quanzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC commercial development
Bl ol ES HEBRERNTEREA AR FERER 428,188 1,480,991 B’ 20165124 100%
Yuzhou Palace Country South of Beihua Road, East of Guihua Residential and retail 135,173 320,374 Under- May 2018 100%
Chunxi Avenue,Jinghai New Town, development
Tianjin, the PRC
BMER PERREDSEMNIEREA FERTE 135,173 3200374 i 2018558 100%
REFBERA
Yuzhou Bustling North of Huancheng Road, Residential 55,017 126,540 Under- May 2017 100%
East of Liuhu Road, development
Juyuan New District,
Jiading District, Shanghai, the PRC
BileEHE TELETRERRENE Tz 55,017 126540 ERE 201758 100%
R DAL - USSR AR
Yuzhou The Jiging West of Fengtainanlu, North of Xinglong Residential 41,494 112,865  Under- October 2017 100%
Street, Yuhuatai District, Nanjing, development
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BHeEEE PEIHEERTRLERRAER i 41,494 12,865 20174108 100%

A B AR
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MAJOR COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FTEHFFEHEMNR LD X

Expected Attributable
Stage of completion interest of
Project Location Use Site area GFA  Completion date the Group
rEE
HAE fig il B EE BEER HRIKR BEHRIRE EitER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAX) (FAX)
Yuzhou Golf Maging Road, Haicang District, Xiamen, Residential and car 55,986 129,187 Completed N/A 100%
Fujian Province, the PRC parking space
B mm% TEEREEFATEMATERRSEER ATREEM 55,986 129,187 BRI TER 100%
Yuzhou Shoreline Area of 05-11, East of Xinggang Road Residential and 107,622 473,184 Completed N/A 100%
and North of Jiaosong Road, commercial
Haicang District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province, the PRC
BiiegiE HEEREEMTEAR11AE FERER 107,622 473,184 BET TEA 100%
AR R AERL
Yuzhou Cloud Top South of West Liangian Road, Residential and 15,652 98,294 Completed N/A 100%
International West of Yundingzhong Road, commercial
Siming District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl e ZTREIR THEREEMTEBEENAREA .  ATREA 15,652 98294 EHRT TER 100%

EERRARA




LR Rrepeeres

WWW.XMYUZHOU.COM.CN

Principal administration and
management center in the PRC
FEFETHREES L

Yuzhou Plaza

55 South Hubin Road
Xiamen Fujian

People’s Republic of China

hE ARHTE

BEEmM
B R R 555% RN B S

Principal place of business
in Hong Kong
BRIEEXEMU

Units 4905-06, 49th Floor
The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

BEFRIR
SRREFR
B L)

491£4905-06
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